
AGENDA 
IRVINE RANCH WATER DISTRICT 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
REGULAR MEETING 

September 23, 2024 

CALL TO ORDER 5:00 p.m. 

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 

ROLL CALL Directors LaMar, McLaughlin, Swan, Withers, and President Reinhart 

PUBLIC COMMENT NOTICE 

Public comments are limited to three minutes per speaker on each subject.  If you wish to address the 
Board of Directors on any item, you may attend the meeting in person and submit a “speaker slip” to 
the Secretary.  Forms are provided outside of IRWD’s Board Room.  If attending via Webex, please 
submit your request to speak, or your comment, via the “chat” feature and your remarks will be read 
into the record at the meeting.  You may also submit a public comment in advance of the meeting by 
emailing comments@irwd.com before 12:00 p.m. on Monday, September 23, 2024. 

COMMUNICATIONS TO THE BOARD 

1. Written:

2. Oral:

3. ITEMS RECEIVED TOO LATE TO BE AGENDIZED

Recommendation:  Determine the need to discuss and /or take immediate action on item(s).

This meeting will be held in-person at the District’s headquarters located at 15600 Sand Canyon 
Avenue, Irvine, California.  The meeting will also be broadcasted via Webex for those wanting to 
observe the meeting virtually. 

To observe this meeting virtually, please join online using the link and information below: 

Via Web: https://irwd.webex.com/irwd/j.php?MTID=m03968c67b23bb4e2dd151ca12585820e    
Meeting Number (Access Code):  2490 775 2380 
Meeting Password:  gmPyPxaQ333 

PLEASE NOTE:  Webex observers of the meeting will be placed into the Webex lobby when the 
Board enters closed session.  Participants who remain in the “lobby” will automatically be returned 
to the open session of the Board once the closed session has concluded.  Observers joining the 
meeting while the Board is in closed session will receive a notice that the meeting has been locked.  
They will be able to observe the meeting once the closed session has concluded. 

mailto:comments@irwd.com
https://irwd.webex.com/irwd/globalcallin.php?MTID=me16490f55e94515ee6c478c1db196272
https://irwd.webex.com/irwd/j.php?MTID=m03968c67b23bb4e2dd151ca12585820e


IRWD Board of Directors’ Meeting 
September 23, 2024 
Page 2 
 
 

PRESENTATIONS 
 
4. PROCLAMATION 
 

A proclamation will be presented to Mr. Carl Spangenberg for his 38 years of 
service to the District. 
 
 

CONSENT CALENDAR, Items 5 through 11 
 
5. BOARD MEETING MINUTES 
 

Recommendation:  That the minutes of the August 26, 2024 Regular Board 
meeting be approved as presented. 

 
6. AUGUST 2024 TREASURY REPORT 
 

Recommendation:  That the Board receive and file the Treasurer’s Investment 
Summary Report, the Summary of Fixed and Variable Rate Debt, and the 
Disclosure Report of Reimbursements to Board members and staff, approve the 
August 2024 Summary of Payroll ACH payments in the total amount of 
$2,564,721, and approve the August 2024 accounts payable disbursement 
summary of warrants 444222 through 444857, Workers’ Compensation 
distributions, ACH payments, virtual card payments, wire transfers, payroll 
withholding distributions, and voided checks in the total amount of $27,838,557. 
 

7. 2024 LEGISLATIVE AND REGULATORY UPDATE 
 

Recommendation:  Receive and file. 
 

8. SILVERADO CANYON ROAD BRIDGE 174 WATER PIPELINE 
IMPOVEMENTS BUDGET INCREASE AND CONSTRUCTION AWARD 

 
Recommendation:  That the Board authorize a budget increase in the amount of 
$435,100, from $504,900 to $940,000, for Project 11588, and authorize the 
General Manager to execute a construction contract with Ferreira Construction 
Co., Inc. in the amount of $472,000 for the Silverado Canyon Bridge 174 Pipeline 
Improvements, Project 11588. 
 

9. SERRANO CREEK RAW WATER PIPELINE REPLACEMENT FINAL 
ACCEPTANCE 

 
Recommendation:  That the Board accept construction of the Serrano Creek Raw 
Water Pipeline Replacement; authorize the General Manager to file a Notice of 
Completion; and authorize the payment of the retention 35 days after the date of 
recording the Notice of Completion for Project 12423.  



IRWD Board of Directors’ Meeting 
September 23, 2024 
Page 3 
 
 

CONSENT CALENDAR, Items 5 through 11, continued 
 
10. TECHNOLOGY DRIVE AND ADA DRIVE RECYCLED WATER PIPELINE 

REPLACEMENT BUDGET ADDITION AND CONSULTANT SELECTION 
 
Recommendation:  That the Board authorize the addition of Project 12979, 
Technology Drive and Ada Drive Recycled Water Pipeline Replacement, to the 
Fiscal Year 2024-25 Capital Budget in the amount of $2,819,000, and authorize 
the General Manager to execute a Professional Services Agreement with MKN 
and Associates, Inc. in the amount of $327,709 for engineering design services 
for the Technology Drive and Ada Drive Recycled Water Pipeline Replacement, 
Project 12979. 

 
11. CONTROL SYSTEM PROGRAMMING SERVICES FOR THE MICHELSON 

WATER RECYCLING PLANT TERTIARY FILTER IMPROVEMENTS 
PROJECT CONSULTANT SELECTION 
 
Recommendation:  That the Board authorize the General Manager to execute a 
Professional Services Agreement with W.M. Lyles Co. in the amount of 
$326,800 for control system programming services for the Michelson Water 
Recycling Tertiary Filter Improvements, Project 07892. 
 
 

ACTION CALENDAR 
 
12. ON-CALL ENVIRONMENTAL CONSULTANT SELECTIONS 
 

Recommendation:  That the Board authorize the General Manager to execute 
Professional Services Agreements with ESA, Psomas, and Rincon to provide on-
call CEQA / NEPA services, for the next three years, for not-to-exceed amounts 
of $300,000 each and with Harmsworth Associates, Psomas, and ESA to provide 
on-call monitoring and permitting services, for the next three years, for not-to-
exceed amounts of $300,000 each. 

 
13. SEWER SIPHON IMPROVEMENTS PHASE II VARIANCE AND 

CONSTRUCTION AWARD 
 
Recommendation:  That the Board authorize the General Manager to execute 
Variance No. 1 in the amount of $214,777 with Woodard & Curran to provide 
engineering services during construction, and authorize the General Manager to 
execute a construction contract with Mike Prlich and Sons, Inc. in the amount of 
$7,434,855.67 for the sewer Siphon Improvements Phase II, Project 11841. 

  



IRWD Board of Directors’ Meeting 
September 23, 2024 
Page 4 
 
 
OTHER BUSINESS 
 
Pursuant to Government Code Section 54954.2, members of the Board of Directors or staff may ask questions for 
clarification, make brief announcements, and make brief reports on his/her own activities.  The Board or a Board 
member may provide a reference to staff or other resources for information, request staff to report back at a subsequent 
meeting concerning any matter, or direct staff to place a matter of business on a future agenda.  Such matters may be 
brought up under the General Manager’s Report or Directors’ Comments.  Pursuant to AB 1234 and Government Code 
Section 53232.3(d), a written draft report of the meetings that any Board member attended on behalf of IRWD since the 
last Board Meeting will be available at the table near the Board Room entrance, and will be amended verbally, if 
necessary, during Directors’ Comments. 
 
14. General Manager’s Report 
 
15. Receive oral update(s) from District liaison(s) regarding communities within IRWD’s 

service area and interests. 
 
16. Directors’ Comments and Meeting Reports 
 
17. Adjournment 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
********************************************************************************************************************** 
Availability of agenda materials:  Agenda exhibits and other writings that are disclosable public records distributed to all or a majority 
of the members of the above-named Board in connection with a matter subject to discussion or consideration at an open meeting of the 
Board are available for public inspection in the District’s office, 15600 Sand Canyon Avenue, Irvine, California (“District Office”).  If 
such writings are distributed to members of the Board less than 72 hours prior to the meeting, they will be available from the District 
Secretary of the District Office at the same time as they are distributed to Board Members, except that if such writings are distributed 
one hour prior to, or during, the meeting, they will be available electronically via the Webex meeting noted.  Upon request, the District 
will provide for written agenda materials in appropriate alternative formats, and reasonable disability-related modification or 
accommodation to enable individuals with disabilities to participate in and provide comments at public meetings. Please submit a 
request, including your name, phone number and/or email address, and a description of the modification, accommodation, or alternative 
format requested at least two days before the meeting.  Requests should be emailed to comments@irwd.com.  Requests made by mail 
must be received at least two days before the meeting. Requests will be granted whenever possible and resolved in favor of accessibility. 



No. 5 Minutes 5 

September 23, 2024 
Prepared and 
submitted by: K. Swan 
Approved by: Paul A. Cook 

CONSENT CALENDAR 

BOARD MEETING MINUTES 
SUMMARY: 

Provided are the minutes of the August 26, 2024 Regular Board meeting for approval. 

FISCAL IMPACTS: 

None. 

ENVIRONMENTAL COMPLIANCE: 

Not applicable. 

COMMITTEE STATUS: 

Not applicable. 

RECOMMENDATION: 

THAT THE MINUTES OF THE AUGUST 26, 2024 REGULAR BOARD MEETING BE 
APPROVED AS PRESENTED. 

LIST OF EXHIBITS: 

Exhibit “A” – August 26, 2024 Minutes 



 
Note:  This page is intentionally left blank. 

 



EXHIBIT “A” 

A-1 

MINUTES OF REGULAR MEETING – AUGUST 26, 2024 

The regular meeting of the Board of Directors of the Irvine Ranch Water District (IRWD) was 
called to order by President Reinhart at 5:00 p.m. on August 26, 2024 at the District offices, 
15600 Sand Canyon Avenue, Irvine. 

Directors Present:  McLaughlin, Withers, Swan, LaMar, and President Reinhart. 

Directors Absent:  None. 

Oral and Written Communications:  None. 

Items too late to be agendized:  None. 

Also Present:  General Manager Cook, Executive Director of Technical Services Burton, 
Executive Director of Operations Chambers, Executive Director of Finance Adly, Executive 
Director of Water Policy Weghorst, Director of Human Resources Mitcham, Director of 
Maintenance Manning, Director of Recycling Operations Zepeda, Director of Water Resources 
Sanchez, Director of Information Technology Kaneshiro, Director of Strategic Communications 
and Advocacy/Deputy General Counsel Compton, Director of Financial Planning and Data 
Analytics Smithson, General Counsel Collins, Secretary Swan, Consultant Newell, and members 
of the staff and public. 

CONSENT CALENDAR 

On MOTION by LaMar, seconded by Swan and unanimously carried, CONSENT CALENDAR 
ITEMS 4 THROUGH 10 WERE APPROVED AS FOLLOWS: 

4. BOARD MEETING MINUTES 

Recommendation:  That the minutes of the August 12, 2024 Regular Board 
meeting be approved as presented. 

5. JULY 2024 TREASURY REPORT 

Recommendation:  That the Board receive and file the Treasurer’s Investment Summary 
report, the summary of fixed and variable rate debt, and the disclosure report of 
reimbursements to Board members and staff, approve the July 2024 summary of payroll 
ACH payments in the total amount of $2,505,929, and approve the July 2024 accounts 
payable disbursement summary of warrants 443804 through 444221, Workers’ 
Compensation distributions, ACH payments, virtual card payments, wire transfers, 
payroll withholding distributions, and voided checks in the total amount of $50,988,142. 

6. PLANNING AREA 40 CYPRESS VILLAGE MARINE WAY CAPITAL DOMESTIC 
WATER IMPROVEMENTS 

Recommendation:  That the Board authorize the General Manager to accept Irvine 
Community Development Company’s construction contract with Shoffeitt Pipeline, Inc. 
in the amount of $795,843.25, and authorize a budget increase for Project 12510 in the 
amount of $693,000, from $507,000 to $1,200,000, for the Planning Area 40 Cypress 
Village Marine Way Capital Domestic Water Improvements.  



CONSENT CALENDAR (CONTINUED) 
 

A-2 

7. PLANNING AREA 51 HERITAGE FIELDS MARINE WAY STAGE 3 CAPITAL 
FACILITIES 

Recommendation:  That the Board authorize the General Manager to accept Heritage 
Fields’ construction contract with L&S Construction, Inc. in the amount of $2,031,738 
for the Planning Area 51 Marine Way Stage 3 Capital Facilities Improvements Project; 
and authorize the addition of Projects 13107, 13109, and 13110 in the respective amounts 
of $710,000, $1,200,000, and $900,000 to the Fiscal Year 2024-25 Capital Budget for the 
Planning Area 51 Marine Way Stage 3 Capital Improvements Project. 

8. FISCAL YEARS 2023-24 AND 2024-25 GENERAL REPLACEMENTS AND 
MODIFICATIONS PROJECTS BUDGET INCREASES 

Recommendation:  That the Board authorize budget increases to Fiscal Year 2023-24 for 
Project 11774 in the amount of $967,000, from $6,663,000 to $7,600,000, and for Project 
11777 in the amount of $1,037,000, from $2,663,000, to $3,700,000; and authorize 
budget increases to Fiscal Year 2024-25 for Project 11850 in the amount of $3,517,000, 
from $6,283,000, to $9,800,000, Project 11851 in the amount of $3,597,000, from 
$2,103,000, to $5,700,000, and Project 11852 in the amount of $1,815,000, from 
$1,785,000, to $3,600,000. 

9. TRUNK SEWER PROTECTION WITHIN SAN DIEGO CREEK AT STATE 
ROUTE 133 CONTRACT CHANGE ORDER AND FINAL ACCEPTANCE 

Recommendation:  That the Board approve Contract Change Order No. 1 in the 
credit amount of $1,803,000, accept construction of the Trunk Sewer Protection 
within San Diego Creek at State Route 133, authorize the General Manager to file 
a Notice of Completion, and authorize the payment of the retention 35 days after 
the date of recording the Notice of Completion for Project 12125. 

10. FARM LEASES ON IRWD PROPERTIES IN PALO VERDE IRRIGATION 
DISTRICT 

Recommendation:  That the Board authorize the General Manager to execute a five-year 
lease agreement with E&S Farming LLC for the Williams and Martin properties at $335 
per acre, and an amendment to the existing lease agreement with Van Dyke Farms to 
extend the lease term and include the Holt property starting at $275 per acre, subject to 
non-substantive changes. 

 
ACTION CALENDAR 
11. SYPHON RESERVOIR IMPROVEMENT VARIANCE AND FINAL 

ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACT REPORT ADDENDUM NO. 1 

Executive Director of Technical Services Burton reported on the progress that the AECOM 
design team has made and requested the Board authorize the General Manager to execute 
Variance No. 3 to cover three additional areas of the project: (1) additional engineering services 
that the Division of Safety of Dams requested, and that AECOM was tasked to address and 
resolve;  (2) additional engineering analyses requested by the Independent Design & Safety 
Review Panel, a group of nationally-recognized dam professionals that IRWD established to 



ACTION CALENDAR (CONTINUED) 
 

A-3 

provide a design review; and (3) additional design developments requested by IRWD staff over 
the course of the past two years.  Following his report, Mr. Burton introduced Director of Water 
Resources Sanchez to present Addendum No. 1 to the Final Environmental Impact Report for the 
Syphon Reservoir Improvement Project. 

Director of Water Resources Sanchez requested that the Board approve the proposed Addendum 
No. 1 to the Syphon Reservoir Improvement Project Environmental Impact Report and the 
modifications of the off-site habitat as mitigation land, and that the Board authorize staff to post 
and file a notice of determination. 

Director McLaughlin reported that this item was reviewed and discussed at the Engineering and 
Operations Committee, and that Committee supports the staff recommendation.  President 
Reinhart opened the floor to comments.  Ms. Sanchez fielded questions from the Board, 
confirming that two existing facilities will be able to divert water to the proposed Syphon 
Reservoir Improvement Project Off-Site Mitigation Project.  The project will not require the 
Regional Board to be involved as there will be a minimal impact to the San Diego Creek, and 
water would be diverted during the seasonal wet months.  The operation would be covered under 
IRWD’s existing riparian rights. 

On MOTION by McLaughlin, seconded by Withers and carried with a 4-1 vote, (Reinhart, 
LaMar, McLaughlin, Withers, and Reinhart voting aye, and Swan voting no), THE BOARD 
AUTHORIZED THE GENERAL MANAGER TO EXECUTE VARIANCE NO. 3 IN THE 
AMOUNT OF $660,000 WITH AECOM FOR ADDITIONAL ENGINEERING DESIGN 
SERVICES FOR PROJECT 03808, AND APPROVED THE PROPOSED ADDENDUM NO. 1 
TO THE SYPHON RESERVOIR IMPROVEMENT PROJECT FINAL ENVIRONMENTAL 
IMPACT REPORT, INCLUDING THE DETERMINATIONS SET FORTH IN ADDENDUM 
NO. 1, APPROVED THE MODIFICATIONS TO THE PROJECT CONSISTING OF THE 
OFF-SITE HABITAT AS MITIGATION FOR THE SYPHON RESERVOIR IMPROVEMENT 
PROJECT AND AUTHORIZED STAFF TO POST AND FILE A NOTICE OF 
DETERMINATION. 

12. ORANGE HEIGHTS ZONE 5 TO 6 AND ZONE C+ TO E BOOSTER PUMP 
STATIONS CONSULTANT SELECTION 

Executive Director of Technical Services Burton provided an overview of the project and its 
history.  Dating back to 2016, the project has been stopped three times by the Irvine Community 
Development Company.  Lee + Ro was the original design engineer that was selected through a 
competitive proposal process.  Since so much time had passed since the initial request for 
proposals in 2016, staff went out to bid, and two firms submitted proposals.  Lee + Ro proved to 
be the best firm to undertake the project.  Director McLaughlin provided that following a 
discussion at the Engineering and Operations Committee, the Committee supports the staff 
recommendation.  

On MOTION by McLaughlin, seconded by Withers, and carried unanimously, THE BOARD 
AUTHORIZED THE GENERAL MANAGER TO EXECUTE A PROFESSIONAL SERVICES 
AGREEMENT WITH LEE + RO IN THE AMOUNT OF $836,760 FOR ENGINEERING 
DESIGN SERVICES FOR THE ORANGE HEIGHTS ZONE 5 TO 6 AND ZONE C+ TO E 
PUMP STATIONS, PROJECTS 07136 AND 07139. 

 



 

A-4 

OTHER BUSINESS 

13. General Manager’s Report 

General Manager Cook stated that he did not have a report for the evening; but that the IRWD 
coloring books are available. 

14. Receive oral update(s) from District liaison(s) regarding communities within IRWD’s 
service area and interests. 

Consultant Newell reported that the Canyons are doing well; no issues to report. 

15. Directors’ Comments and Meeting Reports 

Director McLaughlin reported on her participation in the ACWA webinar “From Policy to 
Practice:  Understanding the Making Conservation a California Way of Life Regulation”. 

Director Withers had nothing to report.  

Director Swan reported on his attendance at the MWDOC Administration and Finance 
Committee meeting; the WACO Planning Committee Meeting; the MWDOC Board Meeting via 
teleconference; the Urban Water Institute 2024 Annual Conference in San Diego; and the Urban 
Water Institute Board Meeting. 

Director LaMar reported on his participation in the CCEEB Joint Meeting of the Water, 
Chemistry & Waste Project and the Water Quality Task Force; the NCC Finance Committee 
meeting; the ACWA Headwaters Task Force meeting; and the Urban Water Institute 2024 
Annual Conference in San Diego. 

President Reinhart reported on his attendance at the MWDOC Administration and Finance 
Committee meeting; the OCWD Water Issues Committee meeting; the OCWD Administration 
and Finance Issues Committee meeting; and the Urban Water Institute 2024 Annual Conference 
in San Diego. 

16. CLOSED SESSION 

President Reinhart convened the meeting into Closed Session at 5:35 p.m. and General Counsel 
Collins announcing the following: 

A. CONFERENCE WITH LEGAL COUNSEL — ANTICIPATED LITIGATION – 
Pursuant to Government Code Section 54956.9(d)(2): significant exposure to 
litigation. (One (1) potential case; City of Lake Forest re: El Toro Road Damage.) 

17. OPEN SESSION 

Following the Closed Session, the meeting was reconvened in Open Session with Directors 
Withers, Swan, McLaughlin, LaMar, and President Reinhart present.  General Counsel Collins 
announced that there was no action to report.  

18. Adjournment 

There being no further business, President Reinhart adjourned the meeting at 5:45 p.m. 



OTHER BUSINESS (CONTINUED) 
 

A-5 

APPROVED and SIGNED this 23rd day of September 2024. 

 
 
 
  
President, IRVINE RANCH WATER DISTRICT 
 
 
  
Secretary, IRVINE RANCH WATER DISTRICT 

 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
  
Claire Hervey Collins, General Counsel 
Hanson Bridgett LLP 



 
Note:  This page is intentionally left blank. 

 



No. 6 Treasury Report 6 

September 23, 2024 
Prepared by: O. Mendoza / J. Davis 
Submitted by: N. Adly 
Approved by: Paul A. Cook 

CONSENT CALENDAR 

AUGUST 2024 TREASURY REPORT 

SUMMARY: 

The following is submitted for the Board’s information and approval: 
A. The August 2024 Investment Summary Report.  This Investment Summary Report

conforms with the 2024 Investment Policy as outlined in Exhibit “A”;
B. The Summary of Fixed and Variable Rate Debt as of August 31, 2024, as outlined

in Exhibit “B”;
C. The Monthly Interest Rate Swap Summary as of August 31, 2024, as outlined in

Exhibit “C”;
D. The August 31, 2024, Disbursement Summary of warrants 444222 through 444857,

Workers’ Compensation distributions, ACH payments, virtual card payments, wire
transfers, payroll withholding distributions, and voided checks in the total amount
of $27,838,557 as outlined in Exhibit “D”;

E. The Summary of Payroll ACH payments in the total amount of $2,564,721 as
outlined in Exhibit “E”; and

F. The Disclosure Report of Reimbursements to Board members and staff for August
2024, detailing payments or reimbursements for individual charges of $100 or more
per transaction as outlined in Exhibit “F”.

FISCAL IMPACTS: 

As of August 31, 2024, the book value of the investment portfolio was $383,404,656, with a 
4.50% rate of return and a market value of $385,243,814.  Based on IRWD’s June 30, 2024, 
quarterly real estate annualized investment rate of return of 14.63%, the weighted average return 
for the fixed income and real estate investments was 6.69%. 

As of August 31, 2024, the outstanding principal amount of fixed and variable rate debt was 
$583,895,000.  The monthly weighted average all-in variable rate was 3.28%.  Including 
IRWD’s weighted average fixed rate bond issues of 3.73% and the negative cash accruals from 
fixed payer interest rate swaps, which hedge a portion of the District’s variable rate debt, the 
total average debt rate was 3.57%. 

Payroll ACH payments totaled $2,564,721.  Wire transfers, other ACH payments, and checks 
issued for debt service, accounts payable, payroll, water purchases, and voided checks for 
August totaled $27,838,557. 



Consent Calendar:  August 2024 Treasury Report 
September 23, 2024 
Page 2 
 
 
ENVIRONMENTAL COMPLIANCE: 
 
This item is not a project as defined in the California Environmental Quality Act Code of 
Regulations, Title 14, Chapter 3, Section 15378. 
 
COMMITTEE STATUS: 
 
All items in this report were not submitted to a Committee; the investment and debt reports are 
submitted to the Finance and Personnel Committee monthly. 
 
RECOMMENDATION:  
 
THAT THE BOARD RECEIVE AND FILE THE TREASURER’S INVESTMENT 
SUMMARY REPORT, THE SUMMARY OF FIXED AND VARIABLE RATE DEBT, AND 
THE DISCLOSURE REPORT OF REIMBURSEMENTS TO BOARD MEMBERS AND 
STAFF, APPROVE THE AUGUST 2024 SUMMARY OF PAYROLL ACH PAYMENTS IN 
THE TOTAL AMOUNT OF $2,564,721, AND APPROVE THE AUGUST 2024 ACCOUNTS 
PAYABLE DISBURSEMENT SUMMARY OF WARRANTS 444222 THROUGH 444857, 
WORKERS’ COMPENSATION DISTRIBUTIONS, ACH PAYMENTS, VIRTUAL CARD 
PAYMENTS, WIRE TRANSFERS, PAYROLL WITHHOLDING DISTRIBUTIONS, AND 
VOIDED CHECKS IN THE TOTAL AMOUNT OF $27,838,557. 
 
LIST OF EXHIBITS: 
 
Exhibit “A” – Investment Summary Report 
Exhibit “B” – Summary of Fixed and Variable Debt 
Exhibit “C” – Monthly Interest Rate Swap Summary 
Exhibit “D” – Monthly Summary of District Disbursements 
Exhibit “E” – Monthly Payroll ACH Summary 
Exhibit “F” – Disclosure of Reimbursements to Board Members and Staff 



Irvine Ranch Water District
Investment Portfolio Summary

August 2024

Type PAR Book Value Market Value

US Treasury 275,000,000 271,768,235 273,730,700

Agency Note 85,000,000 84,459,257 84,335,950

Treasury Plus MMF 27,177,164 27,177,164 27,177,164

Grand Total 387,177,164 383,404,656 385,243,814

Issuer Column1 PAR % Portfolio

US Treasury 275,000,000 71.03%

Fed Farm Credit Bank 50,000,000 12.91%

Wells Fargo / Allspring 27,177,164 7.02%

Fed Home Loan Bank 20,000,000 5.17%

Fed Home Loan Mortgage Corp 15,000,000 3.87%

Grand Total 387,177,164 100.00%

Investment Summary

Top Issuers

0.00%

0.50%

1.00%

1.50%

2.00%

2.50%

3.00%

3.50%

4.00%

4.50%

5.00%

Monthly Fixed Income Yield

0.00%

1.00%

2.00%

3.00%

4.00%

5.00%

6.00%

7.00%

8.00%

Weighted Average Return Including Real 
Estate Portfolio

US Treasury
71.03%

Agency Note
21.95%

Treasury Plus MMF
7.02%

Portfolio Distribution

25.10% 24.54%

10.33% 10.33% 10.33%

0.00%

19.37%

0-6
Months

6-12
Months

12-18
Months

18-24
Months

24-30
Months

30-36
Months

36+
Months

Maturity Distribution

S:\INVEST\INVESTMENTS\Avg. Inv. Bal. & ROR - 1987 to Current

Exhibit "A"

A - 1



Page 1 of 2

Call Initial Maturity INVESTMENT INSTITUTION / PAR COUPON ORIGINAL CARRY VALUE MARKET VALUE(1) UNREALIZED(2)

SETTLMT Schedule Call Date Rating TYPE ISSUER Amount DISCOUNT YIELD COST 8/31/2024 GAIN/(LOSS)

04/06/23 09/01/24 LAIF State of California Tsy. $0.00 4.570% $0.00 $0.00 0.00 0.00
08/31/24 09/01/24 Treasury Plus MMF Wells Fargo / Allspring 27,177,163.59  5.129% 27,177,163.59  27,177,163.59  27,177,163.59 0.00

08/31/22 NA NA 09/13/24 Aaa/AA+/NR FHLB - Note Fed Home Loan Bank 5,000,000  3.250% 3.530% 4,972,750.00 5,021,773.86 4,997,150.00 (24,623.86)
09/30/22 NA NA 09/13/24 Aaa/AA+/NR FHLB - Note Fed Home Loan Bank 5,000,000  3.250% 4.340% 4,898,930.00 4,998,301.34 4,997,150.00 (1,151.34)
09/30/22 NA NA 09/26/24 Aaa/AA+/NR FFCB - Note Fed Farm Credit Bank 5,000,000  4.250% 4.334% 4,992,100.00 4,999,728.34 4,996,600.00 (3,128.34)
10/17/22 NA NA 10/17/24 Aaa/AA+/NR FFCB - Note Fed Farm Credit Bank 10,000,000  4.375% 4.535% 9,969,800.00 9,998,099.59 9,988,200.00 (9,899.59)
03/14/24 NA NA 10/31/24 Aaa/AA+/AA+ Treasury - Note US Treasury 5,000,000  2.250% 5.257% 4,908,007.81 4,976,105.92 4,976,550.00 444.08
10/31/22 NA NA 11/15/24 Aaa/AA+/AA+ Treasury - Note US Treasury 5,000,000  2.250% 4.489% 4,783,984.38 4,978,282.61 4,970,850.00 (7,432.61)
12/22/22 NA NA 11/18/24 Aaa/AA+/AAA FFCB - Note Fed Farm Credit Bank 5,000,000  0.875% 4.260% 4,693,316.75 4,965,679.64 4,954,100.00 (11,579.64)
10/31/22 NA NA 12/31/24 Aaa/AA+/AA+ Treasury - Note US Treasury 5,000,000  2.250% 4.471% 4,773,046.88 4,965,326.61 4,955,200.00 (10,126.61)
10/31/22 NA NA 12/31/24 Aaa/AA+/AA+ Treasury - Note US Treasury 5,000,000  2.250% 4.483% 4,771,875.00 4,965,147.57 4,955,200.00 (9,947.57)
10/31/22 NA NA 01/15/25 Aaa/AA+/AA+ Treasury - Note US Treasury 5,000,000  1.125% 4.476% 4,651,562.50 4,941,279.43 4,932,550.00 (8,729.43)
10/31/22 NA NA 01/31/25 Aaa/AA+/AA+ Treasury - Note US Treasury 5,000,000  2.500% 4.483% 4,789,843.75 4,964,583.33 4,951,600.00 (12,983.33)
11/30/23 NA NA 01/31/25 Aaa/AA+/AA+ Treasury - Note US Treasury 10,000,000  2.500% 5.097% 9,708,593.75 9,896,509.93 9,903,200.00 6,690.07
02/07/23 NA NA 02/14/25 Aaa/AA+/AAA FFCB - Note Fed Farm Credit Bank 5,000,000  1.750% 4.500% 4,737,350.00 4,940,921.54 4,930,550.00 (10,371.54)
12/30/22 NA NA 02/28/25 Aaa/AA+/AA+ Treasury - Note US Treasury 5,000,000  2.750% 4.317% 4,839,453.13 4,963,465.95 4,950,800.00 (12,665.95)
02/07/23 NA NA 03/14/25 Aaa/AA+/NR FHLB - Note Fed Home Loan Bank 5,000,000  4.250% 4.518% 4,973,050.00 4,993,174.54 4,992,700.00 (474.54)
12/30/22 NA NA 03/15/25 Aaa/AA+/AA+ Treasury - Note US Treasury 5,000,000  1.750% 4.329% 4,731,250.00 4,934,979.84 4,923,950.00 (11,029.84)
04/12/23 NA NA 03/31/25 Aaa/AA+/AA+ Treasury - Note US Treasury 20,000,000  3.875% 4.073% 19,925,781.25 19,978,219.53 19,907,600.00 (70,619.53)
12/22/22 NA NA 04/01/25 Aaa/AA+/AAA FHLB - Note Fed Home Loan Bank 5,000,000  4.200% 4.160% 5,004,550.00 5,001,160.77 4,990,500.00 (10,660.77)
04/18/24 NA NA 04/15/25 Aaa/AA+/AA+ Treasury - Note US Treasury 10,000,000  2.625% 5.163% 9,757,617.18 9,848,678.13 9,880,000.00 31,321.87
12/08/22 Quarterly 02/12/2023 05/12/25 Aaa/AA+/AAA FHLMC - Note Fed Home Loan Mortgage Corp 5,000,000  3.050% 4.427% 4,843,000.00 4,955,168.17 4,943,150.00 (12,018.17)
01/11/23 NA NA 05/15/25 Aaa/AA+/AA+ Treasury - Note US Treasury 5,000,000  2.750% 4.148% 4,845,312.50 4,953,684.21 4,935,850.00 (17,834.21)
12/13/22 NA NA 06/13/25 Aaa/AA+/AAA FFCB - Note Fed Farm Credit Bank 5,000,000  4.250% 4.340% 4,989,400.00 4,996,691.13 4,988,400.00 (8,291.13)
12/13/22 NA NA 06/13/25 Aaa/AA+/AAA FFCB - Note Fed Farm Credit Bank 5,000,000  4.250% 4.352% 4,988,000.00 4,996,254.11 4,988,400.00 (7,854.11)
08/01/23 NA NA 07/15/25 Aaa/AA+/AA+ Treasury - Note US Treasury 10,000,000  3.000% 4.917% 9,646,875.00 9,843,220.41 9,875,400.00 32,179.59
04/24/23 NA NA 07/24/25 Aaa/AA+/AAA FFCB - Note Fed Farm Credit Bank 10,000,000  4.250% 4.253% 10,000,000.00 10,000,000.00 9,977,000.00 (23,000.00)
04/21/23 NA NA 09/23/25 Aaa/AA+/AAA FHLMC - Note Fed Home Loan Mortgage Corp 10,000,000  0.375% 4.127% 9,143,400.00 9,625,841.76 9,595,800.00 (30,041.76)
12/01/22 NA NA 10/15/25 Aaa/AA+/AA+ Treasury - Note US Treasury 5,000,000  4.250% 4.298% 4,993,359.38 4,997,410.85 4,996,900.00 (510.85)
12/01/23 NA NA 11/15/25 Aaa/AA+/AA+ Treasury - Note US Treasury 10,000,000  2.250% 4.719% 9,543,750.00 9,719,230.77 9,765,600.00 46,369.23

12/01/22 Continuous after 9/12/2023 12/12/25 Aaa/AA+/AAA FFCB - Note Fed Farm Credit Bank 5,000,000  4.125% 4.694% 4,920,500.00 4,966,462.06 4,996,250.00 29,787.94

04/18/24 NA NA 01/15/26 Aaa/AA+/AA+ Treasury - Note US Treasury 10,000,000  3.875% 5.033% 9,808,593.75 9,849,459.13 9,961,700.00 112,240.87

02/21/24 NA NA 02/15/26 Aaa/AA+/AA+ Treasury - Note US Treasury 15,000,000  4.000% 4.553% 14,844,140.63 14,885,631.47 14,974,800.00 89,168.53

04/30/24 NA NA 03/31/26 Aaa/AA+/AA+ Treasury - Note US Treasury 5,000,000  4.500% 5.017% 4,953,125.00 4,961,428.57 5,031,050.00 69,621.43
07/06/23 NA NA 06/15/26 Aaa/AA+/AA+ Treasury - Note US Treasury 15,000,000  4.125% 4.566% 14,819,531.25 14,890,543.60 15,030,450.00 139,906.40

IRVINE RANCH WATER DISTRICT
INVESTMENT SUMMARY REPORT

08/31/24

A - 2



Page 2 of 2

Call Initial Maturity INVESTMENT INSTITUTION / PAR COUPON ORIGINAL CARRY VALUE MARKET VALUE(1) UNREALIZED(2)

SETTLMT Schedule Call Date Rating TYPE ISSUER Amount DISCOUNT YIELD COST 8/31/2024 GAIN/(LOSS)

IRVINE RANCH WATER DISTRICT
INVESTMENT SUMMARY REPORT

08/31/24

06/03/24 NA NA 07/15/26 Aaa/AA+/AA+ Treasury - Note US Treasury 5,000,000  4.500% 4.843% 4,965,625.00 4,969,632.45 5,046,300.00 76,667.55
09/27/23 NA NA 09/15/26 Aaa/AA+/AA+ Treasury - Note US Treasury 10,000,000  4.625% 4.846% 9,939,453.13 9,958,443.85 10,133,600.00 175,156.15
11/03/23 NA NA 10/15/26 Aaa/AA+/AA+ Treasury - Note US Treasury 10,000,000  4.625% 4.784% 9,956,640.63 9,968,839.23 10,142,200.00 173,360.77
12/28/23 NA NA 12/15/26 Aaa/AA+/AA+ Treasury - Note US Treasury 10,000,000  4.375% 4.020% 10,098,046.88 10,075,594.78 10,107,400.00 31,805.22
01/31/24 NA NA 01/15/27 Aaa/AA+/AA+ Treasury - Note US Treasury 10,000,000  4.000% 4.171% 9,952,734.38 9,962,099.98 10,029,300.00 67,200.02
03/11/24 NA NA 09/30/27 Aaa/AA+/AA+ Treasury - Note US Treasury 10,000,000  4.125% 4.195% 9,976,953.13 9,980,042.62 10,100,400.00 120,357.38
05/24/24 NA NA 01/31/28 Aaa/AA+/AA+ Treasury - Note US Treasury 10,000,000  3.500% 4.621% 9,623,437.50 9,651,393.14 9,909,800.00 258,406.86
07/18/24 NA NA 04/30/28 Aaa/AA+/AA+ Treasury - Note US Treasury 5,000,000  1.250% 4.152% 4,496,484.38 4,512,879.61 4,571,900.00 59,020.39
06/27/24 NA NA 07/31/28 Aaa/AA+/AA+ Treasury - Note US Treasury 10,000,000  4.125% 4.394% 9,900,000.00 9,904,414.72 10,130,500.00 226,085.28
08/16/24 NA NA 08/15/28 Aaa/AA+/AA+ Treasury - Note US Treasury 5,000,000  2.875% 3.854% 4,820,312.50 4,822,281.68 4,835,950.00 13,668.32
08/09/24 NA NA 09/30/28 Aaa/AA+/AA+ Treasury - Note US Treasury 10,000,000  1.250% 3.863% 9,008,593.75 9,023,664.70 9,058,200.00 34,535.30
11/28/23 NA NA 10/31/28 Aaa/AA+/AA+ Treasury - Note US Treasury 10,000,000  4.875% 4.464% 10,179,687.50 10,151,920.34 10,425,000.00 273,079.66
12/15/23 NA NA 11/30/28 Aaa/AA+/AA+ Treasury - Note US Treasury 15,000,000  4.375% 3.897% 15,319,921.88 15,273,840.42 15,360,900.00 87,059.58

SUB-TOTAL $387,177,164 $379,636,904.14 $383,404,655.81 $385,243,813.59 $1,839,157.78

TOTAL INVESTMENTS $387,177,164 $379,636,904.14 $383,404,655.81 $385,243,813.59 $1,839,157.78

Petty Cash 600.00
 Ck Balance Bank of America ECR 1.77% 2,050,604.08

 Ck Balance Wells Fargo ECR 2.00% 0.00 (5)

$381,688,108.22

(1) LAIF market value is as of the most recent quarter-end as reported by LAIF. Outstanding Variable Rate Debt $210,800,000
Security market values are determined using Bank of New York ("Trading Prices"), Bloomberg Net Outstanding Variable Rate Debt (Less $60 million fixed-payer swaps) $150,800,000
and/or broker dealer pricing. Investment Balance: $381,688,108
(2) Gain (loss) calculated against carry value using the trading value provided by Bank of New York/or Brokers. Investment to Variable Rate Debt Ratio: 253%
(3) Real estate rate of return is based on most recent quarter end return. Portfolio - Average Number of Days To Maturity 539
(4)Original Cost updated to reflect capital tenant improvements added for Fiscal Year 2023.
of capital tenant improvements during FY 2023.
(5) Cash balance in this account are funds that are pending purchase into the current money market fund. Investment Real Estate(3)(4) Weighted Avg. 
*S - Step up Portfolio Portfolio Return

This Investment Summary Report is in conformity with the 2024 Investment Policy August 4.50% 14.63% 6.69%
and provides sufficient liquidity to meet the next six months estimated expenditures. July 4.53% 14.63% 6.66%

Change -0.03% 0.00% 0.03%

A - 3



DATE TOTAL % LAIF Agency Notes Agency Discount 
Notes

Municipal Bonds US Treasury Investment 
Sweep

8/24 27,177,164 7.02% 27,177,164  
9/24 15,000,000 3.87% 15,000,000 
10/24 15,000,000 3.87% 10,000,000 5,000,000  
11/24 10,000,000 2.58% 5,000,000 5,000,000  
12/24 10,000,000 2.58% 10,000,000  
1/25 20,000,000 5.17% 20,000,000  
2/25 10,000,000 2.58% 5,000,000 5,000,000  
3/25 30,000,000 7.75% 5,000,000 25,000,000  
4/25 15,000,000 3.87% 5,000,000 10,000,000  
5/25 10,000,000 2.58% 5,000,000 5,000,000  
6/25 10,000,000 2.58% 10,000,000 
7/25 20,000,000 5.17% 10,000,000 10,000,000  
SUB-TOTAL $192,177,164 49.64% $70,000,000 $95,000,000 $27,177,164

13 MONTHS - 3+ YEARS
8/01/2025 - 10/31/2025 $15,000,000 3.87% 10,000,000  5,000,000  
11/01/2025 - 01/31/2026 $25,000,000 6.46% 5,000,000  20,000,000  
02/01/2026 - 04/30/2026 $20,000,000 5.17% 20,000,000  
05/01/2026 - 7/31/2026 $20,000,000 5.17% 20,000,000  
8/01/2026  - 10/31/2026 $20,000,000 5.17% 20,000,000  
11/01/2026 - 01/31/2027 $20,000,000 5.17% 20,000,000  
02/01/2027 - 04/30/2027
05/01/2027 - 7/31/2027
08/01/2027 - 10/31/2027 $10,000,000 2.58% 10,000,000  
11/01/2027 - 01/31/2028 $10,000,000 2.58% 10,000,000  
02/01/2028 - 04/30/2028 $5,000,000 1.29% 5,000,000  
5/01/2028 + $50,000,000 12.91% 50,000,000  
SUB-TOTAL $195,000,000 50.36% $15,000,000 $180,000,000
TOTALS $387,177,164 100.00% $85,000,000 $275,000,000 $27,177,164

% OF PORTFOLIO 21.95% 71.03% 7.02%

IRVINE RANCH WATER DISTRICT
SUMMARY OF MATURITIES

08/31/24

A - 4



ANNUALIZED
RATE OF RETURN

ACQUISITION PROPERTY OWNERSHIP ORIGINAL MARKET VALUE QUARTER ENDED
DATE  TYPE INTEREST COST 6/30/2024 6/30/2024

Sycamore Canyon Dec-92 Apartments Fee Simple 45,457,369$   220,000,000$   23.58%

Wood Canyon Villas Jun-91 Apartments Limited Partner 6,000,000$   38,420,894$   8.57%

ITC (230 Commerce) Jul-03 Office Building Fee Simple 5,568,747$   10,000,000$   11.04%

Waterworks Business Pk. Nov-08 Research & Dev. Fee Simple 8,983,395$   13,500,000$   7.46%

Sand Canyon Professional Center - Medical Office Jul-12 Medical Office Fee Simple 8,715,929$   12,000,000$   8.03%
.

Sand Canyon Professional Center - General Office(1) Sep-20 Office Building Fee Simple 31,404,103$   32,000,000$   7.35%

Total - Income Properties 106,129,543$   325,920,894$   14.63%
(1) Original Cost updated to reflect capital tenant improvements added for Fiscal Year 2023.

Irvine Ranch Water District
Summary of Real Estate - Income Producing Investments

6/30/2024

A - 5



MATURITIES/SALES/CALLS PURCHASES

DATE SECURITY TYPE PAR YIELD
Settlement 

Date Maturity Date SECURITY TYPE PAR
YIELD TO 

MATURITY

8/15/2024 Treasury - Note $5,000,000 5.26% 8/9/2024 9/30/2028 Treasury - Note $10,000,000 3.86%
8/26/2024 FFCB - Note $5,000,000 3.50% 8/16/2024 8/15/2028 Treasury - Note $5,000,000 3.85%
8/28/2024 FHLB - Note $5,000,000 3.95%
8/28/2024 FHLB - Note $5,000,000 5.34%

(1) Italicized entries indicate securities that are scheduled but not yet matured, sold, called, or purchased. There may be additional investment purchases if there are pending maturities for the month.

IRVINE RANCH WATER DISTRICT INVESTMENT SUMMARY REPORT

INVESTMENT ACTIVITY(1)

Aug-24

A - 6



Irvine Ranch Water District
Summary of Fixed and Variable Rate Debt

August 2024

Series Column1 Issue Date Maturity Date
Remaining 
Principal Percent

Letter of 
Credit/Support   Rmkt Agent Mode Reset

Series 1993 05/19/93 04/01/33 $19,200,000 3.29% US Bank BAML Variable Daily
Series 2008-A Refunding 04/24/08 07/01/35 $37,000,000 6.34% Sumitomo BAML Variable Weekly
Series 2011-A-1 Refunding 04/15/11 10/01/37 $38,760,000 6.64% B of A Goldman Variable Daily
Series 2011-A-2 Refunding 04/15/11 10/01/37 $25,840,000 4.43% B of A Goldman Variable Daily
Series 2009 - A 06/04/09 10/01/41 $45,000,000 7.71% US Bank US Bank Variable Daily
Series 2009 - B  06/04/09 10/01/41 $45,000,000 7.71% B of A Goldman Variable Daily
2016 COPS 09/01/16 03/01/46 $101,490,000 17.38% N/A N/A Fixed Fixed
2010 Build America Taxable Bond 12/16/10 05/01/40 $175,000,000 29.97% N/A N/A Fixed Fixed
Series 2016 10/12/16 02/01/46 $96,605,000 16.54% N/A N/A Fixed Fixed
Total $583,895,000 100.00%

Outstanding Par by Series

B of A 
109,600,000

52%

Sumitomo
37,000,000

18%

US Bank
64,200,000

30%

Letters of Credit / Support

Daily
173,800,000

30%

Weekly
37,000,000

6%

Fixed
373,095,000

64%

Current Debt Rate Reset

Fixed
373,095,000

64%

Variable
121,300,000

21%

Synthetic Fixed
89,500,000

15%

Current Debt Mix By Type

S:\INVEST\DEBT\Analysis, Notices, and Misc\vrdsum

Exhibit "B"

B - 1



Daily

Weekly

VARIABLE RATE ISSUES Issue Date
Maturity 

Date
Principal 

Payment Date
Payment 

Date
Original Par 

Amount
Remaining 
Principal

Letter of 
Credit  

Reimbursment 
Agreement Date

L/C Exp. 
Date MOODYS S&P FITCH

LOC Stated 
Amount LOC Fee

Annual LOC 
Cost

Rmkt 
Agent Reset Rmkt Fees

Annual 
Cost Trustee

SERIES 1993 05/19/93 04/01/33 Apr 1 5th Bus. Day $38,300,000 $19,200,000 US BANK 05/07/15 05/01/25 Aa3/VMIG1 AA-/A-1+ N/R $19,458,805 0.3000% $58,376 BAML DAILY 0.10% $19,200 BANK OF NY

SERIES 2008-A Refunding 04/24/08 07/01/35 Jul 1 5th Bus. Day $60,215,000 $37,000,000 SUMITOMO 04/01/11 05/28/25 A1/P-1 A/A-1 A/F1 $37,547,397 0.3150% $118,274 BAML WED 0.07% $25,900 BANK OF NY

SERIES 2011-A-1 Refunding 04/15/11 10/01/37 Oct 1 1st Bus. Day $60,545,000 $38,760,000 B of A 02/01/24 02/08/27 Aa1/VMIG1 A+/A-1 AAA/F1+ $39,193,262 0.3200% $125,418 Goldman DAILY 0.07% $27,132 BANK OF NY

SERIES 2011-A-2 Refunding 04/15/11 10/01/37 Oct 1 1st Bus. Day $40,370,000 $25,840,000 B of A 02/01/24 02/08/27 Aa1/VMIG1 A+/A-1 AAA/F1+ $26,128,842 0.3200% $83,612 Goldman DAILY 0.07% $18,088 BANK OF NY

SERIES 2009 - A 06/04/09 10/01/41 Oct 1 1st Bus. Day $75,000,000 $45,000,000 US BANK 04/01/11 05/01/25 Aa2/VMIG 1 AA-/A-1+ AA/F1+ $45,503,014 0.3000% $136,509 US Bank DAILY 0.07% $31,500 US BANK

SERIES 2009 - B  06/04/09 10/01/41 Oct 1 1st Bus. Day $75,000,000 $45,000,000 B of A 04/01/11 04/21/25 Aa2/VMIG 1 A/A-1 A1/F1+ $45,503,014 0.2800% $127,408 Goldman DAILY 0.07% $31,500 US BANK

$349,430,000 $210,800,000 SUB-TOTAL VARIABLE RATE DEBT $213,334,334 0.3045% $649,599 0.07% $153,320

(Wt. Avg) (Wt. Avg)

FIXED RATE ISSUES

2010 GO Build America 
Taxable Bonds 12/16/10 05/01/40 May (2025) May/Nov $175,000,000 $175,000,000 N/A N/A N/A Aa1 AAA NR N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A US BANK

2016 COPS 09/01/16 03/01/46 Mar 1 Mar/Sept $116,745,000 $101,490,000 N/A N/A N/A NR AAA AAA N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A US BANK

SERIES 2016 10/12/16 02/01/46 Feb 1 Feb/Aug $103,400,000 $96,605,000 N/A N/A N/A NR AAA AAA N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A BANK OF NY

$395,145,000 $373,095,000 SUB-TOTAL FIXED RATE DEBT

$744,575,000 $583,895,000 TOTAL- FIXED & VARIABLE RATE DEBT

Goldman 109,600,000   52% GO: 482,405,000 83%
BAML 56,200,000   27% COPS: 101,490,000 17%

US Bank 45,000,000   21% Total 583,895,000   

210,800,000   

Daily Issues 173,800,000 30%
SUMITOMO 37,000,000   18% Weekly Issues 37,000,000 6%

BANK OF AMERICA 109,600,000   52%
US BANK 64,200,000   30% Sub-Total 210,800,000  

210,800,000   

Fixed Rate Issues $373,095,000 64%
Sub-Total - Fixed 373,095,000

TOTAL DEBT
FIXED & VAR. 583,895,000  100%

Remarketing Agents GO VS COP's

LOC Banks Breakdown Between Variable & Fixed Rate Mode

IRVINE RANCH WATER DISTRICT

SUMMARY OF FIXED & VARIABLE RATE DEBT

August-24

GENERAL BOND INFORMATION LETTER OF CREDIT INFORMATION TRUSTEE  INFORMATION

vrdsum
9/11/2024 B - 2



SUMMARY OF DEBT RATES
Aug-24

Rmkt Agent GOLDMAN GOLDMAN GOLDMAN US BANK
Mode DAILY DAILY DAILY DAILY WEEKLY DAILY

Bond Issue 2009 - B 2011 A-1 2011 A-2 1993 2008-A 2009-A
Par Amount 45,000,000 38,760,000 25,840,000 19,200,000 37,000,000 45,000,000
LOC Bank BOFA BOFA BOFA US BANK Sumitomo US BANK

Reset Wednesday

8/1/2024 3.00% 3.00% 3.00% 3.35% 2.75% 3.55%
8/2/2024 2.45% 2.45% 2.45% 2.35% 2.75% 2.60%
8/3/2024 2.45% 2.45% 2.45% 2.35% 2.75% 2.60%
8/4/2024 2.45% 2.45% 2.45% 2.35% 2.75% 2.60%
8/5/2024 1.95% 1.95% 1.95% 1.85% 2.75% 2.25%
8/6/2024 1.95% 1.95% 1.95% 1.90% 2.75% 2.00%
8/7/2024 2.45% 2.45% 2.45% 2.30% 2.75% 2.20%
8/8/2024 2.90% 2.90% 2.90% 3.05% 2.32% 2.75%
8/9/2024 3.90% 3.90% 3.90% 3.90% 2.32% 3.80%

8/10/2024 3.90% 3.90% 3.90% 3.90% 2.32% 3.80%
8/11/2024 3.90% 3.90% 3.90% 3.90% 2.32% 3.80%
8/12/2024 4.05% 4.05% 4.05% 4.00% 2.32% 3.95%
8/13/2024 3.90% 3.90% 3.90% 3.95% 2.32% 3.95%
8/14/2024 3.70% 3.70% 3.70% 3.70% 2.32% 3.90%
8/15/2024 3.30% 3.30% 3.30% 3.45% 3.30% 3.55%
8/16/2024 3.20% 3.20% 3.20% 3.00% 3.30% 3.30%
8/17/2024 3.20% 3.20% 3.20% 3.00% 3.30% 3.30%
8/18/2024 3.20% 3.20% 3.20% 3.00% 3.30% 3.30%
8/19/2024 2.75% 2.75% 2.75% 2.65% 3.30% 2.90%
8/20/2024 2.55% 2.55% 2.55% 2.35% 3.30% 2.40%
8/21/2024 2.50% 2.50% 2.50% 2.40% 3.30% 2.40%
8/22/2024 2.50% 2.50% 2.50% 2.55% 2.57% 2.45%
8/23/2024 2.70% 2.70% 2.70% 2.75% 2.57% 2.70%
8/24/2024 2.70% 2.70% 2.70% 2.75% 2.57% 2.70%
8/25/2024 2.70% 2.70% 2.70% 2.75% 2.57% 2.70%
8/26/2024 2.45% 2.45% 2.45% 2.40% 2.57% 2.70%
8/27/2024 2.35% 2.35% 2.35% 2.25% 2.57% 2.30%
8/28/2024 2.55% 2.55% 2.55% 2.40% 2.57% 2.40%
8/29/2024 2.85% 2.85% 2.85% 2.85% 2.19% 2.70%
8/30/2024 3.40% 3.40% 3.40% 3.65% 2.19% 3.15%
8/31/2024 3.40% 3.40% 3.40% 3.65% 2.19% 3.15%

Avg Interest Rates 2.94% 2.94% 2.94% 2.93% 2.68% 2.96%
Rmkt Fee 0.07% 0.07% 0.07% 0.10% 0.07% 0.07%
LOC Fee 0.28% 0.32% 0.32% 0.30% 0.32% 0.30%

All-In Rate 3.29% 3.33% 3.33% 3.33% 3.07% 3.33%
Par Amount 45,000,000

Percent of Par Weighted All-In Base Rate

Interest Rate Mode
Total Variable Rate 

Debt
 Outstanding Average Rate Average

Daily 82.45% 173,800,000  3.32% 2.95%
Weekly 17.55% 37,000,000  3.07% 2.68%

100.00% $210,800,000 3.28% 2.90%
Fixed

COPS 2016 27.20% 101,490,000  2.90%
BABS 2010 46.90% 175,000,000  4.44% (1)

SERIES 2016 25.89% 96,605,000  3.32%
100.00% $373,095,000 3.73%

All-In Debt Rate Including $60 Million Notional Amount of Swaps 3.57%
(1) Rate adjusted up from 4.35% as a result of sequestration reducing BAB's subsidy by 5.7%

MERRILL LYNCH

109,600,000 56,200,000

B - 3



 
Note:  This page is intentionally left blank. 

 



Irvine Ranch Water District
Interest Rate Swap Summary

August 2024
Prior Mo. Current Mo. 12-Mo Avg

LIBOR Flbk Avg % 5.45% 5.45% 5.45%

(Since 3/07)

Effective Date
Maturity 

Date
Years to 
Maturity

Counter 
Party Notional Amt Type

Base 
Index Fixed Rate Prior Month

Current 
Month Fiscal YTD

Cumulative 
Net Accrual

Current Mark to 
Market

Notional 
Difference

3/10/2007 3/10/2029 4.5 ML 30,000,000 FXP LIBOR 5.687% (6,553)          (1,615)           (8,168)           (21,997,420)    27,335,294            (2,664,706)             
3/10/2007 3/10/2029 4.5 CG 30,000,000 FXP LIBOR 5.687% (6,553)          (1,615)           (8,168)           (21,997,213)    27,328,364            (2,671,636)             

Totals/Weighted Avgs 4.5 60,000,000$       5.687% (13,106)$      (3,230)$         (16,336)$       (43,994,634)$  54,663,658$          (5,336,342)$           

Total Current Year
Active Swaps 60,000,000$       (13,106)$      (3,230)$         (16,336)$       (43,994,634)$  54,663,658$          (5,336,342)$           

Effective Date
Maturity 

Date
Counter 

Party Notional Amt Type
Base 
Index Fixed Rate

Prior 
Month

Current 
Month Fiscal YTD

Cumulative 
Net Accrual

Current Mark to 
Market

Notional 
Difference

Total Current Year
Terminated Swaps -$  -$             -$  -$  -$  -$ -$

Prior 
Month

Current 
Month Fiscal YTD

Cumulative 
Net Accrual

Current Mark to 
Market

Notional 
Difference

Total Current Year
Active & Terminated Swaps 60,000,000$       (13,106)$      (3,230)$         (16,336)$       (43,994,634)$  54,663,658$          (5,336,342)$           

Cash Flow to Date

Synthetic Fixed = $64,918,242

Fixed Rate = $78,438,507

Assumptions:
- Fixed rate debt issued at 4.93% 

in Mar-07
(estimated TE rate - Bloomberg)

- 'Synthetic' includes swap cash 
flow +  interest + fees to date

Current Fiscal Year Active Swaps Cash Flow Mark to Market

Cash Flow Comparison
Synthetic Fixed vs. Fixed Rate Debt

Fixed Payer Swaps - By Effective Date

Current Fiscal Year Terminated Swaps Cash Flow Mark to Market

Current Fiscal Year - Total Swaps Cash Flow Mark to Market

(90,000)
(80,000)

(70,000)
(60,000)
(50,000)
(40,000)
(30,000)

(20,000)

N
et
 re

ce
ip
ts
/(
pa

ym
en

nt
s)
 

(0
00

's)

Interest	Rate	Swap	Portfolio
Cash	Flow	Comparison

Swap/VRDO Cash Flow Fixed Debt Cash Flow

9/12/2024
12:27 PM

Exhibit "C"



 
Note:  This page is intentionally left blank. 

 



CHECK OR 
ELECTRONIC # PAYMENT DATE SUPPLIER PAYMENT AMOUNT PAYMENT METHOD STATUS

444222 1-Aug-24 A&A WIPING CLOTH CO 1,939.50     IRWD Wells Fargo Check  No Print Reconciled
444223 1-Aug-24 ABC ICE, INC 190.85    IRWD Wells Fargo Check  No Print Reconciled
444224 1-Aug-24 AGILENT TECHNOLOGIES, INC. 23,568.00    IRWD Wells Fargo Check  No Print Reconciled
444225 1-Aug-24 AGILENT TECHNOLOGIES, INC. 106.67    IRWD Wells Fargo Check  No Print Reconciled
444226 1-Aug-24 AIRGAS, INC. 20.25    IRWD Wells Fargo Check  No Print Reconciled
444227 1-Aug-24 APPLIED INDUSTRIAL TECHNOLOGIES - CA LLC 363.06    IRWD Wells Fargo Check  No Print Reconciled
444228 1-Aug-24 ASHFORD, WALT 792.18    IRWD Wells Fargo Check  No Print Reconciled
444229 1-Aug-24 ASSOCIATION OF CALIFORNIA WATER AGENCIES 1,442.18     IRWD Wells Fargo Check  No Print Reconciled
444230 1-Aug-24 AT&T CORP 3,271.27     IRWD Wells Fargo Check  No Print Reconciled
444231 1-Aug-24 AT&T CORP 228.96    IRWD Wells Fargo Check  No Print Reconciled
444232 1-Aug-24 AT&T CORP 64.65    IRWD Wells Fargo Check  No Print Reconciled
444233 1-Aug-24 BADGER METER INC. 71,663.23    IRWD Wells Fargo Check  No Print Reconciled
444234 1-Aug-24 BALL, DANNY 58.38    IRWD Wells Fargo Check  No Print Reconciled
444235 1-Aug-24 BANK OF NEW YORK MELLON TRUST COMPANY NA 1,457.50     IRWD Wells Fargo Check  No Print Reconciled
444236 1-Aug-24 BEST MANAGEMENT CONSTRUCTION INC 3,394.82     IRWD Wells Fargo Check  No Print Reconciled
444237 1-Aug-24 BILGORE, PAMELA 81.54    IRWD Wells Fargo Check  No Print Reconciled
444238 1-Aug-24 BORCHARD SURVEYING & MAPPING, INC. 1,080.00     IRWD Wells Fargo Check  No Print Reconciled
444239 1-Aug-24 BPS SUPPLY GROUP 1,739.31     IRWD Wells Fargo Check  No Print Reconciled
444240 1-Aug-24 C WELLS PIPELINE MATERIALS INC 15,684.48    IRWD Wells Fargo Check  No Print Reconciled
444241 1-Aug-24 CALPINE CORPORATION 305,156.73    IRWD Wells Fargo Check  No Print Reconciled
444242 1-Aug-24 CITY OF NEWPORT BEACH 2,568.78     IRWD Wells Fargo Check  No Print Reconciled
444243 1-Aug-24 CITY OF SANTA ANA 398.09    IRWD Wells Fargo Check  No Print Reconciled
444244 1-Aug-24 CITY OF TUSTIN 895.32    IRWD Wells Fargo Check  No Print Reconciled
444245 1-Aug-24 CLA-VAL COMPANY 48,988.62    IRWD Wells Fargo Check  No Print Reconciled
444246 1-Aug-24 CLARK, MELISSA 12.91    IRWD Wells Fargo Check  No Print Reconciled
444247 1-Aug-24 CONSOLIDATED CONTRACTING SERVICES, INC. 1,707.42     IRWD Wells Fargo Check  No Print Reconciled
444248 1-Aug-24 CORE & MAIN LP 3,523.43     IRWD Wells Fargo Check  No Print Reconciled
444249 1-Aug-24 COUNTY OF ORANGE 54,713.65    IRWD Wells Fargo Check  No Print Reconciled
444250 1-Aug-24 COX COMMUNICATIONS, INC. 3,243.40     IRWD Wells Fargo Check  No Print Reconciled
444251 1-Aug-24 CR & R INCORPORATED 217.02    IRWD Wells Fargo Check  No Print Reconciled
444252 1-Aug-24 CRAIG, DARRELL 8.55    IRWD Wells Fargo Check  No Print Negotiable
444253 1-Aug-24 D & H WATER SYSTEMS INC. 9,903.07     IRWD Wells Fargo Check  No Print Reconciled
444254 1-Aug-24 DCS MANAGEMENT LLC 1,004.77     IRWD Wells Fargo Check  No Print Reconciled
444255 1-Aug-24 DEALERS SERVICE COMPANY, INC 990.00    IRWD Wells Fargo Check  No Print Reconciled
444256 1-Aug-24 DELL MARKETING LP 2,661.66     IRWD Wells Fargo Check  No Print Reconciled
444257 1-Aug-24 DEPARTMENT OF INDUSTRIAL RELATIONS STATE OF CALIFORNIA 800.00    IRWD Wells Fargo Check  No Print Reconciled
444258 1-Aug-24 DILYTICS INC 11,060.00    IRWD Wells Fargo Check  No Print Reconciled
444259 1-Aug-24 DIRECTV INC 152.99    IRWD Wells Fargo Check  No Print Reconciled
444260 1-Aug-24 ENDRESS AND HAUSER INC 728.33    IRWD Wells Fargo Check  No Print Reconciled
444261 1-Aug-24 ENVIRONMENTAL RESOURCE ASSOCIATES 3,294.89     IRWD Wells Fargo Check  No Print Reconciled
444262 1-Aug-24 ESSEX PORTFOLIO, LP 51.24    IRWD Wells Fargo Check  No Print Negotiable
444263 1-Aug-24 EUROFINS EATON ANALYTICAL, INC. 2,087.50     IRWD Wells Fargo Check  No Print Reconciled
444264 1-Aug-24 EXCEL PAVING CO. 633.08    IRWD Wells Fargo Check  No Print Reconciled
444265 1-Aug-24 FARRELL & ASSOCIATES 543.18    IRWD Wells Fargo Check  No Print Reconciled
444266 1-Aug-24 FEDEX 280.30    IRWD Wells Fargo Check  No Print Reconciled
444267 1-Aug-24 FISHER SCIENTIFIC COMPANY LLC 3,508.58     IRWD Wells Fargo Check  No Print Reconciled
444268 1-Aug-24 FRANKLIN COURT MAINT. ASSN 5,435.45     IRWD Wells Fargo Check  No Print Reconciled
444269 1-Aug-24 FRONTIER CALIFORNIA INC. 961.78    IRWD Wells Fargo Check  No Print Reconciled
444270 1-Aug-24 GARY BALE REDI-MIX CONCRETE, INC. 1,155.89     IRWD Wells Fargo Check  No Print Reconciled
444271 1-Aug-24 GEIGER BROS 109.42    IRWD Wells Fargo Check  No Print Reconciled
444272 1-Aug-24 GENUINE PROPERTY MANAGEMENT 183.01    IRWD Wells Fargo Check  No Print Negotiable
444273 1-Aug-24 GRAINGER 13,077.02    IRWD Wells Fargo Check  No Print Reconciled
444274 1-Aug-24 GRAYBAR ELECTRIC COMPANY 1,719.22     IRWD Wells Fargo Check  No Print Reconciled
444275 1-Aug-24 HACH COMPANY 19,543.58    IRWD Wells Fargo Check  No Print Reconciled
444276 1-Aug-24 HADRONEX, INC. 170,842.33    IRWD Wells Fargo Check  No Print Reconciled
444277 1-Aug-24 HD SUPPLY, INC. 760.18    IRWD Wells Fargo Check  No Print Reconciled
444278 1-Aug-24 HI-LINE INC 1,308.29     IRWD Wells Fargo Check  No Print Reconciled
444279 1-Aug-24 HILLCREST CONTRACTING, INC. 1,352.65     IRWD Wells Fargo Check  No Print Negotiable
444280 1-Aug-24 HOME DEPOT USA INC 1,366.33     IRWD Wells Fargo Check  No Print Reconciled
444281 1-Aug-24 HUBER TECHNOLOGY INC. 1,732.79     IRWD Wells Fargo Check  No Print Reconciled
444282 1-Aug-24 INDUSTRIAL METAL SUPPLY CO 614.71    IRWD Wells Fargo Check  No Print Reconciled
444283 1-Aug-24 INNOVATIVE CONSTRUCTION SOLUTIONS 1,155,456.50     IRWD Wells Fargo Check  No Print Reconciled
444284 1-Aug-24 JACKSON TIDUS, A LAW CORPORATION 1,425.00     IRWD Wells Fargo Check  No Print Reconciled
444285 1-Aug-24 JOSE MARTINEZ TREE SERVICE INC. 1,200.00     IRWD Wells Fargo Check  No Print Reconciled
444286 1-Aug-24 KYLE RIDDLES 135.00    IRWD Wells Fargo Check  No Print Reconciled
444287 1-Aug-24 LINDE GAS & EQUIPMENT INC. 909.19    IRWD Wells Fargo Check  No Print Reconciled
444288 1-Aug-24 MC FADDEN-DALE INDUSTRIAL 92.05    IRWD Wells Fargo Check  No Print Reconciled
444289 1-Aug-24 MICHAEL K. NUNLEY & ASSOCIATES, INC. 1,808.00     IRWD Wells Fargo Check  No Print Reconciled
444290 1-Aug-24 MILSTEIN, DANA 97.10    IRWD Wells Fargo Check  No Print Negotiable
444291 1-Aug-24 MINER, ARLENE 5.35    IRWD Wells Fargo Check  No Print Negotiable
444292 1-Aug-24 MR CRANE INC 3,402.00     IRWD Wells Fargo Check  No Print Reconciled
444293 1-Aug-24 NEW PIG CORPORATION 6,652.31     IRWD Wells Fargo Check  No Print Reconciled
444294 1-Aug-24 NINYO & MOORE 7,735.00     IRWD Wells Fargo Check  No Print Reconciled
444295 1-Aug-24 NOVA GEOTECHNICAL AND INSPECTION SERVICES 501.50    IRWD Wells Fargo Check  No Print Reconciled
444296 1-Aug-24 NRD, LLC 100.00    IRWD Wells Fargo Check  No Print Reconciled
444297 1-Aug-24 ONESOURCE DISTRIBUTORS LLC 21,432.81    IRWD Wells Fargo Check  No Print Reconciled
444298 1-Aug-24 ORANGE COUNTY CURRENT AFFAIRS FORUM 1,000.00     IRWD Wells Fargo Check  No Print Reconciled
444299 1-Aug-24 ORANGE COUNTY MOSQUITO AND VECTOR CONTROL DISTRICT 1,580.20     IRWD Wells Fargo Check  No Print Reconciled
444300 1-Aug-24 OSI HARDWARE, INC. 199.35    IRWD Wells Fargo Check  No Print Reconciled
444301 1-Aug-24 PACIFIC STAR CHEMICAL, LLC 3,712.46     IRWD Wells Fargo Check  No Print Reconciled

IRVINE RANCH WATER DISTRICT
AP DISBURSEMENTS AND VOIDS FOR AUGUST 2024

1 of 13

Exhibit "D"

D - 1



CHECK OR 
ELECTRONIC # PAYMENT DATE SUPPLIER PAYMENT AMOUNT PAYMENT METHOD STATUS

IRVINE RANCH WATER DISTRICT
AP DISBURSEMENTS AND VOIDS FOR AUGUST 2024

444302 1-Aug-24 PERKINELMER U.S. LLC 11,700.00                                     IRWD Wells Fargo Check  No Print Reconciled
444303 1-Aug-24 PLUMBERS DEPOT INC. 11,421.20                                     IRWD Wells Fargo Check  No Print Reconciled
444304 1-Aug-24 QUINN COMPANY 447.74                                            IRWD Wells Fargo Check  No Print Reconciled
444305 1-Aug-24 REALTECH CONTROLS, LLC 4,616.12                                        IRWD Wells Fargo Check  No Print Reconciled
444306 1-Aug-24 RICHARD C. SLADE & ASSOCIATES LLC 27,962.76                                     IRWD Wells Fargo Check  No Print Reconciled
444307 1-Aug-24 ROBERTS ROOFING INC 25,000.00                                     IRWD Wells Fargo Check  No Print Reconciled
444308 1-Aug-24 ROMAN, YVONNE 600.00                                            IRWD Wells Fargo Check  No Print Reconciled
444309 1-Aug-24 SERAFIN, KATHRYN 194.26                                            IRWD Wells Fargo Check  No Print Reconciled
444310 1-Aug-24 SHAMROCK SUPPLY CO INC 435.47                                            IRWD Wells Fargo Check  No Print Reconciled
444311 1-Aug-24 SO CAL SANDBAGS INC 1,540.53                                        IRWD Wells Fargo Check  No Print Reconciled
444312 1-Aug-24 SOUTH COAST BOBCAT 122.93                                            IRWD Wells Fargo Check  No Print Reconciled
444313 1-Aug-24 SOUTHERN CALIFORNIA EDISON COMPANY 293,056.39                                   IRWD Wells Fargo Check  No Print Reconciled
444314 1-Aug-24 SOUTHERN CALIFORNIA EDISON COMPANY 36.58                                              IRWD Wells Fargo Check  No Print Reconciled
444315 1-Aug-24 SPARKLETTS 33.27                                              IRWD Wells Fargo Check  No Print Reconciled
444316 1-Aug-24 STEVEN WELCH 1,495.00                                        IRWD Wells Fargo Check  No Print Reconciled
444317 1-Aug-24 STUBBERUD, ALLEN R 68.19                                              IRWD Wells Fargo Check  No Print Reconciled
444318 1-Aug-24 SYNAGRO-WWT, INC. 94,930.68                                     IRWD Wells Fargo Check  No Print Reconciled
444319 1-Aug-24 T.R.L. SYSTEMS, INCORPORATED 748.33                                            IRWD Wells Fargo Check  No Print Reconciled
444320 1-Aug-24 TAYLOR, AMBERLEE 32.51                                              IRWD Wells Fargo Check  No Print Reconciled
444321 1-Aug-24 THE MAHER CORPORATION 362.50                                            IRWD Wells Fargo Check  No Print Reconciled
444322 1-Aug-24 ULINE INC 2,076.93                                        IRWD Wells Fargo Check  No Print Reconciled
444323 1-Aug-24 UNITED PARCEL SERVICE INC 161.72                                            IRWD Wells Fargo Check  No Print Reconciled
444324 1-Aug-24 URBAN WATER INSTITUTE INC 1,375.00                                        IRWD Wells Fargo Check  No Print Reconciled
444325 1-Aug-24 USA BLUEBOOK 2,844.23                                        IRWD Wells Fargo Check  No Print Reconciled
444326 1-Aug-24 V&A CONSULTING ENGINEERS 33,575.26                                     IRWD Wells Fargo Check  No Print Reconciled
444327 1-Aug-24 VHG LABS, INC 1,499.89                                        IRWD Wells Fargo Check  No Print Reconciled
444328 1-Aug-24 VWR INTERNATIONAL, LLC 3,395.98                                        IRWD Wells Fargo Check  No Print Reconciled
444329 1-Aug-24 WATKINS, DEONNA 78.52                                              IRWD Wells Fargo Check  No Print Reconciled
444330 1-Aug-24 WAXIE'S ENTERPRISES, INC 1,231.10                                        IRWD Wells Fargo Check  No Print Reconciled
444331 1-Aug-24 WEST YOST & ASSOCIATES, INC. 7,363.00                                        IRWD Wells Fargo Check  No Print Reconciled
444332 1-Aug-24 XYLEM WATER SOLUTIONS USA, INC. 1,053.24                                        IRWD Wells Fargo Check  No Print Reconciled
444333 1-Aug-24 ZIMA CORPORATION 6,473.08                                        IRWD Wells Fargo Check  No Print Reconciled
444334 1-Aug-24 AMERICAN FAMILY LIFE ASSURANCE COMPANY OF COLUMBUS 3,019.28                                        IRWD Wells Fargo Check Reconciled
444335 1-Aug-24 CONTINENTAL AMERICAN INSURANCE COMPANY 2,348.42                                        IRWD Wells Fargo Check Reconciled
444336 1-Aug-24 FRANCHISE TAX BOARD 492.00                                            IRWD Wells Fargo Check Reconciled
444337 1-Aug-24 INTERNATIONAL BROTHERHOOD OF ELECTRICAL WORKERS LOCAL 47 8,622.75                                        IRWD Wells Fargo Check Reconciled
444338 1-Aug-24 PERS LONG TERM CARE 363.31                                            IRWD Wells Fargo Check Reconciled
444339 1-Aug-24 STATE OF ARKANSAS 1,013.26                                        IRWD Wells Fargo Check Reconciled
444340 5-Aug-24 CALIFORNIA DEPARTMENT OF FISH AND WILDLIFE 2,508.50                                        IRWD Wells Fargo Check Reconciled
444341 8-Aug-24 72 HOUR LLC 68,990.30                                     IRWD Wells Fargo Check  No Print Reconciled
444342 8-Aug-24 ABC ICE, INC 876.67                                            IRWD Wells Fargo Check  No Print Reconciled
444343 8-Aug-24 ACCELERATED TECHNOLOGY LABORATORIES, LLC 13,406.00                                     IRWD Wells Fargo Check  No Print Reconciled
444344 8-Aug-24 ACCUSTANDARD INC 435.85                                            IRWD Wells Fargo Check  No Print Reconciled
444345 8-Aug-24 AIRGAS, INC. 2,231.84                                        IRWD Wells Fargo Check  No Print Reconciled
444346 8-Aug-24 ALBANO, REBECCA 88.70                                              IRWD Wells Fargo Check  No Print Reconciled
444347 8-Aug-24 AQUA-METRIC SALES COMPANY 12,518.53                                     IRWD Wells Fargo Check  No Print Reconciled
444348 8-Aug-24 ARAKELIAN ENTERPRISES, INC. 13,532.18                                     IRWD Wells Fargo Check  No Print Reconciled
444349 8-Aug-24 ARORA, AMAN 5.06                                                 IRWD Wells Fargo Check  No Print Negotiable
444350 8-Aug-24 AT&T CORP 4,542.85                                        IRWD Wells Fargo Check  No Print Reconciled
444351 8-Aug-24 AT&T MOBILITY 95.46                                              IRWD Wells Fargo Check  No Print Reconciled
444352 8-Aug-24 BEST DRILLING AND PUMP, INC. 270,180.00                                   IRWD Wells Fargo Check  No Print Reconciled
444353 8-Aug-24 BPS SUPPLY GROUP 33.23                                              IRWD Wells Fargo Check  No Print Reconciled
444354 8-Aug-24 BRINKMANN INSTRUMENTS, INC. 264.64                                            IRWD Wells Fargo Check  No Print Reconciled
444355 8-Aug-24 C WELLS PIPELINE MATERIALS INC 1,139.26                                        IRWD Wells Fargo Check  No Print Reconciled
444356 8-Aug-24 CALPINE CORPORATION 15,409.82                                     IRWD Wells Fargo Check  No Print Reconciled
444357 8-Aug-24 CANON SOLUTIONS AMERICA, INC 1,851.72                                        IRWD Wells Fargo Check  No Print Reconciled
444358 8-Aug-24 CHARLES KING COMPANY 563,625.50                                   IRWD Wells Fargo Check  No Print Reconciled
444359 8-Aug-24 CLA-VAL COMPANY 4,390.82                                        IRWD Wells Fargo Check  No Print Reconciled
444360 8-Aug-24 CLIFFORD MORIYAMA 5,000.00                                        IRWD Wells Fargo Check  No Print Reconciled
444361 8-Aug-24 COX COMMUNICATIONS, INC. 290.96                                            IRWD Wells Fargo Check  No Print Reconciled
444362 8-Aug-24 CULVER CAR WASH 158.95                                            IRWD Wells Fargo Check  No Print Reconciled
444363 8-Aug-24 CURATIVE I.T. LLC 159.90                                            IRWD Wells Fargo Check  No Print Reconciled
444364 8-Aug-24 DAIOHS USA INCORPORATED 2,780.97                                        IRWD Wells Fargo Check  No Print Reconciled
444365 8-Aug-24 DC FROST ASSOCIATES, INC 1,542.12                                        IRWD Wells Fargo Check  No Print Reconciled
444366 8-Aug-24 DEALERS SERVICE COMPANY, INC 5,722.21                                        IRWD Wells Fargo Check  No Print Reconciled
444367 8-Aug-24 DELL MARKETING LP 238.60                                            IRWD Wells Fargo Check  No Print Reconciled
444368 8-Aug-24 DIRECTV INC 152.99                                            IRWD Wells Fargo Check  No Print Reconciled
444369 8-Aug-24 ELEMENT PARENT, INC. 4,028.52                                        IRWD Wells Fargo Check  No Print Reconciled
444370 8-Aug-24 ENDEMIC ENVIRONMENTAL SERVICES, INC. 5,758.00                                        IRWD Wells Fargo Check  No Print Reconciled
444371 8-Aug-24 ENDRESS AND HAUSER INC 364.17                                            IRWD Wells Fargo Check  No Print Reconciled
444372 8-Aug-24 EXECUTIVE LIGHTING & ELECTRIC 11,196.91                                     IRWD Wells Fargo Check  No Print Reconciled
444373 8-Aug-24 FARRELL & ASSOCIATES 3,217.63                                        IRWD Wells Fargo Check  No Print Reconciled
444374 8-Aug-24 FASTBLUE COMMUNICATIONS INC. 1,988.72                                        IRWD Wells Fargo Check  No Print Reconciled
444375 8-Aug-24 FEDEX 413.87                                            IRWD Wells Fargo Check  No Print Reconciled
444376 8-Aug-24 FISHER SCIENTIFIC COMPANY LLC 7,191.84                                        IRWD Wells Fargo Check  No Print Reconciled
444377 8-Aug-24 GALLAGHER BENEFIT SERVICES, INC. 4,250.00                                        IRWD Wells Fargo Check  No Print Reconciled
444378 8-Aug-24 GCI CONSTRUCTION, INC. 84,961.10                                     IRWD Wells Fargo Check  No Print Reconciled
444379 8-Aug-24 GEI CONSULTANTS INC 2,932.75                                        IRWD Wells Fargo Check  No Print Reconciled
444380 8-Aug-24 GEOCOMP, INC. 57,218.61                                     IRWD Wells Fargo Check  No Print Reconciled
444381 8-Aug-24 GEORGE YARDLEY CO., INC. 4,451.15                                        IRWD Wells Fargo Check  No Print Reconciled

2 of 13D - 2



CHECK OR 
ELECTRONIC # PAYMENT DATE SUPPLIER PAYMENT AMOUNT PAYMENT METHOD STATUS

IRVINE RANCH WATER DISTRICT
AP DISBURSEMENTS AND VOIDS FOR AUGUST 2024

444382 8-Aug-24 GRAINGER 4,535.08                                        IRWD Wells Fargo Check  No Print Reconciled
444383 8-Aug-24 GUIDA SURVEYING INC. 1,556.80                                        IRWD Wells Fargo Check  No Print Reconciled
444384 8-Aug-24 HACH COMPANY 4,814.94                                        IRWD Wells Fargo Check  No Print Reconciled
444385 8-Aug-24 HD SUPPLY, INC. 48.76                                              IRWD Wells Fargo Check  No Print Reconciled
444386 8-Aug-24 HI-LINE INC 955.62                                            IRWD Wells Fargo Check  No Print Reconciled
444387 8-Aug-24 HOME DEPOT USA INC 181.95                                            IRWD Wells Fargo Check  No Print Reconciled
444388 8-Aug-24 HUANG, JINGJING 1,292.41                                        IRWD Wells Fargo Check  No Print Reconciled
444389 8-Aug-24 INFOSEND, INC. 129.40                                            IRWD Wells Fargo Check  No Print Reconciled
444390 8-Aug-24 INORGANIC VENTURES INC 955.95                                            IRWD Wells Fargo Check  No Print Reconciled
444391 8-Aug-24 JAMISON ENGINEERING CONTRACTORS, INC. 5,500.00                                        IRWD Wells Fargo Check  No Print Reconciled
444392 8-Aug-24 KAN VENTURES, INC 7,750.00                                        IRWD Wells Fargo Check  No Print Reconciled
444393 8-Aug-24 KURZ INSTRUMENTS INC 1,533.53                                        IRWD Wells Fargo Check  No Print Reconciled
444394 8-Aug-24 LINDE GAS & EQUIPMENT INC. 4,027.60                                        IRWD Wells Fargo Check  No Print Reconciled
444395 8-Aug-24 MARK THOMAS & COMPANY, INC. 689.26                                            IRWD Wells Fargo Check  No Print Reconciled
444396 8-Aug-24 MC FADDEN-DALE INDUSTRIAL 287.22                                            IRWD Wells Fargo Check  No Print Reconciled
444397 8-Aug-24 MC MASTER CARR SUPPLY CO 1,941.09                                        IRWD Wells Fargo Check  No Print Reconciled
444398 8-Aug-24 METTLER-TOLEDO INC 1,638.30                                        IRWD Wells Fargo Check  No Print Reconciled
444399 8-Aug-24 MGH PAINTING INC 1,368.00                                        IRWD Wells Fargo Check  No Print Reconciled
444400 8-Aug-24 MILLER, ANTHONY 52.03                                              IRWD Wells Fargo Check  No Print Negotiable
444401 8-Aug-24 MISSION COMMUNICATIONS, LLC 387.00                                            IRWD Wells Fargo Check  No Print Reconciled
444402 8-Aug-24 MSC INDUSTRIAL SUPPLY CO 773.44                                            IRWD Wells Fargo Check  No Print Reconciled
444403 8-Aug-24 MUTUAL PROPANE 168.28                                            IRWD Wells Fargo Check  No Print Reconciled
444404 8-Aug-24 NEGI, SHIKHA 8.48                                                 IRWD Wells Fargo Check  No Print Negotiable
444405 8-Aug-24 NINYO & MOORE 3,464.75                                        IRWD Wells Fargo Check  No Print Reconciled
444406 8-Aug-24 OCIACC - ORANGE COUNTY IRANIAN AMERICAN CHAMBER OF COMMERCE 1,000.00                                        IRWD Wells Fargo Check  No Print Reconciled
444407 8-Aug-24 ONESOURCE DISTRIBUTORS LLC 37,309.09                                     IRWD Wells Fargo Check  No Print Reconciled
444408 8-Aug-24 PACIFIC HYDROTECH CORPORATION 5,756.86                                        IRWD Wells Fargo Check  No Print Negotiable
444409 8-Aug-24 PACIFIC HYDROTECH CORPORATION 109,380.28                                   IRWD Wells Fargo Check  No Print Reconciled
444410 8-Aug-24 PACIFIC HYDROTECH CORPORATION 3,718.20                                        IRWD Wells Fargo Check  No Print Reconciled
444411 8-Aug-24 PACIFIC MECHANICAL SUPPLY 2,561.38                                        IRWD Wells Fargo Check  No Print Reconciled
444412 8-Aug-24 PAYMENTUS CORPORATION 65,845.97                                     IRWD Wells Fargo Check  No Print Reconciled
444413 8-Aug-24 POWERFLO PRODUCT'S INC 1,232.67                                        IRWD Wells Fargo Check  No Print Reconciled
444414 8-Aug-24 PRIME CONTROLS COMPANY INC 600.00                                            IRWD Wells Fargo Check  No Print Reconciled
444415 8-Aug-24 PRONTO GYM SERVICES, INC. 624.00                                            IRWD Wells Fargo Check  No Print Reconciled
444416 8-Aug-24 PSOMAS 1,020.00                                        IRWD Wells Fargo Check  No Print Reconciled
444417 8-Aug-24 PTI SAND & GRAVEL INC 1,694.09                                        IRWD Wells Fargo Check  No Print Reconciled
444418 8-Aug-24 R C FOSTER CORPORATION 1,150,827.24                               IRWD Wells Fargo Check  No Print Reconciled
444419 8-Aug-24 R.J. NOBLE COMPANY 45,275.00                                     IRWD Wells Fargo Check  No Print Reconciled
444420 8-Aug-24 RAM AIR ENGINEERING INC 9,096.67                                        IRWD Wells Fargo Check  No Print Reconciled
444421 8-Aug-24 REFRIGERATION SUPPLIES DISTRIBUTOR 678.83                                            IRWD Wells Fargo Check  No Print Reconciled
444422 8-Aug-24 RELIABLE WATER SOLUTIONS, LLC 5,101.94                                        IRWD Wells Fargo Check  No Print Reconciled
444423 8-Aug-24 REYES, COLLEEN 42.68                                              IRWD Wells Fargo Check  No Print Reconciled
444424 8-Aug-24 RINDLISBAKER, JO EL 1,403.77                                        IRWD Wells Fargo Check  No Print Negotiable
444425 8-Aug-24 ROBERT HALF INC. 19,988.94                                     IRWD Wells Fargo Check  No Print Reconciled
444426 8-Aug-24 SAFETY-KLEEN SYSTEMS, INC 343.00                                            IRWD Wells Fargo Check  No Print Reconciled
444427 8-Aug-24 SCA OF CA, LLC 2,840.00                                        IRWD Wells Fargo Check  No Print Reconciled
444428 8-Aug-24 SCHINDLER ELEVATOR CORPORATION 694.52                                            IRWD Wells Fargo Check  No Print Reconciled
444429 8-Aug-24 SCHULER CONSTRUCTORS, INC. 115,872.00                                   IRWD Wells Fargo Check  No Print Reconciled
444430 8-Aug-24 SITEONE LANDSCAPE SUPPLY, LLC 2,812.60                                        IRWD Wells Fargo Check  No Print Reconciled
444431 8-Aug-24 SOUTH COAST AIR QUALITY MANAGEMENT DISTRICT 8,016.00                                        IRWD Wells Fargo Check  No Print Negotiable
444432 8-Aug-24 SOUTHERN CALIFORNIA EDISON COMPANY 119,011.65                                   IRWD Wells Fargo Check  No Print Reconciled
444433 8-Aug-24 SS MECHANICAL CONSTRUCTION CORP 119,474.28                                   IRWD Wells Fargo Check  No Print Reconciled
444434 8-Aug-24 STREAKWAVE WIRELESS, INC. 828.35                                            IRWD Wells Fargo Check  No Print Reconciled
444435 8-Aug-24 TANKVISIONS, INC 30.00                                              IRWD Wells Fargo Check  No Print Reconciled
444436 8-Aug-24 TK ELEVATOR CORPORATION 745.91                                            IRWD Wells Fargo Check  No Print Reconciled
444437 8-Aug-24 ULINE INC 179.85                                            IRWD Wells Fargo Check  No Print Reconciled
444438 8-Aug-24 UNITED PARCEL SERVICE INC 38.55                                              IRWD Wells Fargo Check  No Print Reconciled
444439 8-Aug-24 UNITED SITE SERVICES OF CALIFORNIA INC 1,078.29                                        IRWD Wells Fargo Check  No Print Reconciled
444440 8-Aug-24 US BANK NAT'L ASSOCIATION NORTH DAKOTA 69,252.57                                     IRWD Wells Fargo Check  No Print Reconciled
444441 8-Aug-24 VACO LLC 3,663.00                                        IRWD Wells Fargo Check  No Print Reconciled
444442 8-Aug-24 VERIZON WIRELESS SERVICES LLC 5,516.45                                        IRWD Wells Fargo Check  No Print Reconciled
444443 8-Aug-24 VULCAN MATERIALS COMPANY 2,134.96                                        IRWD Wells Fargo Check  No Print Reconciled
444444 8-Aug-24 WASTE MANAGEMENT COLLECTIONS AND RECYCLING, INC. 16,737.75                                     IRWD Wells Fargo Check  No Print Reconciled
444445 8-Aug-24 WATER INFORMATION SHARING AND ANALYSIS CENTER (WATERISAC) 3,470.00                                        IRWD Wells Fargo Check  No Print Reconciled
444446 8-Aug-24 WATER VISIONS II INC. 543.06                                            IRWD Wells Fargo Check  No Print Reconciled
444447 8-Aug-24 WATERLINE TECHNOLOGIES INC 4,080.00                                        IRWD Wells Fargo Check  No Print Reconciled
444448 8-Aug-24 WAXIE'S ENTERPRISES, INC 4,065.74                                        IRWD Wells Fargo Check  No Print Reconciled
444449 8-Aug-24 WESTERN WATER WORKS SUPPLY COMPANY 932.17                                            IRWD Wells Fargo Check  No Print Reconciled
444450 8-Aug-24 YUAN, QIUCHEN 235.43                                            IRWD Wells Fargo Check  No Print Reconciled
444451 8-Aug-24 ANTHEM BLUE CROSS 337.32                                            IRWD Wells Fargo Check Reconciled
444452 8-Aug-24 HARTFORD LIFE AND ACCIDENT INSURANCE COMPANY 29.46                                              IRWD Wells Fargo Check Reconciled
444453 12-Aug-24 PACIFIC HYDROTECH CORPORATION 70,645.85                                     IRWD Wells Fargo Check  No Print Reconciled
444454 15-Aug-24 11:11 SYSTEMS INC. 6,382.50                                        IRWD Wells Fargo Check  No Print Reconciled
444455 15-Aug-24 8X8 INC 14,952.69                                     IRWD Wells Fargo Check  No Print Reconciled
444456 15-Aug-24 ABC ICE, INC 407.56                                            IRWD Wells Fargo Check  No Print Reconciled
444457 15-Aug-24 ACCUSTANDARD INC 536.80                                            IRWD Wells Fargo Check  No Print Reconciled
444458 15-Aug-24 ACE INDUSTRIES, INC. 680.81                                            IRWD Wells Fargo Check  No Print Reconciled
444459 15-Aug-24 AGILENT TECHNOLOGIES, INC. 16,595.40                                     IRWD Wells Fargo Check  No Print Reconciled
444460 15-Aug-24 AIRGAS, INC. 236.99                                            IRWD Wells Fargo Check  No Print Reconciled
444461 15-Aug-24 ANTHONY N. LARSEN 405.00                                            IRWD Wells Fargo Check  No Print Reconciled

3 of 13D - 3



CHECK OR 
ELECTRONIC # PAYMENT DATE SUPPLIER PAYMENT AMOUNT PAYMENT METHOD STATUS

IRVINE RANCH WATER DISTRICT
AP DISBURSEMENTS AND VOIDS FOR AUGUST 2024

444462 15-Aug-24 AQUATIC INFORMATICS INC. 19,129.00                                     IRWD Wells Fargo Check  No Print Reconciled
444463 15-Aug-24 AT&T CORP 1,049.44                                        IRWD Wells Fargo Check  No Print Reconciled
444464 15-Aug-24 AUTOZONE PARTS, INC. 2,727.21                                        IRWD Wells Fargo Check  No Print Reconciled
444465 15-Aug-24 AVIAT U.S., INC 4,763.67                                        IRWD Wells Fargo Check  No Print Reconciled
444466 15-Aug-24 BLUEBEAM, INC 8,768.00                                        IRWD Wells Fargo Check  No Print Reconciled
444467 15-Aug-24 BPS SUPPLY GROUP 4,721.05                                        IRWD Wells Fargo Check  No Print Reconciled
444468 15-Aug-24 BRIGHTVIEW LANDSCAPE SERVICES, INC. 750.00                                            IRWD Wells Fargo Check  No Print Reconciled
444469 15-Aug-24 BSI AMERICA PROFESSIONAL SERVICES INC. 6,700.00                                        IRWD Wells Fargo Check  No Print Negotiable
444470 15-Aug-24 BUTIER ENGINEERING INC 10,560.00                                     IRWD Wells Fargo Check  No Print Reconciled
444471 15-Aug-24 C WELLS PIPELINE MATERIALS INC 10,303.29                                     IRWD Wells Fargo Check  No Print Reconciled
444472 15-Aug-24 CALTROL, INC. 392.08                                            IRWD Wells Fargo Check  No Print Reconciled
444473 15-Aug-24 CANON FINANCIAL SERVICES, INC. 9,790.47                                        IRWD Wells Fargo Check  No Print Reconciled
444474 15-Aug-24 CANON SOLUTIONS AMERICA, INC 17.14                                              IRWD Wells Fargo Check  No Print Reconciled
444475 15-Aug-24 CLA-VAL COMPANY 59,356.41                                     IRWD Wells Fargo Check  No Print Reconciled
444476 15-Aug-24 COAST PLUMBING HEATING AND AIR, INC 4,885.00                                        IRWD Wells Fargo Check  No Print Reconciled
444477 15-Aug-24 COLE-PARMER INSTRUMENT CO 720.39                                            IRWD Wells Fargo Check  No Print Reconciled
444478 15-Aug-24 CR & R INCORPORATED 569.02                                            IRWD Wells Fargo Check  No Print Reconciled
444479 15-Aug-24 DCS MANAGEMENT LLC 1,142.02                                        IRWD Wells Fargo Check  No Print Reconciled
444480 15-Aug-24 DELL MARKETING LP 177.22                                            IRWD Wells Fargo Check  No Print Reconciled
444481 15-Aug-24 DG INVESTMENT INTERMEDIATE HOLDINGS 2, INC. 66,691.10                                     IRWD Wells Fargo Check  No Print Reconciled
444482 15-Aug-24 DMS FACILITY SERVICES, LLC 75,054.18                                     IRWD Wells Fargo Check  No Print Reconciled
444483 15-Aug-24 DOPUDJA & WELLS CONSULTING INC. 1,270.00                                        IRWD Wells Fargo Check  No Print Reconciled
444484 15-Aug-24 EASYVISTA, INC 28,360.00                                     IRWD Wells Fargo Check  No Print Reconciled
444485 15-Aug-24 ECO SERVICES LLC 6,985.59                                        IRWD Wells Fargo Check  No Print Reconciled
444486 15-Aug-24 ELIJAH STANDING WARRIOR 1,950.00                                        IRWD Wells Fargo Check  No Print Reconciled
444487 15-Aug-24 ENDRESS AND HAUSER INC 728.33                                            IRWD Wells Fargo Check  No Print Reconciled
444488 15-Aug-24 ENEL X ADVISORY SERVICES NORTH AMERICA, INC. 3,000.00                                        IRWD Wells Fargo Check  No Print Negotiable
444489 15-Aug-24 FARWEST CORROSION CONTROL COMPANY 6,102.75                                        IRWD Wells Fargo Check  No Print Reconciled
444490 15-Aug-24 FEDEX 135.07                                            IRWD Wells Fargo Check  No Print Reconciled
444491 15-Aug-24 FIRE EXTINGUISHING SAFETY & SERVICE 12,551.37                                     IRWD Wells Fargo Check  No Print Reconciled
444492 15-Aug-24 FISHER SCIENTIFIC COMPANY LLC 1,022.66                                        IRWD Wells Fargo Check  No Print Reconciled
444493 15-Aug-24 FORESTRY SUPPLIERS INC 1,480.58                                        IRWD Wells Fargo Check  No Print Reconciled
444494 15-Aug-24 FOSTER & FOSTER CONSULTING ACTUARIES, INC. 7,000.00                                        IRWD Wells Fargo Check  No Print Reconciled
444495 15-Aug-24 FRONTIER CALIFORNIA INC. 63.16                                              IRWD Wells Fargo Check  No Print Reconciled
444496 15-Aug-24 FULLER TRUCK ACCESSORIES 1,902.70                                        IRWD Wells Fargo Check  No Print Reconciled
444497 15-Aug-24 FUSCOE ENGINEERING, INC. 7,762.00                                        IRWD Wells Fargo Check  No Print Reconciled
444498 15-Aug-24 GANNETT FLEMING, INC. 15,171.41                                     IRWD Wells Fargo Check  No Print Reconciled
444499 15-Aug-24 GEI CONSULTANTS INC 7,046.00                                        IRWD Wells Fargo Check  No Print Reconciled
444500 15-Aug-24 GEIGER BROS 1,112.21                                        IRWD Wells Fargo Check  No Print Reconciled
444501 15-Aug-24 GEORGE HILLS COMPANY, INC. 263.20                                            IRWD Wells Fargo Check  No Print Reconciled
444502 15-Aug-24 GOFORTH & MARTI 3,210.28                                        IRWD Wells Fargo Check  No Print Reconciled
444503 15-Aug-24 GRAINGER 14,804.83                                     IRWD Wells Fargo Check  No Print Reconciled
444504 15-Aug-24 GRAYBAR ELECTRIC COMPANY 9,018.57                                        IRWD Wells Fargo Check  No Print Reconciled
444505 15-Aug-24 GSRP ST SOLAR I LLC 14,625.85                                     IRWD Wells Fargo Check  No Print Reconciled
444506 15-Aug-24 HA, JUNGSOO 45.69                                              IRWD Wells Fargo Check  No Print Negotiable
444507 15-Aug-24 HACH COMPANY 2,122.49                                        IRWD Wells Fargo Check  No Print Reconciled
444508 15-Aug-24 HADRONEX, INC. 61,843.10                                     IRWD Wells Fargo Check  No Print Reconciled
444509 15-Aug-24 HDR ENGINEERING INC 47,982.50                                     IRWD Wells Fargo Check  No Print Reconciled
444510 15-Aug-24 HI-LINE INC 494.16                                            IRWD Wells Fargo Check  No Print Reconciled
444511 15-Aug-24 HOME DEPOT USA INC 327.30                                            IRWD Wells Fargo Check  No Print Reconciled
444512 15-Aug-24 HOYA OPTICAL LABS OF AMERICA, INC. 211.00                                            IRWD Wells Fargo Check  No Print Reconciled
444513 15-Aug-24 IMPERIAL SPRINKLER SUPPLY, INC. 378.65                                            IRWD Wells Fargo Check  No Print Reconciled
444514 15-Aug-24 INDCO, INC 1,486.90                                        IRWD Wells Fargo Check  No Print Reconciled
444515 15-Aug-24 INDUSTRIAL METAL SUPPLY CO 875.59                                            IRWD Wells Fargo Check  No Print Reconciled
444516 15-Aug-24 INFOSEND, INC. 35,529.57                                     IRWD Wells Fargo Check  No Print Reconciled
444517 15-Aug-24 J & R CONCRETE PRODUCTS, INC. 5,360.56                                        IRWD Wells Fargo Check  No Print Reconciled
444518 15-Aug-24 JOSE MARTINEZ TREE SERVICE INC. 2,000.00                                        IRWD Wells Fargo Check  No Print Reconciled
444519 15-Aug-24 KILL-N-BUGS TERMITE AND PEST CONTROL SERVICES 5,950.00                                        IRWD Wells Fargo Check  No Print Reconciled
444520 15-Aug-24 KURZ INSTRUMENTS INC 5,204.05                                        IRWD Wells Fargo Check  No Print Reconciled
444521 15-Aug-24 LEADERSHIP TOMORROW 3,000.00                                        IRWD Wells Fargo Check  No Print Reconciled
444522 15-Aug-24 LINDE GAS & EQUIPMENT INC. 1,966.81                                        IRWD Wells Fargo Check  No Print Reconciled
444523 15-Aug-24 LSA ASSOCIATES INC 7,783.75                                        IRWD Wells Fargo Check  No Print Reconciled
444524 15-Aug-24 MAP COMMUNICATIONS, INC. 1,304.99                                        IRWD Wells Fargo Check  No Print Reconciled
444525 15-Aug-24 MC FADDEN-DALE INDUSTRIAL 151.44                                            IRWD Wells Fargo Check  No Print Reconciled
444526 15-Aug-24 MC MASTER CARR SUPPLY CO 6,148.63                                        IRWD Wells Fargo Check  No Print Reconciled
444527 15-Aug-24 MICHAEL K. NUNLEY & ASSOCIATES, INC. 1,577.75                                        IRWD Wells Fargo Check  No Print Reconciled
444528 15-Aug-24 MICROSOFT CORPORATION 24.00                                              IRWD Wells Fargo Check  No Print Negotiable
444529 15-Aug-24 MORSCO SUPPLY, LLC 1,403.41                                        IRWD Wells Fargo Check  No Print Reconciled
444530 15-Aug-24 MSC INDUSTRIAL SUPPLY CO 426.41                                            IRWD Wells Fargo Check  No Print Reconciled
444531 15-Aug-24 MYERS & SONS HI-WAY SAFETY, INC. 3,911.29                                        IRWD Wells Fargo Check  No Print Reconciled
444532 15-Aug-24 NATIONAL SAFETY COMPLIANCE, INC 104.50                                            IRWD Wells Fargo Check  No Print Reconciled
444533 15-Aug-24 NICK BARBIERI TRUCKING, LLC 2,839.59                                        IRWD Wells Fargo Check  No Print Reconciled
444534 15-Aug-24 NMG GEOTECHNICAL INC 15,502.80                                     IRWD Wells Fargo Check  No Print Reconciled
444535 15-Aug-24 NOVA GEOTECHNICAL AND INSPECTION SERVICES 803.00                                            IRWD Wells Fargo Check  No Print Reconciled
444536 15-Aug-24 ONESOURCE DISTRIBUTORS LLC 2,573.86                                        IRWD Wells Fargo Check  No Print Reconciled
444537 15-Aug-24 ORANGE COUNTY FIRE AUTHORITY 289.00                                            IRWD Wells Fargo Check  No Print Reconciled
444538 15-Aug-24 ORANGE COUNTY MOSQUITO AND VECTOR CONTROL DISTRICT 194.85                                            IRWD Wells Fargo Check  No Print Reconciled
444539 15-Aug-24 ORANGE COUNTY TREASURER 589.01                                            IRWD Wells Fargo Check  No Print Reconciled
444540 15-Aug-24 PACIFIC EH&S SERVICES, INC. 9,366.08                                        IRWD Wells Fargo Check  No Print Reconciled
444541 15-Aug-24 PACIFIC HYDROTECH CORPORATION 97,264.77                                     IRWD Wells Fargo Check  No Print Reconciled

4 of 13D - 4



CHECK OR 
ELECTRONIC # PAYMENT DATE SUPPLIER PAYMENT AMOUNT PAYMENT METHOD STATUS

IRVINE RANCH WATER DISTRICT
AP DISBURSEMENTS AND VOIDS FOR AUGUST 2024

444542 15-Aug-24 PACIFIC HYDROTECH CORPORATION 1,615.57                                        IRWD Wells Fargo Check  No Print Negotiable
444543 15-Aug-24 PACIFIC HYDROTECH CORPORATION 5,119.20                                        IRWD Wells Fargo Check  No Print Negotiable
444544 15-Aug-24 PENN ARCHIVE SERVICES 93.76                                              IRWD Wells Fargo Check  No Print Reconciled
444545 15-Aug-24 PLUMBERS DEPOT INC. 1,296.45                                        IRWD Wells Fargo Check  No Print Negotiable
444546 15-Aug-24 POLLARDWATER.COM 76.20                                              IRWD Wells Fargo Check  No Print Reconciled
444547 15-Aug-24 PTI SAND & GRAVEL INC 2,616.44                                        IRWD Wells Fargo Check  No Print Reconciled
444548 15-Aug-24 QUESTICA LTD 33,025.00                                     IRWD Wells Fargo Check  No Print Reconciled
444549 15-Aug-24 QUINN COMPANY 126.20                                            IRWD Wells Fargo Check  No Print Reconciled
444550 15-Aug-24 R&B AUTOMATION, INC. 7,374.21                                        IRWD Wells Fargo Check  No Print Reconciled
444551 15-Aug-24 R.F. MACDONALD CO. 54,048.96                                     IRWD Wells Fargo Check  No Print Reconciled
444552 15-Aug-24 RESOURCE ENVIRONMENTAL, INC. 436.50                                            IRWD Wells Fargo Check  No Print Reconciled
444553 15-Aug-24 ROBERT HALF INC. 11,044.25                                     IRWD Wells Fargo Check  No Print Reconciled
444554 15-Aug-24 ROBERTS ROOFING INC 150,500.00                                   IRWD Wells Fargo Check  No Print Reconciled
444555 15-Aug-24 RODNEY HARMSWORTH ASSOCIATES, INC. 1,429.25                                        IRWD Wells Fargo Check  No Print Reconciled
444556 15-Aug-24 SANTA MARGARITA FORD 6,778.82                                        IRWD Wells Fargo Check  No Print Reconciled
444557 15-Aug-24 SECURITAS SECURITY SERVICES USA, INC. 3,012.00                                        IRWD Wells Fargo Check  No Print Reconciled
444558 15-Aug-24 SHAW, LISA 123.77                                            IRWD Wells Fargo Check  No Print Reconciled
444559 15-Aug-24 SHIMMICK CONSTRUCTION INC. 307,230.00                                   IRWD Wells Fargo Check  No Print Reconciled
444560 15-Aug-24 SITEONE LANDSCAPE SUPPLY, LLC 2,963.69                                        IRWD Wells Fargo Check  No Print Reconciled
444561 15-Aug-24 SMOG TIME 65.00                                              IRWD Wells Fargo Check  No Print Negotiable
444562 15-Aug-24 SOUTH COAST WATER CO. 100.00                                            IRWD Wells Fargo Check  No Print Reconciled
444563 15-Aug-24 SOUTHERN CALIFORNIA EDISON COMPANY 889,177.43                                   IRWD Wells Fargo Check  No Print Reconciled
444564 15-Aug-24 SOUTHERN CALIFORNIA GAS COMPANY 8,066.81                                        IRWD Wells Fargo Check  No Print Reconciled
444565 15-Aug-24 SOUTHERN CALIFORNIA WATER COALITION 25,000.00                                     IRWD Wells Fargo Check  No Print Reconciled
444566 15-Aug-24 SOUTHSIDE TOWING 500.00                                            IRWD Wells Fargo Check  No Print Reconciled
444567 15-Aug-24 SPARKLETTS 360.54                                            IRWD Wells Fargo Check  No Print Reconciled
444568 15-Aug-24 STANTEC CONSULTING SERVICES INC. 1,459.50                                        IRWD Wells Fargo Check  No Print Reconciled
444569 15-Aug-24 STETSON ENGINEERS INC. 4,457.00                                        IRWD Wells Fargo Check  No Print Negotiable
444570 15-Aug-24 SUZANNA CHOI 7,000.00                                        IRWD Wells Fargo Check  No Print Reconciled
444571 15-Aug-24 SYNAGRO-WWT, INC. 128,756.33                                   IRWD Wells Fargo Check  No Print Reconciled
444572 15-Aug-24 THE BOYD GROUP US INC 470.19                                            IRWD Wells Fargo Check  No Print Reconciled
444573 15-Aug-24 THOMPSON & PHIPPS INC 6,117.19                                        IRWD Wells Fargo Check  No Print Reconciled
444574 15-Aug-24 TIERRA VERDE INDUSTRIES 43.10                                              IRWD Wells Fargo Check  No Print Reconciled
444575 15-Aug-24 TRUSSELL TECHNOLOGIES, INC. 4,186.25                                        IRWD Wells Fargo Check  No Print Reconciled
444576 15-Aug-24 UNITED PARCEL SERVICE INC 42.65                                              IRWD Wells Fargo Check  No Print Reconciled
444577 15-Aug-24 UNITED SITE SERVICES OF CALIFORNIA INC 1,421.60                                        IRWD Wells Fargo Check  No Print Reconciled
444578 15-Aug-24 UNIVAR SOLUTIONS USA INC. 7,652.70                                        IRWD Wells Fargo Check  No Print Reconciled
444579 15-Aug-24 USA WASTE OF CALIFORNIA, INC. 660.92                                            IRWD Wells Fargo Check  No Print Reconciled
444580 15-Aug-24 VACO LLC 8,140.00                                        IRWD Wells Fargo Check  No Print Reconciled
444581 15-Aug-24 VWR INTERNATIONAL, LLC 2,102.77                                        IRWD Wells Fargo Check  No Print Reconciled
444582 15-Aug-24 WALTERS WHOLESALE ELECTRIC 260.06                                            IRWD Wells Fargo Check  No Print Reconciled
444583 15-Aug-24 WASTE MANAGEMENT COLLECTIONS AND RECYCLING, INC. 7,807.13                                        IRWD Wells Fargo Check  No Print Reconciled
444584 15-Aug-24 WAXIE'S ENTERPRISES, INC 536.58                                            IRWD Wells Fargo Check  No Print Reconciled
444585 15-Aug-24 WINDWOOD KNOLL APTS 2,462.32                                        IRWD Wells Fargo Check  No Print Negotiable
444586 15-Aug-24 YSI, INC 25.40                                              IRWD Wells Fargo Check  No Print Reconciled
444587 15-Aug-24 FRANCHISE TAX BOARD 492.00                                            IRWD Wells Fargo Check Negotiable
444588 15-Aug-24 INTERNATIONAL BROTHERHOOD OF ELECTRICAL WORKERS LOCAL 47 8,612.09                                        IRWD Wells Fargo Check Reconciled
444589 15-Aug-24 PERS LONG TERM CARE 363.31                                            IRWD Wells Fargo Check Reconciled
444590 15-Aug-24 STATE OF ARKANSAS 1,013.26                                        IRWD Wells Fargo Check Reconciled
444591 15-Aug-24 Stupy, Cole Austin 32.16                                              IRWD Wells Fargo Check Reconciled
444592 15-Aug-24 Webster, Tanner 161.75                                            IRWD Wells Fargo Check Reconciled
444593 19-Aug-24 SAM MITCHELL 15,000.00                                     IRWD Wells Fargo Check Reconciled
444594 22-Aug-24 ABC ICE, INC 529.45                                            IRWD Wells Fargo Check  No Print Negotiable
444595 22-Aug-24 AECOM TECHNICAL SERVICES, INC. 1,797.50                                        IRWD Wells Fargo Check  No Print Negotiable
444596 22-Aug-24 AGILENT TECHNOLOGIES, INC. 308.60                                            IRWD Wells Fargo Check  No Print Reconciled
444597 22-Aug-24 AIR TECHNOLOGY LABORATORIES 503.00                                            IRWD Wells Fargo Check  No Print Negotiable
444598 22-Aug-24 ALAN SMITH POOL PLASTERING, INC 449.34                                            IRWD Wells Fargo Check  No Print Reconciled
444599 22-Aug-24 ALLIANT INSURANCE SERVICES,INC 36,000.00                                     IRWD Wells Fargo Check  No Print Reconciled
444600 22-Aug-24 ANDRITZ SEPARATION, INC. 7,728.00                                        IRWD Wells Fargo Check  No Print Reconciled
444601 22-Aug-24 APCO GRAPHICS INC 907.59                                            IRWD Wells Fargo Check  No Print Reconciled
444602 22-Aug-24 AQUATIC BIOASSAY & CONSULTING LABORATORIES, INC. 1,740.00                                        IRWD Wells Fargo Check  No Print Reconciled
444603 22-Aug-24 ARIZONA PIPELINE  CO. 1,557.41                                        IRWD Wells Fargo Check  No Print Negotiable
444604 22-Aug-24 ARMIN CORP 310.24                                            IRWD Wells Fargo Check  No Print Reconciled
444605 22-Aug-24 AT&T CORP 4,778.05                                        IRWD Wells Fargo Check  No Print Negotiable
444606 22-Aug-24 AT&T CORP 165.87                                            IRWD Wells Fargo Check  No Print Negotiable
444607 22-Aug-24 AT&T CORP 172.62                                            IRWD Wells Fargo Check  No Print Negotiable
444608 22-Aug-24 AUTOZONE PARTS, INC. 528.40                                            IRWD Wells Fargo Check  No Print Negotiable
444609 22-Aug-24 BADGER METER INC. 2,050.00                                        IRWD Wells Fargo Check  No Print Negotiable
444610 22-Aug-24 BEADOR CONSTRUCTION CO INC 1,400.76                                        IRWD Wells Fargo Check  No Print Negotiable
444611 22-Aug-24 BELGER, MELANIE 391.22                                            IRWD Wells Fargo Check  No Print Reconciled
444612 22-Aug-24 BIAGAN, RAYMOND O 83.72                                              IRWD Wells Fargo Check  No Print Negotiable
444613 22-Aug-24 BIOTAGE LLC 258.45                                            IRWD Wells Fargo Check  No Print Negotiable
444614 22-Aug-24 BORCHARD SURVEYING & MAPPING, INC. 2,842.50                                        IRWD Wells Fargo Check  No Print Reconciled
444615 22-Aug-24 BOWER, CONNIE 64.93                                              IRWD Wells Fargo Check  No Print Reconciled
444616 22-Aug-24 BRENNER-FIEDLER & ASSOCIATES, INC. 14,946.96                                     IRWD Wells Fargo Check  No Print Reconciled
444617 22-Aug-24 BRIGHTVIEW LANDSCAPE DEVELOPMENT 338.26                                            IRWD Wells Fargo Check  No Print Negotiable
444618 22-Aug-24 BROWN AND CALDWELL 2,462.98                                        IRWD Wells Fargo Check  No Print Reconciled
444619 22-Aug-24 BUCCOLA LANDSCAPE SERVICES INC 545.66                                            IRWD Wells Fargo Check  No Print Reconciled
444620 22-Aug-24 BUTIER ENGINEERING INC 19,440.00                                     IRWD Wells Fargo Check  No Print Reconciled
444621 22-Aug-24 C WELLS PIPELINE MATERIALS INC 1,223.18                                        IRWD Wells Fargo Check  No Print Reconciled

5 of 13D - 5



CHECK OR 
ELECTRONIC # PAYMENT DATE SUPPLIER PAYMENT AMOUNT PAYMENT METHOD STATUS

IRVINE RANCH WATER DISTRICT
AP DISBURSEMENTS AND VOIDS FOR AUGUST 2024

444622 22-Aug-24 CABCO YELLOW INC. 125.70                                            IRWD Wells Fargo Check  No Print Negotiable
444623 22-Aug-24 CALIFORNIA NEWSPAPERS PARTNERSHIP 1,098.22                                        IRWD Wells Fargo Check  No Print Reconciled
444624 22-Aug-24 CALIFORNIA PACIFIC HOMES 89.28                                              IRWD Wells Fargo Check  No Print Reconciled
444625 22-Aug-24 CALIFORNIA WATER EFFICIENCY PARTNERSHIP 4,560.45                                        IRWD Wells Fargo Check  No Print Negotiable
444626 22-Aug-24 CALPINE CORPORATION 560,554.27                                   IRWD Wells Fargo Check  No Print Reconciled
444627 22-Aug-24 CERNIGOJ, SONIA 5.68                                                 IRWD Wells Fargo Check  No Print Negotiable
444628 22-Aug-24 CHADWICK, DEREK 39.35                                              IRWD Wells Fargo Check  No Print Negotiable
444629 22-Aug-24 CHEM TECH INTERNATIONAL INC 10,138.86                                     IRWD Wells Fargo Check  No Print Negotiable
444630 22-Aug-24 CHEN, ALEXANDER 387.32                                            IRWD Wells Fargo Check  No Print Reconciled
444631 22-Aug-24 CHEN, ANDREW 39.28                                              IRWD Wells Fargo Check  No Print Negotiable
444632 22-Aug-24 CITY OF NEWPORT BEACH 2,559.93                                        IRWD Wells Fargo Check  No Print Reconciled
444633 22-Aug-24 CLA-VAL COMPANY 11,466.77                                     IRWD Wells Fargo Check  No Print Reconciled
444634 22-Aug-24 CLEAN AIR SPECIALISTS, LLC 27,245.13                                     IRWD Wells Fargo Check  No Print Negotiable
444635 22-Aug-24 CORELOGIC INC 621.77                                            IRWD Wells Fargo Check  No Print Reconciled
444636 22-Aug-24 CURATIVE I.T. LLC 378.03                                            IRWD Wells Fargo Check  No Print Negotiable
444637 22-Aug-24 CUSACK, FRANK 79.54                                              IRWD Wells Fargo Check  No Print Reconciled
444638 22-Aug-24 DAMATO ASSOCIATES 461.15                                            IRWD Wells Fargo Check  No Print Reconciled
444639 22-Aug-24 DEALERS SERVICE COMPANY, INC 1,897.23                                        IRWD Wells Fargo Check  No Print Negotiable
444640 22-Aug-24 DENALI WATER SOLUTIONS LLC 10,867.66                                     IRWD Wells Fargo Check  No Print Negotiable
444641 22-Aug-24 DG INVESTMENT INTERMEDIATE HOLDINGS 2, INC. 878.00                                            IRWD Wells Fargo Check  No Print Reconciled
444642 22-Aug-24 DIGITAL ELECTRIC INC. 5,445.00                                        IRWD Wells Fargo Check  No Print Negotiable
444643 22-Aug-24 DILYTICS INC 3,200.00                                        IRWD Wells Fargo Check  No Print Reconciled
444644 22-Aug-24 DIRECTV INC 159.24                                            IRWD Wells Fargo Check  No Print Reconciled
444645 22-Aug-24 EAGLE AERIAL PHOTOGRAPHY INC 54,954.27                                     IRWD Wells Fargo Check  No Print Negotiable
444646 22-Aug-24 EAST ORANGE COUNTY WATER DISTRICT 2,066.52                                        IRWD Wells Fargo Check  No Print Reconciled
444647 22-Aug-24 ECKLUND-HERZOG, KRISTIN 33.79                                              IRWD Wells Fargo Check  No Print Negotiable
444648 22-Aug-24 ENDEMIC ENVIRONMENTAL SERVICES, INC. 2,219.00                                        IRWD Wells Fargo Check  No Print Reconciled
444649 22-Aug-24 ENTERPRISE HOLDINGS, INC. 14,837.00                                     IRWD Wells Fargo Check  No Print Reconciled
444650 22-Aug-24 ENVIRONMENTAL SCIENCE ASSOCIATES 4,101.25                                        IRWD Wells Fargo Check  No Print Negotiable
444651 22-Aug-24 FEDEX 274.33                                            IRWD Wells Fargo Check  No Print Reconciled
444652 22-Aug-24 FIRE EXTINGUISHING SAFETY & SERVICE 945.19                                            IRWD Wells Fargo Check  No Print Reconciled
444653 22-Aug-24 FISHER SCIENTIFIC COMPANY LLC 650.21                                            IRWD Wells Fargo Check  No Print Reconciled
444654 22-Aug-24 FORESTRY SUPPLIERS INC 1,060.99                                        IRWD Wells Fargo Check  No Print Reconciled
444655 22-Aug-24 FRONTIER CALIFORNIA INC. 523.70                                            IRWD Wells Fargo Check  No Print Reconciled
444656 22-Aug-24 GARDENSOFT CORP 3,000.00                                        IRWD Wells Fargo Check  No Print Reconciled
444657 22-Aug-24 GCI CONSTRUCTION, INC 1,058.34                                        IRWD Wells Fargo Check  No Print Negotiable
444658 22-Aug-24 GRAINGER 6,676.33                                        IRWD Wells Fargo Check  No Print Reconciled
444659 22-Aug-24 GRAYBAR ELECTRIC COMPANY 272.34                                            IRWD Wells Fargo Check  No Print Reconciled
444660 22-Aug-24 GUIDA SURVEYING INC. 4,846.44                                        IRWD Wells Fargo Check  No Print Reconciled
444661 22-Aug-24 H.S.G. PROFESSIONAL WINDOW CLEANERS, LLC 2,377.00                                        IRWD Wells Fargo Check  No Print Negotiable
444662 22-Aug-24 HACH COMPANY 133.31                                            IRWD Wells Fargo Check  No Print Negotiable
444663 22-Aug-24 HAZEN AND SAWYER 4,877.50                                        IRWD Wells Fargo Check  No Print Negotiable
444664 22-Aug-24 HDR ENGINEERING INC 12,944.50                                     IRWD Wells Fargo Check  No Print Negotiable
444665 22-Aug-24 HERITAGE FIELDS EL TORO, LLC 245.76                                            IRWD Wells Fargo Check  No Print Reconciled
444666 22-Aug-24 HI-LINE INC 916.17                                            IRWD Wells Fargo Check  No Print Reconciled
444667 22-Aug-24 HOME DEPOT USA INC 483.05                                            IRWD Wells Fargo Check  No Print Negotiable
444668 22-Aug-24 IM, NATHAN 49.66                                              IRWD Wells Fargo Check  No Print Negotiable
444669 22-Aug-24 INFOSEND, INC. 24,144.41                                     IRWD Wells Fargo Check  No Print Reconciled
444670 22-Aug-24 INJEV, VALENTINE 39.99                                              IRWD Wells Fargo Check  No Print Negotiable
444671 22-Aug-24 IRIS GROUP HOLDINGS LLC 994.98                                            IRWD Wells Fargo Check  No Print Negotiable
444672 22-Aug-24 IRON MOUNTAIN INFORMATION MANAGEMENT INC 1,184.77                                        IRWD Wells Fargo Check  No Print Reconciled
444673 22-Aug-24 IRVINE COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT COMPANY LLC 789,653.41                                   IRWD Wells Fargo Check  No Print Negotiable
444674 22-Aug-24 IRVINE PACIFIC 545.90                                            IRWD Wells Fargo Check  No Print Reconciled
444675 22-Aug-24 IRVINE UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 1,342.40                                        IRWD Wells Fargo Check  No Print Negotiable
444676 22-Aug-24 IVY, JUSTIN 114.69                                            IRWD Wells Fargo Check  No Print Negotiable
444677 22-Aug-24 JUST ENERGY SOLUTIONS INC. 109.39                                            IRWD Wells Fargo Check  No Print Reconciled
444678 22-Aug-24 KIMBALL MIDWEST 1,695.93                                        IRWD Wells Fargo Check  No Print Negotiable
444679 22-Aug-24 KINETIC PERSONNEL GROUP INC 675.00                                            IRWD Wells Fargo Check  No Print Reconciled
444680 22-Aug-24 KONG, KEVIN 400.29                                            IRWD Wells Fargo Check  No Print Reconciled
444681 22-Aug-24 KPRS CONSTRUCTION SERVICES INC 210.34                                            IRWD Wells Fargo Check  No Print Reconciled
444682 22-Aug-24 LA HABRA FENCE COMPANY INC 855.00                                            IRWD Wells Fargo Check  No Print Reconciled
444683 22-Aug-24 LEE, HYERAH BAIK 247.69                                            IRWD Wells Fargo Check  No Print Negotiable
444684 22-Aug-24 LILLESTRAND LEADERSHIP CONSULTING, INC. 7,687.50                                        IRWD Wells Fargo Check  No Print Negotiable
444685 22-Aug-24 LINDE GAS & EQUIPMENT INC. 13,857.12                                     IRWD Wells Fargo Check  No Print Reconciled
444686 22-Aug-24 LOPEZ, WENDY 211.97                                            IRWD Wells Fargo Check  No Print Negotiable
444687 22-Aug-24 LUBRICATION ENGINEERS 1,720.51                                        IRWD Wells Fargo Check  No Print Reconciled
444688 22-Aug-24 MATHER, TODD C 122.85                                            IRWD Wells Fargo Check  No Print Negotiable
444689 22-Aug-24 MATHESON TRI GAS, INC 3,272.85                                        IRWD Wells Fargo Check  No Print Reconciled
444690 22-Aug-24 MC MASTER CARR SUPPLY CO 349.53                                            IRWD Wells Fargo Check  No Print Negotiable
444691 22-Aug-24 MICROSOFT CORPORATION 500.54                                            IRWD Wells Fargo Check  No Print Negotiable
444692 22-Aug-24 MILES CHEMICAL COMPANY, INC. 12,901.90                                     IRWD Wells Fargo Check  No Print Reconciled
444693 22-Aug-24 MORSCO SUPPLY, LLC 6,885.63                                        IRWD Wells Fargo Check  No Print Reconciled
444694 22-Aug-24 NALCO COMPANY LLC 1,465.82                                        IRWD Wells Fargo Check  No Print Reconciled
444695 22-Aug-24 NCH CORPORATION 948.63                                            IRWD Wells Fargo Check  No Print Reconciled
444696 22-Aug-24 NORIMA CONSULTING US 6,660.00                                        IRWD Wells Fargo Check  No Print Negotiable
444697 22-Aug-24 NOVACOAST INC 393.75                                            IRWD Wells Fargo Check  No Print Reconciled
444698 22-Aug-24 O'REILLY AUTO ENTERPRISES, LLC 86.98                                              IRWD Wells Fargo Check  No Print Reconciled
444699 22-Aug-24 ORACLE AMERICA, INC. 1,689.82                                        IRWD Wells Fargo Check  No Print Reconciled
444700 22-Aug-24 ORANGE COUNTY FIRE AUTHORITY 376.00                                            IRWD Wells Fargo Check  No Print Reconciled
444701 22-Aug-24 ORANGE COUNTY MOSQUITO AND VECTOR CONTROL DISTRICT 3,582.18                                        IRWD Wells Fargo Check  No Print Reconciled

6 of 13D - 6



CHECK OR 
ELECTRONIC # PAYMENT DATE SUPPLIER PAYMENT AMOUNT PAYMENT METHOD STATUS

IRVINE RANCH WATER DISTRICT
AP DISBURSEMENTS AND VOIDS FOR AUGUST 2024

444702 22-Aug-24 PALP INC. DBA EXCEL PAVING COMPANY 419,874.31                                   IRWD Wells Fargo Check  No Print Reconciled
444703 22-Aug-24 PINNACLE TOWERS LLC 911.53                                            IRWD Wells Fargo Check  No Print Reconciled
444704 22-Aug-24 PIPELINE PRODUCTS, INC. 5,868.24                                        IRWD Wells Fargo Check  No Print Reconciled
444705 22-Aug-24 POLLARDWATER.COM 5,791.56                                        IRWD Wells Fargo Check  No Print Reconciled
444706 22-Aug-24 PTI SAND & GRAVEL INC 1,547.37                                        IRWD Wells Fargo Check  No Print Reconciled
444707 22-Aug-24 PURE EFFECT INC 21,813.00                                     IRWD Wells Fargo Check  No Print Reconciled
444708 22-Aug-24 QIN, XI 272.94                                            IRWD Wells Fargo Check  No Print Reconciled
444709 22-Aug-24 RADWELL INTERNATIONAL INC 595.02                                            IRWD Wells Fargo Check  No Print Reconciled
444710 22-Aug-24 ROBERT HALF INC. 14,288.94                                     IRWD Wells Fargo Check  No Print Reconciled
444711 22-Aug-24 ROBINSON, TOM 178.53                                            IRWD Wells Fargo Check  No Print Reconciled
444712 22-Aug-24 SAFARI, ELENA 115.74                                            IRWD Wells Fargo Check  No Print Negotiable
444713 22-Aug-24 SAND CANYON MEDICAL GROUP 2,490.00                                        IRWD Wells Fargo Check  No Print Reconciled
444714 22-Aug-24 SANTA MARGARITA FORD 203.04                                            IRWD Wells Fargo Check  No Print Reconciled
444715 22-Aug-24 SCELZI ENTERPRISES INC. 1,407.58                                        IRWD Wells Fargo Check  No Print Reconciled
444716 22-Aug-24 SEAL ANALYTICAL INC 14,305.00                                     IRWD Wells Fargo Check  No Print Negotiable
444717 22-Aug-24 SHAMROCK SUPPLY CO INC 678.97                                            IRWD Wells Fargo Check  No Print Reconciled
444718 22-Aug-24 SHAN SHAN WANG AND KUO LING 2.33                                                 IRWD Wells Fargo Check  No Print Reconciled
444719 22-Aug-24 SIGNATURE FLOORING, INC 19,762.00                                     IRWD Wells Fargo Check  No Print Reconciled
444720 22-Aug-24 SMARTSIGHTS TECHNOLOGIES, LLC 1,107.50                                        IRWD Wells Fargo Check  No Print Reconciled
444721 22-Aug-24 SOUTH COAST AIR QUALITY MANAGEMENT DISTRICT 2,121.00                                        IRWD Wells Fargo Check  No Print Negotiable
444722 22-Aug-24 SOUTHERN CALIFORNIA EDISON COMPANY 67,949.33                                     IRWD Wells Fargo Check  No Print Reconciled
444723 22-Aug-24 SOUTHERN CALIFORNIA GAS COMPANY 9,613.07                                        IRWD Wells Fargo Check  No Print Reconciled
444724 22-Aug-24 SPARK HIRE, INC. 5,988.00                                        IRWD Wells Fargo Check  No Print Negotiable
444725 22-Aug-24 SPARKLETTS 197.80                                            IRWD Wells Fargo Check  No Print Negotiable
444726 22-Aug-24 STEVEN WELCH 1,395.00                                        IRWD Wells Fargo Check  No Print Reconciled
444727 22-Aug-24 STICE COMPANY, INC. 2,600.00                                        IRWD Wells Fargo Check  No Print Negotiable
444728 22-Aug-24 SUPERIOR ELECTRIC MOTOR SERVICE, INC. 9,065.93                                        IRWD Wells Fargo Check  No Print Reconciled
444729 22-Aug-24 TELEDYNE INSTRUMENTS, INC. 10,312.00                                     IRWD Wells Fargo Check  No Print Negotiable
444730 22-Aug-24 TH EL TORO LLC 1,811.16                                        IRWD Wells Fargo Check  No Print Reconciled
444731 22-Aug-24 TK ELEVATOR CORPORATION 2,097.90                                        IRWD Wells Fargo Check  No Print Reconciled
444732 22-Aug-24 TOLL BROS. INC. 593.42                                            IRWD Wells Fargo Check  No Print Negotiable
444733 22-Aug-24 TOM'S TRUCK CENTER NORTH COUNTY, LLC 2,258.83                                        IRWD Wells Fargo Check  No Print Negotiable
444734 22-Aug-24 TOP TEN REAL ESTATE INC 42.61                                              IRWD Wells Fargo Check  No Print Negotiable
444735 22-Aug-24 TRI COUNTY PUMP COMPANY 26,860.00                                     IRWD Wells Fargo Check  No Print Reconciled
444736 22-Aug-24 TRI POINTE HOMES, INC. 131.72                                            IRWD Wells Fargo Check  No Print Negotiable
444737 22-Aug-24 TUKHI, AHMAD J 163.41                                            IRWD Wells Fargo Check  No Print Negotiable
444738 22-Aug-24 TUSTIN TOYOTA 48.01                                              IRWD Wells Fargo Check  No Print Reconciled
444739 22-Aug-24 VACO LLC 4,477.00                                        IRWD Wells Fargo Check  No Print Negotiable
444740 22-Aug-24 VALLEY POWER SYSTEMS INC 8,423.97                                        IRWD Wells Fargo Check  No Print Reconciled
444741 22-Aug-24 VISTA PAINT CORPORATION 169.01                                            IRWD Wells Fargo Check  No Print Reconciled
444742 22-Aug-24 VWR INTERNATIONAL, LLC 1,185.23                                        IRWD Wells Fargo Check  No Print Negotiable
444743 22-Aug-24 WATERLINE TECHNOLOGIES INC 17,209.88                                     IRWD Wells Fargo Check  No Print Reconciled
444744 22-Aug-24 WAXIE'S ENTERPRISES, INC 1,109.52                                        IRWD Wells Fargo Check  No Print Reconciled
444745 22-Aug-24 WEIR, BRETT 8.31                                                 IRWD Wells Fargo Check  No Print Negotiable
444746 22-Aug-24 WOODWARD, BLAKE 26.13                                              IRWD Wells Fargo Check  No Print Negotiable
444747 22-Aug-24 YU, YIMING 103.51                                            IRWD Wells Fargo Check  No Print Reconciled
444748 22-Aug-24 YUNMI MARTIN 7,750.00                                        IRWD Wells Fargo Check  No Print Reconciled
444749 22-Aug-24 ZEBRON CONTRACTING INC 91,490.00                                     IRWD Wells Fargo Check  No Print Reconciled
444750 22-Aug-24 King, Casey (Casey) 84.34                                              IRWD Wells Fargo Check Negotiable
444751 29-Aug-24 ABERNETHY SCHWARTZ PARTNERS, LLC 5,590.00                                        IRWD Wells Fargo Check  No Print Negotiable
444752 29-Aug-24 AIRGAS, INC. 5,199.19                                        IRWD Wells Fargo Check  No Print Negotiable
444753 29-Aug-24 AMAYA SOLUTIONS INC. 8,192.77                                        IRWD Wells Fargo Check  No Print Negotiable
444754 29-Aug-24 ANTHEM BLUE CROSS 337.32                                            IRWD Wells Fargo Check  No Print Negotiable
444755 29-Aug-24 AQUATIC INFORMATICS INC. 17,712.00                                     IRWD Wells Fargo Check  No Print Negotiable
444756 29-Aug-24 ASSOCIATION OF CALIFORNIA CITIES 1,000.00                                        IRWD Wells Fargo Check  No Print Negotiable
444757 29-Aug-24 AT&T CORP 228.96                                            IRWD Wells Fargo Check  No Print Negotiable
444758 29-Aug-24 AT&T CORP 8,013.97                                        IRWD Wells Fargo Check  No Print Negotiable
444759 29-Aug-24 AT&T CORP 65,157.00                                     IRWD Wells Fargo Check  No Print Negotiable
444760 29-Aug-24 AT&T CORP 64.65                                              IRWD Wells Fargo Check  No Print Negotiable
444761 29-Aug-24 BATTERIES PLUS AND BATTERIES PLUS BULBS 2,017.99                                        IRWD Wells Fargo Check  No Print Negotiable
444762 29-Aug-24 BRUCE HADLEY NEWELL 1,250.00                                        IRWD Wells Fargo Check  No Print Negotiable
444763 29-Aug-24 BURNHAM BENEFITS INSURANCE SERVICES, LLC 5,833.33                                        IRWD Wells Fargo Check  No Print Negotiable
444764 29-Aug-24 C WELLS PIPELINE MATERIALS INC 1,178.96                                        IRWD Wells Fargo Check  No Print Negotiable
444765 29-Aug-24 CHEM TECH INTERNATIONAL INC 10,338.90                                     IRWD Wells Fargo Check  No Print Negotiable
444766 29-Aug-24 CLA-VAL COMPANY 12,239.33                                     IRWD Wells Fargo Check  No Print Negotiable
444767 29-Aug-24 COAST PLUMBING HEATING AND AIR, INC 698.00                                            IRWD Wells Fargo Check  No Print Negotiable
444768 29-Aug-24 COUNTY OF ORANGE 1,900.66                                        IRWD Wells Fargo Check  No Print Negotiable
444769 29-Aug-24 COX COMMUNICATIONS, INC. 3,243.40                                        IRWD Wells Fargo Check  No Print Negotiable
444770 29-Aug-24 CURATIVE I.T. LLC 445.14                                            IRWD Wells Fargo Check  No Print Negotiable
444771 29-Aug-24 DAIOHS USA INCORPORATED 2,782.47                                        IRWD Wells Fargo Check  No Print Negotiable
444772 29-Aug-24 DCS MANAGEMENT LLC 718.08                                            IRWD Wells Fargo Check  No Print Negotiable
444773 29-Aug-24 DIRECTV INC 159.24                                            IRWD Wells Fargo Check  No Print Negotiable
444774 29-Aug-24 ELITE AUTOMOTIVE SERVICE, LLC 332.06                                            IRWD Wells Fargo Check  No Print Negotiable
444775 29-Aug-24 ENVIRONMENTAL EXPRESS INC 2,072.21                                        IRWD Wells Fargo Check  No Print Negotiable
444776 29-Aug-24 EXECUTIVE LIGHTING & ELECTRIC 2,060.12                                        IRWD Wells Fargo Check  No Print Negotiable
444777 29-Aug-24 FARRELL & ASSOCIATES 667.48                                            IRWD Wells Fargo Check  No Print Negotiable
444778 29-Aug-24 FEDEX 104.15                                            IRWD Wells Fargo Check  No Print Negotiable
444779 29-Aug-24 FISHER SCIENTIFIC COMPANY LLC 3,790.84                                        IRWD Wells Fargo Check  No Print Negotiable
444780 29-Aug-24 FRONTIER CALIFORNIA INC. 108.55                                            IRWD Wells Fargo Check  No Print Negotiable
444781 29-Aug-24 GRACE BJORNSTAD 274.77                                            IRWD Wells Fargo Check  No Print Negotiable

7 of 13D - 7



CHECK OR 
ELECTRONIC # PAYMENT DATE SUPPLIER PAYMENT AMOUNT PAYMENT METHOD STATUS

IRVINE RANCH WATER DISTRICT
AP DISBURSEMENTS AND VOIDS FOR AUGUST 2024

444782 29-Aug-24 GRAINGER 10,656.18                                     IRWD Wells Fargo Check  No Print Negotiable
444783 29-Aug-24 HACH COMPANY 6,155.18                                        IRWD Wells Fargo Check  No Print Negotiable
444784 29-Aug-24 HI-LINE INC 116.16                                            IRWD Wells Fargo Check  No Print Negotiable
444785 29-Aug-24 HOME DEPOT USA INC 13.56                                              IRWD Wells Fargo Check  No Print Negotiable
444786 29-Aug-24 HORIZON ENGINEERING SYSTEMS LLC 34,320.00                                     IRWD Wells Fargo Check  No Print Negotiable
444787 29-Aug-24 HOWDEN USA COMPANY 25,977.74                                     IRWD Wells Fargo Check  No Print Negotiable
444788 29-Aug-24 IMPERIAL SPRINKLER SUPPLY, INC. 1,077.41                                        IRWD Wells Fargo Check  No Print Negotiable
444789 29-Aug-24 INTEGRITY MUNICIPAL SERVICES LLC 14,900.00                                     IRWD Wells Fargo Check  No Print Negotiable
444790 29-Aug-24 KILL-N-BUGS TERMITE AND PEST CONTROL SERVICES 2,450.00                                        IRWD Wells Fargo Check  No Print Negotiable
444791 29-Aug-24 KIMBALL MIDWEST 2,162.92                                        IRWD Wells Fargo Check  No Print Negotiable
444792 29-Aug-24 KROHNE, INC 7,882.64                                        IRWD Wells Fargo Check  No Print Negotiable
444793 29-Aug-24 LEIGHTON CONSULTING, INC. 4,095.08                                        IRWD Wells Fargo Check  No Print Negotiable
444794 29-Aug-24 LINDE GAS & EQUIPMENT INC. 770.75                                            IRWD Wells Fargo Check  No Print Negotiable
444795 29-Aug-24 LOS ANGELES TIMES 994.66                                            IRWD Wells Fargo Check  No Print Negotiable
444796 29-Aug-24 LOZANO SMITH, LLP 63.00                                              IRWD Wells Fargo Check  No Print Negotiable
444797 29-Aug-24 LUBRICATION ENGINEERS 2,867.22                                        IRWD Wells Fargo Check  No Print Negotiable
444798 29-Aug-24 MARK THOMAS & COMPANY, INC. 2,126.00                                        IRWD Wells Fargo Check  No Print Negotiable
444799 29-Aug-24 MC MASTER CARR SUPPLY CO 2,297.40                                        IRWD Wells Fargo Check  No Print Negotiable
444800 29-Aug-24 METTLER-TOLEDO INC 3,460.34                                        IRWD Wells Fargo Check  No Print Negotiable
444801 29-Aug-24 MICHAEL K. NUNLEY & ASSOCIATES, INC. 478.50                                            IRWD Wells Fargo Check  No Print Negotiable
444802 29-Aug-24 MISSION COMMUNICATIONS, LLC 1,252.00                                        IRWD Wells Fargo Check  No Print Negotiable
444803 29-Aug-24 MONTROSE ENVIRONMENTAL GROUP, INC. 5,006.00                                        IRWD Wells Fargo Check  No Print Negotiable
444804 29-Aug-24 MR CRANE INC 10,441.63                                     IRWD Wells Fargo Check  No Print Negotiable
444805 29-Aug-24 NAICS ASSOCIATION, LLC 2,156.08                                        IRWD Wells Fargo Check  No Print Negotiable
444806 29-Aug-24 NEW DIMENSION GENERAL CONSTRUCTION, INC. 27,353.41                                     IRWD Wells Fargo Check  No Print Negotiable
444807 29-Aug-24 NINYO & MOORE 4,357.00                                        IRWD Wells Fargo Check  No Print Negotiable
444808 29-Aug-24 NMG GEOTECHNICAL INC 13,776.80                                     IRWD Wells Fargo Check  No Print Negotiable
444809 29-Aug-24 O'REILLY AUTO ENTERPRISES, LLC 101.67                                            IRWD Wells Fargo Check  No Print Negotiable
444810 29-Aug-24 ONESOURCE DISTRIBUTORS LLC 8,237.12                                        IRWD Wells Fargo Check  No Print Negotiable
444811 29-Aug-24 OSI HARDWARE, INC. 3,213.75                                        IRWD Wells Fargo Check  No Print Negotiable
444812 29-Aug-24 PACIFIC HYDROTECH CORPORATION 118,122.21                                   IRWD Wells Fargo Check  No Print Negotiable
444813 29-Aug-24 PACIFIC HYDROTECH CORPORATION 6,216.96                                        IRWD Wells Fargo Check  No Print Negotiable
444814 29-Aug-24 PACIFIC MECHANICAL SUPPLY 8,624.05                                        IRWD Wells Fargo Check  No Print Negotiable
444815 29-Aug-24 POLLARDWATER.COM 1,218.76                                        IRWD Wells Fargo Check  No Print Negotiable
444816 29-Aug-24 PSOMAS 333.00                                            IRWD Wells Fargo Check  No Print Negotiable
444817 29-Aug-24 R C FOSTER CORPORATION 640,616.50                                   IRWD Wells Fargo Check  No Print Negotiable
444818 29-Aug-24 R.F. MACDONALD CO. 4,135.02                                        IRWD Wells Fargo Check  No Print Negotiable
444819 29-Aug-24 RELIABLE WATER SOLUTIONS, LLC 5,635.30                                        IRWD Wells Fargo Check  No Print Negotiable
444820 29-Aug-24 RENTOKIL NORTH AMERICA, INC 32,579.80                                     IRWD Wells Fargo Check  No Print Negotiable
444821 29-Aug-24 ROBERT HALF INC. 9,195.00                                        IRWD Wells Fargo Check  No Print Negotiable
444822 29-Aug-24 SANTA ANA WATERSHED PROJECT AUTHORITY 24,753.44                                     IRWD Wells Fargo Check  No Print Negotiable
444823 29-Aug-24 SHAMROCK SUPPLY CO INC 164.86                                            IRWD Wells Fargo Check  No Print Negotiable
444824 29-Aug-24 SHIMMICK CONSTRUCTION INC. 593,592.30                                   IRWD Wells Fargo Check  No Print Negotiable
444825 29-Aug-24 SIGNATURE FLOORING, INC 810.00                                            IRWD Wells Fargo Check  No Print Negotiable
444826 29-Aug-24 SIMS TREE HEALTH SPECIALISTS, INC 195.00                                            IRWD Wells Fargo Check  No Print Negotiable
444827 29-Aug-24 SITEONE LANDSCAPE SUPPLY, LLC 458.22                                            IRWD Wells Fargo Check  No Print Negotiable
444828 29-Aug-24 SOCAL SCADA SOLUTIONS LLC 7,385.50                                        IRWD Wells Fargo Check  No Print Negotiable
444829 29-Aug-24 SOUTH COAST WATER CO. 70.00                                              IRWD Wells Fargo Check  No Print Negotiable
444830 29-Aug-24 SOUTH ORANGE COUNTY REGIONAL CHAMBERS OF COMMERCE 2,500.00                                        IRWD Wells Fargo Check  No Print Negotiable
444831 29-Aug-24 SOUTHERN CALIFORNIA EDISON COMPANY 98.55                                              IRWD Wells Fargo Check  No Print Negotiable
444832 29-Aug-24 SOUTHERN CALIFORNIA EDISON COMPANY 561,760.72                                   IRWD Wells Fargo Check  No Print Negotiable
444833 29-Aug-24 SOUTHERN CALIFORNIA GAS COMPANY 15.01                                              IRWD Wells Fargo Check  No Print Negotiable
444834 29-Aug-24 SOUTHERN CALIFORNIA SECURITY CENTERS, INC. 643.28                                            IRWD Wells Fargo Check  No Print Negotiable
444835 29-Aug-24 TAIT ENVIRONMENTAL SERVICES, INC. 1,155.00                                        IRWD Wells Fargo Check  No Print Negotiable
444836 29-Aug-24 TELEDYNE INSTRUMENTS, INC. 579.73                                            IRWD Wells Fargo Check  No Print Negotiable
444837 29-Aug-24 ULINE INC 160.89                                            IRWD Wells Fargo Check  No Print Negotiable
444838 29-Aug-24 UNITED PARCEL SERVICE INC 59.60                                              IRWD Wells Fargo Check  No Print Negotiable
444839 29-Aug-24 UNITED SITE SERVICES OF CALIFORNIA INC 686.62                                            IRWD Wells Fargo Check  No Print Negotiable
444840 29-Aug-24 UNIVAR SOLUTIONS USA INC. 7,912.80                                        IRWD Wells Fargo Check  No Print Negotiable
444841 29-Aug-24 US BANK NAT'L ASSOCIATION NORTH DAKOTA 84,772.82                                     IRWD Wells Fargo Check  No Print Negotiable
444842 29-Aug-24 VACO LLC 3,663.00                                        IRWD Wells Fargo Check  No Print Negotiable
444843 29-Aug-24 VERIZON WIRELESS SERVICES LLC 16,071.00                                     IRWD Wells Fargo Check  No Print Negotiable
444844 29-Aug-24 VWR INTERNATIONAL, LLC 53.01                                              IRWD Wells Fargo Check  No Print Negotiable
444845 29-Aug-24 WALTERS WHOLESALE ELECTRIC 2,575.22                                        IRWD Wells Fargo Check  No Print Negotiable
444846 29-Aug-24 WATERLINE TECHNOLOGIES INC 18,930.56                                     IRWD Wells Fargo Check  No Print Negotiable
444847 29-Aug-24 WAXIE'S ENTERPRISES, INC 1,754.74                                        IRWD Wells Fargo Check  No Print Negotiable
444848 29-Aug-24 YSI, INC 5,109.52                                        IRWD Wells Fargo Check  No Print Negotiable
444849 29-Aug-24 CONTINENTAL AMERICAN INSURANCE COMPANY 2,348.42                                        IRWD Wells Fargo Check Negotiable
444850 29-Aug-24 COUNTY OF ORANGE 2,278.00                                        IRWD Wells Fargo Check Negotiable
444851 29-Aug-24 FRANCHISE TAX BOARD 492.00                                            IRWD Wells Fargo Check Negotiable
444852 29-Aug-24 HUMANA INSURANCE COMPANY 209.60                                            IRWD Wells Fargo Check Negotiable
444853 29-Aug-24 INTERNATIONAL BROTHERHOOD OF ELECTRICAL WORKERS LOCAL 47 8,598.05                                        IRWD Wells Fargo Check Negotiable
444854 29-Aug-24 LWP CLAIMS SOLUTIONS INC 50,000.00                                     IRWD Wells Fargo Check Negotiable
444855 29-Aug-24 PERS LONG TERM CARE 363.31                                            IRWD Wells Fargo Check Negotiable
444856 29-Aug-24 STATE OF ARKANSAS 1,013.26                                        IRWD Wells Fargo Check Negotiable
444857 29-Aug-24 UNITED HEALTHCARE INSURANCE COMPANY 742.50                                            IRWD Wells Fargo Check Negotiable

SUB-TOTAL IRWD WELLS FARGO CHECK AND IRWD WELLS FARGO CHECK NO PRINT DISBURSEMENTS 13,457,097.74                               

1004032 1-Aug-24 Abolfathi, Ramin 509.00                                            IRWD Wells Fargo ACH for Expense Reports Reconciled
1004033 1-Aug-24 Aguilar, Alan C 29.22                                              IRWD Wells Fargo ACH for Expense Reports Reconciled

8 of 13D - 8



CHECK OR 
ELECTRONIC # PAYMENT DATE SUPPLIER PAYMENT AMOUNT PAYMENT METHOD STATUS

IRVINE RANCH WATER DISTRICT
AP DISBURSEMENTS AND VOIDS FOR AUGUST 2024

1004034 1-Aug-24 Banares, Kenneth 655.79                                            IRWD Wells Fargo ACH for Expense Reports Reconciled
1004035 1-Aug-24 Chaney, Michael A (Michael) 41.54                                              IRWD Wells Fargo ACH for Expense Reports Reconciled
1004036 1-Aug-24 Contreras, Max Albert 17.29                                              IRWD Wells Fargo ACH for Expense Reports Reconciled
1004037 1-Aug-24 Cortez, Brian 58.42                                              IRWD Wells Fargo ACH for Expense Reports Reconciled
1004038 1-Aug-24 Dutton, David 146.00                                            IRWD Wells Fargo ACH for Expense Reports Reconciled
1004039 1-Aug-24 Estrada, Robert C 67.27                                              IRWD Wells Fargo ACH for Expense Reports Reconciled
1004040 1-Aug-24 Giatpaiboon, Scott 73.70                                              IRWD Wells Fargo ACH for Expense Reports Reconciled
1004041 1-Aug-24 Greer, Matthew 51.06                                              IRWD Wells Fargo ACH for Expense Reports Reconciled
1004042 1-Aug-24 Gronlund, Brandon A 150.00                                            IRWD Wells Fargo ACH for Expense Reports Reconciled
1004043 1-Aug-24 Hartoog, Jeremy 132.14                                            IRWD Wells Fargo ACH for Expense Reports Reconciled
1004044 1-Aug-24 Haug, Jack Philip Ryan 21.71                                              IRWD Wells Fargo ACH for Expense Reports Reconciled
1004045 1-Aug-24 LaMar, Steven E 1,534.40                                        IRWD Wells Fargo ACH for Expense Reports Reconciled
1004046 1-Aug-24 Madding, Joshua 190.54                                            IRWD Wells Fargo ACH for Expense Reports Reconciled
1004047 1-Aug-24 Moudy, Crystal Marie 46.90                                              IRWD Wells Fargo ACH for Expense Reports Reconciled
1004048 1-Aug-24 Navarro, Hector R 512.96                                            IRWD Wells Fargo ACH for Expense Reports Reconciled
1004049 1-Aug-24 Nguyen, Claire 69.68                                              IRWD Wells Fargo ACH for Expense Reports Reconciled
1004050 1-Aug-24 Pham, Amie 110.34                                            IRWD Wells Fargo ACH for Expense Reports Reconciled
1004051 1-Aug-24 Reynoso, Pio (Pio) 329.00                                            IRWD Wells Fargo ACH for Expense Reports Reconciled
1004052 1-Aug-24 Rios, Elias L 33.50                                              IRWD Wells Fargo ACH for Expense Reports Reconciled
1004053 1-Aug-24 Smithson, Christopher F (Christopher) 219.96                                            IRWD Wells Fargo ACH for Expense Reports Reconciled
1004054 1-Aug-24 Vu, Johnny T (Johnny) 19.43                                              IRWD Wells Fargo ACH for Expense Reports Reconciled
1004055 1-Aug-24 Zamora, Victor A 486.01                                            IRWD Wells Fargo ACH for Expense Reports Reconciled
1004056 1-Aug-24 Zepeda, Jose 231.82                                            IRWD Wells Fargo ACH for Expense Reports Reconciled
1004085 8-Aug-24 Aguilar, Alan C 3,000.00                                        IRWD Wells Fargo ACH for Expense Reports Reconciled
1004086 8-Aug-24 Almazan, Robert (Chris) 54.27                                              IRWD Wells Fargo ACH for Expense Reports Reconciled
1004087 8-Aug-24 Anderson, Winston James 58.44                                              IRWD Wells Fargo ACH for Expense Reports Reconciled
1004088 8-Aug-24 Cariker, Cody J (Cody) 14.07                                              IRWD Wells Fargo ACH for Expense Reports Reconciled
1004089 8-Aug-24 Chaney, David (Dave) 13.80                                              IRWD Wells Fargo ACH for Expense Reports Reconciled
1004090 8-Aug-24 Colston, James 1,363.34                                        IRWD Wells Fargo ACH for Expense Reports Reconciled
1004091 8-Aug-24 Compton, Christine A 23.29                                              IRWD Wells Fargo ACH for Expense Reports Reconciled
1004092 8-Aug-24 Contreras, Joaquin 28.54                                              IRWD Wells Fargo ACH for Expense Reports Reconciled
1004093 8-Aug-24 Escobar, Omar (Omar) 18.91                                              IRWD Wells Fargo ACH for Expense Reports Reconciled
1004094 8-Aug-24 Greer, Matthew 17.02                                              IRWD Wells Fargo ACH for Expense Reports Reconciled
1004095 8-Aug-24 Hansen, Casey 26.80                                              IRWD Wells Fargo ACH for Expense Reports Reconciled
1004096 8-Aug-24 Haug, Jack Philip Ryan 57.81                                              IRWD Wells Fargo ACH for Expense Reports Reconciled
1004097 8-Aug-24 Koenig, Timothy (Tim) 16.75                                              IRWD Wells Fargo ACH for Expense Reports Reconciled
1004098 8-Aug-24 Lopez, Miguel 22.52                                              IRWD Wells Fargo ACH for Expense Reports Reconciled
1004099 8-Aug-24 Ludwig, Jason 64.32                                              IRWD Wells Fargo ACH for Expense Reports Reconciled
1004100 8-Aug-24 Mendoza, Evelyn 50.25                                              IRWD Wells Fargo ACH for Expense Reports Reconciled
1004101 8-Aug-24 Monokchian, Kourosh 36.98                                              IRWD Wells Fargo ACH for Expense Reports Reconciled
1004102 8-Aug-24 Mroczek, Michael 216.82                                            IRWD Wells Fargo ACH for Expense Reports Reconciled
1004103 8-Aug-24 Ordonez, Bernardino A (Berny) 101.84                                            IRWD Wells Fargo ACH for Expense Reports Reconciled
1004104 8-Aug-24 Ramirez, Miguel 100.76                                            IRWD Wells Fargo ACH for Expense Reports Reconciled
1004105 8-Aug-24 Scagliotti, Lucas Matthew 72.87                                              IRWD Wells Fargo ACH for Expense Reports Reconciled
1004107 8-Aug-24 Trigg, Tyler 61.73                                              IRWD Wells Fargo ACH for Expense Reports Reconciled
1004108 8-Aug-24 Villalta, Jonathan 39.53                                              IRWD Wells Fargo ACH for Expense Reports Reconciled
1004138 15-Aug-24 Almazan, Robert (Chris) 54.27                                              IRWD Wells Fargo ACH for Expense Reports Reconciled
1004139 15-Aug-24 Arellano, Charles 52.53                                              IRWD Wells Fargo ACH for Expense Reports Reconciled
1004140 15-Aug-24 Cervantes, Angel 26.80                                              IRWD Wells Fargo ACH for Expense Reports Reconciled
1004141 15-Aug-24 Coleman, Nicholas (Nick) 319.00                                            IRWD Wells Fargo ACH for Expense Reports Reconciled
1004142 15-Aug-24 Compton, Christine A 79.95                                              IRWD Wells Fargo ACH for Expense Reports Reconciled
1004143 15-Aug-24 Estrada, Robert C 67.27                                              IRWD Wells Fargo ACH for Expense Reports Reconciled
1004144 15-Aug-24 Garcia, Dorys Elizabeth 46.90                                              IRWD Wells Fargo ACH for Expense Reports Reconciled
1004145 15-Aug-24 Giatpaiboon, Scott 130.50                                            IRWD Wells Fargo ACH for Expense Reports Reconciled
1004146 15-Aug-24 Grier, Corey 20.00                                              IRWD Wells Fargo ACH for Expense Reports Reconciled
1004147 15-Aug-24 Madding, Joshua 190.54                                            IRWD Wells Fargo ACH for Expense Reports Reconciled
1004148 15-Aug-24 Martinez, Jose A IV (Jose) 15.06                                              IRWD Wells Fargo ACH for Expense Reports Reconciled
1004149 15-Aug-24 Nguyen, Viet Quoc (Quoc) 510.87                                            IRWD Wells Fargo ACH for Expense Reports Reconciled
1004150 15-Aug-24 Orozco, Linda 34.54                                              IRWD Wells Fargo ACH for Expense Reports Reconciled
1004151 15-Aug-24 Ramirez, Eric 92.72                                              IRWD Wells Fargo ACH for Expense Reports Reconciled
1004152 15-Aug-24 Villalta, Jonathan 39.53                                              IRWD Wells Fargo ACH for Expense Reports Reconciled
1004184 22-Aug-24 Cariker, Cody J (Cody) 14.07                                              IRWD Wells Fargo ACH for Expense Reports Reconciled
1004185 22-Aug-24 Contreras, Joaquin 28.54                                              IRWD Wells Fargo ACH for Expense Reports Reconciled
1004186 22-Aug-24 Drenner, Raymond 58.96                                              IRWD Wells Fargo ACH for Expense Reports Reconciled
1004187 22-Aug-24 Eggers, Jay A 76.80                                              IRWD Wells Fargo ACH for Expense Reports Reconciled
1004188 22-Aug-24 Hansen, Casey 26.80                                              IRWD Wells Fargo ACH for Expense Reports Reconciled
1004189 22-Aug-24 Haug, Jack Philip Ryan 85.13                                              IRWD Wells Fargo ACH for Expense Reports Reconciled
1004190 22-Aug-24 Koenig, Timothy (Tim) 33.50                                              IRWD Wells Fargo ACH for Expense Reports Reconciled
1004191 22-Aug-24 Kulick, Michael 239.00                                            IRWD Wells Fargo ACH for Expense Reports Reconciled
1004192 22-Aug-24 Ludwig, Jason 64.32                                              IRWD Wells Fargo ACH for Expense Reports Reconciled
1004193 22-Aug-24 Maldonado, Damien Michael 20.00                                              IRWD Wells Fargo ACH for Expense Reports Reconciled
1004194 22-Aug-24 Moeder, Jacob J (Jacob) 30.00                                              IRWD Wells Fargo ACH for Expense Reports Reconciled
1004195 22-Aug-24 Moore, Jonathon C (Jon) 180.00                                            IRWD Wells Fargo ACH for Expense Reports Reconciled
1004196 22-Aug-24 Moudy, Crystal Marie 46.90                                              IRWD Wells Fargo ACH for Expense Reports Reconciled
1004197 22-Aug-24 Nguyen, Jeanny 30.28                                              IRWD Wells Fargo ACH for Expense Reports Reconciled
1004198 22-Aug-24 Olivolo, Eric J (Eric) 68.60                                              IRWD Wells Fargo ACH for Expense Reports Reconciled
1004199 22-Aug-24 Orozco, Linda 89.97                                              IRWD Wells Fargo ACH for Expense Reports Reconciled
1004200 22-Aug-24 Ramirez, Eric 46.36                                              IRWD Wells Fargo ACH for Expense Reports Reconciled
1004201 22-Aug-24 Saenz, Danny Marsteller Jr 59.09                                              IRWD Wells Fargo ACH for Expense Reports Negotiable
1004202 22-Aug-24 Stupy, Cole Austin 16.08                                              IRWD Wells Fargo ACH for Expense Reports Reconciled

9 of 13D - 9



CHECK OR 
ELECTRONIC # PAYMENT DATE SUPPLIER PAYMENT AMOUNT PAYMENT METHOD STATUS

IRVINE RANCH WATER DISTRICT
AP DISBURSEMENTS AND VOIDS FOR AUGUST 2024

1004203 22-Aug-24 Teyechea, Cresta (Chrissy) 17.96                                              IRWD Wells Fargo ACH for Expense Reports Reconciled
1004204 22-Aug-24 Valencia, Reynaldo (Rey) 29.41                                              IRWD Wells Fargo ACH for Expense Reports Reconciled
1004205 22-Aug-24 Zamora, Victor A 275.19                                            IRWD Wells Fargo ACH for Expense Reports Reconciled
1004229 29-Aug-24 Almazan, Robert (Chris) 54.27                                              IRWD Wells Fargo ACH for Expense Reports Reconciled
1004230 29-Aug-24 Bosley, Kelleen M 29.48                                              IRWD Wells Fargo ACH for Expense Reports Reconciled
1004231 29-Aug-24 Escobar, Omar (Omar) 16.69                                              IRWD Wells Fargo ACH for Expense Reports Reconciled
1004232 29-Aug-24 Jakubas-Pufal, Dorota 25.46                                              IRWD Wells Fargo ACH for Expense Reports Reconciled
1004233 29-Aug-24 Kulick, Michael 79.19                                              IRWD Wells Fargo ACH for Expense Reports Reconciled
1004234 29-Aug-24 Lu, Michael 10.65                                              IRWD Wells Fargo ACH for Expense Reports Reconciled
1004235 29-Aug-24 Martinez, Jose A IV (Jose) 48.09                                              IRWD Wells Fargo ACH for Expense Reports Reconciled
1004236 29-Aug-24 Moeder, Jacob J (Jacob) 58.00                                              IRWD Wells Fargo ACH for Expense Reports Negotiable
1004237 29-Aug-24 Moreno, Derek 247.95                                            IRWD Wells Fargo ACH for Expense Reports Reconciled
1004238 29-Aug-24 O'Neill, Owen H 360.00                                            IRWD Wells Fargo ACH for Expense Reports Negotiable
1004239 29-Aug-24 Raiford, Ryan M 209.09                                            IRWD Wells Fargo ACH for Expense Reports Reconciled
1004240 29-Aug-24 Richardson, Kyle 65.31                                              IRWD Wells Fargo ACH for Expense Reports Reconciled
1004241 29-Aug-24 Rigby, Lori Ann 980.73                                            IRWD Wells Fargo ACH for Expense Reports Reconciled
1004242 29-Aug-24 Salazar, Kyle 20.00                                              IRWD Wells Fargo ACH for Expense Reports Reconciled
1004243 29-Aug-24 Villella, Aaren 113.64                                            IRWD Wells Fargo ACH for Expense Reports Reconciled
1004244 29-Aug-24 Vu, Johnny T (Johnny) 19.43                                              IRWD Wells Fargo ACH for Expense Reports Reconciled
1004245 29-Aug-24 Zamora, Victor A 235.00                                            IRWD Wells Fargo ACH for Expense Reports Reconciled

SUB-TOTAL IRWD WELLS FARGO ACH FOR EXPENSE REPORTS 16,988.76                                         

1004057 1-Aug-24 AECOM TECHNICAL SERVICES, INC. 7,630.00                                        IRWD Wells Fargo ACH Reconciled
1004058 1-Aug-24 AMAZON CAPITAL SERVICES, INC. 5,099.55                                        IRWD Wells Fargo ACH Reconciled
1004059 1-Aug-24 ARAG NORTH AMERICA, INC. 569.75                                            IRWD Wells Fargo ACH Reconciled
1004060 1-Aug-24 CALIFORNIA BARRICADE RENTAL, INC. 28,463.00                                     IRWD Wells Fargo ACH Reconciled
1004061 1-Aug-24 CENTROID SYSTEMS, INC. 5,980.00                                        IRWD Wells Fargo ACH Reconciled
1004062 1-Aug-24 COTTONS POINT DESIGN, INC. 6,887.57                                        IRWD Wells Fargo ACH Reconciled
1004063 1-Aug-24 DELTA DENTAL OF CALIFORNIA 43,011.90                                     IRWD Wells Fargo ACH Reconciled
1004064 1-Aug-24 DRAKE TRAFFIC CONTROL SERVICES INC 6,500.00                                        IRWD Wells Fargo ACH Reconciled
1004065 1-Aug-24 EUROFINS ENVIRONMENT TESTING AMERICA HOLDINGS, INC. 5,286.75                                        IRWD Wells Fargo ACH Reconciled
1004066 1-Aug-24 FIDELITY SECURITY LIFE INSURANCE COMPANY 7,886.48                                        IRWD Wells Fargo ACH Reconciled
1004067 1-Aug-24 GANAHL LUMBER CO. 4,506.81                                        IRWD Wells Fargo ACH Reconciled
1004068 1-Aug-24 HAAKER EQUIPMENT COMPANY 15,136.29                                     IRWD Wells Fargo ACH Reconciled
1004069 1-Aug-24 JCI JONES CHEMICALS INC 5,915.47                                        IRWD Wells Fargo ACH Reconciled
1004070 1-Aug-24 JOHN MICHAEL COVAS 174.70                                            IRWD Wells Fargo ACH Reconciled
1004071 1-Aug-24 LANDCARE HOLDINGS, INC. 54,516.80                                     IRWD Wells Fargo ACH Reconciled
1004072 1-Aug-24 LIEBERT CASSIDY WHITMORE 599.00                                            IRWD Wells Fargo ACH Reconciled
1004073 1-Aug-24 MCR TECHNOLOGIES INC 23,448.33                                     IRWD Wells Fargo ACH Reconciled
1004074 1-Aug-24 MERRIMAC PETROLEUM, INC. 27,386.31                                     IRWD Wells Fargo ACH Reconciled
1004075 1-Aug-24 OLIN CORPORATION 100,873.08                                   IRWD Wells Fargo ACH Reconciled
1004076 1-Aug-24 RAM AIR ENGINEERING INC 1,035.00                                        IRWD Wells Fargo ACH Reconciled
1004077 1-Aug-24 REACH EMPLOYEE ASSISTANCE INC 1,061.20                                        IRWD Wells Fargo ACH Reconciled
1004078 1-Aug-24 RELIANCE STANDARD LIFE INSURANCE COMPANY 36,792.48                                     IRWD Wells Fargo ACH Reconciled
1004079 1-Aug-24 RINCON TRUCK CENTER INC. 64.35                                              IRWD Wells Fargo ACH Reconciled
1004080 1-Aug-24 SADDLEBACK SURVEYS, INC. 14,742.00                                     IRWD Wells Fargo ACH Reconciled
1004081 1-Aug-24 SELECT TRENCHLESS PIPELINES INC 4,370.08                                        IRWD Wells Fargo ACH Reconciled
1004082 1-Aug-24 TETRA TECH, INC 46,428.50                                     IRWD Wells Fargo ACH Reconciled
1004083 1-Aug-24 TOTAL RESOURCE MANAGEMENT, INC 4,750.00                                        IRWD Wells Fargo ACH Reconciled
1004084 1-Aug-24 WEST COAST SAFETY SUPPLY INC 3,696.70                                        IRWD Wells Fargo ACH Reconciled
1004109 8-Aug-24 ALEXANDER'S CONTRACT SERVICES, INC. 135,194.71                                   IRWD Wells Fargo ACH Reconciled
1004110 8-Aug-24 ALSTON & BIRD LLP 4,563.68                                        IRWD Wells Fargo ACH Reconciled
1004111 8-Aug-24 AMAZON CAPITAL SERVICES, INC. 1,147.81                                        IRWD Wells Fargo ACH Reconciled
1004112 8-Aug-24 AQUA BEN CORPORATION 3,719.17                                        IRWD Wells Fargo ACH Reconciled
1004113 8-Aug-24 BRENNTAG PACIFIC INC 7,171.52                                        IRWD Wells Fargo ACH Reconciled
1004114 8-Aug-24 COLONIAL LIFE & ACCIDENT INSURANCE CO. 458.22                                            IRWD Wells Fargo ACH Reconciled
1004115 8-Aug-24 COTTONS POINT DESIGN, INC. 3,448.00                                        IRWD Wells Fargo ACH Reconciled
1004116 8-Aug-24 DEMARIA ELECTRIC MOTOR SERVICES, INC. 4,854.14                                        IRWD Wells Fargo ACH Reconciled
1004117 8-Aug-24 DRAKE TRAFFIC CONTROL SERVICES INC 10,590.00                                     IRWD Wells Fargo ACH Reconciled
1004118 8-Aug-24 EUROFINS ENVIRONMENT TESTING AMERICA HOLDINGS, INC. 1,947.75                                        IRWD Wells Fargo ACH Reconciled
1004119 8-Aug-24 GEOSYNTEC CONSULTANTS, INC. 432.51                                            IRWD Wells Fargo ACH Reconciled
1004120 8-Aug-24 GM SAGER CONSTRUCTION CO,INC. 27,016.00                                     IRWD Wells Fargo ACH Reconciled
1004121 8-Aug-24 HANSON BRIDGETT LLP 10,052.70                                     IRWD Wells Fargo ACH Reconciled
1004122 8-Aug-24 HILL BROTHERS CHEMICAL COMPANY 10,346.03                                     IRWD Wells Fargo ACH Reconciled
1004123 8-Aug-24 LAGUNA BEACH COUNTY WATER DISTRICT 6,991.05                                        IRWD Wells Fargo ACH Reconciled
1004124 8-Aug-24 LANDCARE HOLDINGS, INC. 73,245.80                                     IRWD Wells Fargo ACH Reconciled
1004125 8-Aug-24 MARK KADESH 10,821.00                                     IRWD Wells Fargo ACH Reconciled
1004126 8-Aug-24 MERRIMAC PETROLEUM, INC. 27,409.05                                     IRWD Wells Fargo ACH Reconciled
1004127 8-Aug-24 MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT OF ORANGE COUNTY 1,247,686.78                               IRWD Wells Fargo ACH Reconciled
1004128 8-Aug-24 OLIN CORPORATION 78,306.09                                     IRWD Wells Fargo ACH Reconciled
1004129 8-Aug-24 COUNTY OF ORANGE SANITATION DISTRICT 122,845.22                                   IRWD Wells Fargo ACH Reconciled
1004130 8-Aug-24 PAPER DEPOT DOCUMENT DESTRUCTION LLC 330.00                                            IRWD Wells Fargo ACH Reconciled
1004131 8-Aug-24 PYRO-COMM SYSTEMS INC 2,147.00                                        IRWD Wells Fargo ACH Reconciled
1004132 8-Aug-24 RESOLUTE COMPANY 5,800.00                                        IRWD Wells Fargo ACH Reconciled
1004133 8-Aug-24 RLG ENTERPRISES, INC 255.71                                            IRWD Wells Fargo ACH Reconciled
1004134 8-Aug-24 SUNSHINE SUPPLY COMPANY, INC. 4,496.41                                        IRWD Wells Fargo ACH Reconciled
1004135 8-Aug-24 TETRA TECH, INC 1,745.00                                        IRWD Wells Fargo ACH Reconciled
1004136 8-Aug-24 VSS SALES INC 8,842.12                                        IRWD Wells Fargo ACH Reconciled
1004137 8-Aug-24 WATER TREATMENT CHEMICALS INC 19,818.00                                     IRWD Wells Fargo ACH Reconciled
1004153 15-Aug-24 AMAZON CAPITAL SERVICES, INC. 1,485.85                                        IRWD Wells Fargo ACH Reconciled

10 of 13D - 10



CHECK OR 
ELECTRONIC # PAYMENT DATE SUPPLIER PAYMENT AMOUNT PAYMENT METHOD STATUS

IRVINE RANCH WATER DISTRICT
AP DISBURSEMENTS AND VOIDS FOR AUGUST 2024

1004154 15-Aug-24 BIOENERGY ASSOCIATION OF CALIFORNIA 3,150.00                                        IRWD Wells Fargo ACH Reconciled
1004155 15-Aug-24 CALIFORNIA BARRICADE RENTAL, INC. 13,010.00                                     IRWD Wells Fargo ACH Reconciled
1004156 15-Aug-24 CAROLLO ENGINEERS, INC 15,003.25                                     IRWD Wells Fargo ACH Reconciled
1004157 15-Aug-24 CDW GOVERNMENT LLC 148.89                                            IRWD Wells Fargo ACH Reconciled
1004158 15-Aug-24 COTTONS POINT DESIGN, INC. 5,421.17                                        IRWD Wells Fargo ACH Reconciled
1004159 15-Aug-24 DAYTON CERTIFIED WELDING,INC. 6,600.00                                        IRWD Wells Fargo ACH Reconciled
1004160 15-Aug-24 ENGINEERING SOLUTIONS, LLC 4,760.00                                        IRWD Wells Fargo ACH Reconciled
1004161 15-Aug-24 ENVIRONMENTAL ENGINEERING AND CONTRACTING, INC. 12,962.50                                     IRWD Wells Fargo ACH Reconciled
1004162 15-Aug-24 EUROFINS ENVIRONMENT TESTING AMERICA HOLDINGS, INC. 2,892.75                                        IRWD Wells Fargo ACH Reconciled
1004163 15-Aug-24 FISHER & PHILLIPS LLP 80.20                                              IRWD Wells Fargo ACH Reconciled
1004164 15-Aug-24 FLUID SOUND, INC. 2,200.00                                        IRWD Wells Fargo ACH Reconciled
1004165 15-Aug-24 FOUGHT, CYNTHIA J. 3,143.67                                        IRWD Wells Fargo ACH Reconciled
1004166 15-Aug-24 GANAHL LUMBER CO. 566.90                                            IRWD Wells Fargo ACH Reconciled
1004167 15-Aug-24 HAAKER EQUIPMENT COMPANY 2,283.49                                        IRWD Wells Fargo ACH Reconciled
1004168 15-Aug-24 HILL BROTHERS CHEMICAL COMPANY 10,685.20                                     IRWD Wells Fargo ACH Reconciled
1004169 15-Aug-24 JCI JONES CHEMICALS INC 12,765.30                                     IRWD Wells Fargo ACH Reconciled
1004170 15-Aug-24 LABWORKS, LLC 48,321.00                                     IRWD Wells Fargo ACH Reconciled
1004171 15-Aug-24 LANDCARE HOLDINGS, INC. 11,948.50                                     IRWD Wells Fargo ACH Reconciled
1004172 15-Aug-24 MERRIMAC PETROLEUM, INC. 29,929.99                                     IRWD Wells Fargo ACH Reconciled
1004173 15-Aug-24 MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT OF ORANGE COUNTY 83,927.36                                     IRWD Wells Fargo ACH Reconciled
1004174 15-Aug-24 O.C. SUPERIOR CUSTOM CLEANING 4,940.00                                        IRWD Wells Fargo ACH Reconciled
1004175 15-Aug-24 OLIN CORPORATION 67,653.08                                     IRWD Wells Fargo ACH Reconciled
1004176 15-Aug-24 ORANGE COUNTY AUTO PARTS CO 603.51                                            IRWD Wells Fargo ACH Reconciled
1004177 15-Aug-24 COUNTY OF ORANGE SANITATION DISTRICT 943,437.00                                   IRWD Wells Fargo ACH Reconciled
1004178 15-Aug-24 PACIFIC PARTS & CONTROLS INC 435.10                                            IRWD Wells Fargo ACH Reconciled
1004179 15-Aug-24 RAM AIR ENGINEERING INC 17,356.39                                     IRWD Wells Fargo ACH Reconciled
1004180 15-Aug-24 ROSEDALE - RIO BRAVO WATER STORAGE DISTRICT 42,249.36                                     IRWD Wells Fargo ACH Reconciled
1004181 15-Aug-24 TETRA TECH, INC 57,255.75                                     IRWD Wells Fargo ACH Reconciled
1004182 15-Aug-24 VSS SALES INC 8,962.00                                        IRWD Wells Fargo ACH Reconciled
1004183 15-Aug-24 WATERSMART SOFTWARE INC 16,894.88                                     IRWD Wells Fargo ACH Reconciled
1004206 22-Aug-24 ACE INDUSTRIES, INC. 2,627.69                                        IRWD Wells Fargo ACH Reconciled
1004207 22-Aug-24 AMAZON CAPITAL SERVICES, INC. 295.53                                            IRWD Wells Fargo ACH Reconciled
1004208 22-Aug-24 CENTROID SYSTEMS, INC. 6,236.50                                        IRWD Wells Fargo ACH Reconciled
1004209 22-Aug-24 CITY OF IRVINE 12,916.44                                     IRWD Wells Fargo ACH Reconciled
1004210 22-Aug-24 DEMARIA ELECTRIC MOTOR SERVICES, INC. 8,421.17                                        IRWD Wells Fargo ACH Reconciled
1004211 22-Aug-24 DRAKE TRAFFIC CONTROL SERVICES INC 13,950.00                                     IRWD Wells Fargo ACH Reconciled
1004212 22-Aug-24 EUROFINS ENVIRONMENT TESTING AMERICA HOLDINGS, INC. 981.75                                            IRWD Wells Fargo ACH Reconciled
1004213 22-Aug-24 GM SAGER CONSTRUCTION CO,INC. 18,900.00                                     IRWD Wells Fargo ACH Reconciled
1004214 22-Aug-24 HAAKER EQUIPMENT COMPANY 1,569.41                                        IRWD Wells Fargo ACH Reconciled
1004215 22-Aug-24 HILL BROTHERS CHEMICAL COMPANY 2,919.04                                        IRWD Wells Fargo ACH Reconciled
1004216 22-Aug-24 JCI JONES CHEMICALS INC 10,052.12                                     IRWD Wells Fargo ACH Reconciled
1004217 22-Aug-24 LANDCARE HOLDINGS, INC. 38,032.00                                     IRWD Wells Fargo ACH Reconciled
1004218 22-Aug-24 NEWPORT WINDOW MAINTENANCE INC 4,800.00                                        IRWD Wells Fargo ACH Reconciled
1004219 22-Aug-24 OLIN CORPORATION 195,014.36                                   IRWD Wells Fargo ACH Reconciled
1004220 22-Aug-24 ORANGE COUNTY AUTO PARTS CO 1,824.94                                        IRWD Wells Fargo ACH Reconciled
1004221 22-Aug-24 ORIGIN CONSULTING LLC 4,185.00                                        IRWD Wells Fargo ACH Reconciled
1004222 22-Aug-24 PILLSBURY WINTHROP SHAW PITTMAN LLP 2,887.50                                        IRWD Wells Fargo ACH Reconciled
1004223 22-Aug-24 RAM AIR ENGINEERING INC 7,508.26                                        IRWD Wells Fargo ACH Reconciled
1004224 22-Aug-24 RINCON TRUCK CENTER INC. 1,062.85                                        IRWD Wells Fargo ACH Reconciled
1004225 22-Aug-24 RLG ENTERPRISES, INC 473.43                                            IRWD Wells Fargo ACH Reconciled
1004226 22-Aug-24 ROSEDALE - RIO BRAVO WATER STORAGE DISTRICT 55,752.28                                     IRWD Wells Fargo ACH Reconciled
1004227 22-Aug-24 TOTAL RESOURCE MANAGEMENT, INC 1,654.50                                        IRWD Wells Fargo ACH Reconciled
1004228 22-Aug-24 WEST COAST SAFETY SUPPLY INC 1,063.74                                        IRWD Wells Fargo ACH Reconciled
1004246 29-Aug-24 ACE INDUSTRIES, INC. 12,977.76                                     IRWD Wells Fargo ACH Reconciled
1004247 29-Aug-24 AECOM TECHNICAL SERVICES, INC. 373,545.33                                   IRWD Wells Fargo ACH Reconciled
1004248 29-Aug-24 ALSTON & BIRD LLP 23,800.11                                     IRWD Wells Fargo ACH Negotiable
1004249 29-Aug-24 AMAZON CAPITAL SERVICES, INC. 11,843.07                                     IRWD Wells Fargo ACH Negotiable
1004250 29-Aug-24 CALIFORNIA BARRICADE RENTAL, INC. 41,789.00                                     IRWD Wells Fargo ACH Reconciled
1004251 29-Aug-24 CDW GOVERNMENT LLC 2,210.65                                        IRWD Wells Fargo ACH Reconciled
1004252 29-Aug-24 CENTROID SYSTEMS, INC. 46,500.00                                     IRWD Wells Fargo ACH Reconciled
1004253 29-Aug-24 CONSERV CONSTRUCTION INC. 3,325.00                                        IRWD Wells Fargo ACH Reconciled
1004254 29-Aug-24 DRAKE TRAFFIC CONTROL SERVICES INC 16,110.00                                     IRWD Wells Fargo ACH Reconciled
1004255 29-Aug-24 DUDEK 7,123.63                                        IRWD Wells Fargo ACH Reconciled
1004256 29-Aug-24 EUROFINS ENVIRONMENT TESTING AMERICA HOLDINGS, INC. 1,800.75                                        IRWD Wells Fargo ACH Reconciled
1004257 29-Aug-24 FIDELITY SECURITY LIFE INSURANCE COMPANY 7,842.96                                        IRWD Wells Fargo ACH Reconciled
1004258 29-Aug-24 GANAHL LUMBER CO. 259.96                                            IRWD Wells Fargo ACH Reconciled
1004259 29-Aug-24 HILL BROTHERS CHEMICAL COMPANY 16,382.90                                     IRWD Wells Fargo ACH Negotiable
1004260 29-Aug-24 JOHN MICHAEL COVAS 174.70                                            IRWD Wells Fargo ACH Negotiable
1004261 29-Aug-24 KRONICK MOSKOVITZ TIEDEMANN & GIRARD 3,612.00                                        IRWD Wells Fargo ACH Reconciled
1004262 29-Aug-24 KUTAK ROCK LLP 10,339.81                                     IRWD Wells Fargo ACH Reconciled
1004263 29-Aug-24 LANDCARE HOLDINGS, INC. 155,967.97                                   IRWD Wells Fargo ACH Negotiable
1004264 29-Aug-24 LIEBERT CASSIDY WHITMORE 2,031.00                                        IRWD Wells Fargo ACH Reconciled
1004265 29-Aug-24 MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT OF ORANGE COUNTY 2,890,604.93                               IRWD Wells Fargo ACH Reconciled
1004266 29-Aug-24 OLIN CORPORATION 122,527.23                                   IRWD Wells Fargo ACH Reconciled
1004267 29-Aug-24 ORANGE COUNTY AUTO PARTS CO 347.32                                            IRWD Wells Fargo ACH Reconciled
1004268 29-Aug-24 RAM AIR ENGINEERING INC 19,022.35                                     IRWD Wells Fargo ACH Reconciled
1004269 29-Aug-24 REACH EMPLOYEE ASSISTANCE INC 1,064.00                                        IRWD Wells Fargo ACH Reconciled
1004270 29-Aug-24 RELIANCE STANDARD LIFE INSURANCE COMPANY 36,882.75                                     IRWD Wells Fargo ACH Negotiable
1004271 29-Aug-24 SOUTHLAND WATER TECHNOLOGIES LLC 5,227.17                                        IRWD Wells Fargo ACH Reconciled
1004272 29-Aug-24 SPATIAL WAVE, INC. 30,560.00                                     IRWD Wells Fargo ACH Reconciled

11 of 13D - 11



CHECK OR 
ELECTRONIC # PAYMENT DATE SUPPLIER PAYMENT AMOUNT PAYMENT METHOD STATUS

IRVINE RANCH WATER DISTRICT
AP DISBURSEMENTS AND VOIDS FOR AUGUST 2024

1004273 29-Aug-24 SUKLE ADVERTISING INC. 9,884.00                                        IRWD Wells Fargo ACH Reconciled
1004274 29-Aug-24 TETRA TECH, INC 31,049.50                                     IRWD Wells Fargo ACH Negotiable
1004275 29-Aug-24 UTILITYAPI, INC. 5,000.00                                        IRWD Wells Fargo ACH Reconciled
1004276 29-Aug-24 WEST COAST SAFETY SUPPLY INC 14,771.91                                     IRWD Wells Fargo ACH Reconciled
1004277 29-Aug-24 WESTAMERICA COMMUNICATIONS, INC. 660.00                                            IRWD Wells Fargo ACH Reconciled

SUB-TOTAL IRWD WELLS FARGO ACH DISBURSEMENTS 8,023,932.93                                  

2000773 1-Aug-24 CAPTIVE AUDIENCE MARKETING INC. 79.00                                              IRWD Wells Fargo PC Reconciled
2000774 1-Aug-24 FERGUSON ENTERPRISES, LLC 5,841.72                                        IRWD Wells Fargo PC Reconciled
2000775 1-Aug-24 HARRINGTON INDUSTRIAL PLASTICS LLC 5,975.94                                        IRWD Wells Fargo PC Reconciled
2000776 1-Aug-24 POLYDYNE INC 9,516.48                                        IRWD Wells Fargo PC Reconciled
2000777 1-Aug-24 THOMPSON & PHIPPS INC 68,464.37                                     IRWD Wells Fargo PC Reconciled
2000778 1-Aug-24 UCT, LLC 959.23                                            IRWD Wells Fargo PC Reconciled
2000779 1-Aug-24 WECK LABORATORIES INC 300.00                                            IRWD Wells Fargo PC Reconciled
2000780 8-Aug-24 CAPTIVE AUDIENCE MARKETING INC. 79.00                                              IRWD Wells Fargo PC Reconciled
2000781 8-Aug-24 HARRINGTON INDUSTRIAL PLASTICS LLC 9,889.88                                        IRWD Wells Fargo PC Reconciled
2000782 8-Aug-24 POLYDYNE INC 14,274.72                                     IRWD Wells Fargo PC Reconciled
2000783 8-Aug-24 THOMPSON & PHIPPS INC 16,505.16                                     IRWD Wells Fargo PC Reconciled
2000784 15-Aug-24 ACCUSOURCE, INC. 636.47                                            IRWD Wells Fargo PC Negotiable
2000785 15-Aug-24 CULLIGAN OF SANTA ANA 26,100.00                                     IRWD Wells Fargo PC Reconciled
2000786 15-Aug-24 FERGUSON ENTERPRISES, LLC 8,967.80                                        IRWD Wells Fargo PC Reconciled
2000787 15-Aug-24 S & J SUPPLY CO INC 57,398.43                                     IRWD Wells Fargo PC Reconciled
2000788 15-Aug-24 UTILITY SYSTEMS SCIENCE & SOFTWARE INC. 3,630.00                                        IRWD Wells Fargo PC Reconciled
2000789 15-Aug-24 WECK LABORATORIES INC 1,166.00                                        IRWD Wells Fargo PC Reconciled
2000790 22-Aug-24 FERGUSON ENTERPRISES, LLC 24,625.30                                     IRWD Wells Fargo PC Reconciled
2000791 22-Aug-24 IDEXX DISTRIBUTION, INC 2,529.97                                        IRWD Wells Fargo PC Reconciled
2000792 22-Aug-24 PARKHOUSE TIRE INC 477.18                                            IRWD Wells Fargo PC Reconciled
2000793 22-Aug-24 THOMPSON & PHIPPS INC 81,791.56                                     IRWD Wells Fargo PC Reconciled
2000794 22-Aug-24 UNDERGROUND SERVICE ALERT OF SOUTHERN CALIFORNIA 7,228.78                                        IRWD Wells Fargo PC Reconciled
2000795 29-Aug-24 FERGUSON ENTERPRISES, LLC 22,054.10                                     IRWD Wells Fargo PC Reconciled
2000796 29-Aug-24 IDEXX DISTRIBUTION, INC 22,289.26                                     IRWD Wells Fargo PC Negotiable
2000797 29-Aug-24 PARKHOUSE TIRE INC 234.87                                            IRWD Wells Fargo PC Reconciled
2000798 29-Aug-24 POLYDYNE INC 74,942.28                                     IRWD Wells Fargo PC Negotiable
2000799 29-Aug-24 THOMPSON & PHIPPS INC 38,832.49                                     IRWD Wells Fargo PC Negotiable
2000800 29-Aug-24 WECK LABORATORIES INC 6,643.00                                        IRWD Wells Fargo PC Negotiable

SUB-TOTAL IRWD WELLS FARGO PC 511,432.99                                      

100183 5-Aug-24 BANK OF AMERICA 142,737.77                                   IRWD Wells Fargo Wire Negotiable
100184 6-Aug-24 BANK OF AMERICA 99,430.34                                     IRWD Wells Fargo Wire Negotiable
100185 6-Aug-24 U.S. BANK NATIONAL ASSOCIATION 101,372.96                                   IRWD Wells Fargo Wire Negotiable
100186 9-Aug-24 TAWFIK, NADINE 28.25                                              IRWD Wells Fargo Wire Negotiable
100187 9-Aug-24 U.S. BANK NATIONAL ASSOCIATION 41,463.61                                     IRWD Wells Fargo Wire Negotiable
100188 9-Aug-24 SUMITOMO MITSUI BANKING CORPORATION 72,857.65                                     IRWD Wells Fargo Wire Negotiable
100189 13-Aug-24 LINCOLN, DEBRA 26.88                                              IRWD Wells Fargo Wire Negotiable
100190 19-Aug-24 BANK OF NEW YORK MELLON TRUST COMPANY NA 44,740.44                                     IRWD Wells Fargo Wire Negotiable
100191 23-Aug-24 HE, LEI 91.09                                              IRWD Wells Fargo Wire Negotiable
100192 28-Aug-24 BANK OF NEW YORK MELLON TRUST COMPANY NA 390.63                                            IRWD Wells Fargo Wire Negotiable
100193 28-Aug-24 CHICAGO TITLE COMPANY 3,869.07                                        IRWD Wells Fargo Wire Negotiable
100194 29-Aug-24 U.S. BANK NATIONAL ASSOCIATION 2,537,250.00                               IRWD Wells Fargo Wire Negotiable
100195 29-Aug-24 WELLS FARGO BANK, N.A. 1,817.73                                        IRWD Wells Fargo Wire Negotiable
100196 29-Aug-24 WELLS FARGO BANK, N.A. 5,703.16                                        IRWD Wells Fargo Wire Negotiable

SUB-TOTAL IRWD WELLS FARGO WIRE DISBURSEMENTS 3,051,779.58                                  

16006 1-Aug-24 CALPERS 4,617.05                                        IRWD Wire Negotiable
16007 1-Aug-24 CALPERS 742,182.14                                   IRWD Wire Negotiable
16008 6-Aug-24 CHARD SNYDER & ASSOCIATES, INC. 928.96                                            IRWD Wire Negotiable
16009 6-Aug-24 CHARD SNYDER & ASSOCIATES, INC. 2,339.21                                        IRWD Wire Negotiable
16010 9-Aug-24 YORK RISK SERVICES GROUP, INC. 3,553.56                                        IRWD Wire Negotiable
16011 9-Aug-24 CHARD SNYDER & ASSOCIATES, INC. 1,381.02                                        IRWD Wire Negotiable
16012 12-Aug-24 CHARD SNYDER & ASSOCIATES, INC. 2,881.98                                        IRWD Wire Negotiable
16013 12-Aug-24 CHARD SNYDER & ASSOCIATES, INC. 1,700.43                                        IRWD Wire Negotiable
16014 14-Aug-24 CALPERS 1,330.74                                        IRWD Wire Negotiable
16015 14-Aug-24 CALPERS 317,664.11                                   IRWD Wire Negotiable
16016 15-Aug-24 BANK OF AMERICA MERRILL LYNCH 92,667.68                                     IRWD Wire Negotiable
16017 19-Aug-24 CHARD SNYDER & ASSOCIATES, INC. 2,964.06                                        IRWD Wire Negotiable
16018 19-Aug-24 CHARD SNYDER & ASSOCIATES, INC. 1,087.06                                        IRWD Wire Negotiable
16019 20-Aug-24 EMPLOYMENT DEVELOPMENT DEPARTMENT 21,332.34                                     IRWD Wire Negotiable
16020 20-Aug-24 CALIFORNIA DEPARTMENT OF CHILD SUPPORT SERVICES 3,539.83                                        IRWD Wire Negotiable
16021 20-Aug-24 EMPOWER RETIREMENT, LLC 225,135.37                                   IRWD Wire Negotiable
16022 20-Aug-24 FRANCHISE TAX BOARD 95,520.64                                     IRWD Wire Negotiable
16023 20-Aug-24 INTERNAL REVENUE SERVICE 288,045.08                                   IRWD Wire Negotiable
16024 20-Aug-24 YORK RISK SERVICES GROUP, INC. 8,242.96                                        IRWD Wire Negotiable
16025 21-Aug-24 YORK RISK SERVICES GROUP, INC. 6,900.53                                        IRWD Wire Negotiable
16026 26-Aug-24 CHARD SNYDER & ASSOCIATES, INC. 4,486.40                                        IRWD Wire Negotiable
16027 26-Aug-24 CHARD SNYDER & ASSOCIATES, INC. 3,180.79                                        IRWD Wire Negotiable
16028 28-Aug-24 EMPLOYMENT DEVELOPMENT DEPARTMENT 6,051.00                                        IRWD Wire Negotiable
16029 28-Aug-24 EMPLOYMENT DEVELOPMENT DEPARTMENT 21,436.72                                     IRWD Wire Negotiable
16030 28-Aug-24 FRANCHISE TAX BOARD 95,390.47                                     IRWD Wire Negotiable
16031 28-Aug-24 CALIFORNIA DEPARTMENT OF CHILD SUPPORT SERVICES 3,539.83                                        IRWD Wire Negotiable
16032 28-Aug-24 EMPOWER RETIREMENT, LLC 195,659.72                                   IRWD Wire Negotiable

12 of 13D - 12



CHECK OR 
ELECTRONIC # PAYMENT DATE SUPPLIER PAYMENT AMOUNT PAYMENT METHOD STATUS

IRVINE RANCH WATER DISTRICT
AP DISBURSEMENTS AND VOIDS FOR AUGUST 2024

16033 28-Aug-24 EMPOWER RETIREMENT, LLC 57.38                                              IRWD Wire Negotiable
16034 28-Aug-24 INTERNAL REVENUE SERVICE 284,918.30                                   IRWD Wire Negotiable
16035 28-Aug-24 CALPERS 315,433.34                                   IRWD Wire Negotiable
16036 29-Aug-24 YORK RISK SERVICES GROUP, INC. 23,140.24                                     IRWD Wire Negotiable

SUB-TOTAL IRWD BOFA WIRE DISBURSEMENTS 2,777,308.94                                  

SUB-TOTAL BOFA AND WELLS FARGO CHECK AND ELECTRONIC DISBURSEMENTS 27,838,540.94                               

1004106 8-Aug-24 Stupy, Cole Austin 16.08                                              IRWD Wells Fargo ACH for Expense Reports Voided
SUB-TOTAL BOFA AND WELLS FARGO CHECK AND ELECTRONIC ISSUED AND VOIDED IN AUGUST 2024 16.08                                                   

TOTAL 27,838,557.02                               

13 of 13D - 13



 
Note:  This page is intentionally left blank. 

 



MONTHLY SUMMARY OF PAYROLL ACH PAYMENTS

August
2024

AMOUNT VENDOR PURPOSE

8/9/2024 1,290,174.49 BANK OF AMERICA ACH Payments for Payroll
8/23/2024 1,274,546.18 BANK OF AMERICA ACH Payments for Payroll

$2,564,720.67

Exhibit "E"



 
Note:  This page is intentionally left blank. 

 



IRWD Gov Code 53065.5 Disclosure Report
Payment or Reimbursements for Individual charges of $100 or more per transaction for services or product received.
01-AUG-24 to 31-AUG-24

NAME CHECK NO. CHECK DATE AMOUNT ITEM DESCRIPTION EXPENSE JUSTIFICATION
Abolfathi, Ramin 1004032 1-Aug-24  509.00 Certification GIAC Certified Forensic Analyst (GDFA) renewal
Banares, Kenneth 1004034 1-Aug-24  360.81 Lodging Esri User Conference, San Diego - July 17, 2024
Coleman, Nicholas 1004141 15-Aug-24  221.00 Membership CWEA renewal
Colston, James 1004090 8-Aug-24  436.21 Airfare CASA 2024 Annual Conference, Monterey, CA - July 31 - August 2, 2024
Colston, James 1004090 8-Aug-24  399.00 Lodging CASA 2024 Annual Conference, Monterey, CA - July 31, 2024
Colston, James 1004090 8-Aug-24  399.00 Lodging CASA 2024 Annual Conference, Monterey, CA - August 1, 2024
Dutton, David 1004038 1-Aug-24  146.00 Certification Automotive Service Excellence (ASE) renewal
Gronlund, Brandon 1004042 1-Aug-24  150.00 Certification SWRCB Wastewater Operator Grade I renewal
Kulick, Michael 1004191 22-Aug-24  239.00 Membership CWEA renewal
LaMar, Steven E 1004045 1-Aug-24  171.65 Lodging ACWA Executive Committee and Board of Director's Meetings, Sacramento, CA - April 5, 2024
LaMar, Steve 1004045 1-Aug-24  261.44 Lodging ACWA 2024 Annual Spring Conference, Sacramento, CA - May 6, 2024
LaMar, Steve 1004045 1-Aug-24  261.44 Lodging ACWA 2024 Annual Spring Conference, Sacramento, CA - May 7, 2024
LaMar, Steve 1004045 1-Aug-24  261.44 Lodging ACWA 2024 Annual Spring Conference, Sacramento, CA - May 8, 2024
Moore, Jonathon 1004195 22-Aug-24  105.00 Certification SWRCB Water Distribution Grade IV renewal
Navarro, Hector 1004048 1-Aug-24  360.81 Lodging Esri User Conference, San Diego - July 17, 2024
O'Neill, Owen 1004238 29-Aug-24  239.00 Membership CWEA renewal
O'Neill, Owen 1004238 29-Aug-24  121.00 Certification CWEA Electrical/Instrumentation Grade IV renewal
Pham, Amie 1004050 1-Aug-24  110.34 Other(Misc) Safety shoe allowance
Reynoso, Pio 1004051 1-Aug-24  108.00 Certification CWEA Collection System Maintenance Grade III
Reynoso, Pio 1004051 1-Aug-24  221.00 Membership CWEA renewal
Rigby, Lori Ann 1004241 29-Aug-24  191.25 Lodging 39th Annual Tri-State Seminar, Las Vegas, NV - August 5, 2024
Rigby, Lori Ann 1004241 29-Aug-24  141.25 Lodging 39th Annual Tri-State Seminar, Las Vegas, NV - August 6, 2024
Rigby, Lori Ann 1004241 29-Aug-24  141.25 Lodging 39th Annual Tri-State Seminar, Las Vegas, NV - August 7, 2024
Rigby, Lori Ann 1004241 29-Aug-24  141.25 Lodging 39th Annual Tri-State Seminar, Las Vegas, NV - August 8, 2024
Rigby, Lori Ann 1004241 29-Aug-24  109.50 Parking Fee 39th Annual Tri-State Seminar, Las Vegas, NV - August 5-8, 2024
Smithson, Christopher 1004053 1-Aug-24  219.96 Other(Misc) Leadership program celebration lunch for Enrique Zanetti
Webster, Tanner 444592 15-Aug-24  161.75 Other(Misc) Safety shoe allowance
Zamora, Victor 1004055 1-Aug-24  248.60 Other(Misc) Orange County Farm Supply for ShadeTree Nursery
Zamora, Victor 1004245 29-Aug-24  235.00 Other(Misc) Waypoint Analytical plant/soil analysis and plant pathology
Zepeda, Jose 1004056 1-Aug-24  116.31 Mileage Roundtrip Esri User Conference, San Diego - July 14, 2024
Zepeda, Jose 1004056 1-Aug-24  115.51 Mileage Roundtrip Esri User Conference, San Diego - July 15, 2024

Total Amount:      $6,902.77 

Exhibit "F"



 
Note:  This page is intentionally left blank. 

 



No. 7 No. 7 2024 Legislative Update- Board- September 7 

September 23, 2024 
Prepared and 
submitted by: C. Compton 
Approved by: Paul A. Cook 

CONSENT CALENDAR 

2024 LEGISLATIVE AND REGULATORY UPDATE 

SUMMARY: 

This report provides an update on the 2023-2024 legislative session, regulatory issues, and 
IRWD priorities.  As legislation and regulations develop, staff will provide updates and 
recommendations to the Water Resources Policy and Communications Committee and the 
Board, as appropriate.  Staff recommends the Board receive and file the update. 

BACKGROUND: 

On August 15, 2024, the Senate and Assembly Appropriations Committees both held their 
respective Suspense File hearing.  The Committees acted on approximately 830 bills, holding 
nearly one-third of them.  The Suspense File hearings marked the beginning of the final two 
weeks of the 2023-2024 legislative session.  With hundreds of bills still to be considered by the 
Senate and Assembly at the start of those two weeks, August 23 was the last day to amend bills 
on the floor without a rule waiver, and August 31 was the last day for the Legislature to pass bills 
during the regular session.  The Governor has until September 30 to sign or veto legislation 
passed by the Legislature this session.  The 2025-2026 Regular Legislative Session will begin on 
December 2, 2024. 

A copy of the 2024 Legislative Matrix is attached as Exhibit “A”.  Links to the bills discussed 
below are included within each discussion unless a separate exhibit is noted. 

2024 State Legislative Update: 

As has been traditionally done after the legislative session has recessed, staff has provided an 
update on the bills still active at the end of the legislative session and that were of interest to the 
District.  A status report on each bill is provided below: 

AB 460 (Bauer-Kahan, D - San Ramon) - State Water Resources Control Board: Interim Relief: 

AB 460 would have granted the State Water Resources Control Board authority, on its own 
motion or upon the petition of an interested party, to issue interim relief orders against water 
diverters and users in order to apply or enforce specified provisions of law related to water 
rights, water quality, and water law.  In June, the bill was substantially amended to remove that 
proposed authority, and to only grant the State Board authority to adjust the penalties for water 
rights violations.  IRWD currently does not have a position on AB 460.  The bill was passed by 
the Legislature on August 30 and presented to the Governor on September 11.  As of the writing 
of this report, the Governor has yet to act on the bill.   

https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/billNavClient.xhtml?bill_id=202320240AB460


Consent Calendar:  2024 Legislative and Regulatory Update 
September 23, 2024 
Page 2 
 
 
AB 805 (Arambula, D -Fresno) - Sewer Service: Disadvantaged Communities: 
 
AB 805 would have authorized the State Board to require a sewer service provider for a sewer 
system that has the reasonable potential to cause a violation of water quality objectives, impair 
present or future beneficial uses of water or cause pollution, nuisance, or contamination of waters 
of the state to contract with an administrator designated or approved by the State Board.  After 
being amended in June, AB 805 now only permits the State Board to require a failing sewer 
system to contract with an administrator but would not require another provider to assume the 
failing system.  IRWD currently has a “watch” position on AB 805.  The bill was passed by the 
Legislature on August 27 and presented to the Governor on September 5.  As of the writing of 
this report, the Governor has yet to act on the bill.   
 
AB 1573 (Friedman, D - Glendale) - Water Conservation: Landscape Design: Model Ordinance: 
 
AB 1573 would change the Model Water Efficient Landscape Ordinance (MWELO) from a 
landscape design standard that must be met to a landscape design, planting and irrigation 
standard.  Among other things, it would require that MWELO be updated to include provisions 
that require that at least 25 percent of the plants installed in new or renovated nonresidential 
landscapes be California native plants.  Recent amendments require the Department Water of 
Resources (DWR), no later than July 1, 2024, to convene a working group composed of a broad 
range of stakeholders with expertise in native plants to develop a strategic plan with measurable 
milestones to reach a requirement by January 1, 2035, that all new and renovated nonresidential 
areas install in the project footprint not less than 75 percent native plants.  IRWD had a “seek 
amendments” position on AB 1573.  At the end of session, the bill remained on the Senate 
Inactive File.   
 
AB 1820 (Schiavo, D - Chatsworth) - Housing Development Projects: Applications: Fees: 
 
AB 1820 would permit a development proponent to request a preliminary fee and exaction 
estimate when it submits an application to a local government.  The bill requires the local agency 
to provide the estimate within a specified number of business days of the submission of the 
preliminary application and specifies that the preliminary fee and exaction estimate is for 
informational purposes only and does not affect the scope, amount, or time of payment of any fee 
or exaction.  IRWD has a “watch” position on AB 1820.  The bill was passed by the Legislature 
on August 27 and presented to the Governor on September 5.  As of the writing of this report, the 
Governor has yet to act on the bill.   
 
AB 1827 (Papan, D – San Mateo) – High Consumptive Water Parcels: 
 
AB 1827, which is sponsored by IRWD and the California Coastkeeper Alliance, would provide 
that the incrementally higher costs of water service associated with higher water usage demands, 
the maximum potential water use, or projected peak water usage may be allocated using any 
method that reasonably assesses the water service provider’s cost of serving those parcels.  The 
bill was passed from the Senate Floor on August 20 and presented to the Governor on August 27.  
As of the writing of this report, the Governor has yet to act on the bill.  

https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/billNavClient.xhtml?bill_id=202320240AB805
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/billNavClient.xhtml?bill_id=202320240AB1573
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/billNavClient.xhtml?bill_id=202320240AB1820
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/billNavClient.xhtml?bill_id=202320240AB1827


Consent Calendar:  2024 Legislative and Regulatory Update 
September 23, 2024 
Page 3 
 
 
AB 2257 (Wilson, D – Suisun City) - Local Government: Property-Related Water and Sewer 
Fees: 
 
AB 2257 would prohibit, if an agency complies with specified procedures, a person or entity 
from bringing a judicial action or proceeding alleging noncompliance with such provisions for 
any new, increased, or extended fee or assessment unless that person or entity has timely 
submitted to the agency a written objection to that fee or assessment that specifies the grounds 
for alleging noncompliance.  The bill is sponsored by the Association of California Water 
Agencies (ACWA), and IRWD currently has a “support” position on it.  The bill was passed by 
the Legislature on August 27 and presented to the Governor on September 5.  As of the writing 
of this report, the Governor has yet to act on the bill. 
 
AB 2515 (Papan, D – San Mateo) - Menstrual Products: Perfluoroalkyl and Polyfluoroalkyl: 
 
AB 2515 would prohibit manufacturing, distributing, or selling, in the state any menstrual 
products that contain regulated PFAS (polyfluoroalkyl substances) in menstrual products.  
AB 2515 would also authorize the Department of Toxic Substances Control to adopt guidance or 
regulations for implementing and enforcing the manufacturing, distributing, or selling of such 
products.  IRWD currently has a “support” position on AB 2515.  The bill was passed by the 
Legislature on August 29 and presented to the Governor on September 11.  As of the writing of 
this report, the Governor has yet to act on the bill.  
 
AB 2533 (Carrillo, D – Palmdale) - Accessory Dwelling Units: Junior Accessory Dwelling:  
 
AB 2533 would create an amnesty program for unpermitted Accessory Dwelling Units (ADU).  
With regards to connection fees, the bill would prohibit a local agency from requiring a 
homeowner to pay impact fees or connection or capacity charges to obtain a permit if they 
provide evidence that they meet specified criteria for low- or moderate-income households.  
IRWD currently has a “watch” position on AB 2533.  The bill was passed by the Legislature on 
August 27 and presented to the Governor on September 5.  As of the writing of this report, the 
Governor has yet to act on the bill.  
 
AB 2599 (Committee on Environmental Safety and Toxic Materials) – Public Beaches & 
Discontinuation of Residential Water Service 
 
AB 2599 is a bill authored by the Assembly Committee on Environmental Safety and Toxic 
Materials.  The bill cleans up two areas of the California Health and Safety Code.  The first is a 
clarification within Health and Safety Code Section 115885 to allow, on a voluntary basis, local 
public health officers to use the water quality monitoring data generated by other public agencies 
when making beach reopening decisions.  The second is within Health and Safety Code Section 
116920.  IRWD currently has a “support” position on the bill.  The bill was passed by the 
Legislature on August 26 and presented to the Governor on September 3.  As of the writing of 
this report, the Governor has yet to act on the bill.   

https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/billNavClient.xhtml?bill_id=202320240AB2257
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/billNavClient.xhtml?bill_id=202320240AB2257
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/billNavClient.xhtml?bill_id=202320240AB2515
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/billNavClient.xhtml?bill_id=202320240AB2533
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/billNavClient.xhtml?bill_id=202320240AB2599
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/billNavClient.xhtml?bill_id=202320240AB2599


Consent Calendar:  2024 Legislative and Regulatory Update 
September 23, 2024 
Page 4 
 
 
AB 2729 (Patterson, R - Rocklin) - Residential Fees and Charges: 
 
AB 2729 sought to prohibits a local agency from requiring payment of fees or charges on a 
residential development before the date of final inspection or the issuances of a certificate of 
occupancy, whichever occurs first, except under specified conditions.  Those provisions were 
removed from the bill on August 21 and the bill now deals solely with entitlements.   IRWD has 
a “watch” position on AB 2729, after connection fees were removed from the bill.  The bill was 
passed by the Legislature on August 31 and presented to the Governor on September 13.  As of 
the writing of this report, the Governor has yet to act on the bill. 
 
AB 3121 (Hart, D – Santa Barbara) Conservation Orders: 
 
AB 3121 would modify the enforcement provisions of the “Making Conservation a California 
Way of Law.”  Currently, the State Water Resources Control Board (State Board), may issue 
informational orders to an urban retail water supplier that fails to meet its urban water use object 
by January 1, 2024.  The State Board’s enforcement authority increases in 2025, at which point it 
may issue a written notice to an urban retail water supplier that does not meet its urban water use 
objection beginning January 1, 2025.  Beginning in 2026, the State Board may issue a 
conversation order to an urban retail water supplier that fails to meet its urban water use object.   
 
AB 3121 would move the dates for each of the State Board’s enforcement authorities back two 
years.  IRWD has a “watch” position on AB 3121.  On August 28, the bill was gutted and 
amended.  It now relates to the California Public Utilities Commission incentive programs.  The 
bill was ordered to the Assembly Energy, Utilities and Commerce Committee where it remained 
at the end of session. 
 
SB 366 (Caballero, D - Salinas) – The California Water Plan Long-Term Supply Targets: 
 
SB 366 would set long-term water supply development targets and require DWR to develop of a 
comprehensive plan within the California Water Plan on how the state can meet the long-term 
water needs for urban, agricultural and environmental uses.  IRWD has a “support” position on 
SB 366.  The bill was passed by the Legislature (without any “no” votes in either house) on 
August 29 and presented to the Governor on September 9.  As of the writing of this report, the 
Governor has yet to act on the bill. 
 
SB-778 (Ochoa Bogh, R - Yucaipa) - Excavations: Subsurface Installations: 
 
SB 778 would revise the Dig Safe Act of 2016 and amend both operator and excavator 
responsibilities related to underground utilities and excavations.  IRWD currently has a “watch” 
position on SB 778.  The bill was passed by the Legislature on August 28 and presented to the 
Governor on September 4.  As of the writing of this report, the Governor has yet to act on the 
bill.   

https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/billNavClient.xhtml?bill_id=202320240AB2729
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/billNavClient.xhtml?bill_id=202320240AB3121
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/billNavClient.xhtml?bill_id=202320240SB366
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/billNavClient.xhtml?bill_id=202320240SB778


Consent Calendar:  2024 Legislative and Regulatory Update 
September 23, 2024 
Page 5 
 
 
SB 867 (Allen, D - Santa Monica) - Drought, Flood, and Water Resilience, Wildfire, and Forest 
Resilience, Coastal Resilience, Extreme Heat Mitigation, Biodiversity, and Nature-Based 
Climate Solutions, Climate Smart Agriculture, Park Creation, and Outdoor Access, and Clean 
Energy Bond Act of 2024: 
 
SB 867, which is now Prop. 4, would authorize the issuance of general obligation bonds in the 
amount of $15.5 billion to finance projects for drought, flood, and water resilience, wildfire and 
forest resilience, coastal resilience, extreme heat mitigation, biodiversity and nature-based 
climate solutions, climate smart agriculture, park creation and outdoor access, and clean energy 
programs, subject to approval by the voters in an unspecified statewide election.  This measure 
includes $300 million for water reuse and recycling projects and $400 million for dam safety and 
resilience.  IRWD has a “support” position on SB 867/Prop. 4. 
 
SB 937 (Wiener, D - San Fransico) - Development Fees and Charges: 
 
SB 937, as introduced, would have prohibit a local agency from requiring the payment of fees or 
charges, including water and sewer connection fees, until the date the certificate of occupancy is 
issued.  The bill was amended in early April to exclude utility connection fees.  On August 22, 
the bill was amended again putting water and sewer connection fees back into parts of the bill. 
As a result, IRWD currently has an “oppose” position on the bill.  The bill was passed by the 
Legislature on August 28 and signed by the Governor on September 18.  
 
SB 1110 (Ashby, D - Sacramento) – Conservation Orders: 
 
SB 1110 proposed to change the enforcement authority granted to the State Board for an urban 
retail water supplier’s failure to meet the urban water use objective and pushing the dates for 
enforcement back one year.  IRWD had “support” position on SB1110.  The bill was held on the 
Assembly Appropriation Committee’s Suspense File. 
 
SB 1134 (Caballero, D-Merced) Surplus land: 
 
SB 1134 (Caballero) seeks to clarify and address issues of ambiguity in the Surplus Land Act 
(SLA).  As amended, it would also require the Department of Housing and Community 
Development (HCD) to use the Administrative Procedures Act (APA) process when adopting 
regulations or guidelines related to the implementation of the SLA instead of the non-APA 
process provided for under existing law.  IRWD has “support” position on the bill, but due the 
author has decided not to move the bill forward this year. 
 
SB 1210 (Skinner, D - Oakland) Electrical, Gas, Sewer, and Water Service Connect Charges: 
 
SB 1210, as introduced, would prohibit an electric, gas, sewer or water service connection fee for 
new housing construction from exceeding one percent of the reported building permit value of 
that housing unit. The bill would have also required that the connection fee be spread over a 
period of at least 10 years.  The bill has since been amended and now just requires the posting of 
a fee schedule.  The limitation of the fee amount and repayment have been removed from the 
bill.  As a result of the amendments, IRWD has a “watch” position on the bill.  The bill passed 

https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/billNavClient.xhtml?bill_id=202320240SB867
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/billNavClient.xhtml?bill_id=202320240SB867
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/billNavClient.xhtml?bill_id=202320240SB867
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/billNavClient.xhtml?bill_id=202320240SB867
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/billNavClient.xhtml?bill_id=202320240AB805
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/billTextClient.xhtml?bill_id=202320240SB1110
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/billNavClient.xhtml?bill_id=202320240SB1134
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/billNavClient.xhtml?bill_id=202320240SB1210


Consent Calendar:  2024 Legislative and Regulatory Update 
September 23, 2024 
Page 6 
 
 
by the Legislature on August 26 and was presented to the Governor on September 3.  As of the 
writing of this report, the Governor has yet to act on the bill.  
 
SB 1218 (Newman, D – Fullerton) – Emergency Water Supplies: 
 
SB 1218 is an IRWD-sponsored legislative proposal this year.  The bill would declare it is the 
established policy of the state to encourage and incentivize, but not mandate, the development of 
emergency water supplies, and to support their use during times of water shortage.  The bill was 
held on the Assembly Appropriation Committee’s Suspense File. 
 
SB-1255 (Dodd, D - Napa) Public Water Systems: Needs Analysis: 
 
SB 1255, as amended, would have required the State Board to update its needs analysis of public 
water systems to include an assessment of the funds necessary to provide a 20 percent discount 
for low-income households served by community water systems with fewer than 3,300 service 
connections.  It would also have required public water systems with more than 3,300 connections 
to establish a water Low-Income Rate Assistance (LIRA) program that would: 

• Be funded with voluntary contributions, which would be collected through water bills on 
an opt-out-only basis unless the system could fund the minimum bill credit through an 
opt-in program; 

• Require the system to establish a recommended voluntary contribution amount on the bill 
of each ratepayer, other than public entities, ratepayers that have opted out and ratepayers 
eligible for the program.  The recommend contribution would be required to be set at a 
level sufficient to fund the discount to eligible ratepayers and pay for administrative 
costs; and 

• Provide a bill credit to eligible ratepayers of no less than 20 percent of the water charges 
for consumption of up the indoor water use standards association with “Making 
Conservation a California Way of Life.” 

 
IRWD has an “oppose unless amended” position on SB 1255, and staff actively engaged in 
seeking amendments to the bill that would make the bill workable for retail water suppliers.  The 
bill was held on the Assembly Appropriation Committee’s Suspense File. 
 
SB 1330 (Archuleta, D - Pico Rivera) Urban Retail Water Supplier: Water Use: 
 
SB 1330 also proposes substantial changes to the “Making Conservation a California Way of 
Life” laws.  Specifically, SB 1330 would have required the State Board to adopt the variances as 
they were proposed to the DWR without the level of significance and data reporting currently 
proposed by the State Board.  The bill would have also eliminated the need for the State Board to 
approve the use of a variance; extended the start dates for the State Board’s enforcement 
authorities; and required DWR to collect and update residential and commercial, industrial and 
institution landscape data for each supplier every 10 years.  On April 24, the bill was 
substantially amended and the provisions related to variances were removed from the bill. 
 

https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/billTextClient.xhtml?bill_id=202320240SB1218
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/billNavClient.xhtml?bill_id=202320240SB1255
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/billTextClient.xhtml?bill_id=202320240SB1330


Consent Calendar:  2024 Legislative and Regulatory Update 
September 23, 2024 
Page 7 
 
 
IRWD had a “watch” position on SB 1330.  The bill was held on the Assembly Appropriation 
Committee’s Suspense File. 
 
Other 2024 State Legislative Updates: 
 
Staff also provided an oral update to the Committee on new developments related to the 
following: 

• AB 2149 (Connolly): Gates: Standards: Inspection; 

• AB 2557 (Ortega): Local Agencies: Contracts for Special Services; 

• AB 2561 (McKinnor): Local Public Employees: Vacant Positions;  

• SB 1072 (Padilla): Local Government: Proposition 218: Remedies; and 

• Other legislative matters of interest to IRWD. 
 
Other 2024 State and Regional Regulatory Updates: 
 
The following is a list of state and regional regulations and agency reports staff are monitoring, 
tracking, or planning to engage in over the next three to 12 months.  As the next drafts of the 
regulations or reports are released for public review and comment, staff will engage, as 
appropriate.  Staff provided an oral update to the Committee on new developments related to 
these regulations and other regulations of interest to the District. 
 
The pending regulations and reports actively being tracked include: 

• California Natural Resources Agency (CNRA) 30 x 30 California Implementation; 

• CNRA’s Water Resilience Portfolio Implementation and Resiliency 2.0 Implementation; 

• DWR Surface water and groundwater interconnection guidance; 

• DWR SB 1157 Indoor Water Use Studies; 

• State Board’s implementation of the Lead and Copper Rule; 

• State Board’s Safe and Affordable Funding for Equity and Resilience (SAFER) Drinking 
Water Program; 

• State Board’s Development of Maximum Contaminant Levels for PFAS; 

• South Coast AQMD’s Cumulative Impacts from Air Toxics for CEQA Projects; 

• South Coast AQMD’s Tier 4 Emergency Generator Testing Policy;  

• South Coast AQMD’s Proposed Rule 317.1 - Clean Air Act Nonattainment Fees for 8-
Hour Ozone Standards; 

• South Coast AQMD’s PAR 1146.2 Control of NOx from Large Water Heaters, Small 
Boilers and Process Heaters; and 

• South Coast AQMD’s Proposed Rule 1110.4, Emissions from Emergency Generators. 
 

https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/billNavClient.xhtml?bill_id=202320240AB2149
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/billNavClient.xhtml?bill_id=202320240AB2557
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/billNavClient.xhtml?bill_id=202320240AB2561
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/billNavClient.xhtml?bill_id=202320240SB1072
https://www.californianature.ca.gov/pages/30x30
https://resources.ca.gov/Initiatives/Building-Water-Resilience/portfolio
https://resources.ca.gov/-/media/CNRA-Website/Files/Initiatives/Water-Resilience/CA-Water-Supply-Strategy.pdf
https://www.waterboards.ca.gov/drinking_water/certlic/drinkingwater/lead-copper-rule/
https://www.waterboards.ca.gov/safer/
https://www.waterboards.ca.gov/safer/
https://www.waterboards.ca.gov/drinking_water/certlic/drinkingwater/pfas.html
http://www.aqmd.gov/home/rules-compliance/ceqa/ceqa-policy-development-(new)
https://irwd-my.sharepoint.com/:b:/p/bronstein/Ee30QoNo2vRMjPPG1MX0ZBEBciDrTndF3dJ4uKYieyZ_4g?e=htHLEv
https://irwd-my.sharepoint.com/:b:/p/bronstein/Ee30QoNo2vRMjPPG1MX0ZBEBciDrTndF3dJ4uKYieyZ_4g?e=htHLEv
http://www.aqmd.gov/home/rules-compliance/rules/scaqmd-rule-book/proposed-rules/rule-1146-2
http://www.aqmd.gov/home/rules-compliance/rules/scaqmd-rule-book/proposed-rules/rule-1146-2
https://www.aqmd.gov/home/rules-compliance/rules/scaqmd-rule-book/proposed-rules/rule-1110-4


Consent Calendar:  2024 Legislative and Regulatory Update 
September 23, 2024 
Page 8 
 
 
Staff also provided the Committee with an update on other regulatory matters of interest to the 
District. 
 
2024 Federal Legislative and Regulatory Update: 
 
Kern Fan Groundwater Storage Project Outreach: 
 
IRWD’s federal advocacy priority in 2024 focuses on seeking federal funding for the Kern Fan 
Groundwater Storage Project and advocating for an increased funding authorization for the 
federal Water Storage Program.  Staff provided an update on those efforts and the District’s next 
steps, given the recent award of Small Storage Program grant funding to Phase 1 of the project. 
 
Other Federal Regulatory Updates: 
 
The following is a list of federal regulations and agency reports staff are monitoring, tracking, or 
planning to engage in over the next three to 12 months.  As the next drafts of the regulations or 
report are released for public review and comment, staff will engage, as appropriate.  Staff 
provided an oral update to the Committee on new developments related to these regulations and 
other regulations of interest to the District.  The pending regulations and reports actively being 
tracked include: 

• U.S. Environmental Protection Agency’s (U.S. EPA’s) Lead and Copper Rule 
Improvements; and 

• Bureau of Reclamation’s Post-2026 Colorado River Reservoir Operational Guidelines 
and Strategies for Lake Powell and Lake Mead. 

 
2025 Legislative Planning and Call for Legislative Proposals: 
 
Staff has begun planning for the 2025 legislative session.  As has been done in previous years, 
staff will seek the Board’s input within next few months on proposed 2025 regional, state, and 
federal legislative issues of interest to IRWD. 
 
In addition, staff is participating in 2025 legislative planning for each of IRWD’s associations.  
Each year the ACWA, Bioenergy Association of California (BAC), CMUA, California 
Association of Sanitation Agencies (CASA), California Special Districts Association (CSDA) 
and WateReuse California undertake annual legislative planning for the next year and solicit 
legislative proposals from their members.  The ACWA State Legislative Committee, the CMUA 
Legislative Committee, and the CSDA Legislative Committee have set October 11, October 18, 
and September3 as the deadline for their members to submit proposals for consideration.  They 
have also set the dates for their legislative planning meetings: CSDA’s is October 24, ACWA’s 
on December 5, and CMUA’s on November 14.  The other associations have yet to set their 
proposal deadline and planning meeting dates. 
 
FISCAL IMPACTS: 
 
Not applicable.  

https://www.epa.gov/ground-water-and-drinking-water/lead-and-copper-rule-improvements
https://www.epa.gov/ground-water-and-drinking-water/lead-and-copper-rule-improvements
https://www.federalregister.gov/documents/2022/06/24/2022-13502/request-for-input-on-development-of-post-2026-colorado-river-reservoir-operational-strategies-for
https://www.federalregister.gov/documents/2022/06/24/2022-13502/request-for-input-on-development-of-post-2026-colorado-river-reservoir-operational-strategies-for


Consent Calendar:  2024 Legislative and Regulatory Update 
September 23, 2024 
Page 9 
 
 
ENVIRONMENTAL COMPLIANCE: 
 
Not applicable. 
 
COMMITTEE STATUS:  
 
This item was reviewed by the Water Resources Policy and Communications Committee on 
September 4, 2024. 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
 
Receive and file. 
 
LIST OF EXHIBITS: 
 
Exhibit “A” – IRWD Legislative Matrix 



 
Note:  This page is intentionally left blank. 

 



Exhibit “A” 
 

IRWD 2024 LEGISLATIVE MATRIX  
Updated: September 19, 2024 

 

A-1 

CA AB 122 
(Assembly 
Budget 
Committee) 
 
 

Public Resources Trailer 
Bill  

 Expresses the intent of the Legislature that the administration 
conduct an assessment of offshore wind energy permitting and 
related resource needs across applicable State entities, including, 
but not limited to, the Energy Commission, the State Lands 
Commission, the California Coastal Commission, and the State 
Coastal Conservancy. States that the outcomes of the assessment 
may be considered as part of a future budget. Appropriates funds. 
 

08/14/2023: Re-referred to SENATE 
Committee on BUDGET AND 
FISCAL REVIEW. 

CA AB 270 
(Lee (D)) 
 
 

Political Reform Act of 
1974: Public Campaign 
Financing  

 Permits a public officer or candidate to expend or accept public 
funds, as defined, for the purpose of seeking elective office unless 
the funds are earmarked by a state or local entity for education, 
transportation, or public safety. Requires candidates to abide by 
specified expenditure limits and meet strict criteria, as defined, to 
qualify for public funds, and it also would prohibit public funds 
from being used to pay legal defense fees or fines. 
 

08/15/2024: In SENATE Committee 
on APPROPRIATIONS:  Held in 
committee. 

CA AB 277 
(Rodriguez (D)) 
 
 

Extreme Weather Forecast 
and Threat Intelligence 
Center  

 Establishes the State-Federal Flood Operations Center within the 
Department of Water Resources and authorizes the department to 
administer the center in the department's divisions, offices, or 
programs. Requires the department and the Office of Emergency 
Services, in consultation with cooperating agencies, to develop 
and submit a report to the Legislature on or before specified date 
that outlines necessary technological advancements for agile 
forecasting and gaps in data that would improve flood response. 
 

09/01/2023: In SENATE Committee 
on APPROPRIATIONS:  Held in 
committee. 

CA AB 305 
(Villapudua 
(D)) 
 
 

California Flood Protection 
Bond Act of 2024  

Support Enacts the California Flood Protection Bond Act of 2024 which, 
if approved by the voters, would authorize the issuance of bonds 
in the specified amount pursuant to the State General Obligation 
Bond Law for flood protection projects. Provides for the 
submission of these provisions to the voters at the specified 
statewide general election. 
 

05/22/2024: Re-referred to SENATE 
Committee on NATURAL 
RESOURCES AND WATER. 

CA AB 311 
(Santiago (D)) 
 
 

Food Assistance Program: 
Eligibility and Benefits  

 Removes a specified age limitation and makes any individual 
eligible for the program if the individual's immigration status is 
the sole basis for their ineligibility for CalFresh benefits. 
 

08/15/2024: In SENATE Committee 
on APPROPRIATIONS:  Held in 
committee. 



IRWD 2024 LEGISLATIVE MATRIX  
Updated: September 19, 2024 

 
Bill No. 
Author 

Title IRWD 
Position 

Summary/Effects Status 

 

A-2 

CA AB 347 
(Ting (D)) 
 
 

Household Product Safety: 
Toxic Substances: Testing  

 Provides that existing law prohibits juvenile products, textile 
articles, and food packaging that contain specified levels of PFAS 
from being distributed, sold or offered for sale in the State. 
Requires the Department of Toxic Substances Control to adopt 
regulations for enforcement. Requires manufacturers to register, 
pay a fee, and provide a statement of compliance to the 
department. Requires the department to deposit registration fees 
and administrative penalties into the PFAS Enforcement Fund. 
 

09/10/2024: *****To GOVERNOR. 

CA AB 408 
(Wilson (D)) 
 
 

Climate Resilient Farms   Enacts the Climate-Resilient Farms, Sustainable Healthy Food 
Access, and Farmworker Protection Bond Act of 2024, which, if 
approved by the voters, would authorize the issuance of bonds to 
finance programs related to, among other things, agricultural 
lands, food and fiber infrastructure, climate resilience, agricultural 
professionals, including farmers, ranchers, and farmworkers, 
workforce development and training, air quality, tribes, 
disadvantaged communities, nutrition, and food aid. 
 

09/01/2023: In SENATE Committee 
on APPROPRIATIONS.  Held in 
committee and made a Two-year bill. 

CA AB 437 
(Jackson (D)) 
 
 

State Government: Equity   Provides that existing law requires the Chief Equity Officer to 
improve equity and inclusion throughout State government 
operations and authorizes the Chief Equity Officer to engage with 
State entities for these purposes. Requires State agencies and 
departments, in carrying out their duties, to consider the use of 
more inclusive practices to advance equity. 
 

06/27/2024: In SENATE.  From third 
reading.  To Inactive File. 

CA AB 453 
(Cervantes (D)) 
 
 

District-Based Elections   Requires a public hearing concerning district-based elections that 
is consolidated with a meeting of the governing body of the 
political subdivision that includes other substantive agenda items, 
to begin at a fixed time regardless of its order on the agenda. 
Requires the governing body to provide notice of the hearing to 
the public. 
 

08/26/2024: Chaptered by Secretary of 
State.  Chapter No. 2024-195 



IRWD 2024 LEGISLATIVE MATRIX  
Updated: September 19, 2024 

 
Bill No. 
Author 

Title IRWD 
Position 

Summary/Effects Status 

 

A-3 

CA AB 460 
(Bauer-Kahan 
(D)) 
 
 

State Water Resources 
Control Board: Water 
Rights  

 Provides that under existing law, the diversion or use of water 
other than as authorized by specified provisions of law is a 
trespass, subject to specified civil liability. Requires the State 
Water Resources Control Board to adjust for inflation, beginning 
in the specified year, the amounts of civil and administrative 
liabilities or penalties imposed by the board or in water right 
actions brought at the request of the board. Increases specified 
civil penalties for cease and desist order violations. 
 

09/11/2024: *****To GOVERNOR. 

CA AB 518 
(Wicks (D)) 
 
 

CalFresh: Data   Requires the State Department of Social Services, in consultation 
with various stakeholders, to develop a methodology for 
estimating the CalFresh participation rate and identifying 
characteristics of Californians who are eligible for, but not 
receiving, CalFresh benefits. Authorizes the department to 
identify data-sharing opportunities with other State and local 
public entities, and any other unit of State government, for the 
purposes of improving the administration of CalFresh. 
 

09/12/2024: *****To GOVERNOR. 

CA AB 527 
(Calderon (D)) 
 
 

Urban Forestry: School 
Greening Projects: Grants  

 Provides that the California Urban Forestry Act of 1978 requires 
the Department of Forestry and Fire Protection to implement a 
program in urban forestry to encourage better tree management 
and planting in urban areas. Requires funds to be administered to 
support school greening by providing grants to eligible local 
educational agencies, nonprofit organizations, cities, counties, and 
districts, through a competitive grant process developed by the 
department. Requires the department to develop guidelines. 
 

09/01/2023: In SENATE Committee 
on APPROPRIATIONS:  Held in 
committee. 

CA AB 544 
(Bryan (D)) 
 
 

Voting Pilot Program: 
County Jails  

 Requires the Secretary of State to, upon appropriation of funds for 
this purpose, operate a pilot program to provide grants to county 
election offices in the County of San Benito, the County of San 
Mateo, and the County of Santa Cruz to improve voter 
participation in jail facilities. Provides that, if the Commission on 
State Mandates determines that the bill contains costs mandated 

09/12/2024: *****To GOVERNOR. 



IRWD 2024 LEGISLATIVE MATRIX  
Updated: September 19, 2024 

 
Bill No. 
Author 

Title IRWD 
Position 

Summary/Effects Status 

 

A-4 

by the State, reimbursement for certain costs shall be made 
pursuant to specified statutory provisions. 
 

CA AB 560 
(Bennett (D)) 
 
 

Sustainable Groundwater 
Management Act  

 Requires the parties to an adjudication action to submit a 
proposed settlement agreement determining rights to water to the 
State Water Resources Control Board for a nonbinding advisory 
determination as to whether the proposed settlement agreement 
will substantially impair the ability of a groundwater 
sustainability agency, the board, or the Department of Water 
Resources to achieve sustainable groundwater management 
before filing the proposed settlement agreement with the court. 
 

08/15/2024: In SENATE Committee 
on APPROPRIATIONS:  Held in 
committee. 

CA AB 573 
(Garcia E (D)) 
 
 

Organic Waste: Meeting 
Recovered Organic Waste 
Product  

 Provides that existing law requires the State Air Resources Board 
to approve and begin implementing a comprehensive short-lived 
climate pollutant strategy to achieve a certain reduction in 
statewide emissions of methane. Requires the Department of 
Resources Recycling and Recovery to allow a local jurisdiction, 
in procuring recovered organic waste products to meet 
procurement requirements, to use California-derived recovered 
organic waste that the local jurisdiction sends for processing 
outside of the State. 
 

09/01/2023: In SENATE Committee 
on APPROPRIATIONS:  Held in 
committee. 

CA AB 593 
(Haney (D)) 
 
 

Carbon Emission Reduction 
Strategy: Building Sector  

 Requires the State Energy Resources Conservation and 
Development Commission to adopt a strategy, with milestones, to 
reduce emissions of greenhouse gases for the building sector. 
Requires the commission, in developing the strategy, to consult 
and collaborate with certain entities, to hold at least a specified 
number of public workshops, and to convene stakeholder 
sessions. 
 

08/15/2024: In SENATE Committee 
on APPROPRIATIONS:  Held in 
committee. 

CA AB 609 
(Papan (D)) 
 
 

Office of Wildfire 
Technology Research and 
Development  

 Requires the Office of Wildfire Technology Research and 
Development to submit a report to the Legislature that assesses 
the feasibility of the Department of Forestry and Fire Protection 
and the Office of Emergency Services, working with the National 

09/01/2023: In SENATE Committee 
on APPROPRIATIONS:  Held in 
committee. 



IRWD 2024 LEGISLATIVE MATRIX  
Updated: September 19, 2024 

 
Bill No. 
Author 

Title IRWD 
Position 

Summary/Effects Status 

 

A-5 

Interagency Aviation Committee and the International Airtanker 
Board, to conduct an evaluation of innovative new aerial 
firefighting technologies and whether any new technologies exist 
that might meet CAL FIRE standards of water and retardant 
delivery systems. 
 

CA AB 749 
(Irwin (D)) 
 
 

State Agencies: Information 
Security: Uniform Standards  

 Requires every State agency, as defined and subject to specified 
exceptions, to implement Zero Trust architecture for all data, 
hardware, software, internal systems, and essential third-party 
software, including for on-premises, cloud, and hybrid 
environments, to achieve prescribed levels of maturity based on 
the Cybersecurity and Infrastructure Security Agency (CISA) 
Maturity Model by specified dates. 
 

09/01/2023: In SENATE Committee 
on APPROPRIATIONS:  Held in 
committee. 

CA AB 754 
(Papan (D)) 
 
 

Water Management 
Planning: Water Shortages  

 Relates to the Urban Water Management Planning Act. Requires 
a water shortage contingency plan to include, if, based on a 
description and quantification of each source of water supply, a 
single reservoir constitutes at least a specified percent of the total 
water supply, an identification of the dam and description of 
existing reservoir management operations, and, if the reservoir is 
owned and operated by the urban water supplier, a description of 
operational practices and approaches. 
 

09/01/2023: In SENATE Committee 
on APPROPRIATIONS:  Held in 
committee. 

CA AB 805 
(Arambula (D)) 
 
 

Sewer Service: 
Disadvantaged 
Communities  

 Authorizes the state board, until a specified date, and after it 
makes a specified finding or findings by resolution, to require a 
designated sewer system to contract with an administrator 
designated or approved by the state board for administrative, 
technical, operational, legal, or managerial services to assist a 
designated sewer system with the delivery of adequate sewer 
service. 
 

09/05/2024: *****To GOVERNOR. 

CA AB 817 
(Pacheco (D)) 
 

Open Meetings: 
Teleconferencing: 
Subsidiary Body  

 Authorizes a subsidiary body to use certain alternative 
teleconferencing provisions. Requires at least one staff member of 
the local agency to be present at a designated primary physical 

06/05/2024: In SENATE Committee 
on LOCAL GOVERNMENT:  
Reconsideration granted. 



IRWD 2024 LEGISLATIVE MATRIX  
Updated: September 19, 2024 

 
Bill No. 
Author 

Title IRWD 
Position 

Summary/Effects Status 

 

A-6 

 meeting location during the meeting. Requires the local agency to 
post the agenda at the primary physical meeting location. 
Requires the members of the subsidiary body to visibly appear on 
camera during the open portion of a meeting that is publicly 
accessible via the internet or other online platform. 
 

CA AB 824 
(Calderon (D)) 
 
 

Highway Greening: 
Statewide Strategic Plan  

 Enacts the Highway Greening Act, which would require the 
Department of Transportation to complete a statewide strategic 
plan to work to achieve at least a specified percent increase of 
green highways in urban areas, disadvantaged communities, and 
low-income communities by specified year. Requires the 
department to submit the plan to the Legislature and specified 
committees of the Legislature on or before specified date. 
 

09/01/2023: In SENATE Committee 
on APPROPRIATIONS:  Held in 
committee. 

CA AB 828 
(Connolly (D)) 
 
 

Sustainable Groundwater 
Management: Managed 
Wetlands  

 Provides that existing law authorizes a groundwater sustainability 
agency that adopts a groundwater sustainability plan to impose 
fees on the extraction of groundwater from the basin to fund costs 
of groundwater management. Prohibits an agency from imposing 
a fee upon a small community water system serving a 
disadvantaged community or imposing a fee for managed wetland 
purposes, provided the water use for each user does not increase 
above the extractor's average annual extraction from 2015 to 
2020. 
 

09/10/2024: *****To GOVERNOR. 

CA AB 830 
(Soria (D)) 
 
 

Lake and Streambed 
Alteration Agreements: 
Exemptions  

 Provides that existing law prohibits a person, a state or local 
governmental agency, or a public utility from substantially 
diverting or obstructing the natural flow of, or substantially 
changing or using any material from the bed, channel, or bank of, 
any river, stream, or lake. Exempts the temporary operation of 
existing infrastructure or temporary pumps being used to divert 
flood stage flows or near-flood stage flows to groundwater 
recharge as long as certain conditions are met. 
 

09/01/2023: In SENATE Committee 
on APPROPRIATIONS:  Held in 
committee. 



IRWD 2024 LEGISLATIVE MATRIX  
Updated: September 19, 2024 

 
Bill No. 
Author 

Title IRWD 
Position 

Summary/Effects Status 

 

A-7 

CA AB 841 
(Berman (D)) 
 
 

State Energy Resources 
Conservation and 
Development  

 Requires the State Energy Resources Conservation and 
Development Commission to submit to the Legislature an 
Industrial Heat Electrification Roadmap. Authorizes the 
commission to consult with the State Air Resources Board to 
include in the roadmap an estimate of the reductions in emissions 
of greenhouse gases and criteria air pollutants, and commensurate 
health benefits, from electrifying the identified industrial 
subsectors. 
 

09/01/2023: In SENATE Committee 
on APPROPRIATIONS:  Held in 
committee. 

CA AB 868 
(Wilson (D)) 
 
 

Political Reform Act of 
1974: Digital Political Ads  

 Enacts the Digital Advertisement Transparency and 
Accountability Act, or DATA Act. Requires a committee that 
pays for a digital advertisement to appear on an online platform to 
submit to the Fair Political Practices Commission a copy of the 
digital advertisement and specified information. Requires an 
online platform to transmit to the commission specified 
information regarding digital advertisements, and to retain the 
information for no less than a specified number of years for 
specified purposes. 
 

08/15/2024: In SENATE Committee 
on APPROPRIATIONS:  Held in 
committee. 

CA AB 914 
(Friedman (D)) 
 
 

California Environmental 
Quality Act: Review Time  

 Requires a State agency acting as the lead agency, until specified 
date, to complete its environmental review for an electrical 
infrastructure project and to approve or deny the project within a 
specified number of years of the submission and acceptance of a 
complete application for the issuance of a lease, permit, license, 
certificate, or other entitlement for use for electrical infrastructure 
to the State agency. 
 

09/01/2023: In SENATE Committee 
on APPROPRIATIONS:  Held in 
committee. 

CA AB 923 
(Bauer-Kahan 
(D)) 
 
 

Flood Plain Restoration 
Projects: Central Valley: 
Study  

 Requires the Central Valley Flood Protection Board, in 
coordination with the Department of Water Resources, to identify 
priority flood plain restoration or floodway expansion projects 
where increased flows due to climate change are likely to 
overwhelm existing flood protection infrastructure. Requires the 
department and the board to conduct broad stakeholder outreach 

09/01/2023: In SENATE Committee 
on APPROPRIATIONS:  Held in 
committee. 



IRWD 2024 LEGISLATIVE MATRIX  
Updated: September 19, 2024 

 
Bill No. 
Author 

Title IRWD 
Position 

Summary/Effects Status 

 

A-8 

to identify priority projects and would require that those projects 
provide at least a specified number of public benefits. 
 

CA AB 930 
(Friedman (D)) 
 
 

Local Government: 
Infrastructure Financing 
Districts  

 Authorizes the legislative bodies of 2 or more specified local 
governments to form a Reinvestment in Infrastructure for a 
Sustainable and Equitable California district. Requires at least one 
of the governments to be a city or county within the proposed 
boundaries. Authorizes a local government that lacks the 
authority to levy a property tax to join a RISE district. Prohibits a 
district from including territory in a participating local 
government unless the city or county is also a participating 
government. 
 

08/15/2024: In SENATE Committee 
on APPROPRIATIONS:  Held in 
committee. 

CA AB 1024 
(Aguiar-Curry 
(D)) 
 
 

Water Rights: Small 
Irrigation Use  

 Exempts an entity from the requirement to enter into a lake or 
streambed alteration agreement with the Department of Fish and 
Wildlife if the entity submits a State Water Resources Control 
Board-approved registration or renewed or amended registration 
for water use in specified counties to the department and the 
department determines certain requirements are met. Limits the 
number of these registrations to a specified amount for the first 
year of implementation. 
 

08/15/2024: In SENATE Committee 
on APPROPRIATIONS:  Held in 
committee. 

CA AB 1170 
(Valencia (D)) 
 
 

Political Reform Act of 
1974: Filing Requirements  

 Provides that the Political Reform Act of 1974 requires that 
public officials file periodic statements of economic interests. 
Requires public officials and candidates for whom the Fair 
Political Practices Commission is the filing officer to file their 
original statements of economic interests electronically with the 
Commission. Requires the Commission to redact the signature, 
personal address, and telephone number of a filer, and related 
information about a filer's business, tenant, or family member. 
 

09/06/2024: Chaptered by Secretary of 
State.  Chapter No. 2024-211 

CA AB 1205 
(Bauer-Kahan 
(D)) 

California State University 
Students California Promise  

 Provides that existing law establishes the California Promise, 
which requires at least 20 campuses of the California State 
University to establish a California Promise program by which 

09/12/2024: *****To GOVERNOR. 



IRWD 2024 LEGISLATIVE MATRIX  
Updated: September 19, 2024 

 
Bill No. 
Author 

Title IRWD 
Position 

Summary/Effects Status 

 

A-9 

 
 

the campus enters into a pledge with a qualifying transfer student 
to support the student in earning a baccalaureate degree within 2 
academic years of the student's first year of enrollment to the 
campus. Renames the California Promise Program the Finish in 
Four and Through in Two Program. 
 

CA AB 1246 
(Nguyen (D)) 
 
 

Public Employees' 
Retirement  

 Relates to the Public Employees' Retirement Law and the Public 
Employees' Retirement System. Permits, commencing on the 
specified date, a member who elected to receive a specified 
optional settlement at retirement, if the member's former spouse 
was named as beneficiary and a legal judgment awards only a 
portion of the interest in the retirement system to the retired 
member, to elect to add their new spouse as the beneficiary of the 
member's interest, subject to meeting certain conditions. 
 

09/05/2024: *****To GOVERNOR. 

CA AB 1272 
(Wood (D)) 
 
 

State Water Resources 
Control Board: Drought 
Planning  

 Requires the State Water Resources Control Board, in 
consultation with the Department of Fish and Wildlife, to adopt 
principles and guidelines for diversion and use of water in coastal 
watersheds during times of water shortage for drought 
preparedness and climate resiliency. Authorizes the state board to 
issue a cease and desist order when a diversion or use violates or 
threatens to violate an applicable principle or guideline adopted 
by the state board for the diversion and use of water. 
 

07/18/2024: Vetoed by GOVERNOR. 

CA AB 1284 
(Ramos (D)) 
 
 

Tribal Ancestral Lands and 
Waters: Cogovernance  

 Encourages the Natural Resources Agency, and its departments, 
boards, conservancies, and commissions, to enter into 
cogovernance and comanagement agreements with federally 
recognized tribes. Authorizes the Secretary of the Natural 
Resources Agency or a delegate to enter into cogovernance and 
comanagement agreements with federally recognized tribes for 
the purposes of shared responsibility, decisionmaking, and 
partnership in resource management and conservation within a 
tribe's ancestral lands and waters. 
 

09/05/2024: *****To GOVERNOR. 



IRWD 2024 LEGISLATIVE MATRIX  
Updated: September 19, 2024 

 
Bill No. 
Author 

Title IRWD 
Position 

Summary/Effects Status 

 

A-10 

CA AB 1297 
(Quirk-Silva 
(D)) 
 
 

Public Restrooms   Requires each local government to complete an inventory of 
public restrooms owned and maintained by the local government 
that are available to the general population in its jurisdiction. 
Requires governments to report their findings to the State 
Department of Public Health, which would be required to compile 
the information and to report the availability of public restrooms 
to the Legislature. Requires the Legislature to consider the report 
when evaluating the public's access to reliable public restrooms. 
 

09/01/2023: In SENATE Committee 
on APPROPRIATIONS:  Held in 
committee. 

CA AB 1348 
(Grayson (D)) 
 
 

State Government: 
Controller: Claims Audits  

 Relates to the Government Claims Act, which requires the 
presentation of all claims for money or damages against local 
public entities and the State. Authorizes the Controller to conduct 
financial and compliance audits as the Controller's office deems 
as necessary for purposes of ensuring that any expenditures are 
expended in a manner consistent with the law and the voters' 
intent. Requires the Controller to provide a report with specified 
information from these audits to the Legislature. 
 

09/01/2023: In SENATE Committee 
on APPROPRIATIONS:  Held in 
committee. 

CA AB 1465 
(Wicks (D)) 
 
 

Nonvehicular Air Pollution: 
Civil Penalties  

 Provides that existing law establishes maximum civil penalties for 
a person who violates air pollution laws from nonvehicular 
sources. Allows specified civil penalties to be multiplied by a 
factor of not more than a specified number if the violation results 
from an emission from a stationary source required by federal law 
to be included in an operating permit program established 
pursuant to specified provisions of the federal Clean Air Act, and 
the emission contains or includes one or more air contaminants. 
 

09/12/2024: *****To GOVERNOR. 

CA AB 1546 
(Gabriel (D)) 
 
 

CA Consumer Privacy Act 
of 2018: Statute of 
Limitations  

 Requires an action by the Attorney General to enforce the 
California Consumer Privacy Act to be commenced within a 
specified number of years after the cause of action accrued. 
 

09/01/2023: In SENATE Committee 
on APPROPRIATIONS:  Held in 
committee. 

CA AB 1567 
(Garcia E (D)) 
 

Safe Drinking Water, 
Wildfire Prevention, 
Drought Prep  

 Enacts the Safe Drinking Water, Wildfire Prevention, Drought 
Preparation, Flood Protection, Extreme Heat Mitigation, Clean 
Energy, and Workforce Development Bond Act of 2024, which, if 

05/22/2024: Re-referred to SENATE 
Committee on NATURAL 
RESOURCES AND WATER. 



IRWD 2024 LEGISLATIVE MATRIX  
Updated: September 19, 2024 

 
Bill No. 
Author 

Title IRWD 
Position 

Summary/Effects Status 

 

A-11 

 approved by the voters, would authorize the issuance of bonds in 
a specified amount to finance projects for safe drinking water, 
wildfire prevention, drought preparation, flood protection, 
extreme heat mitigation, clean energy, and workforce 
development programs. 
 

CA AB 1573 
(Friedman (D)) 
 
 

Water Conservation: 
Landscape Design: Model 
Ordinance  

 Provides that the Water Conservation in Landscaping Act 
provides for a Model Water Efficient Landscape Ordinance that is 
adopted and updated at least every specified number of years. 
Requires the model ordinance, at the next update initiated after 
specified date, to require that all new or renovated nonresidential 
areas install in the project footprint not less than a specified 
percent of California native plants, and to prohibit the inclusion of 
nonfunctional turf in nonresidential landscape projects. 
 

09/07/2023: In SENATE.  From third 
reading.  To Inactive File. 

CA AB 1581 
(Kalra (D)) 
 
 

Conservation: Restoration 
Management Permit Act  

 Provides for the Restoration Management Permit Act. Authorizes 
the Department of Fish and Wildlife to issue a restoration 
management permit to authorize the take, possession, import, or 
export of any species of fish, wildlife, or plants in association 
with a management or propagation project that has the primary 
purpose of restoring native fish, wildlife, plants or their habitat. 
Establishes the Restoration Management Permit Program Fund. 
Relates to the California State Safe Harbor Agreement Program 
Act. 
 

09/11/2024: *****To GOVERNOR. 

CA AB 1688 
(Sanchez (R)) 
 
 

Voter Registration: 
Cancellation: Deceased 
Persons  

 Provides that existing law requires the Secretary of State to adopt 
regulations to facilitate the availability of death statistics from the 
State Department of Health Services for use by the Secretary of 
State and county elections officials to cancel affidavits of 
registration of deceased persons. Authorizes the Secretary of State 
to also seek an agreement with the federal Social Security 
Administration to facilitate the availability of death statistics from 
that agency. 
 

09/01/2023: In SENATE Committee 
on APPROPRIATIONS:  Held in 
committee. 



IRWD 2024 LEGISLATIVE MATRIX  
Updated: September 19, 2024 

 
Bill No. 
Author 

Title IRWD 
Position 

Summary/Effects Status 

 

A-12 

CA AB 1757 
(Kalra (D)) 
 
 

Accessibility: Internet 
Websites  

 Provides that existing law imposes liability upon a person, firm, 
or corporation that denies or interferes with the rights of an 
individual with a disability for damages and attorney's fees. 
Prohibits, in a civil action seeking statutory damages under the 
Unruh Civil Rights Act on the basis of a specific accessibility 
barrier on an entity's website that is a violation of the Americans 
with Disabilities Act, the entity from being liable for damages if 
the entity establishes a certain affirmative defense. 
 

08/15/2024: In SENATE Committee 
on APPROPRIATIONS:  Held in 
committee. 

CA AB 1782 
(Ta (R)) 
 
 

Redevelopment: Successor 
Agencies: Low and 
Moderate  

 Provides that existing law provides for the designation of 
successor agencies to wind down the affairs of dissolved 
redevelopment agencies. Provides that existing law requires the 
housing successor to maintain any funds transferred to it with any 
funds generated from housing assets in a separate Low and 
Moderate Income Housing Asset Fund. Increases the amount that 
a housing successor may expend per year on homeless prevention 
and rapid rehousing services, plus any percentage change in the 
cost of living. 
 

07/15/2024: Chaptered by Secretary of 
State.  Chapter No. 2024-085 

CA AB 1784 
(Pellerin (D)) 
 
 

Primary Elections: 
Candidate Withdrawals  

 Permits a candidate for any office other than a statewide office at 
a primary election to withdraw their nomination documents for 
that office during the applicable filing period. Establishes 
requirements for withdrawal, including that the candidate submit 
a statement under penalty of perjury that they are withdrawing 
their nomination documents and understand the withdrawal is 
irrevocable and that the filing fees are nonrefundable. Establishes 
a new crime based upon the statement under penalty of perjury. 
 

08/28/2024: *****To GOVERNOR. 

CA AB 1785 
(Pacheco (D)) 
 
 

California Public Records 
Act  

 Prohibits a State or local agency from publicly posting the home 
address, telephone number, or both the name and assessor parcel 
number associated with the home address of any elected or 
appointed official on the internet without first obtaining the 
written permission of that individual. States the intent of the 
Legislature to enact legislation relating to such provisions to 

09/05/2024: *****To GOVERNOR. 



IRWD 2024 LEGISLATIVE MATRIX  
Updated: September 19, 2024 

 
Bill No. 
Author 

Title IRWD 
Position 

Summary/Effects Status 

 

A-13 

accomplish specified goals. States the necessity to protect the 
personal safety and privacy of public officials and their families. 
 

CA AB 1819 
(Waldron (R)) 
 
 

Enhanced Infrastructure 
Financing Districts  

 Authorizes an enhanced infrastructure financing district that is at 
least partially in high or very high fire hazard severity zones 
designated by the State Fire Marshal to finance heavy equipment 
to be used for vegetation clearance and firebreaks, 
undergrounding of local publicly owned electric utilities against 
wildfires, and equipment used for fire watch, prevention, and 
fighting. Prohibits districts from using certain bond proceeds for 
heavy equipment for specified purposes. 
 

09/11/2024: *****To GOVERNOR. 

CA AB 1820 
(Schiavo (D)) 
 
 

Housing Development 
Projects: Applications: Fees  

 Provides that existing law requires a city or county to deem an 
applicant for a housing development project to have submitted a 
preliminary application upon providing specified information. 
Requires, for development fees imposed by an agency other than 
a city, county, or city and county, the development proponent to 
request the fee schedule from the agency that imposes the fee and 
requires the agency that imposes the fee to provide the fee 
schedule to the development proponent without delay. 

09/03/2024: *****To GOVERNOR. 

CA AB 1827 
(Papan (D)) 
 
 

Local Government: Fees 
and Charges: Water  

Support Provides that the fees or charges for property-related water 
service imposed or increased may include the incrementally 
higher costs of water service due to specified factors, including 
the higher water usage demand of parcels. 
 

08/27/2024: *****To GOVERNOR. 

CA AB 1851 
(Holden (D)) 
 
 

Drinking Water: 
Schoolsites: Lead Testing 
Pilot Program  

 Requires the Superintendent of Public Instruction to establish a 
pilot program to test for and remediate lead contamination in 
drinking water at participating local educational agency facilities 
with plumbing that was installed before the specified date. 
Provides that if sampling results show lead levels in excess of a 
specified number of parts per billion in water at any potable water 
system outlet, a participating an LEA is required to, among other 
things, notify the parents and guardians of pupils. 
 

08/15/2024: In SENATE Committee 
on APPROPRIATIONS:  Held in 
committee. 



IRWD 2024 LEGISLATIVE MATRIX  
Updated: September 19, 2024 

 
Bill No. 
Author 

Title IRWD 
Position 

Summary/Effects Status 

 

A-14 

CA AB 1854 
(Schiavo (D)) 
 
 

Service Member Protections   Provides that existing law authorizes a member of the U.S. Army 
Reserve or the National Guard who is called to active duty to 
defer payments on certain obligations while serving on active 
duty. Provides that existing law requires the reservist or their 
designee to deliver a written request for the deferral to the obligor 
in order to receive a deferral. Requires a request for deferral to be 
submitted not later than a specified number of days following the 
period of active duty on which the deferral is based. 
 

07/18/2024: Chaptered by Secretary of 
State.  Chapter No. 2024-144 

CA AB 1868 
(Friedman (D)) 
 
 

Property Taxation: 
Assessments: Affordable 
Housing  

 Provides that existing law requires the county assessor to 
consider, when valuing real property for tax, the effect of 
enforceable restrictions, including a contract with a nonprofit that 
meets certain requirements, including that the nonprofit received 
a welfare exemption for properties to be sold to low-income 
families in a special no-interest loan program, and that the 
contract includes a deed of trust. Establishes a rebuttable 
presumption that an assessor shall not include the value of such 
deed. 

09/11/2024: *****To GOVERNOR. 

CA AB 1879 
(Gipson (D)) 
 
 

Property Taxation: Filing   Provides that existing law requires a person owning taxable 
personal property to file annually a signed property statement 
declared to be true under the penalty of perjury with the assessor. 
Provides that existing law authorizes a property statement to be 
filed with the assessor through the U.S. mail, properly addressed 
with postage prepaid. Authorizes the statement to be filed through 
U.S. mail provided it is mailed in a manner that includes a 
postmark and is properly addressed with postage prepaid. 
 

09/12/2024: Chaptered by Secretary of 
State.  Chapter No. 2024-217 

CA AB 1881 
(Davies (R)) 
 
 

California Coastal 
Commission: Scientific 
Panel  

 Provides that the California Coastal Act requires the California 
Coastal Commission, if it has sufficient resources, to establish 
one or more scientific panels to review technical documents and 
reports. Includes persons with expertise and training in the topic 
of coastal erosion as part of the composition of the panel. 
Encourages the commission to use innovative techniques to 
increase effective communication between the commission and 

07/15/2024: Chaptered by Secretary of 
State.  Chapter No. 2024-088 



IRWD 2024 LEGISLATIVE MATRIX  
Updated: September 19, 2024 

 
Bill No. 
Author 

Title IRWD 
Position 

Summary/Effects Status 

 

A-15 

the scientific community, including the use of existing grant 
programs. 
 

CA AB 1889 
(Friedman (D)) 
 
 

Conservation Element: 
Wildlife and Habitat 
Connectivity  

 Provides that the Planning and Zoning Law requires the 
legislative body of a city or county to adopt a comprehensive 
general plan that includes various elements, including 
conservation. Requires the conservation element to consider the 
effect of development within the jurisdiction on the movement of 
wildlife and habitat connectivity. Authorizes a city or county to 
incorporate by reference into its general plan an existing plan, 
including a certified local coastal plan, that meets certain 
requirements. 
 

09/10/2024: *****To GOVERNOR. 

CA AB 1890 
(Patterson J 
(R)) 
 
 

Public Works: Prevailing 
Wage  

 Provides that existing law requires an entity awarding a public 
works contract to provide notice to the Department of Industrial 
Relations. Requires the awarding body to provide notice, within a 
certain number of days, if there is a change in the identity of a 
contractor or subcontractor performing the project or if the total 
amount of the contract change exceeds specified thresholds. 
Exempts projects of awarding bodies operating approved labor 
compliance programs covered by valid project labor agreements. 
 

08/28/2024: *****To GOVERNOR. 

CA AB 1893 
(Wicks (D)) 
 
 

Housing Accountability 
Act: Housing Disapprovals  

 Provides that the Housing Accountability Act allows a local 
agency to disapprove a housing development project that is 
inconsistent with the jurisdiction's zoning ordinances and general 
plan land use designation. Revises the definition of disapprove the 
housing development project. Prescribes requirements that apply 
to a housing development project that is a builder's remedy 
project, including that a builder's remedy project is deemed to be 
in compliance with specified residential density standards. 
 

09/19/2024: Signed by GOVERNOR. 

CA AB 1921 
(Papan (D)) 
 

Energy: Renewable 
Electrical Generation 
Facilities  

 Revises the definition of renewable electrical generation facility 
to include a facility that uses fuel cells or linear generators that 
use specified fuels. Imposes a state-mandated local program. 

08/27/2024: *****To GOVERNOR. 



IRWD 2024 LEGISLATIVE MATRIX  
Updated: September 19, 2024 

 
Bill No. 
Author 

Title IRWD 
Position 

Summary/Effects Status 

 

A-16 

  
CA AB 1976 
(Haney (D)) 
 
 

Occupational Safety and 
Health Standards: First Aid  

 Requires the Division of Occupational Safety and Health to 
submit a draft rulemaking proposal to revise specified regulations 
on first aid materials and emergency medical services to require 
first aid materials in a workplace to include naloxone 
hydrochloride or another opioid antagonist. Requires the division, 
in drafting the rulemaking proposal, to consider, and provide 
guidance to employers on, proper storage of the opioid antagonist 
in accordance with the manufacturer's instructions. 
 

09/10/2024: *****To GOVERNOR. 

CA AB 2001 
(Gallagher (R)) 
 
 

Political Reform Act of 
1974  

 Provides that existing law requires a local government agency to 
post a copy of any statement, report, or other document required 
to be filed with the agency under the Political Reform Act of 
1974, within 72 hours of receiving the filing in paper format. 
Requires a local government agency that receives a filing that was 
required to be filed with a different agency or person, and not the 
agency that received the filing, to notify the filer of the error. 
 

07/15/2024: Chaptered by Secretary of 
State.  Chapter No. 2024-097 

CA AB 2037 
(Papan (D)) 
 
 

Weights and Measures: 
Electric Vehicle Chargers  

 Authorizes, beginning on the specified date, a county sealer to test 
and verify as correct any electric vehicle charger operated by a 
public agency that is located in the county. Requires a county 
sealer, upon testing and finding that such a charger is incorrect, to 
cause it to be marked out of order and requires the charger to be 
repaired or corrected. Exempts a charger from testing and 
verification by a sealer if it is owned by a local publicly owned 
electric utility, under certain conditions. 
 

09/05/2024: *****To GOVERNOR. 

CA AB 2041 
(Bonta M (D)) 
 
 

Political Reform Act of 
1974: Campaign Funds: 
Security  

 Authorizes a candidate or elected officer to use campaign funds to 
pay or reimburse the State for the reasonable costs of installing 
and monitoring a home or office electronic security system. 
Permits a specified maximum of campaign funds to be expended 
for these purposes by a candidate or elected officer during their 
lifetime. Requires a candidate or elected officer to submit a form 

09/10/2024: *****To GOVERNOR. 



IRWD 2024 LEGISLATIVE MATRIX  
Updated: September 19, 2024 

 
Bill No. 
Author 

Title IRWD 
Position 

Summary/Effects Status 

 

A-17 

to the Fair Political Practices Commission that documents the 
threat or potential threat that necessitated the expenditure. 
 

CA AB 2060 
(Soria (D)) 
 
 

Lake and Streambed 
Alteration Agreements: 
Exemptions  

 Provides that existing law prohibits a person, government agency, 
or a public utility from substantially diverting or obstructing the 
natural flow of any river, stream, or lake unless prescribed 
requirements are met. Exempts from these provisions the 
temporary operation of existing infrastructure or temporary 
pumps being used to divert water to groundwater recharge as long 
as certain conditions are met, including, among other things, the 
implementation of appropriate species protection measures. 
 

08/30/2024: In SENATE.  From 
Special Consent Calendar.  To Inactive 
File. 

CA AB 2091 
(Grayson (D)) 
 
 

California Environmental 
Quality Act: Exemption  

 Provides that the California Environmental Quality Act requires a 
lead agency to prepare and certify the completion of an 
environmental impact report on certain projects. Exempts a 
change in use approved by an agency that is a park district or the 
Great Redwood Trail Agency to allow public access to 
preexisting roads, trails, pathways, disturbed areas for parking, 
and rail lines converted into the Great Redwood Trail, in areas 
used exclusively for nonmotorized recreation, under certain 
conditions. 
 

09/11/2024: *****To GOVERNOR. 

CA AB 2095 
(Maienschein 
(D)) 
 
 

Publication: Newspapers of 
General Circulation  

 Requires any public notice that is legally required to be published 
in a newspaper of general circulation to be published in the 
newspaper's print publication, website or electronic newspaper, 
and on the statewide website maintained as a repository for 
notices. Prohibits a newspaper or the statewide website from 
charging certain fees. Exempts a public notice that is published in 
a newspaper of general circulation that has a specified number or 
fewer employees from such requirements. 
 

09/12/2024: *****To GOVERNOR. 

CA AB 2123 
(Papan (D)) 
 

Disability Compensation: 
Paid Family Leave  

 Makes that authorization and related provisions inapplicable to 
any disability commencing on or after specified date. Provides as 
a condition of an employee's initial receipt of family temporary 

09/03/2024: *****To GOVERNOR. 



IRWD 2024 LEGISLATIVE MATRIX  
Updated: September 19, 2024 

 
Bill No. 
Author 

Title IRWD 
Position 

Summary/Effects Status 

 

A-18 

 disability insurance benefits during any 12-month period in which 
an employee is eligible for these benefits, an employer may 
require an employee to take up to two weeks of earned but unused 
vacation leave prior to the employee's initial receipt of these 
benefits. 
 

CA AB 2135 
(Schiavo (D)) 
 
 

Public Works Contracts: 
Wage and Penalty 
Assessment  

 Provides that existing law requires the Labor Commissioner to 
issue a civil wage and penalty assessment to a contractor or 
subcontractor if there has been a violation of the laws regulating 
public works contracts, including the payment of prevailing 
wages. Provides that existing law requires the assessment to be 
served not later than 18 months after the filing of a valid notice of 
completion. Extends the time period. Authorizes an extension for 
good cause, including ongoing investigation and assessment. 

08/15/2024: In SENATE Committee 
on APPROPRIATIONS:  Held in 
committee. 

CA AB 2149 
(Connolly (D)) 
 
 

Gates: Standards: Inspection   Relates to electrified security fences. Requires a regulated gate to 
meet certain standards. Requires each building department to 
update its code requirements to ensure that any newly installed 
regulated gate in its jurisdiction meets those standards. Authorizes 
a district attorney, county counsel, or city attorney to file a 
complaint for injunctive relief, or seek a civil penalty, against an 
owner of a regulated gate for a violation of these provisions. 
 

08/15/2024: In SENATE Committee 
on APPROPRIATIONS:  Held in 
committee. 

CA AB 2182 
(Haney (D)) 
 
 

Public Works   Requires the Director of Industrial Relations, if they determine 
during any semiannual period that there has been a change in any 
prevailing rate of per diem wages in a locality, to make that 
change available to the awarding body, with certain exceptions to 
its finality. Requires jobsites to give reasonable access to 
representatives of a joint labor-management committee in order to 
monitor compliance with prevailing wage and apprenticeship 
requirements. Specifies liability for safety guideline violations. 
 

09/11/2024: *****To GOVERNOR. 

CA AB 2196 
(Connolly (D)) 
 

Beaver Restoration   Provides that existing law, with certain exceptions, authorizes any 
owner or tenant of land or property that is being damaged or 
destroyed or is in danger of being damaged or destroyed by 

09/13/2024: *****To GOVERNOR. 



IRWD 2024 LEGISLATIVE MATRIX  
Updated: September 19, 2024 

 
Bill No. 
Author 

Title IRWD 
Position 

Summary/Effects Status 

 

A-19 

 certain animals, including, among others, the beaver, to apply to 
the Department of Fish and Wildlife for a permit to kill the 
animals. Establishes in the department, subject to an appropriation 
by the Legislature for these purposes, a program to promote 
beaver restoration across the State. 
 

CA AB 2213 
(Rubio (D)) 
 
 

Redevelopment: Oversight 
Boards  

 Provides that existing law dissolved redevelopment agencies and 
community development agencies as of specified date, and 
provides for the designation of successor agencies to wind down 
the affairs of the dissolved redevelopment agencies, subject to 
review by oversight boards. Requires, if a successor agency has 
territory located within more than one county board of 
supervisors' district, the county board of supervisors to determine 
which oversight board has jurisdiction over that successor agency. 
 

07/02/2024: Chaptered by Secretary of 
State.  Chapter No. 2024-063 

CA AB 2214 
(Bauer-Kahan 
(D)) 
 
 

Ocean Protection Council: 
Microplastics  

 Requires the Ocean Protection Council to establish and lead an 
interagency coordination group, and requires the council, in 
coordination with the interagency coordination group, to identify 
and recommend to the Legislature, on or before specified date, 
statutory changes that are needed to implement the 
recommendations described in the Statewide Microplastics 
Strategy. Requires the council to adopt a workplan outlining 
which participating agencies within the group will implement the 
recommendations. 
 

09/03/2024: *****To GOVERNOR. 

CA AB 2216 
(Haney (D)) 
 
 

Tenancy: Common 
Household Pets  

 Prohibits a landlord, before the landlord has accepted a 
prospective tenant's application for a dwelling unit, from asking 
the prospective tenant or otherwise inquiring into whether the 
prospective tenant plans to own or otherwise maintain a common 
household pet in the tenant's dwelling unit. Requires a prospective 
tenant, no later than specified hours before entering into a rental 
agreement, to inform the landlord if the prospective tenant plans 
to own or otherwise maintain a common household pet. 
 

06/05/2024: To SENATE Committee 
on JUDICIARY. 



IRWD 2024 LEGISLATIVE MATRIX  
Updated: September 19, 2024 

 
Bill No. 
Author 

Title IRWD 
Position 

Summary/Effects Status 

 

A-20 

CA AB 2232 
(Maienschein 
(D)) 
 
 

Accessibility to emergency 
information and services  

 Specifies that, upon the next update to a city or county's 
emergency plan, whenever a city or county designates any 
number of emergency warming centers, that it also, to the extent 
practicable, designate at least one warming center that can 
accommodate persons with pets. 
 

06/14/2024: Chaptered by Secretary of 
State.  Chapter No. 2024-014 

CA AB 2243 
(Wicks (D)) 
 
 

Housing Development 
Projects: Objective 
Standards  

 Provides that the Middle Class Housing Act provides that a 
housing development project is an allowable use on a parcel 
within a zone where office, retail or parking is a permitted use, if 
it complies with certain requirements. Requires, if the site is a 
regional mall, that the project site not be greater than a specified 
size. Amends the objective standards and affordability and site 
criteria applicable to an affordable or mixed-income housing 
development under the Affordable Housing and High Road Jobs 
Act. 
 

09/19/2024: Signed by GOVERNOR. 

CA AB 2257 
(Wilson (D)) 
 
 

Local Government: 
Property-Related Water and 
Sewer Fees  

Support Relates to requirements with respect to the levying of assessments 
and property-related fees and charges by a local agency. 
Prohibits, if an agency complies with specified procedures, a 
person or entity from bringing a judicial action or proceeding 
alleging noncompliance with such provisions for any new, 
increased, or extended fee or assessment, unless that person or 
entity has timely submitted to the agency a written objection to 
that fee or assessment that specifies the grounds for alleging 
noncompliance. 
 

09/05/2024: *****To GOVERNOR. 

CA AB 2278 
(Carrillo (D)) 
 
 

Rent Increases: Percentage 
Change in the Cost of 
Living  

 Requires the Attorney General to, by the specified date of each 
year, publish the maximum allowable rent increase on its internet 
website for each metropolitan area. 
 

08/15/2024: In SENATE Committee 
on APPROPRIATIONS:  Held in 
committee. 

CA AB 2285 
(Rendon (D)) 
 
 

Natural Resources: 
Equitable Outdoor Access: 
30x30 Goal  

 Relates to the goal to conserve at least 30 percent of State lands 
and waters by 2030. Provides that agencies and the Legislature, 
when distributing resources, shall aspire to recognize the goals 
and benefits of 30x30 and Outdoors for All, and maximize 

08/15/2024: In SENATE Committee 
on APPROPRIATIONS:  Held in 
committee. 



IRWD 2024 LEGISLATIVE MATRIX  
Updated: September 19, 2024 

 
Bill No. 
Author 

Title IRWD 
Position 

Summary/Effects Status 

 

A-21 

investment in historically underserved urban communities. 
Requires funding agencies, including the Wildlife Conservation 
Board, to allow the funding program's authorizing statutes for 
urban nature-based projects on degraded lands to be eligible for 
funds. 
 

CA AB 2302 
(Addis (D)) 
 
 

Open Meetings: Local 
Agencies: Teleconferences  

 Relates to existing law which imposes prescribed restrictions on 
remote participation by a member of a legislative body of a local 
agency under alternative teleconferencing provisions. Revises the 
limits, instead prohibiting such participation for more than a 
specified number of meetings per year, based on how frequently 
the legislative body regularly meets. 
 

08/27/2024: *****To GOVERNOR. 

CA AB 2304 
(Lee (D)) 
 
 

Unlawful Detainer: Case 
Records  

 Provides that existing law requires the court clerk to allow 
specified persons access to case records, including the court file, 
index, and register of actions, filed in unlawful detainer actions 
that are limited civil cases. Provides that existing law exempts 
from these requirements records in a case that seeks to terminate a 
mobilehome park tenancy under certain conditions. Deletes the 
exemption for access to case records for cases that seek to 
terminate a mobilehome tenancy. 
 

08/27/2024: *****To GOVERNOR. 

CA AB 2311 
(Bennett (D)) 
 
 

Greenhouse Gas Reduction 
Fund: Grant Program  

 Expands the grant program promoting food waste prevention to 
provide financial assistance for the recovery of edible food, as 
specified. Specifies that eligible infrastructure projects includes 
the construction or expansion of facilities to help develop, 
implement, or expand edible food waste recovery operations. 
 

08/15/2024: In SENATE Committee 
on APPROPRIATIONS:  Held in 
committee. 

CA AB 2318 
(Papan (D)) 
 
 

State Water Pollution 
Cleanup and Abatement 
Account  

 Requires the State Water Resources Control Board to post on its 
website a report describing the receipts and expenditures of the 
State Water Pollution Cleanup and Abatement Account. Requires 
the board to provide the initial report no later than the specified 
date, and to include data for the specified period in that report. 
Requires the board to separately account within the State Water 

09/05/2024: *****To GOVERNOR. 



IRWD 2024 LEGISLATIVE MATRIX  
Updated: September 19, 2024 

 
Bill No. 
Author 

Title IRWD 
Position 

Summary/Effects Status 

 

A-22 

Pollution Cleanup and Abatement Account all categories of 
receipts, including, among other categories, enforcement fines. 
 

CA AB 2320 
(Irwin (D)) 
 
 

Wildlife Connectivity and 
Climate Adaptation Act  

 Provides for the Wildlife Connectivity and Climate Adaptation 
Act. Makes it the policy of the State to preserve, protect and 
restore wildlife habitats and biodiversity through the acquisition 
and restoration of blocks of habitat and natural lands that are 
connected by wildlife corridors and the infrastructure that 
supports such corridors. Provides that acquire and acquisition for 
certain purposes do not refer to the use of eminent domain for 
certain lands identified by the State as having mineral resources. 
 

08/15/2024: In SENATE Committee 
on APPROPRIATIONS:  Held in 
committee. 

CA AB 2330 
(Holden (D)) 
 
 

Endangered Species: 
Incidental Take: Wildfire  

 Provides that under the California Endangered Species Act, the 
Department of Fish and Wildlife may authorize the take of listed 
species by certain entities. Authorizes a city, county, special 
district, or other local agency to submit to the department a 
wildfire preparedness plan. Requires the plan to include a brief 
description of planned wildfire preparedness activities, the 
approximate dates for the activities, and a description of the 
candidate, endangered, and threatened species within the plan 
area. 
 

09/11/2024: *****To GOVERNOR. 

CA AB 2346 
(Lee (D)) 
 
 

Organic Waste Reduction 
Regulations: Procurement  

 Provides that existing law requires the Department of Resources 
Recycling and Recovery to adopt regulations that achieve 
specified targets for reducing organic waste in landfills, including 
requiring local jurisdictions to annually procure a quantity of 
recovered organic waste products. Authorizes local jurisdictions 
to count towards their procurement targets compost produced and 
procured from specified compost operations and specified 
investments and expenditures related to meeting its procurement 
target. 
 

09/11/2024: *****To GOVERNOR. 

CA AB 2355 
(Carrillo (D)) 

Political Advertisements: 
Artificial Intelligence  

 Requires a committee that creates, originally publishes, or 
originally distributes a qualified political advertisement to include 

09/17/2024: Chaptered by Secretary of 
State.  Chapter No. 2024-260 



IRWD 2024 LEGISLATIVE MATRIX  
Updated: September 19, 2024 

 
Bill No. 
Author 

Title IRWD 
Position 

Summary/Effects Status 

 

A-23 

 
 

in the advertisement a specified disclosure that the advertisement 
was generated or substantially altered using artificial intelligence. 
Prescribes formatting requirements for this disclosure depending 
on the medium of the qualified political advertisement. 
 

CA AB 2388 
(Patterson J 
(R)) 
 
 

Information Practices Act of 
1977: Personal Information  

 Provides that the Information Practices Act prescribes a set of 
requirements, prohibitions and remedies applicable to certain 
State agencies with regard to their collection, storage and 
disclosure of personal information. Revises the definition of 
personal information to mean any information that identifies, 
relates to, describes, or is capable of being associated with a 
particular individual including, among other things, any other 
financial information, medical information or health insurance 
information. 
 

08/15/2024: In SENATE Committee 
on APPROPRIATIONS:  Held in 
committee. 

CA AB 2421 
(Low (D)) 
 
 

Employer-Employee 
Relations: Confidential 
Communication  

 Prohibits local public agency employer, a State employer, a 
judicial employer, a public school employer, a higher education 
employer, or certain districts from questioning any employee or 
employee representative regarding communications made in 
confidence between an employee and a representative. Provides 
that such communications would not be confidential if the 
representative was a witness or party to any of the events forming 
the basis of a potential administrative disciplinary or criminal 
investigation. 
 

08/15/2024: In SENATE Committee 
on APPROPRIATIONS:  Held in 
committee. 

CA AB 2427 
(McCarty (D)) 
 
 

Electric Vehicle Charging 
Stations: Permitting  

 Requires the Governor's Office of Business and Economic 
Development to develop a model permitting checklist, model 
zoning ordinances, and best practices for permit costs and permit 
review timelines to help local governments permit curbside 
charging stations. Requires local agencies to, among other things, 
develop a checklist that includes all of the information required 
for a complete application for a permit or authorization to install 
an electric vehicle charging station within the public right-of-way. 
 

09/09/2024: *****To GOVERNOR. 



IRWD 2024 LEGISLATIVE MATRIX  
Updated: September 19, 2024 

 
Bill No. 
Author 

Title IRWD 
Position 

Summary/Effects Status 

 

A-24 

CA AB 2440 
(Reyes (D)) 
 
 

30x30 Goal: Partnering 
State Agencies  

 Relates to the goal of the State to conserve at least 30% of the 
State's lands and coastal waters by 2030. Provides that existing 
law requires the Natural Resources Agency to prioritize 
partnering with federal agencies to leverage strategic funding and 
resources. Requires the agency to prioritize promoting and 
supporting partnering State agencies and departments that acquire 
State land, including the Department of Parks and Recreation, in 
the acquisition of new land and responsible stewardship of land. 
 

09/05/2024: *****To GOVERNOR. 

CA AB 2453 
(Villapudua 
(D)) 
 
 

Weights and Measures: 
Electric Vehicle Supply 
Equipment  

 Relates to devices used to measure electricity sold as a motor 
vehicle fuel. Provides that existing law authorizes a device to be 
placed in service only by a sealer or a service agency. Prohibits 
requiring electric vehicle supply equipment to be retested or 
placed in service by a service agency or sealer, if the EVSE has 
previously been placed in service by a service agency or sealer, 
before the EVSE is used after receiving maintenance. 
 

09/13/2024: *****To GOVERNOR. 

CA AB 2493 
(Pellerin (D)) 
 
 

Tenancy: Application 
Screening Fee  

 Provides that existing law authorizes a landlord or their agent, 
when they receive a request to rent a residential property, to 
charge an application screening fee to cover the cost of obtaining 
information about the applicant. Authorizes a landlord or their 
agent to charge the fee only if the landlord or their agent, at the 
time the fee is collected, offers an application screening process. 
Provides that the bill's provisions do not prevent a landlord from 
accepting a reusable tenant screening report. 
 

09/03/2024: *****To GOVERNOR. 

CA AB 2494 
(Calderon (D)) 
 
 

Employer Notification: 
Continuation Coverage  

 Requires all employers, whether public or private, to provide a 
notice to employees, following termination or reduction in hours 
stating that the employee may be eligible for coverage under the 
Consolidated Omnibus Budget Reconciliation Act of 1985 and 
that the employee will receive an election notice from the plan 
administrator or group health plan. Authorizes an employer to 
provide the notification via hard copy or via email to an 
employee's email account. 

08/15/2024: In SENATE Committee 
on APPROPRIATIONS:  Held in 
committee. 



IRWD 2024 LEGISLATIVE MATRIX  
Updated: September 19, 2024 

 
Bill No. 
Author 

Title IRWD 
Position 

Summary/Effects Status 

 

A-25 

 
CA AB 2499 
(Schiavo (D)) 
 
 

Unlawful Discrimination 
and Paid Sick Days: Victims  

 Provides that the Healthy Workplaces, Healthy Families Act of 
2014 requires an employer to provide a specified employee who 
is a victim of domestic violence, sexual assault, or stalking with 
paid sick days for specified purposes for which existing law 
prohibits an employer from discharging, or in any manner 
discriminating or retaliating against, the employee. Expands this 
paid sick leave requirement to include the additional purposes. 
Incorporates changes to the Education Code and the Labor Code. 
 

09/09/2024: *****To GOVERNOR. 

CA AB 2501 
(Alvarez (D)) 
 
 

Water Quality Control 
Plans: Donations and Grants  

 Authorizes the State Water Resources Control Board to accept 
moneys from donations, grants, or contributions, or through 
contractual agreements, from public agencies, for the purpose of 
planning, permitting, or providing technical support for projects 
of public benefit within the state board's or regional board's 
jurisdiction. Requires all funds received to be deposited, and 
separately accounted for, in the State Water Pollution Cleanup 
and Abatement Account, for expenditure. 
 

09/09/2024: *****To GOVERNOR. 

CA AB 2515 
(Papan (D)) 
 
 

Menstrual Products: 
Perfluoroalkyl and 
Polyfluoroalkyl  

Support Prohibits the sale of menstrual products with regulated PFAS. 
Requires the Department of Toxic Substances Control to publish 
on its website a list of accepted testing methods for testing for 
regulated PFAS in menstrual products. Requires a manufacturer 
of menstrual products to register with the department, and to 
provide to the department certain information and a registration 
fee. Makes a violation of such provisions punishable by 
administrative or civil penalties. Creates the T.A.M.P.O.N. Act 
Fund. 
 

09/11/2024: *****To GOVERNOR. 

CA AB 2522 
(Carrillo (D)) 
 
 

Air Districts: Governing 
Boards: Compensation  

 Relates to the South Coast Air Quality Management District. 
Provides that existing law that the south coast district is governed 
by a district board and that each board member shall receive 
specified compensation. Raises limits of the compensation each 
member of the board receives to up to a specified amount for each 

09/09/2024: *****To GOVERNOR. 



IRWD 2024 LEGISLATIVE MATRIX  
Updated: September 19, 2024 

 
Bill No. 
Author 

Title IRWD 
Position 

Summary/Effects Status 

 

A-26 

day, but not to exceed a specified amount per month. Authorizes 
the compensation of each member of the Bay District Board to be 
increased by the board at an open regular meeting. 
 

CA AB 2533 
(Carrillo J (D)) 
 
 

Accessory Dwelling Units: 
Junior Accessory Dwelling  

 Prohibits a local agency from denying a permit for an unpermitted 
accessory dwelling unit or junior accessory dwelling unit that was 
constructed before specified date for certain violations, unless the 
local agency makes a finding that correcting the violation is 
necessary to comply with conditions that would otherwise deem a 
building substandard. Prohibits a local agency from requiring a 
homeowner to pay impact fees or connection or capacity charges 
except under specified circumstances. 
 

09/05/2024: *****To GOVERNOR. 

CA AB 2552 
(Friedman (D)) 
 
 

Pesticides: Anticoagulant 
Rodenticides  

 Prohibits the use of a first-generation anticoagulant rodenticide, 
defined as a pesticide product containing the active ingredients 
diphacinone, chlorophacinone, or warfarin, in a wildlife habitat 
area. Prohibits the use of chlorophacinone or warfarin. Makes a 
person who sells or uses a first-generation anticoagulant 
rodenticide or second-generation anticoagulant rodenticide in 
violation liable for a civil penalty. Requires the deposit of 
penalties into the Department of Pesticide Regulation Fund. 
 

09/11/2024: *****To GOVERNOR. 

CA AB 2557 
(Ortega (D)) 
 
 

Local Agencies: Contracts 
for Special Services  

 Requires each board of supervisors that solicits for and enters into 
a specified contract for special services to post that contract and 
any related documents on its website. Requires each contract to 
include the objectives, desirables, and goals of the contract. 
Requires, before beginning a procurement process to contract for 
functions, duties, responsibilities, or services, the board to give 
reasonable written notice to the exclusive employee 
representative of the workforce affected by the contract. 
 

08/15/2024: In SENATE Committee 
on APPROPRIATIONS:  Held in 
committee. 

CA AB 2560 
(Alvarez (D)) 
 

Density Bonus Law: 
California Coastal Act of 
1976  

 Provides that the Density Bonus Law requires a city or county to 
provide a developer that proposes a housing development with a 
density bonus and other incentives if the developer agrees to 

08/15/2024: In SENATE Committee 
on APPROPRIATIONS:  Held in 
committee. 



IRWD 2024 LEGISLATIVE MATRIX  
Updated: September 19, 2024 

 
Bill No. 
Author 

Title IRWD 
Position 

Summary/Effects Status 

 

A-27 

 construct specified percentages of units for lower income 
households. Provides that, in the coastal zone, the Law does not 
relieve a project from the requirement to obtain a coastal 
development permit. Requires any density bonus to be permitted 
in a manner that does not result in adverse impacts to coastal 
resources. 
 

CA AB 2561 
(McKinnor (D)) 
 
 

Local Public Employees: 
Vacant Positions  

 Provides that the Meyers-Milias-Brown Act requires the 
governing body of a public agency to meet and confer regarding 
conditions of employment with representatives of recognized 
employee organizations. Requires a public agency to present the 
status of vacancies and recruitment and retention efforts at a 
public hearing at least once per fiscal year. Entitles the 
organization to present at the hearing. Requires the agency, upon 
request of the organization, to include specified information 
during the hearing. 
 

09/13/2024: *****To GOVERNOR. 

CA AB 2599 
(Assembly 
Environmental 
Safety and 
Toxic Materials 
Committee) 
 
 

Water: Public Beaches: 
Discontinuation  

Support Provides that existing law requires the Department of Public 
Health to establish standards for the sanitation of public beaches, 
including requiring the testing of the waters adjacent to all public 
beaches for microbiological contaminants. Provides that existing 
law authorizes a local health officer to meet the testing 
requirements by utilizing test results from other parties 
conducting contamination testing of the waters under their 
jurisdiction. Requires that test results be made available to the 
public. 
 

09/03/2024: *****To GOVERNOR. 

CA AB 2622 
(Carrillo J (D)) 
 
 

Contractors: Exemptions: 
Work and Advertisements  

 Provides that existing law exempts from the Contractors State 
License Law a work or operation on a project by one or more 
contracts if the aggregate contract price for labor, material and 
other items is under a certain amount. Revises the exemption. 
Increases the maximum aggregate price. Specifies that the 
exemption would apply if the work or operation does not require 
a building permit. Expands the advertising authorization for 

09/14/2024: Chaptered by Secretary of 
State.  Chapter No. 2024-240 



IRWD 2024 LEGISLATIVE MATRIX  
Updated: September 19, 2024 

 
Bill No. 
Author 

Title IRWD 
Position 

Summary/Effects Status 

 

A-28 

unlicensed construction work by increasing the aggregate contract 
price. 
 

CA AB 2631 
(Fong M (D)) 
 
 

Local Agencies: Ethics 
Training  

 Requires the Fair Political Practices Commission, in consultation 
with the Attorney General, to create, maintain, and make 
available to local agency officials an ethics training course. 
 

08/26/2024: Chaptered by Secretary of 
State.  Chapter No. 2024-201 

CA AB 2661 
(Soria (D)) 
 
 

Electricity: Westlands 
Water District  

 Authorizes the Westlands Water District to provide, generate and 
deliver solar photovoltaic electricity and to construct, operate and 
maintain works, facilities, improvements and property necessary 
or convenient for generating and delivering that electricity. 
Requires the district to use the electricity for its own purposes. 
Requires the district to establish a community benefits agreement 
plan for a specified electrical infrastructure development plan and 
related transmission and other electrical projects. 
 

09/13/2024: *****To GOVERNOR. 

CA AB 2663 
(Grayson (D)) 
 
 

Inclusionary Housing: Fees: 
Reports  

 Provides that the Mitigation Fee Act imposes various 
requirements with respect to local agency fees as a condition of 
approval of a development project. Requires an agency that 
collects inclusionary housing in-lieu fees and has a website to 
annually post the amount of those fees collected in the previous 
year and whether those fees are intended to be used for a project. 
Defines inclusionary housing in-lieu fees as fees imposed as an 
alternative means of compliance with an inclusionary housing 
requirement. 
 

09/19/2024: Signed by GOVERNOR. 

CA AB 2684 
(Bryan (D)) 
 
 

Safety Element: Extreme 
Heat  

 Provides that the Planning and Zoning Law requires the 
legislative body of a city or county to adopt a general plan that 
includes a safety element. Requires a city or county, upon the 
next update of one or more of the elements on or after the 
specified date to review and update its safety element as 
necessary to address the hazard of extreme heat. Provides that the 
changes proposed in Section 1 of this bill, amending Section 

09/09/2024: *****To GOVERNOR. 



IRWD 2024 LEGISLATIVE MATRIX  
Updated: September 19, 2024 

 
Bill No. 
Author 

Title IRWD 
Position 

Summary/Effects Status 

 

A-29 

65302 of the Government Code, would not become operative if 
AB 1889 is enacted. 

CA AB 2696 
(Rendon (D)) 
 
 

Labor-Related Liabilities: 
Direct Contractor  

 Authorizes a joint labor-management cooperation committee to 
bring an action in any court of competent jurisdiction against a 
direct contractor to enforce liability for any unpaid wage, fringe 
or other benefit payment or contribution, penalties or liquidated 
damages, and interest owed by the direct contractor on account of 
the performance of the labor on private work. 
 

09/09/2024: *****To GOVERNOR. 

CA AB 2705 
(Ortega (D)) 
 
 

Labor Commissioner   Relates to work performed on a public works project. Provides 
that existing law requires the Labor Commissioner, after 
determining there has been a violation of minimum wage 
requirements, to issue a civil wage and penalty assessment to the 
contractor, subcontractor or both. Provides for a limitations period 
for any action on a payment bond filed by the Commissioner to be 
governed by the same timing requirements for the Commissioner 
to serve an assessment. Incorporates additional changes to the 
Labor Code. 
 

09/14/2024: Chaptered by Secretary of 
State.  Chapter No. 2024-242 

CA AB 2715 
(Boerner (D)) 
 
 

Ralph M. Brown Act: 
Closed Sessions  

 Provides that existing law authorizes a legislative body to hold a 
closed session with specified individuals on, among other things, 
matters posing a threat to the security of essential public services. 
Authorizes a legislative body to hold a closed session with other 
law enforcement or security personnel and to hold a closed 
session on a threat to critical infrastructure controls or critical 
infrastructure information relating to cybersecurity. 
 

09/14/2024: Chaptered by Secretary of 
State.  Chapter No. 2024-243 

CA AB 2716 
(Bryan (D)) 
 
 

Oil and Gas: Low-
Production Wells: Baldwin 
Hills  

 Requires the Geologic Energy Management Division to identify 
all low-production wells that are located in the County of Los 
Angeles in an oil field that is adjacent to a State recreation area or 
State Park and is located within the boundary of the Baldwin Hills 
Conservancy. Establishes the Equitable Community Repair and 
Reinvestment Account. Makes the funds from the account 

09/13/2024: *****To GOVERNOR. 



IRWD 2024 LEGISLATIVE MATRIX  
Updated: September 19, 2024 

 
Bill No. 
Author 

Title IRWD 
Position 

Summary/Effects Status 

 

A-30 

available to the Department of Conservation for allocation to the 
County of Los Angeles for certain projects. 
 

CA AB 2729 
(Patterson J 
(R)) 
 
 

Development Projects: 
Permits and Other 
Entitlements  

 Provides that the Planning and Zoning Law requires each county 
and city to adopt a general plan that includes a housing element. 
Provides that the Permit Streamlining Act requires a public 
agency that is the lead agency for a development project to 
approve or disapprove that project within certain time periods. 
Extends the period for the expiration, effectuation, or utilization 
of a housing entitlement that was issued between specified dates, 
with certain exceptions. Tolls extension during legal challenges. 
 

09/13/2024: *****To GOVERNOR. 

CA AB 2747 
(Haney (D)) 
 
 

Tenancy: Credit Reporting   Requires a landlord of a dwelling unit of residential real property 
to offer any tenant obligated on a lease the option of having the 
tenant's positive rental payment information reported to at least 
one nationwide consumer reporting agency. Authorizes a tenant 
who elects to have information reported to subsequently file a 
written request to stop that reporting. Prohibits a tenant who stops 
positive rental payment information reporting from electing 
reporting again for at least a specified number of months. 
 

09/19/2024: Signed by GOVERNOR. 

CA AB 2754 
(Rendon (D)) 
 
 

Employment Contracts and 
Agreements: Sufficient 
Funds  

 Provides that existing law requires the Division of Labor 
Standards Enforcement to post on its internet web page a list of 
port drayage motor carriers with unsatisfied final court 
judgments, tax assessments, or tax liens relating to, the 
misclassification of employees as independent contractors with 
regard to a port drayage commercial driver. Requires a customer 
that, engages or uses a port drayage motor carrier to share with 
the motor carrier or their successor all civil legal responsibility. 
 

09/09/2024: *****To GOVERNOR. 

CA AB 2801 
(Friedman (D)) 
 
 

Tenancy: Security Deposits   Requires, for tenancies that begin on or after the specified date, a 
landlord to take photographs of the unit immediately before, or at 
the inception of, the tenancy. Requires the landlord to take 
photographs of the unit within a reasonable time after possession 

09/19/2024: Signed by GOVERNOR. 



IRWD 2024 LEGISLATIVE MATRIX  
Updated: September 19, 2024 

 
Bill No. 
Author 

Title IRWD 
Position 

Summary/Effects Status 

 

A-31 

of the unit is returned to the landlord, but prior to any repairs or 
cleanings for which the landlord will make deduction from or 
claim against the security deposit, and within a reasonable time. 
Incorporates changes to the Civil Code. 
 

CA AB 2827 
(Reyes (D)) 
 
 

Invasive Species: 
Prevention  

 Declares that it is a primary goal of the State to prevent the 
introduction, and suppress the spread, of invasive species within 
its borders. Requires, in carrying out this goal, the Department of 
Food and Agriculture, in collaboration with relevant State 
agencies and stakeholders, to develop and implement strategies to 
detect, control, monitor, and eradicate invasive species to protect 
the State's agriculture, environment, and natural resources. 
 

08/15/2024: In SENATE Committee 
on APPROPRIATIONS:  Held in 
committee. 

CA AB 2875 
(Friedman (D)) 
 
 

Wetlands: State Policy   Declares that it is the policy of the State to ensure no net loss and 
long-term gain in the quantity, quality, and permanence of 
wetlands acreage and values in the State. 
 

09/05/2024: *****To GOVERNOR. 

CA AB 2902 
(Wood (D)) 
 
 

Solid Waste: Reduction and 
Recycling  

 Provides that existing law requires the Department of Resources 
Recycling and Recovery to adopt regulations that achieve targets 
for reducing organic waste in landfills, and provides waivers and 
exemptions from collection and procurement requirements for 
rural, low-population, and high-elevation jurisdictions. Extends 
the rural jurisdiction exemption. Incorporates additional changes 
to Section 42652.5 of the Public Resources Code proposed by AB 
2346 and AB 2514 to be operative under certain conditions. 
 

09/06/2024: *****To GOVERNOR. 

CA AB 2951 
(Cervantes (D)) 
 
 

Voter Registration: 
Cancellation  

 Provides that existing law requires a county elections official to 
cancel a person's voter registration in certain circumstances. 
Requires the elections official to provide notice of the intent to 
cancel the person's registration within a specified time period 
before the cancellation if the cancellation was due to mental 
incapacity to vote, a prison commitment, or the voter has failed to 
respond to an address verification. Requires the Secretary of State 
to submit an update on the specified date. 

09/11/2024: *****To GOVERNOR. 



IRWD 2024 LEGISLATIVE MATRIX  
Updated: September 19, 2024 

 
Bill No. 
Author 

Title IRWD 
Position 

Summary/Effects Status 

 

A-32 

 
CA AB 2958 
(Calderon (D)) 
 
 

State Air Resources Board: 
Board Members: 
Compensation  

 Repeals the prohibition on compensation of the members of the 
State Air Resources Board from air districts. Specifies that those 
members are to receive the annual salary provided to other 
members of the state board. Repeals the per diem amount 
provided to elected official members of the state board. 
 

08/15/2024: In SENATE Committee 
on APPROPRIATIONS:  Held in 
committee. 

CA AB 2962 
(Papan (D)) 
 
 

Wholesale Regional Water 
System Security  

 Provides that the Wholesale Regional Water System Security and 
Reliability Act requires the City and County of San Francisco to 
adopt a specified program of capital improvement projects 
designed to restore and improve the bay area regional water 
system. Extends the repeal date of the act and makes technical 
nonsubstantive changes. 
 

08/26/2024: Chaptered by Secretary of 
State.  Chapter No. 2024-203 

CA AB 3007 
(Hoover (R)) 
 
 

California Environmental 
Quality Act: Record  

 Provides that existing law requires project applicants and public 
agencies subject to the California Environmental Quality Act to 
pay a filing fee to the Department of Fish and Wildlife for each 
proposed project, and requires the county clerk of each county 
and the Office of Planning and Research to maintain a record of 
all environmental documents received. Requires the clerk and the 
office to maintain the record electronically. Authorizes the clerk 
and office to maintain the record on paper. 
 

08/19/2024: *****To GOVERNOR. 

CA AB 3012 
(Grayson (D)) 
 
 

Development Fees: Fee 
Schedule Template: Fee 
Estimate  

 Provides that the Permit Streamlining Act requires a city, county, 
or special district that has a website to make available on its 
website certain information, including its current schedule of fees 
and exactions. Requires a city or county that has a website to 
make a fee estimate tool that the public can use to calculate an 
estimate of fees and exactions for a proposed housing 
development project available on its website. Authorizes the city 
or county to choose the format of the fee estimate tool. 

09/11/2024: *****To GOVERNOR. 

CA AB 3013 
(Maienschein 
(D)) 

Courts: Remote Court 
Reporting  

 Authorizes the Superior Courts of the Counties of Alameda, 
Contra Costa, Los Angeles, Mendocino, Monterey, Orange, San 
Bernardino, San Diego, San Joaquin, San Mateo, Santa Clara, 

09/14/2024: Chaptered by Secretary of 
State.  Chapter No. 2024-250 



IRWD 2024 LEGISLATIVE MATRIX  
Updated: September 19, 2024 

 
Bill No. 
Author 

Title IRWD 
Position 

Summary/Effects Status 

 

A-33 

 
 

Tulare, and Ventura to conduct pilot projects to study the 
potential use of remote court reporting to make the verbatim 
record of certain court proceedings. Prohibits court reporters 
participating in the pilot project from being held responsible for 
failures in technology or equipment. 
 

CA AB 3017 
(Hart (D)) 
 
 

State-Funded Assistance 
Grants and Contracts  

 Provides that existing law authorizes the State Air Resources 
Board to provide advance payments to grantees of a grant 
program or project if the board determines certain conditions are 
met, including a condition that the grantee agrees not to provide 
an advance payment to any other entity. Repeals condition 
prohibiting a payment to any other entity. Authorizes a grantee to 
make an advance payment to a subrecipient. Expands definition 
of recipient entity to include a local agency or nongovernmental 
entity. 
 

08/26/2024: *****To GOVERNOR. 

CA AB 3048 
(Lowenthal (D)) 
 
 

California Consumer 
Privacy Act of 2018  

 Prohibits a business from developing or maintaining a browser 
that does not include a setting that enables a consumer to send an 
opt-out preference signal to businesses with which the consumer 
interacts through the browser. Prohibits, a certain number of 
months after the adoption of certain regulations by the State 
Privacy Protection Agency, a business from developing or 
maintaining a mobile operating system that does not include the 
signal to businesses with which the consumer interacts through 
the system. 
 

09/06/2024: *****To GOVERNOR. 

CA AB 3057 
(Wilson (D)) 
 
 

Environmental Quality Act: 
Exemption: Junior 
Accessory  

 Provides that the California Environmental Quality Act exempts 
from its requirements the adoption of an ordinance by a city or 
county to issue a zoning variance or a special use or conditional 
use permit for a dwelling unit to be constructed, or which is 
attached to or detached from, a primary residence on a parcel 
zoned for a single-family residence. Expands exemption to 
include the adoption of an ordinance to provide for the creation of 
junior accessory dwelling units in single-family residential zones. 

08/27/2024: Chaptered by Secretary of 
State.  Chapter No. 2024-210 



IRWD 2024 LEGISLATIVE MATRIX  
Updated: September 19, 2024 

 
Bill No. 
Author 

Title IRWD 
Position 

Summary/Effects Status 

 

A-34 

 
CA AB 3090 
(Maienschein 
(D)) 
 
 

Drinking Water Standards: 
Emergency Notification 
Plan  

 Provides that existing law prohibits a person from operating a 
public water system without an emergency notification plan that 
has been approved by the State Water Resources Control Board. 
Authorizes and encourages a public water system, when updating 
a plan, to notify water users by means of certain communications 
technology, including, but not limited to, text messages, email, or 
social media. Provides that a permit, variance, or exemption may 
not be issued or amended until a plan has been approved. 
 

07/02/2024: Chaptered by Secretary of 
State.  Chapter No. 2024-068 

CA AB 3111 
(Calderon (D)) 
 
 

Distributed Energy 
Resources  

 Requires, as part of an application submitted for a permit to install 
or interconnect a distributed energy resource or an aggregated 
distributed energy resource, or at the time an aggregated 
distributed energy resource program is initiated, the applicant or 
aggregator to provide notice to the Energy Commission that 
contains specified information about the distributed energy 
resources, aggregated distributed energy resources, or aggregation 
program. 
 

08/15/2024: In SENATE Committee 
on APPROPRIATIONS:  Held in 
committee. 

CA AB 3121 
(Petrie-Norris 
(D)) 
 
 

Public Utilities: Incentive 
Programs  

 Provides that existing law requires the Public Utilities 
Commission, as part of the Multifamily Affordable Housing Solar 
Roofs Program, to authorize the award of monetary incentives for 
solar energy systems that are installed on certain multifamily 
residential properties that provide deed-restricted low-income 
housing. Requires the PUC to credit no more than a certain 
portion of the program funds that are unencumbered as of the 
specified date back to residential retail customers of electrical 
corporations. 

08/30/2024: In SENATE Committee 
on ENERGY, UTILITIES AND 
COMMUNICATIONS: Not heard. 

CA AB 3130 
(Quirk-Silva 
(D)) 
 
 

County Board of 
Supervisors: Disclosure  

 Provides that existing law prohibits certain public officials from 
being financially interested in any contract made by them in their 
official capacity. Provides that existing law excepts from such 
conflict-of-interest provisions certain remote interests when 
disclosed to the body or board of which the officer is a member. 
Requires a member of the board of supervisors to disclose a 

09/14/2024: Chaptered by Secretary of 
State.  Chapter No. 2024-251 



IRWD 2024 LEGISLATIVE MATRIX  
Updated: September 19, 2024 

 
Bill No. 
Author 

Title IRWD 
Position 

Summary/Effects Status 

 

A-35 

known family relationship with an officer or employee of a 
nonprofit entity before the board appropriates money to that 
entity. 
 

CA AB 3150 
(Quirk-Silva 
(D)) 
 
 

Fire Safety: Fire Hazard 
Severity Zones: Defensible  

 Revises and recasts the provisions applicable to fire hazard 
severity zones in state responsibility areas and in areas that are 
not state responsibility areas. Requires the State Fire Marshal, no 
less than once every five years, to both identify areas in the state 
as moderate, high, and very high fire hazard severity zones, and 
review and make recommendations relative to these designations. 
 

08/15/2024: In SENATE Committee 
on APPROPRIATIONS:  Held in 
committee. 

CA AB 3177 
(Carrillo (D)) 
 
 

Land Dedications: 
Mitigating Vehicular Traffic 
Impacts  

 Prohibits a local agency from imposing a land dedication 
requirement on a housing development to widen a roadway if the 
requirement is for the purpose of mitigating vehicular traffic 
impacts, achieving an adopted traffic level of service related to 
vehicular traffic, or achieving a desired road width. Authorizes a 
local agency to impose a land dedication requirement on a 
housing development if, among other things, the development is 
not located in a transit priority area. Incorporates additional 
changes. 
 

09/06/2024: *****To GOVERNOR. 

CA AB 3190 
(Haney (D)) 
 
 

Public Works   Provides that existing law requires that not less than the general 
prevailing rate of per diem wages, determined by the Director of 
Industrial Relations, be paid to workers employed on public 
works projects. Provides that existing law defines paid for in 
whole or in part out of public funds. Expands, commencing on the 
specified date, the definition of paid for in whole or in part out of 
public funds to include projects paid using credits against a tax, 
including certain low-income housing tax credits. 
 

09/11/2024: *****To GOVERNOR. 

CA AB 3198 
(Garcia E (D)) 
 
 

Joint Powers Agreements: 
Retail Electric Services  

 Relates to the Joint Exercise of Powers Act. Authorizes a public 
agency with the authority to provide retail electric services to 
enter into a joint powers agreement with one or more public 
agencies with jurisdiction within the Coachella Valley Service 

09/03/2024: *****To GOVERNOR. 



IRWD 2024 LEGISLATIVE MATRIX  
Updated: September 19, 2024 

 
Bill No. 
Author 

Title IRWD 
Position 

Summary/Effects Status 

 

A-36 

Area to jointly exercise the authority to provide retail electric 
services notwithstanding an inability of a party to the joint powers 
agreement to exercise that power independently. 
 

CA AB 3227 
(Alvarez (D)) 
 
 

Stormwater Facilities: 
Routine Maintenance  

 Exempts from the provisions of California Environmental Quality 
Act the routine maintenance of public stormwater facilities that 
are fully concrete or that have a conveyance capacity of less than 
a 100-year storm event. Requires the lead agency to file a notice 
with the State Clearinghouse in the Office of Planning and 
Research and with the county clerk in the county in which the 
project will be located, as provided, thereby imposing a state-
mandated local program. 
 

09/06/2024: *****To GOVERNOR. 

CA AB 3238 
(Garcia E (D)) 
 
 

California Environmental 
Quality Act: Electrical  

 Provides that existing law prohibits an electrical corporation from 
beginning the construction of a line, plant, or system, or 
extensions of those facilities without first having to obtain from 
the Public Utilities Commission a certificate that the present or 
future convenience and necessity require or will require the 
construction. Designates, for electrical infrastructure projects, the 
commission as the lead agency for purposes of the California 
Environmental Quality Act. 
 

08/15/2024: In SENATE Committee 
on APPROPRIATIONS:  Held in 
committee. 

CA AB 3277 
(Assembly 
Local 
Government 
Committee) 
 
 

Local Agency Formation 
Commission: Districts: 
Property  

 Provides that existing law requires proceedings for the formation 
of a district to be conducted as authorized by the principal act of 
the proposed district, and authorizes the local agency formation 
commission in each county to serve as the conducting authority. 
Requires a commission to determine the amount of property tax 
revenue to be exchanged by an affected local agency if the 
proposal includes the formation of a district and the applicant is 
seeking a share of the 1 percent ad valorem property taxes. 
 

07/02/2024: Chaptered by Secretary of 
State.  Chapter No. 2024-070 

CA ACA 2 
(Alanis (R)) 
 

Water Resiliency Act of 
2024  

 Requires the Treasurer to annually transfer an amount equal to a 
specified percent of all State revenues from the General Fund to 
the State Water Resiliency Trust Fund. Appropriates moneys in 

03/06/2024: In ASSEMBLY.  Read 
second time and amended. Re-referred 



IRWD 2024 LEGISLATIVE MATRIX  
Updated: September 19, 2024 

 
Bill No. 
Author 

Title IRWD 
Position 

Summary/Effects Status 

 

A-37 

 the fund to the State Water Commission for its actual costs of 
specified water infrastructure projects. Requires the State Auditor 
to annually conduct a programmatic review and an audit of 
expenditures from the Trust Fund and to report those findings. 
 

to Committee on WATER, PARKS 
AND WILDLIFE. 

CA ACA 16 
(Bryan (D)) 
 
 

Environmental Rights   Amends the California Constitution to declare that the people 
have a right to clean air and water and a healthy environment 
considering the general well-being and other needs of the people. 
Specifies that the principles inherent in these rights shall serve as 
a guide to all branches of government in the performance of their 
official duties and that these rights shall inure to all people in 
equal measure and shall not be construed or applied in a manner 
inconsistent with duly enacted laws. 
 

06/06/2024: In ASSEMBLY.  Read 
third time and amended.  To third 
reading. 

CA SB 74 
(Dodd (D)) 
 
 

Office of Wildfire 
Technology Research and 
Development  

 Provides that existing law, until the specified date, establishes the 
Office of Wildfire Technology Research and Development in 
State government within the Department of Forestry and Fire 
Protection to study, test, and advise regarding procurement of 
emerging technologies and tools in order to more effectively 
prevent and suppress wildfires within the State. Deletes the 
specified sunset date. 
 

08/15/2024: In ASSEMBLY 
Committee on APPROPRIATIONS:  
Held in committee. 

CA SB 231 
(Hurtado (D)) 
 
 

Department of Water 
Resources: Water Supply 
Forecasting  

 Requires the Department of Water Resources to inventory its 
existing drought mitigation and response plans and submit a 
report to the Legislature identifying these plans and their purposes 
by specified date. Requires the report to include a 
recommendation on whether there is a need for a new 
comprehensive, long-term plan for mitigating and responding to 
the effects of drought at the State level. 
 

09/01/2023: In ASSEMBLY 
Committee on APPROPRIATIONS:  
Held in committee. 

CA SB 245 
(Hurtado (D)) 
 
 

California Food Assistance 
Program: Eligibility  

 Provides that under existing law, to become operative on the date 
that the State Department of Social Services notifies the 
Legislature that the Statewide Automated Welfare System has 
been updated, makes an individual 55 or older eligible for 

08/15/2024: In ASSEMBLY 
Committee on APPROPRIATIONS:  
Held in committee. 



IRWD 2024 LEGISLATIVE MATRIX  
Updated: September 19, 2024 

 
Bill No. 
Author 

Title IRWD 
Position 

Summary/Effects Status 

 

A-38 

CalFresh if the individual's immigration status is the sole basis for 
their ineligibility for CalFresh benefits. Makes, commencing on 
specified date, any individual eligible for the program if the 
individual's immigration status is the sole basis for ineligibility. 
 

CA SB 248 
(Newman (D)) 
 
 

Political Reform Act of 
1974: Disclosures  

 Requires a candidate for elective office to file, when the candidate 
files a declaration of candidacy, a form to disclose the candidate's 
prior education and work history, and history of military service, 
if any. Requires the Fair Political Practices Commission to create 
a form for this purpose. Requires the Secretary of State to post on 
its website a copy of completed forms submitted by candidates, 
making such forms available to the public for a specified number 
of years from the date of the election. 
 

09/01/2023: In ASSEMBLY 
Committee on APPROPRIATIONS:  
Held in committee. 

CA SB 251 
(Newman (D)) 
 
 

Candidates' Statements: 
False Statements  

 Provides that existing law prohibits a candidate for nonpartisan 
elective office, or an incumbent in a recall election, to knowingly 
make a false statement of material fact in the candidate's 
statement with the intent to mislead the voters in connection with 
the candidate's campaign for nomination or election to an office. 
Provides that a violation of this prohibition is punishable by a 
fine. Increases the maximum fine amount. 
 

08/30/2024: In ASSEMBLY.  To 
Inactive File. 

CA SB 265 
(Hurtado (D)) 
 
 

Cybersecurity Preparedness: 
Critical Infrastructure  

 Requires the Office of Emergency Services to direct the 
California Cybersecurity Integration Center to prepare, and Cal 
OES to submit to the Legislature, a strategic, multiyear outreach 
plan to assist critical infrastructure sectors, in their efforts to 
improve cybersecurity and an evaluation of options for providing 
grants or alternative forms of funding to, and potential voluntary 
actions that do not require funding and that assist, that sector in 
their efforts to improve cybersecurity preparedness. 
 

08/15/2024: In ASSEMBLY 
Committee on APPROPRIATIONS:  
Held in committee. 

CA SB 299 
(Limon (D)) 
 

Voter Registration: 
California New Motor Voter 
Program  

 Requires the Secretary of State and the Department of Motor 
Vehicles to develop a process for the department to use 
information from the Statewide Voter Registration Database to 

09/10/2024: *****To GOVERNOR. 



IRWD 2024 LEGISLATIVE MATRIX  
Updated: September 19, 2024 

 
Bill No. 
Author 

Title IRWD 
Position 

Summary/Effects Status 

 

A-39 

 determine whether a person who submits a driver's license 
application is registered or preregistered to vote in the State. 
Permits the Secretary, upon a determination that sufficient 
technology infrastructure exists, to promulgate regulations for 
establishing a list of individuals who are eligible to be 
preapproved for registration. 
 

CA SB 308 
(Becker (D)) 
 
 

Net Zero Greenhouse Gas 
Emissions Goal  

 Requires the State Air Resources Board to adopt regulations to 
ensure the State achieves a carbon dioxide removals equivalent to 
at least a specified percent of statewide greenhouse gas emissions 
in the specified year in order to achieve net zero and net negative 
greenhouse gas emissions goals. Requires the Board to only 
approve carbon dioxide removal processes that meet certain 
requirements. Requires the Board to adopt regulations to 
implement the Carbon Capture, Removal, Utilization, and Storage 
Program. 
 

08/15/2024: In ASSEMBLY 
Committee on APPROPRIATIONS:  
Held in committee. 

CA SB 328 
(Dodd (D)) 
 
 

Political Reform Act of 
1974: Contribution Limits  

 Relates to the Political Reform Act of 1974, which prohibits a 
person, other than a small contributor committee or political party 
committee, from making to a candidate for elective state, county, 
or city office, and prohibits those candidates from accepting from 
a person, a contribution totaling more than $3,000 per election. 
Applies those contribution limits to candidates for school district, 
community college district, and other special district elections. 
 

09/01/2023: In ASSEMBLY 
Committee on APPROPRIATIONS:  
Held in committee. 

CA SB 366 
(Caballero (D)) 
 
 

The California Water Plan: 
Long-Term Supply Targets  

Support Provides that existing law requires the Department of Water 
Resources to establish an advisory committee to assist the 
department in updating The California Water Plan. Requires the 
department to expand the membership of the advisory committee 
to include tribes, labor, and environmental justice interests. 
Requires the department to update the interim planning target for 
the specified year. Requires the department to offer regional water 
quality control boards opportunities to provide input in plan 
updates. 

09/09/2024: *****To GOVERNOR. 



IRWD 2024 LEGISLATIVE MATRIX  
Updated: September 19, 2024 

 
Bill No. 
Author 

Title IRWD 
Position 

Summary/Effects Status 

 

A-40 

 
CA SB 393 
(Glazer (D)) 
 
 

Civil Actions: Housing 
Development Projects  

 Provides that existing law provides that in a civil action to 
challenge a housing development project that meets or exceeds 
the requirements for low or moderate-income housing, a 
defendant may seek an order requiring the plaintiff to furnish an 
undertaking as security for costs and damages. Requires a motion 
to be made on the grounds that the action is without merit and that 
the action was brought in bad faith, vexatiously, for delay, or to 
thwart the low or moderate-income nature of the project. 
 

09/19/2024: Signed by GOVERNOR. 

CA SB 399 
(Wahab (D)) 
 
 

Employer Communications: 
Intimidation  

 Prohibits, with certain exceptions, an employer from subjecting, 
or threatening to subject, an employee to discharge, 
discrimination, retaliation or any other adverse action because the 
employee declines to attend an employer-sponsored meeting or 
affirmatively declines to participate in, receive or listen to any 
communications with the employer or its agents or 
representatives, where the purpose is to communicate the 
employer's opinion about religious or political matters. Specifies 
civil penalties. 

09/11/2024: *****To GOVERNOR. 

CA SB 409 
(Newman (D)) 
 
 

Elections: Candidate's 
Statement  

 Provides that existing law authorizes a candidate for statewide 
elective office who accepts the voluntary expenditure limits to 
purchase the space to place a statement in a State voter 
information guide. Requires the Secretary of State to establish, on 
or before specified date, a pilot program that would allow a 
candidate to include a QR code link to a video statement in the 
State voter information guide. 
 

08/15/2024: In ASSEMBLY 
Committee on APPROPRIATIONS:  
Held in committee. 

CA SB 422 
(Portantino (D)) 
 
 

Unemployment 
Compensation: Motion 
Picture Industry  

 Provides that existing unemployment insurance law requires any 
employing unit that is a motion picture payroll services company 
to be treated as an employer of a motion picture production 
worker. Specifies that a loan-out company is the employer of its 
employee-owners or members who are engaged to provide 
services to a motion picture production company or to an allied 
motion picture services company for purposes of remitting 

09/12/2024: *****To GOVERNOR. 



IRWD 2024 LEGISLATIVE MATRIX  
Updated: September 19, 2024 

 
Bill No. 
Author 

Title IRWD 
Position 

Summary/Effects Status 

 

A-41 

employment taxes and obligations. Requires such company to file 
a specified report. 
 

CA SB 504 
(Dodd (D)) 
 
 

Wildfires: Defensible 
Space: Grant Programs  

 Provides that existing law requires the Department of Forestry 
and Fire Protection to establish a local assistance grant program 
for fire prevention and home hardening education activities. 
Provides that existing law describes eligible activities under the 
Local Assistance Grant Program as including development and 
implementation of public education and outreach programs. 
Authorizes those programs to include new technologies and game 
elements to enhance and accelerate the education of property 
owners. 
 

09/10/2024: *****To GOVERNOR. 

CA SB 511 
(Blakespear 
(D)) 
 
 

Greenhouse Gas Emissions 
Inventories  

 Provides that the California Global Warming Solutions Act 
requires the State Air Resources Board to prepare and approve a 
scoping plan for achieving the maximum technologically feasible 
and cost-effective reductions in greenhouse gas emissions and to 
update the scoping plan. Requires the Board to develop, and 
publish on its website, a report on greenhouse gas emissions 
inventories for the specified calendar year for each city, county, 
or city and county that requests inclusion in the report. 
 

09/01/2023: In ASSEMBLY 
Committee on APPROPRIATIONS:  
Held in committee. 

CA SB 518 
(Wilk (R)) 
 
 

Elections: Certification of 
Results  

 Requires the elections official to submit the certified statement of 
the results of the election on the 30th calendar day following the 
election. 
 

06/08/2023: To ASSEMBLY 
Committee on ELECTIONS. 

CA SB 571 
(Allen (D)) 
 
 

Fire Safety: Ingress and 
Egress Route 
Recommendations  

 Requires the Office of Planning and Research to conduct a study 
and prepare a report, including recommendations, that evaluates 
potential improvements to State standards for ingress and egress 
and evacuation routes for development in the event of a natural 
disaster. Requires the office to convene and consult with a 
working group that includes specified voluntary representatives, 
including those from the Office of the State Fire Marshal. 

09/10/2024: *****To GOVERNOR. 



IRWD 2024 LEGISLATIVE MATRIX  
Updated: September 19, 2024 

 
Bill No. 
Author 

Title IRWD 
Position 

Summary/Effects Status 

 

A-42 

Requires the Office of Planning and Research to submit the 
report. 
 

CA SB 597 
(Glazer (D)) 
 
 

Building Standards: 
Rainwater Catchment 
Systems  

 Requires the Department of Housing and Community 
Development to review current building standards and to conduct 
research and develop recommendations regarding standards for 
the installation of rainwater catchment systems for nonpotable 
uses in newly constructed residential dwellings. Authorizes the 
department to propose related standards to the Building Standards 
Commission for consideration. Authorizes the department to 
expend moneys from the Building Standards Administration 
Special Revolving Fund. 
 

09/09/2024: *****To GOVERNOR. 

CA SB 611 
(Menjivar (D)) 
 
 

Residential Rental 
Properties: Fees and 
Security  

 Prohibits a landlord or its agent from charging a tenant a fee for 
serving, posting, or otherwise delivering any notice, as specified 
in the described provisions. Prohibits a landlord or its agent from 
charging a tenant any fee for payment by check for rent or 
security deposit. Requires the landlord to provide the tenant with 
a written statement, on or before the date the lease is signed, of 
the amount of the higher security and an explanation why the 
higher security amount is being charged. 
 

09/19/2024: Signed by GOVERNOR. 

CA SB 638 
(Eggman (D)) 
 
 

Climate Resiliency and 
Flood Protection Bond Act  

Support Enacts the Climate Resiliency and Flood Protection Bond Act of 
2024 which, if approved by the voters, would authorize the 
issuance of bonds in the amount of a specified amount pursuant to 
the State General Obligation Bond Law, for flood protection and 
climate resiliency projects. Provides that this bill is operative only 
if SB 867 of the 2023-24 Regular Session is enacted and takes 
effect on or before specified date. 
 

06/28/2023: In ASSEMBLY.  Read 
second time and amended. Re-referred 
to Committee on WATER, PARKS 
AND WILDLIFE. 

CA SB 724 
(Glazer (D)) 
 
 

Political Reform Act of 
1974: Communications  

 Provides that the Political Reform Act of 1974 requires the 
disclosure of certain payments. Requires the disclosure of any 
payment of or promise to pay a specified amount or more for a 
communication that clearly identifies an elected State officer, and 

08/15/2024: In ASSEMBLY 
Committee on APPROPRIATIONS:  
Held in committee. 



IRWD 2024 LEGISLATIVE MATRIX  
Updated: September 19, 2024 

 
Bill No. 
Author 

Title IRWD 
Position 

Summary/Effects Status 

 

A-43 

educates the public about the previous votes cast by the elected 
officer or about the source of campaign donations received by the 
elected officer, and that is disseminated, broadcast, or otherwise 
published within a specified number of days of an election. 
 

CA SB 755 
(Becker (D)) 
 
 

Energy Efficiency and 
Building Decarbonization 
Programs  

 Provides for the California's Layered Energy Applications for 
Residents (CLEAR) Act of 2023. Requires the State Energy 
Resources Conservation and Development Commission to 
develop and make publicly available an internet website for 
energy efficiency and building decarbonization programs 
administered by the Energy Commission, federal or local 
governmental agencies, and nonprofit organizations that are 
available in the State for residential buildings and residential 
electricity customers. 
 

09/01/2023: In ASSEMBLY 
Committee on APPROPRIATIONS:  
Held in committee. 

CA SB 769 
(Gonzalez (D)) 
 
 

Local Government: Fiscal 
and Financial Training  

 Provides that existing law imposes ethics training and sexual 
harassment prevention training and education on specified local 
agency officials. Exempts a local agency official from the training 
requirements if they comply with specified criteria under existing 
law relating to eligibility for appointment or election to, and 
continuing education for, the office of county treasurer, county 
tax collector, or county treasurer-tax collector. 
 

09/01/2023: In ASSEMBLY 
Committee on APPROPRIATIONS:  
Held in committee. 

CA SB 778 
(Ochoa Bogh 
(R)) 
 
 

Excavations: Subsurface 
Installations  

 Requires an excavator planning to conduct an excavation to notify 
the regional notification center of their intent before beginning 
excavation. Revises the procedure an excavator must follow 
should a ticket expire. Requires a local agency to consider 
specified factors with respect to charging fees, including whether 
the fee could deter an excavator from contacting the regional 
notification center. Revokes the requirement that regional 
notification centers compile. 
 

09/04/2024: *****To GOVERNOR. 



IRWD 2024 LEGISLATIVE MATRIX  
Updated: September 19, 2024 

 
Bill No. 
Author 

Title IRWD 
Position 

Summary/Effects Status 

 

A-44 

CA SB 781 
(Stern (D)) 
 
 

Methane Emissions: Natural 
Gas Producing Low 
Methane  

 Provides that existing law requires the State Air Resources Board 
to quantify and publish annually the amount of greenhouse gas 
emissions resulting from the loss or release of uncombusted 
natural gas to the atmosphere and emissions from natural gas 
flares during all processes associated with the production, 
processing, and transporting of natural gas imported into the State 
from out-of-state sources. Requires the board to request and 
incorporate certain information from utilities and other large gas 
users. 
 

09/01/2023: In ASSEMBLY 
Committee on APPROPRIATIONS:  
Held in committee. 

CA SB 830 
(Smallwood-
Cueva (D)) 
 
 

Public Works   Requires a contractor engaging a third-party, offsite fabrication 
facility to fabricate custom sheet metal ducts for a public works 
project to enter into a contract with the facility that requires 
compliance with public works laws. Requires the civil wage and 
penalty assessment for violations of prevailing wage requirements 
at the facility to be assessed jointly and severally against the 
contractor and subcontractor installing the ducts. Incorporates 
additional changes to Section 1743 of the Labor Code. 
 

08/28/2024: In ASSEMBLY.  To 
Inactive File. 

CA SB 863 
(Allen (D)) 
 
 

Measures Proposed by the 
Legislature  

 Allows the Legislature to specify, in the text of a measure that 
proposes an amendment or revision of the Constitution, that the 
constitutional amendment or revision submitted to the people will 
appear on the ballot at an election other than the one described 
above if the election specified in the measure would occur at least 
131 days after adoption of the measure by the Legislature. 
 

08/23/2024: *****To GOVERNOR. 

CA SB 867 
(Allen (D)) 
 
 

Safe Drinking Water, 
Wildfire Prevention, 
Drought  

 Enacts the Safe Drinking Water, Wildfire Prevention, Drought 
Preparedness, and Clean Air Bond Act of 2024, which, if 
approved by the voters, would authorize the issuance of bonds in 
the specified amount pursuant to the State General Obligation 
Bond Law to finance projects for, among other things, safe 
drinking water, drought, flood, water, wildfire and forest 
resilience, as well as climate-smart, sustainable and resilient 
farms, and clean air programs. 

07/03/2024: Chaptered by Secretary of 
State.  Chapter No. 2024-083 



IRWD 2024 LEGISLATIVE MATRIX  
Updated: September 19, 2024 

 
Bill No. 
Author 

Title IRWD 
Position 

Summary/Effects Status 

 

A-45 

 
CA SB 900 
(Umberg (D)) 
 
 

Common Interest 
Developments: Repair and 
Maintenance  

 Makes a common interest association responsible for repairs and 
replacements necessary to restore interrupted gas, heat, water, or 
electrical services that begin in the common area even if the 
matter extends into another area, unless the utility service that 
failed is required to be maintained, repaired, or replaced by a 
public, private, or other utility service provider or otherwise 
provided in the declaration of a common interest development. 
 

09/19/2024: Signed by GOVERNOR. 

CA SB 924 
(Bradford (D)) 
 
 

Tenancy: Credit Reporting: 
Lower Income Households  

 Provides that existing law requires a landlord of an assisted 
housing development to offer tenants obligated on the lease of 
units in the development the option of having their rental 
payments reported to at least one consumer reporting agency 
through a written election of rent reporting. Permits a landlord, 
upon the agreement of the tenant, to provide the offer of rent 
reporting to the tenant by first-class United States mail or email. 
 

09/03/2024: *****To GOVERNOR. 

CA SB 937 
(Wiener (D)) 
 
 

Development Projects: Fees 
and Charges  

Oppose Prohibits, for designated residential development projects, a local 
agency from requiring payment of certain utility fees or charges 
on the residential development for the construction of public 
improvements or facilities until the date the first certificate of 
occupancy or first temporary certificate of occupancy is issued. 
Authorizes a developer to guarantee payment of certain fees or 
charges by posting a performance bond or a letter of credit from a 
federally insured, recognized depository institution. 
 

09/19/2024: Signed by GOVERNOR. 

CA SB 942 
(Becker (D)) 
 
 

California AI Transparency 
Act  

 Provides for the California AI Transparency Act. Requires a 
covered provider to make available an artificial intelligence 
detection tool at no cost to the user that meets certain criteria. 
Requires a covered provider to include a latent disclosure in an 
AI-generated image, video, audio content, or content that is any 
combination thereof, created by the provider's GenAI system that, 
to the extent that it is technically feasible and reasonable, conveys 
certain information regarding the content provenance. 

09/09/2024: *****To GOVERNOR. 



IRWD 2024 LEGISLATIVE MATRIX  
Updated: September 19, 2024 

 
Bill No. 
Author 

Title IRWD 
Position 

Summary/Effects Status 

 

A-46 

 
CA SB 948 
(Limon (D)) 
 
 

Political Reform Act of 
1974: Contribution 
Limitations  

 Permits a candidate who receives a majority of the votes cast for 
an office at a primary election, where the candidate is elected to 
office without advancing to the general election, to carry over 
funds raised to a committee for any subsequent election to the 
same office without attributing funds to specific contributors. 
Specifies that a candidate who raises funds for the general 
election may transfer funds to a committee for any subsequent 
election, but funds must be attributed to specific contributors. 
 

07/15/2024: Chaptered by Secretary of 
State.  Chapter No. 2024-125 

CA SB 958 
(Dodd (D)) 
 
 

Surplus State Property: 
County of Napa  

 Authorizes the Director of General Services to sell or exchange 
the specified property by the specified date. Requires that the sale 
or exchange of the property known as Camp Coombs be separate 
from the sale or exchange. Makes legislative findings and 
declarations as to the necessity of a special statute for Napa 
County and the Napa County Regional Park and Open Space 
District. Increases the amount transferred into the Special Fund 
for Economic Uncertainties. Appropriates funds. 
 

09/10/2024: *****To GOVERNOR. 

CA SB 961 
(Wiener (D)) 
 
 

Vehicles: Safety Equipment   Requires, commencing with the specified model year, every 
passenger vehicle, motortruck, and bus manufactured, sold as 
new, or leased as new in the State to be equipped with a passive 
intelligent speed assistance system. Exempts emergency vehicles, 
certain motortrucks, motorcycles, motorized bicycles, mopeds, 
and certain passenger vehicles from this requirement. Requires 
the system to be capable of being fully disabled, by the 
manufacturer or a franchisee, for emergency vehicles. 
 

09/11/2024: *****To GOVERNOR. 

CA SB 984 
(Wahab (D)) 
 
 

Public Agencies: Project 
Labor Agreements  

 Requires the Judicial Council and the California State University 
to identify and select a minimum of 3 major State construction 
projects that are required to be subject to the requirements of a 
project labor agreement. Requires the Judicial Council and the 
California State University to each submit a report to the 
Legislature regarding the selection of projects. 

09/09/2024: *****To GOVERNOR. 



IRWD 2024 LEGISLATIVE MATRIX  
Updated: September 19, 2024 

 
Bill No. 
Author 

Title IRWD 
Position 

Summary/Effects Status 

 

A-47 

 
CA SB 1003 
(Dodd (D)) 
 
 

Electricity: Wildfire 
Mitigation  

 Provides that existing law requires electrical corporations to 
construct, maintain and operate their electrical lines and 
equipment in a manner that will minimize the risk of catastrophic 
wildfire. Requires those actions to take into account the time 
required to implement proposed mitigations, the amount of risk 
reduced for the cost, and risk remaining. Requires each 
corporation to submit a wildfire mitigation plan to the Office of 
Energy Infrastructure Safety at least once every specified number 
of years. 
 

08/31/2024: In ASSEMBLY.  
Assembly Rule 63 suspended. 

CA SB 1014 
(Dodd (D)) 
 
 

Wildfire Safety: California 
Wildfire Mitigation  

 Requires the deputy director, on or before specified date, and 
every 3 years thereafter, to prepare a Wildfire Risk Mitigation 
Planning Framework sufficient to quantitatively evaluate wildfire 
risk mitigation actions. Requires the deputy director to make the 
framework available as a planning tool to specified entities and 
to, each year the framework is completed, of the framework to the 
Legislature, the Office of Energy Infrastructure Safety, and the 
Public Utilities Commission for review and consideration. 
 

08/15/2024: In ASSEMBLY 
Committee on APPROPRIATIONS:  
Held in committee. 

CA SB 1027 
(Menjivar (D)) 
 
 

Political Reform Act of 
1974: Disclosures  

 Provides that the Political Reform Act of 1974 provides for the 
comprehensive regulation of campaign financing, including 
requiring the reporting of campaign contributions. Authorizes a 
campaign committee to redact the bank account number on a copy 
of a statement of organization filed with a local filing officer. 
Requires the Secretary of State to redact the bank account number 
on a statement of organization filed with the Secretary of State 
before making the statement available to the public in any form. 
 

08/19/2024: Chaptered by Secretary of 
State.  Chapter No. 2024-180 

CA SB 1034 
(Seyarto (R)) 
 
 

California Public Records 
Act: State of Emergency  

 Revises the unusual circumstances under which the time limit 
may be extended to include the need to search for, collect, and 
appropriately examine records during a state of emergency, as 
defined, proclaimed by the Governor in the jurisdiction where the 
agency is located when the state of emergency currently affects, 

07/18/2024: Chaptered by Secretary of 
State.  Chapter No. 2024-161 



IRWD 2024 LEGISLATIVE MATRIX  
Updated: September 19, 2024 

 
Bill No. 
Author 

Title IRWD 
Position 

Summary/Effects Status 

 

A-48 

due to the state of emergency, the agency's ability to timely 
respond to requests due to staffing shortages or closure of 
facilities where the requested records are located, except as 
specified. 
 

CA SB 1045 
(Blakespear 
(D)) 
 
 

Composting Facilities: 
Zoning  

 Requires the Office of Planning and Research, in consultation 
with the Department of Resources Recycling and Recovery, to 
develop and post on their website a technical advisory reflecting 
best practices to facilitate the siting of composting facilities to 
meet organic waste reduction goals. Requires the office to consult 
with specified entities throughout the development of the 
advisory. Requires a city or county to consider the best practices 
reflected in the technical advisory during long-term planning. 
 

08/15/2024: In ASSEMBLY 
Committee on APPROPRIATIONS:  
Held in committee. 

CA SB 1046 
(Laird (D)) 
 
 

Organic Waste Reduction: 
Program Environmental 
Impact  

 Requires the Department of Resources Recycling and Recovery to 
prepare and certify a program environmental impact report that 
streamlines the process with which jurisdictions can develop and 
site small and medium compostable material handling facilities or 
operations for processing organic material. 
 

09/03/2024: *****To GOVERNOR. 

CA SB 1051 
(Eggman (D)) 
 
 

Victims of Abuse or 
Violence: Lock Changes  

 Repeals, recasts, and revises these provisions to apply when a 
person is alleged to have committed abuse or violence against an 
eligible tenant or the immediate family or household member of 
an eligible tenant, and the person is not a tenant of the same 
dwelling unit as the eligible tenant. Requires the landlord to 
change the locks at their own expense, and additionally requires 
the landlord to reimburse the protected tenant for expenses the 
tenant incurred in changing the locks. 
 

07/02/2024: Chaptered by Secretary of 
State.  Chapter No. 2024-075 

CA SB 1072 
(Padilla (D)) 
 
 

Local Government: 
Proposition 218: Remedies  

 Provides for procedures and parameters for local compliance with 
the requirements of the State Constitution for assessments and 
property-related fees. Requires a local agency, if a court 
determines that a fee or charge for a property-related service 
violates the provisions of the State Constitution relating to fees 

09/09/2024: *****To GOVERNOR. 



IRWD 2024 LEGISLATIVE MATRIX  
Updated: September 19, 2024 

 
Bill No. 
Author 

Title IRWD 
Position 

Summary/Effects Status 

 

A-49 

and charges, to credit the amount of the fee or charge attributable 
to the violation against the amount required to provide the 
service, unless a refund is explicitly provided for by statute. 
 

CA SB 1073 
(Skinner (D)) 
 
 

State Acquisition of Goods 
and Services: Low-Carbon  

 Authorizes a State agency to enter into forward contracts to 
purchase low-carbon cement or concrete products up to a 
specified number of years in advance to facilitate the 
commercialization of concrete, cement, and supplementary 
cementitious materials and in furtherance of the policy, 
comprehensive strategy, or framework relating to greenhouse gas 
emissions. 
 

08/15/2024: In ASSEMBLY 
Committee on APPROPRIATIONS:  
Held in committee. 

CA SB 1078 
(Min (D)) 
 
 

Language Access   Establishes the Office of Language Access to ensure individuals 
with limited English proficiency have meaningful access to 
government programs and services. Requires the Office of 
Language Access to maintain an internet website containing 
specified information, including every current Language Action 
Plan and all corrective action plans. 
 

08/15/2024: In ASSEMBLY 
Committee on APPROPRIATIONS:  
Held in committee. 

CA SB 1088 
(Alvarado-Gil 
(D)) 
 
 

Office of Emergency 
Services: State Matching 
Funds  

 Establishes, contingent on funding being appropriated pursuant to 
a bond act, the Rural Water Infrastructure for Community 
Wildfire Protection Program within the Office of Emergency 
Services for the distribution of State matching funds to 
communities within the Wildland Urban Interface in designated 
high fire hazard severity zones or very high fire hazard severity 
zones to improve water system infrastructure. Requires the office 
to develop criteria and a scoring methodology to prioritize fund 
distribution. 
 

08/15/2024: In ASSEMBLY 
Committee on APPROPRIATIONS:  
Held in committee. 

CA SB 1092 
(Blakespear 
(D)) 
 
 

Coastal Resources: 
Multifamily Housing 
Development  

 Requires the commission, on or before specified date, to provide a 
report to the Legislature that provides information regarding 
appeals of local government coastal development permits to the 
commission, including, among other things, the percentage of 

08/15/2024: In ASSEMBLY 
Committee on APPROPRIATIONS:  
Held in committee. 



IRWD 2024 LEGISLATIVE MATRIX  
Updated: September 19, 2024 

 
Bill No. 
Author 

Title IRWD 
Position 

Summary/Effects Status 

 

A-50 

local government coastal development permit actions that were 
appealed to the commission. 
 

CA SB 1100 
(Portantino (D)) 
 
 

Discrimination: Driver's 
License  

 Makes it an unlawful employment practice for an employer to 
include a statement in various employment materials that an 
applicant must have a driver's license unless the employer 
reasonably expects the duties of the position to require driving, 
and the employer reasonably believes that satisfying that job 
function using an alternative form of transportation would not be 
comparable in travel time or cost to the employer. Defines 
alternative form of transportation. 
 

09/09/2024: *****To GOVERNOR. 

CA SB 1103 
(Menjivar (D)) 
 
 

Tenancy of Commercial 
Real Properties: Agreements  

 Prohibits a landlord of a commercial real property from charging 
a qualified commercial tenant a fee to recover building operating 
costs, unless specified conditions are met, including, among other 
things, that the costs are allocated proportionately per tenant and 
the qualified commercial tenant is provided supporting 
documentation. Applies these provisions to specified leases and 
tenancies, but not to assessments levied pursuant to the Property 
and Business Improvement District Law of 1994. 
 

09/11/2024: *****To GOVERNOR. 

CA SB 1110 
(Ashby (D)) 
 
 

Water Reports: Urban Retail 
Water Suppliers  

Support Requires an urban retail water supplier to submit a report to the 
Department of Water Resources and State Water Resources 
Control Board annually based on the urban retail water supplier's 
water use conditions for the previous calendar or fiscal year. 
Authorizes the department and board to update regulations 
adopted for urban water use objectives and water use reporting to 
address changes in statutory reporting requirements. Authorizes 
the board to adopt an enforcement policy. 
 

08/15/2024: In ASSEMBLY 
Committee on APPROPRIATIONS:  
Held in committee. 

CA SB 1134 
(Caballero (D)) 
 
 

Surplus Land   Requires, with regard to surplus land, each parcel of land to be 
considered a distinct unit of surplus land, with certain exceptions. 
Specifies that any rule, policy, or standard of general application 
issued by the Department of Housing and Community 

08/20/2024: In ASSEMBLY.  To 
Inactive File. 



IRWD 2024 LEGISLATIVE MATRIX  
Updated: September 19, 2024 

 
Bill No. 
Author 

Title IRWD 
Position 

Summary/Effects Status 

 

A-51 

Development (HCD) in implementing the laws governing the 
disposal of surplus land owned by local agencies. Requires HCD 
to rely upon specified previously adopted guidelines, to the extent 
those guidelines do not conflict with current law. 
 

CA SB 1137 
(Smallwood-
Cueva (D)) 
 
 

Discrimination Claims: 
Combination of 
Characteristics  

 Provides that existing law declares that it is the policy of the State 
to afford all persons in public schools, regardless of specified 
characteristics, equal rights and opportunities in the educational 
institutions. Revises that policy statement to include remedies that 
will eliminate certain discriminatory acts, including 
discrimination not just because of one protected trait, but also 
because of the combination of 2 or more protected bases. 
Incorporates additional changes to Section 51 of the Civil Code. 
 

09/04/2024: *****To GOVERNOR. 

CA SB 1140 
(Caballero (D)) 
 
 

Enhanced Infrastructure 
Financing District  

 Provides that existing law requires the public financing authority 
of an enhanced infrastructure financing district to hold a meeting 
and public hearings on a proposed infrastructure financing plan. 
Requires the authority to hold a meeting and a specified number 
of hearings. Makes findings and declarations that, among other 
things, public benefits will accrue if local agencies are provided a 
means to, among other things, improve air quality and fund port 
and harbor infrastructure. Incorporates changes. 
 

08/23/2024: *****To GOVERNOR. 

CA SB 1143 
(Allen (D)) 
 
 

Paint Products: Stewardship 
Program  

 Revises and recasts the Architectural Paint Recovery Program as 
the Paint Product Recovery Program. Expands the scope of the 
stewardship program from architectural paint to paint products. 
Subjects paint products to the requirements of the program. 
Exempts aerosol coating products, coating-related products, and 
nonindustrial coatings added to the stewardship program from the 
requirements of the program until the specified date, or the 
approved stewardship plan's implementation date for those 
products. 
 

09/10/2024: *****To GOVERNOR. 



IRWD 2024 LEGISLATIVE MATRIX  
Updated: September 19, 2024 

 
Bill No. 
Author 

Title IRWD 
Position 

Summary/Effects Status 

 

A-52 

CA SB 1147 
(Portantino (D)) 
 
 

Drinking Water: 
Microplastics Levels  

 Requires the Office of Environmental Health Hazard Assessment 
to study the health effects of microplastics in drinking and bottled 
water to evaluate toxicity characteristics and levels of 
microplastics in water that are not anticipated to cause or 
contribute to adverse health effects, or to identify data gaps that 
would need to be addressed to establish those levels. Requires 
OEHHA to provide biennial status updates, and to post a final 
report on its internet website. 
 

09/09/2024: *****To GOVERNOR. 

CA SB 1151 
(Hurtado (D)) 
 
 

Political Reform Act of 
1974: Foreign Agents  

 Provides that under existing law, an individual or entity that 
receives compensation to influence legislative or administrative 
action is required to register as a lobbyist or lobbying firm. 
Requires certain individuals who engage in certain activities 
related to influencing legislative or administrative action to 
register as an agent of a foreign principal and to file periodic 
reports with the Secretary of State pursuant to the Political 
Reform Act of 1974, a violation of which is a misdemeanor. 
 

08/15/2024: In ASSEMBLY 
Committee on APPROPRIATIONS:  
Held in committee. 

CA SB 1155 
(Hurtado (D)) 
 
 

Political Reform Act of 
1974: Postgovernment  

 Provides that under existing law, Members of the Legislature, 
elected State officers, and designated employees of State 
administrative agencies are subject to various restrictions on their 
activities following their departure from State service. Prohibits, 
for a specified period after leaving office, the head of an agency 
from engaging in any activity to influence legislative or 
administrative action by the Legislature or administrative agency 
that would require the individual to register as a lobbyist. 
 

09/12/2024: *****To GOVERNOR. 

CA SB 1156 
(Hurtado (D)) 
 
 

Groundwater Sustainability 
Agencies: Conflicts  

 Requires members of the board of directors and the executive of a 
groundwater sustainability agency to file statements of economic 
interests, according to the specified filing requirements, with the 
Fair Political Practices Commission using the Commission's 
online system for filing statements of economic interests. 
 

08/27/2024: *****To GOVERNOR. 



IRWD 2024 LEGISLATIVE MATRIX  
Updated: September 19, 2024 

 
Bill No. 
Author 

Title IRWD 
Position 

Summary/Effects Status 

 

A-53 

CA SB 1158 
(Archuleta (D)) 
 
 

Carl Moyer Memorial Air 
Quality Standards  

 Provides that existing law establishes the Carl Moyer Memorial 
Air Quality Standards Attainment Program to provide grants to 
offset the incremental cost of eligible projects that reduce 
emissions of air pollutants from sources in the State and for 
funding a fueling infrastructure demonstration program and 
technology development efforts. Provides that existing law 
requires that funds be allocated under the program to local air 
districts for liquidation. Extends the deadline for the period of 
liquidation. 
 

08/22/2024: *****To GOVERNOR. 

CA SB 1159 
(Dodd (D)) 
 
 

Environmental Quality Act: 
Roadside Wildfire Risk  

 Relates to categorical exemptions to the requirements of the 
California Environmental Quality Act. Requires the Office of 
Planning and Research to evaluate, and the Secretary of the 
Natural Resources to consider, the inclusion of roadside projects 
no more than a specified number of road miles from a 
municipality or census-designated place that are undertaken 
solely for the purpose of wildfire risk reduction in the classes of 
projects subject to a categorical exemption. 
 

08/15/2024: In ASSEMBLY 
Committee on APPROPRIATIONS:  
Held in committee. 

CA SB 1162 
(Cortese (D)) 
 
 

Public Contracts: 
Employment Compliance 
Reports  

 Provides that existing law establishes requirements that apply 
when a public entity is required by statute or regulation to obtain 
an enforceable commitment that a bidder, contractor, or other 
entity will use a skilled and trained workforce to complete a 
contract or project. Requires the monthly compliance report to 
include the full name of, and identify the apprenticeship program 
name, location, and graduation date of, all workers relied upon to 
satisfy the apprenticeship graduation percentage requirement. 
 

09/11/2024: *****To GOVERNOR. 

CA SB 1170 
(Menjivar (D)) 
 
 

Political Reform Act of 
1974: Campaign Funds  

 Permits campaign funds to be used to pay or reimburse a 
candidate for reasonable and necessary mental health care 
expenses if the candidate does not have health insurance or their 
insurance does not cover such expenses. Limits use of campaign 
funds for these purposes to circumstances in which the candidate 
has experienced prejudice, harassment or a threat or other 

09/11/2024: *****To GOVERNOR. 



IRWD 2024 LEGISLATIVE MATRIX  
Updated: September 19, 2024 

 
Bill No. 
Author 

Title IRWD 
Position 

Summary/Effects Status 

 

A-54 

criminal act which resulted in the need for mental health services. 
Requires the candidate to include certain information in campaign 
statements. 
 

CA SB 1174 
(Min (D)) 
 
 

Elections: Voter 
Identification  

 Prohibits a local government from enacting or enforcing any 
charter provision, ordinance, or regulation requiring a person to 
present identification for the purpose of voting or submitting a 
ballot at any polling place, vote center, or other location where 
ballots are cast or submitted. 
 

09/03/2024: *****To GOVERNOR. 

CA SB 1175 
(Ochoa Bogh 
(R)) 
 
 

Organic Waste: Reduction 
Goals: Local Jurisdictions  

 Requires the department to revise the regulations to require the 
department to consider, in addition to census tracts, alternatives to 
those census tracts when deciding the geographic boundaries of a 
low-population or elevation waiver. Prohibits the department 
from considering those alternatives when deciding the boundaries 
for those waivers until it adopts the revised regulations. 
 

08/15/2024: In ASSEMBLY 
Committee on APPROPRIATIONS:  
Held in committee. 

CA SB 1181 
(Glazer (D)) 
 
 

Campaign Contributions: 
Agency Officers  

 Provides that the Political Reform Act of 1974 prohibits certain 
contributions of more than $250 to an officer of an agency by any 
party, participant, or party or participant's agent in a proceeding 
while a proceeding involving a license, permit, or other 
entitlement for use is pending before the agency. Exempts a city 
attorney or county counsel providing legal advice to the agency 
who does not have the authority to make a final decision in the 
proceeding from the definition of officer for these purposes. 
 

09/12/2024: *****To GOVERNOR. 

CA SB 1205 
(Laird (D)) 
 
 

Workers' Compensation: 
Medical Treatment  

 Requires employers to provide medical, surgical, chiropractic, 
acupuncture, licensed clinical social worker, and hospital 
treatment reasonably required to cure or relieve the injured 
worker from the effects of the injury. Requires an employee, 
when possible, to make a reasonable effort to schedule treatment 
outside of work hours. Requires the employer to provide this 
leave during work hours unless business necessity requires the 
treatment to occur at a different time or on a different day. 

08/26/2024: In ASSEMBLY.  To 
Inactive File. 



IRWD 2024 LEGISLATIVE MATRIX  
Updated: September 19, 2024 

 
Bill No. 
Author 

Title IRWD 
Position 

Summary/Effects Status 

 

A-55 

 
CA SB 1209 
(Cortese (D)) 
 
 

Local Agency Formation 
Commission: 
Indemnification  

 Authorizes a local agency formation commission to require, as a 
condition for, among other things, processing a change of 
organization or reorganization, that the applicant agrees to defend, 
indemnify, and hold harmless the LAFCO, its agents, officers, 
and employees from and against any claim, action, or proceeding, 
as specified, to attack, set aside, void, or annul an approval by the 
LAFCO. 
 

09/03/2024: *****To GOVERNOR. 

CA SB 1210 
(Skinner (D)) 
 
 

New Housing Construction   Requires electrical corporations, gas corporations, sewer system 
corporations, and water corporations, for new housing 
construction, to publicly post on their websites the schedule of 
estimated fees for typical service connections for each housing 
development type. Exempts a utility with fewer than a specified 
number of service connections that does not establish or maintain 
a website due to a hardship, and authorizes the utility to establish 
that a hardship exists by annually adopting a resolution. 
 

09/03/2024: *****To GOVERNOR. 

CA SB 1211 
(Skinner (D)) 
 
 

Land Use: Accessory 
Dwelling Units: Ministerial  

 Provides that the Planning and Zoning Law prohibits, if a local 
agency adopts an ordinance to create accessory dwelling units in 
residential zones, the agency from requiring the replacement of 
offstreet parking spaces. Prohibits the local agency from requiring 
the replacement of spaces if an uncovered space is demolished in 
conjunction with the construction of, or is converted to, an ADU. 
Authorizes up to a specified number of detached ADUs to be 
created on a lot with an existing multifamily dwelling. 
 

09/19/2024: Signed by GOVERNOR. 

CA SB 1218 
(Newman (D)) 
 
 

Water: Emergency Water 
Supplies  

Support Provides that the Urban Water Management Planning Act 
requires every public and private urban water supplier that 
provides water for municipal purposes to prepare and adopt an 
urban water management plan. Provides that the act requires such 
plan to include a water shortage contingency plan. Declares that it 
is the policy of the State to encourage, but not mandate, the 
development of emergency water supplies, and to support their 

08/15/2024: In ASSEMBLY 
Committee on APPROPRIATIONS:  
Held in committee. 



IRWD 2024 LEGISLATIVE MATRIX  
Updated: September 19, 2024 

 
Bill No. 
Author 

Title IRWD 
Position 

Summary/Effects Status 

 

A-56 

use during times of drought or unplanned service or supply 
disruption. 
 

CA SB 1255 
(Durazo (D)) 
 
 

Public Water Systems: 
Needs Analysis: Water Rate  

 Provides that existing law requires the State Water Resources 
Control Board to develop a plan for the funding and 
implementation of the Low-Income Water Rate Assistance 
Program. Requires qualified systems to begin providing water 
rate assistance to eligible ratepayers. Requires a qualified system 
to automatically enroll an eligible ratepayer in the water rate 
assistance program if available information indicates that they are 
qualified to receive assistance and provide a water bill credit. 
 

08/15/2024: In ASSEMBLY 
Committee on APPROPRIATIONS:  
Held in committee. 

CA SB 1266 
(Limon (D)) 
 
 

Product Safety: Bisphenol   Provides that existing law prohibits the manufacture, sale, or 
distribution in commerce of any bottle or cup that contains 
bisphenol A if the bottle or cup is designed or intended to be 
filled with any liquid, food, or beverage intended primarily for 
consumption by children 3 years of age or younger. Applies 
certain prohibitions and requirements to any juvenile's feeding 
product or sucking or teething product that contains any form of 
bisphenol at a detectable level above the practical quantitation 
limit. 
 

09/10/2024: *****To GOVERNOR. 

CA SB 1325 
(Durazo (D)) 
 
 

Public Contracts: Best 
Value Procurement: Goods  

 Authorizes a public entity to award contracts through a best value 
procurement method for the purchase of goods with a base value 
of a specified amount or more. Authorizes a public entity to 
award all contracts for the purchase of municipal fleets by using a 
best value procurement method. 
 

08/15/2024: In ASSEMBLY 
Committee on APPROPRIATIONS:  
Held in committee. 

CA SB 1328 
(Bradford (D)) 
 
 

Elections   Provides that existing law authorizes an elections official to open 
sealed ballot containers if it is necessary in a shredding or 
recycling process. Adds paper cast vote records, voted conditional 
voter registration ballots, and conditional voter registration voter 
identification envelopes to the list of materials county elections 
officials are required to keep. Prohibits an elections official from 

09/11/2024: *****To GOVERNOR. 



IRWD 2024 LEGISLATIVE MATRIX  
Updated: September 19, 2024 

 
Bill No. 
Author 

Title IRWD 
Position 

Summary/Effects Status 

 

A-57 

opening sealed ballot containers unless it is necessary in a 
shredding or recycling process. 

CA SB 1330 
(Archuleta (D)) 
 
 

Urban Retail Water 
Supplier: Water Use  

 Requires the Department of Water Resources to conduct 
necessary studies and investigations regarding the efficiency 
performance of newly constructed residential landscapes and 
landscape areas with dedicated irrigation meters in connection 
with CII water use. Requires the department to recommend to the 
State Water Resources Control Board for adoption a revised 
standard for existing residential landscapes and landscape areas 
with dedicated irrigation meters. 
 

08/15/2024: In ASSEMBLY 
Committee on APPROPRIATIONS:  
Held in committee. 

CA SB 1337 
(Gonzalez (D)) 
 
 

Elections: Form of Petitions   Provides that existing law requires a committee that pays for the 
circulation of a State or local initiative, referendum, or recall 
petition to create an Official Top Funders sheet. Removes the 
requirement that a committee that pays for the circulation of a 
State referendum create an Official Top Funders sheet and submit 
sheet to the Secretary of State. Revises the required form and 
contents of a statewide referendum petition. Requires the 
Secretary to post the first page of the petition on their website. 
 

09/09/2024: *****To GOVERNOR. 

CA SB 1340 
(Smallwood-
Cueva (D)) 
 
 

Discrimination   Provides that existing law specifies that the California Fair 
Employment and Housing Act occupies the field of regulation of 
discrimination in employment and housing but does not limit or 
restrict the application of the Unruh Civil Rights Act. Specifies 
that nothing in the act limits or restricts efforts by a city, city and 
county, county or other political subdivision to enforce local law 
prohibiting discrimination in employment against classes of 
persons covered by the act if certain requirements are met. 
 

09/10/2024: *****To GOVERNOR. 

CA SB 1366 
(Hurtado (D)) 
 
 

Real Property Disclosure 
Requirements: Domestic 
Water  

 Provides that existing law authorizes the State Water Resources 
Control Board to provide grants to eligible applicants to be used 
to provide interim relief to households in which a private water 
well has gone dry, or has been destroyed, due to drought, wildfire, 
or other natural disaster. Requires a seller of any real property 

06/14/2024: Chaptered by Secretary of 
State.  Chapter No. 2024-021 



IRWD 2024 LEGISLATIVE MATRIX  
Updated: September 19, 2024 

 
Bill No. 
Author 

Title IRWD 
Position 

Summary/Effects Status 

 

A-58 

who received assistance or is aware the property received 
assistance and the property currently has the water storage tank to 
deliver a disclosure statement to the prospective buyer. 
 

CA SB 1374 
(Becker (D)) 
 
 

Net Energy Metering   Requires the Public Utilities Commission, in developing the 
standard contract or tariff for large electrical corporations, to 
ensure that any contract or tariff established for renewable 
electrical generation facilities configured to serve multiple 
customers with meters at one or more apartment buildings on a 
single property, or configured to serve multiple meters of a single 
customer on a public school property, or a set of contiguous 
public school properties, meets certain requirements. 
 

09/10/2024: *****To GOVERNOR. 

CA SB 1390 
(Caballero (D)) 
 
 

Groundwater Recharge: 
Floodflows: Diversion  

 Provides that existing law provides that the diversion of 
floodflows for groundwater recharge does not require an 
appropriative water right if certain conditions are met. Expands 
the conditions that are required to be met for diversion that do not 
require an appropriative water right. Authorizes, with respect to 
diversions from water tributaries to the San Joaquin River 
upstream of Vernalis, water to be diverted only when the 
Sacramento-San Joaquin Delta is in excess conditions and without 
restrictions. 
 

09/01/2024: In ASSEMBLY.  To 
Inactive File. 

CA SB 1402 
(Min (D)) 
 
 

30x30 Goal: State Agencies: 
Adoption  

 Provides that existing law provides that it is the goal of the State 
to conserve at least 30 percent of the State's lands and coastal 
waters by 2030, known as the 30x30 goal. Requires all State 
agencies, departments, boards, offices, commissions, and 
conservancies to consider the 30x30 goal when adopting, 
revising, or establishing plans, policies, or regulations that 
directly affect the use of coastal waters or land, management of 
natural resources, or biodiversity conservation. 
 

08/15/2024: In ASSEMBLY 
Committee on APPROPRIATIONS:  
Held in committee. 



IRWD 2024 LEGISLATIVE MATRIX  
Updated: September 19, 2024 

 
Bill No. 
Author 

Title IRWD 
Position 

Summary/Effects Status 

 

A-59 

CA SB 1404 
(Glazer (D)) 
 
 

Political Reform Act of 
1974: Audits  

 Provides that the Political Reform Act of 1974 requires the 
Franchise Tax Board to conduct audits and field investigations 
regarding the reports filed by lobbyists. Transfers, until specified 
date, the responsibility for conducting audits and investigations to 
the Fair Political Practices Commission. Requires the Secretary of 
State to impose a fee to lobbying firms and lobbyist employers 
subject to audit for deposit into the Field Audits and 
Investigations Fund. Appropriates funds. 
 

08/15/2024: In ASSEMBLY 
Committee on APPROPRIATIONS:  
Held in committee. 

CA SB 1522 
(Senate 
Agriculture 
Committee) 
 
 

Fertilizing Material   Provides that existing law requires that each differing label, other 
than weight or package size for specialty fertilizer, packaged 
agricultural mineral, auxiliary soil and plant substance, organic 
input material, and packaged soil amendment be registered. 
Eliminates the label registration requirement for auxiliary soil and 
plant substances and packaged soil amendments and would apply 
that requirement to beneficial substances. Authorizes the 
Secretary of Food and Agriculture to set the mill assessment rate. 
 

08/26/2024: Chaptered by Secretary of 
State.  Chapter No. 2024-208 

CA SCA 2 
(Stern (D)) 
 
 

Elections: Voter 
Qualifications  

 Provides that the California Constitution allows a United States 
citizen who is at least 18 years of age and a resident of the State 
to vote. Reduces the minimum voting age to a specified age. 
 

08/31/2024: In SENATE.  To Inactive 
File. 

CA SCA 3 
(Niello (R)) 
 
 

Elections: Initiatives and 
Referenda  

 Transfers from the Attorney General to the Legislative Analyst 
the duty of preparing the title and summary for a proposed 
initiative or referendum. Requires, for each measure that appears 
on a statewide ballot, the Legislative Analyst to prepare the ballot 
label and the ballot title and summary for the state voter 
information guide. 
 

09/01/2023: In SENATE Committee 
on APPROPRIATIONS:  Held in 
committee. 

US H 1430 
(Valadao (R)) 
 
 

National Environmental 
Policy Act Review 
Requirements  

Support Directs the Secretary of the Interior and the Secretary of 
Agriculture to use certain previously completed environmental 
assessments and environmental impact statements to satisfy the 
review requirements of the National Environmental Policy Act of 
1969. 

04/25/2023: In HOUSE Committee on 
AGRICULTURE:  Referred to 
Subcommittee on FORESTRY. 



IRWD 2024 LEGISLATIVE MATRIX  
Updated: September 19, 2024 

 
Bill No. 
Author 

Title IRWD 
Position 

Summary/Effects Status 

 

A-60 

 
US HR 2964 
(McClain (R)) 
 
 

Do Not Flush Labeling 
Requirements  

Support Requires the Federal Trade Commission to issue regulations 
requiring certain products to have Do Not Flush labeling. 
 

06/12/2024: To SENATE Committee 
on COMMERCE, SCIENCE, AND 
TRANSPORTATION. 

US HR 3027 
(Porter (D)) 
 
 

Reclamation Climate 
Change and Water Program 
Funding  

Support Reauthorizes funding for the Reclamation Climate Change and 
Water Program. 
 

06/09/2023: In HOUSE Committee on 
NATURAL RESOURCES:  Referred 
to Subcmt on WATER, WILDLIFE 
AND FISHERIES. 

US HR 6805 
(Dingell D (D)) 
 
 

PFAS Hazardous Substance 
Response and Liability  

 Requires the Administrator of the Environmental Protection 
Agency to designate per- and polyfluoroalkyl substances as 
hazardous substances under the Comprehensive Environmental 
Response, Compensation, and Liability Act of 1980. 
 

01/02/2024: In HOUSE Committee on 
TRANSPORTATION & 
INFRASTRUCTURE:  Referred to 
Subcommittee on WATER 
RESOURCES AND 
ENVIRONMENT. 

US HR 7194 
(Dean (D)) 
 
 

PFAS Exposure Legal 
Action and Research 
Codification  

 Amends the Toxic Substances Control Act to codify a Federal 
cause of action and a type of remedy available for individuals 
significantly exposed to per- and polyfluoroalkyl substances, to 
encourage research and accountability for irresponsible discharge 
of those substances. 
 

02/01/2024: To HOUSE Committee on 
JUDICIARY. 

US HR 7944 
(Curtis (R)) 
 
 

Liability Exemption for 
Certain Entities under 
CERCLA  

Support Exempts certain entities from liability under the Comprehensive 
Environmental Response, Compensation, and Liability Act of 
1980 with respect to releases of perfluoroalkyl and 
polyfluoroalkyl substances. 
 

04/11/2024: To HOUSE Committee on 
TRANSPORTATION AND 
INFRASTRUCTURE. 

US HR 8032 
(Sorensen (D)) 
 
 

Low-Income Water 
Assistance Authorization  

 Authorizes the Low-Income Household Water Assistance 
Program. 
 

04/16/2024: To HOUSE Committee on 
ENERGY AND COMMERCE. 

US HR 8812 
(Graves S (R)) 
 
 

Water Resources 
Development Act of 2024  

 Establishes the Water Resources Development Act of 2024. 
 

07/22/2024: In HOUSE.  Passed 
HOUSE.  *****To SENATE. 



IRWD 2024 LEGISLATIVE MATRIX  
Updated: September 19, 2024 

 
Bill No. 
Author 

Title IRWD 
Position 

Summary/Effects Status 

 

A-61 

US S 1350 
(Merkley (D)) 
 
 

Do Not Flush Labeling 
Regulations  

Support Requires the Federal Trade Commission to issue regulations 
requiring certain products to have Do Not Flush labeling. 
 

04/27/2023: To SENATE Committee 
on COMMERCE, SCIENCE, AND 
TRANSPORTATION. 

US S 1429 
(Lummis (R)) 
 
 

PFAS Substance Liability 
Exemptions  

Support Exempts certain entities from liability under the Comprehensive 
Environmental Response, Compensation, and Liability Act of 
specified year with respect to releases of perfluoroalkyl and 
polyfluoroalkyl substances (PFAS). 
 

05/03/2023: To SENATE Committee 
on ENVIRONMENT AND PUBLIC 
WORKS. 

US S 1430 
(Lummis (R)) 
 
 

PFAS Substance Liability 
Exemptions  

 Exempts certain entities from liability under the Comprehensive 
Environmental Response, Compensation, and Liability Act of 
specified year with respect to releases of perfluoroalkyl and 
polyfluoroalkyl substances (PFAS). 
 

05/03/2023: To SENATE Committee 
on ENVIRONMENT AND PUBLIC 
WORKS. 

US S 2162 
(Feinstein (D)) 
 
 

Reclamation State Water 
Infrastructure Support  

 Supports water infrastructure in Reclamation States. 
 

07/19/2023: Subcommittee on 
WATER AND POWER hearings held. 

US S 3725 
(Gillibrand (D)) 
 
 

PFAS Causes of Action   Amends the Toxic Substances Control Act to codify a Federal 
cause of action and a type of remedy available for individuals 
significantly exposed to per- and polyfluoroalkyl substances, and 
to encourage research and accountability for irresponsible 
discharge of those substances. 
 

02/01/2024: To SENATE Committee 
on ENVIRONMENT AND PUBLIC 
WORKS. 

US S 3830 
(Padilla (D)) 
 
 

Low-Income Household 
Water Assistance Program  

 Authorizes the Low-Income Household Water Assistance 
Program. 
 

02/28/2024: To SENATE Committee 
on HEALTH, EDUCATION, LABOR 
AND PENSIONS. 

US S 4367 
(Carper (D)) 
 
 

Water Resources 
Development Act of 2024  

 Provides for the Water Resources Development Act of 2024. 
 

08/01/2024: In SENATE.  Passed 
SENATE.  *****To HOUSE. 

 



 
Note:  This page is intentionally left blank. 

 



No. 8 Silverado Canyon Bridge 174 Construction Award 8 

September 23, 2024 
Prepared by: T. Foo / M. Cortez 
Submitted by: K. Burton 
Approved by: Paul A. Cook 

CONSENT CALENDAR 

SILVERADO CANYON BRIDGE 174 WATER PIPELINE IMPROVEMENTS 
BUDGET INCREASE AND CONSTRUCTION AWARD 

SUMMARY: 

The Silverado Canyon Bridge 174 Water Pipeline Improvements project will install a segment of 
the potable water distribution system to replace a segment of pipe that will be impacted by the 
County of Orange’s reconstruction of its Silverado Canyon Bridge.  Staff recommends that the 
Board: 

• Authorize a budget increase in the amount of $435,100, from $504,900 to $940,000, and

• Authorize the General Manager to execute a construction contract with Ferreira
Construction Company, Inc. in the amount of $472,000 for the Silverado Canyon
Bridge 174 Water Pipeline Improvements project.

BACKGROUND: 

The District owns an 8-inch potable water pipeline that is attached to Bridge 55C-0174, which 
will be reconstructed in 2025 by the County of Orange Public Works to address structural 
deficiencies.  To maintain potable water service during and after bridge construction, the District 
will install a new 12-inch pipeline in three stages:  Stage 1) construct temporary pipelines 
crossing the street on both sides of the bridge prior to the County reconstructing the northern half 
of the bridge; Stage 2) construct the ultimate pipeline attached to and supported by the newly 
reconstructed bridge; and Stage 3) abandon-in-place and demolish the existing pipeline and surge 
relief vault.  A site plan of the project area is provided as Exhibit “A.” 

Construction Bid Process: 

The project was advertised to a select list of 18 contractors on July 29, 2024.  The bid opening 
occurred on August 27, 2024, with three bids received as summarized in the table below. 

Bidder Bid Amount 
Ferreira Construction Co., Inc. $472,000 
GCI Construction, Inc. $477,000 
Paulus Engineering, Inc. $622,562 

Engineer’s Estimate $377,000 

Ferreira Construction Co., Inc. is the apparent low bidder with a bid of $472,000, and the bid 
results are shown in Exhibit “B.”  Although the range of bids was large, the two lowest bids 
were only $5,000 apart.  All bids were higher than the engineer’s estimate of $377,000 (the bids 
ranged from 25 to 65 percent higher than the engineer’s estimate).  The discrepancy between the 



Consent Calendar:  Silverado Canyon Bridge 174 Water Pipeline Improvements Budget Increase 
and Construction Award 
September 23, 2024 
Page 2 

bids and the engineer’s estimate can be attributed to higher construction costs in the current 
market for labor and materials.  Staff also attributes the added complexity of working on a 
bridge and within a narrow street.  Ferreira Construction Co., Inc. has completed previous 
IRWD pipeline projects and is well qualified to construct this project. 

FISCAL IMPACTS: 

Silverado Canyon Bridge 174 Water Pipeline Improvements, Project 11588, is included in the 
Fiscal Year 2024-25 Capital Budget.  The budget adjustment shown below is required to fund 
both construction and construction phase engineering services. 

Project 
No. 

Current 
Budget 

Addition 
<Reduction> 

Total 
Budget 

11588 $504,900 $435,100 $940,000 

ENVIRONMENTAL COMPLIANCE: 

This project is exempt from the California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) as authorized 
under the California Code of Regulations Title 14, Chapter 3, Article 7, Section 15301, which 
consists of the operation, repair, maintenance, permitting, leasing, licensing, or minor alteration 
of existing public or private structures, facilities, mechanical equipment, or topographical 
features, involving negligible or no expansion of existing or former use.  Staff filed a Notice of 
Exemption with the Orange County Clerk Recorder’s office on January 19, 2023. 

RECOMMENDATION: 

THAT THE BOARD AUTHORIZE A BUDGET INCREASE IN THE AMOUNT OF $435,100, 
FROM $504,900 TO $940,000, FOR PROJECT 11588, AND AUTHORIZE THE GENERAL 
MANAGER TO EXECUTE A CONSTRUCTION CONTRACT WITH FERREIRA 
CONSTRUCTION CO., INC. IN THE AMOUNT OF $472,000 FOR THE SILVERADO 
CANYON BRIDGE 174 PIPELINE IMPROVEMENTS, PROJECT 11588. 

LIST OF EXHIBITS: 

Exhibit “A” – Project Location Map 
Exhibit “B” – Bid Results – Ferreira Construction Co., Inc. 



Exhibit "A"

foo
Image

foo
Ellipse

foo
Callout
PROJECT AREA

foo
Text Box
        SILVERADO CANYON BRIDGE 174 PIPELINE IMPROVEMENTS LOCATION MAP



Note:  This page is intentionally left blank. 



��������	�
���	��������
������	����	�����������������	����������������������������  !"�#����������$ %&�%&$&��&'$$��(����)!

��	������

Exhibit "B"

B - 1

Laura Gates
Rectangle



��������	�
���	��������
������	����	�����������������	����������������������������  !"�#����������$ %&�%&$&��&'$$��(����)!

��	������B - 2

Laura Gates
Rectangle



No. 9 Serrano Creek Raw Water Pipeline Replacement Final Acceptance 9

September 23, 2024 
Prepared by: N. Mai / M. Cortez 
Submitted by: K. Burton 
Approved by: Paul A. Cook 

CONSENT CALENDAR 

SERRANO CREEK RAW WATER PIPELINE REPLACEMENT 
FINAL ACCEPTANCE 

SUMMARY: 

The Serrano Creek Raw Water Pipeline Replacement project is complete.  The contractor, GCI 
Construction, Inc., completed the required work.  The project has received final inspection and 
acceptance of construction is recommended. 

BACKGROUND: 

A leak was detected in the 8-inch asbestos cement raw water pipeline located in the vicinity of 
Serrano Creek and Trail east of the street intersection of Trabuco Road and Peachwood in Lake 
Forest.  The leak was located and verified during a video inspection completed by V&A 
Consulting Engineers.  The source of the leak was caused by multiple joint offsets and holes in 
the pipe wall.  This project replaced the failed pipe segment with new pipeline in a horizontal 
alignment that moved the pipeline out of Serrano Creek and into public streets to improve future 
access. 

MKN Associates completed design in September 2023, and GCI Construction, Inc. was awarded 
the construction contract on November 13, 2023.  GCI Construction, Inc. mobilized in March 
2024 and completed construction of all improvements on August 29, 2024. 

Project Title: Serrano Creek Raw Water Pipeline Replacement 

Project No.: 12423 

Design Engineer: MKN & Associates 

Construction Management by: IRWD Staff 

Contractor: GCI Construction, Inc. 

Original Contract Cost: $808,000.00 

Final Contract Cost: $951,481.33 

Original Contract Days: 150 

Final Contract Days: 202 

Final Change Order Approved On: September 5, 2024 

Four contract change orders were issued during construction for additional work due to 
encountering unknown utilities and differing site conditions within the pipe trench, the District’s 
expansion of pavement restoration for streets within the residential development to address 
`resident concerns, and the District’s adjustment of working hours within the development to 



Consent Calendar:  Serrano Creek Raw Water Pipeline Replacement Final Acceptance 
September 23, 2024 
Page 2 
 
 
reduce inconveniences to residents caused by construction activities.  The final paving of the 
street intersection of Trabuco Road and Peachwood was eliminated in coordination with the City 
of Lake Forest’s Trabuco Road Rehabilitation project.  A contract change order summary is 
provided as Exhibit “A”. 
 
FISCAL IMPACTS: 
 
Serrano Creek Raw Water Pipeline Replacement, Project 12423, is included in the FY 2024-25 
Capital Budget.  The existing budget is sufficient to fund the final payment for the project. 
 
ENVIRONMENTAL COMPLIANCE: 
 
This project was exempt from the California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) as authorized 
under the California Code of Regulations Title 14, Chapter 3, Article 7, Section 15302, which 
states that replacement or reconstruction of existing structures and facilities where the new 
structure will be located on the same site as the structure replaced and will have substantially 
the same purpose and capacity as the structure replaced including but not limited to: 
(b) replacement of a commercial structure with a new structure of substantially the same size, 
purpose and capacity; and (c) replacement of or reconstruction of existing utility systems 
and / or facilities involving negligible or no expansion of capacity.  A Notice of Exemption for 
the project was filed with the Orange County Clerk-Recorder on August 15, 2023. 
 
COMMITTEE STATUS: 
 
This item was not reviewed by a Committee. 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
 
THAT THE BOARD ACCEPT CONSTRUCTION OF THE SERRANO CREEK RAW 
WATER PIPELINE REPLACEMENT; AUTHORIZE THE GENERAL MANAGER TO FILE 
A NOTICE OF COMPLETION; AND AUTHORIZE THE PAYMENT OF THE RETENTION 
35 DAYS AFTER THE DATE OF RECORDING THE NOTICE OF COMPLETION FOR 
PROJECT 12423. 
 
LIST OF EXHIBITS: 
 
Exhibit “A” – Construction Change Order Summary 



GCI Construction Inc
MKN Associates
11/14/2023

Contract Amount Contract Days
Original 

Completion 
Date:

Original Contract Amount: $808,000.00 Original Days: 150        4/12/2024

Category
Change Order 

Line Item 
Amount

 Change Order 
Amount 

Previous 
Change Orders

Cumulative 
Total of Change 

Orders

% of  
Original 
Contract 
Amount

Revised Contract 
Amount

Change 
Order 
Days

Previous 
Change 
Orders

Cum. 
Total 

C.O. days

Revised 
Total 

Contract 
Days

Revised 
Completion 

Date

1 $12,692.74 $0.00 $12,692.74 1.57% $820,692.74 25 0 25 175        5/7/2024

A 12,692.74$       3

B -$  22

2 $59,267.70 $12,692.74 $71,960.44 7.34% $879,960.44 9 25 34 184        5/16/2024

B 20,800.13$       4

B 38,467.57$       5

3 $105,335.07 $71,960.44 $177,295.51 13.04% $985,295.51 18 34 52 202        6/3/2024

B  $       13,619.73 3

B  $       10,420.33 3

B  $       22,571.25 3
A  $       51,994.78 6

B  $         6,728.98 3

Slurry seal type I from STA 16+33 to STA 20+47.

Approved by Executive Director of Technical Services on    
June 23, 2024.

Additional labor and time to investigate and pothole utilities 
not shown on plans and unmarked by Digalert.

Additional labor and time to excavate around and under 
utilities not shown on plan and unmarked by Digalert.

Change Order Description

Contract time extension due to inclement weather affecting 
mobilization.

Contractor: 
Design Engineer:
Award Date:

Approved by Executive Director of Technical Services on   
May 21, 2024.

Approved by Executive Director of Technical Services on 
August 22, 2024.

Additional materials and labor to install a temporary 
dewatering assembly to dewater the existing pipe prior to tie-in 
connection.

Additional materials and labor to construct over a conflicting 
30-inch storm drain found during excavation near STA 16+40.

GCI standby time on resident’s trash day.

Additional materials and labor to field adjust the Trabuco Road 
pipe termination detail.

Additional materials and labor to construct over a conflicting 
storm drain lateral found during excavation near STA 20+40.

nm Serrano Creek Raw Water Replacement Final Accept EXHIBIT A.xlsx
9/3/2024 11:49 AM

Exhibit "A"

Serrano Creek Raw Water Pipeline 
Replacement

PR 12423
Construction Change Order Summary

A - 1



Serrano Creek Raw Water Pipeline Replacement
PR 12423

Construction Change Order Summary

GCI Construction Inc
MKN Associates
11/14/2023

Contract Amount Contract Days
Original 

Completion 
Date:

Original Contract Amount: $808,000.00 Original Days: 150        4/12/2024

Category
Change Order 

Line Item 
Amount

 Change Order 
Amount 

Previous 
Change Orders

Cumulative 
Total of Change 

Orders

% of  
Original 
Contract 
Amount

Revised Contract 
Amount

Change 
Order 
Days

Previous 
Change 
Orders

Cum. 
Total 

C.O. days

Revised 
Total 

Contract 
Days

Revised 
Completion 

Date
Change Order Description

Contractor: 
Design Engineer:
Award Date:

4 (33,814.18)$     $177,295.51 $143,481.33 -4.18% $951,481.33 0 52 52 202        6/3/2024

A  $       35,800.07 

C  $     (58,049.75)

A  $     (11,564.50)

Category Total Amount
% of Original 

Contract
A - Owner Directed Change 88,923.09$       11.01%
B - Differing/Unknown Condition 112,607.99$     13.94%
C - External Agency, Regulatory, and/or Permit Required Change (58,049.75)$      -7.18%
D - Design Oversight -$  0.00%

Total Change Order Amount (A + B + C + D) 143,481.33$     17.76%

Approved by Executive Director of Technical Services on 
September 5, 2024.

Additional work for GCI to repair a new leak, 5-foot north of 
STA 10+00, and cap an existing irrigation line near STA 
21+75.

Bid Item 15 - Deletion of landscape and irrigation restoration.

Bid Item 13 – Grind and 0.2’ Overlay Street / Intersection per 
City of Lake Forest Requirement – Unit price increase of $180 
from $235/TON to $415/TON for 105 TON installed on the 
project. Deduction of 325 TON at the unit price of $235/TON.

nm Serrano Creek Raw Water Replacement Final Accept EXHIBIT A.xlsx
9/3/2024 11:49 AM

A - 2



No. 10 RW Pipeline Replacement Technology and Ada Consultant Selection 10 

September 23, 2024 
Prepared by: A. Murphy / M. Cortez 
Submitted by: K. Burton 
Approved by: Paul A. Cook 

 
CONSENT CALENDAR 
 

TECHNOLOGY DRIVE AND ADA DRIVE RECYCLED WATER 
PIPELINE REPLACEMENT BUDGET ADDITION AND CONSULTANT SELECTION 

 
SUMMARY: 
 
The Technology Drive and Ada Drive Recycled Water Pipeline Replacement project will replace 
approximately 5,000 feet of asbestos cement pipe (ACP) mains used in the recycled water 
distribution system in the Irvine Spectrum.  Staff recommends that the Board: 

• Authorize the addition of Project 12979, Technology Drive and Ada Drive Recycled 
Water Pipeline Replacement, to the Fiscal Year (FY) 2024-25 Capital Budget in the 
amount of $2,819,000; and 

• Authorize the General Manager to execute a Professional Services Agreement with 
MKN and Associates, Inc. in the amount of $327,709 for engineering design services for 
the Technology Drive and Ada Drive Recycled Water Pipeline Replacement. 

 
BACKGROUND: 
 
This project will replace approximately 5,000 feet of ACP mains used in the recycled water 
distribution system in the Irvine Spectrum area of Irvine.  Specifically, the pipeline segments to 
be replaced are the six-inch ACP pipeline within Technology Drive, south of Alton Parkway, and 
the six-inch ACP pipeline within Ada Drive, between Barranca and Alton Parkways.  IRWD has 
experienced several leaks on these pipe segments, which were installed in 1985.  IRWD retained 
HDR to complete a forensic analysis of ACP and soil samples from several sites within the 
project area to determine the underlying cause of the failures.  The results revealed significant 
internal deterioration of the ACP, attributed to calcium loss caused by the moderately corrosive 
quality of IRWD’s recycled water in the past.  In this condition, ACP is more susceptible to 
breaks from normal peaks in daily pressure cycles.  A location map is provided as Exhibit “A”, 
which reflects the project limits and the ACP mains to be replaced. 
 
Consultant Selection: 
 
Staff issued a Request for Proposal for the design of the pipeline replacement to three 
consultants:  Cannon Corporation, MKN and Associates, and West Yost Associates.  All three 
consultants submitted proposals.  While each consultant showed a good understanding of the 
scope of work, MKN showed superior effort by evaluating the project area and identifying key 
design considerations that will be crucial to developing a complete and successful design.  MKN 
created an exhibit showing existing storm drain culverts, transformers, bus stops, and schools 
throughout the project area that will have to be taken into consideration when developing the 
pipeline alignment.  MKN’ s proposal also demonstrated that its team has the experience, scope 
understanding, and staff to complete the project in a timely manner.  MKN has performed well 
on recent IRWD projects, including the Serrano Creek Raw Waterline Replacement and the Park 



Consent Calendar:  Technology Drive and Ada Drive Recycled Water Pipeline Replacement 
Budget Addition and Consultant Selection 
September 23, 2024 
Page 2 

Plaza Recycled Waterline Replacement.  Staff’s consultant evaluation matrix and MKN’s 
proposal are provided as Exhibits “B” and “C”, respectively. 

Based on this, staff recommends the selection of MKN to provide design services for this 
recycled water pipeline replacement project. 

FISCAL IMPACTS: 

Project 12979 will be funded from the Sewer Replacement Fund and is currently not included in 
the FY 2024-25 Capital Budget.  The budget shown below is required to fund the design and 
construction phases for the project. 

Project 
No. 

Current 
Budget 

Budget 
Addition 

Total 
Budget 

12979 $0 $2,819,000 $2,819,000 

ENVIRONMENTAL COMPLIANCE: 

This project is subject to the California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA).  In conformance 
with the California Code of Regulations Title 14, Chapter 3, Section 15004, the appropriate 
environmental document will be prepared when "meaningful information" becomes available. 

COMMITTEE STATUS: 

This item was reviewed by the Engineering and Operations Committee on September 18, 2024. 

RECOMMENDATION: 

THAT THE BOARD AUTHORIZE THE ADDITION OF PROJECT 12979, TECHNOLOGY 
DRIVE AND ADA DRIVE RECYCLED WATER PIPELINE REPLACEMENT, TO THE 
FISCAL YEAR 2024-25 CAPITAL BUDGET IN THE AMOUNT OF $2,819,000, AND 
AUTHORIZE THE GENERAL MANAGER TO EXECUTE A PROFESSIONAL SERVICES 
AGREEMENT WITH MKN AND ASSOCIATES, INC. IN THE AMOUNT OF $327,709 FOR 
ENGINEERING DESIGN SERVICES FOR THE TECHNOLOGY DRIVE AND ADA DRIVE 
RECYCLED WATER PIPELINE REPLACEMENT, PROJECT 12979. 

LIST OF EXHIBITS: 

Exhibit “A” –  Location Map 
Exhibit “B” –  Consultant Selection Evaluation Matrix 
Exhibit “C” –  MKN and Associates’ Proposal 



9/9/24, 10:14 AM Mapplet Print Preview

about:blank 1/1

murphy
Cloud

murphy
Polygon

murphy
Rectangle

murphy
Text Box
EXISTING 6-INCH ACP RECYCLED WATER PIPELINE TO BE REPLACED

murphy
Text Box
Exhibit "A"TECHNOLOGY & ADA RECYCLED WATER PIPELINE REPLACEMENT LOCATION MAP

murphy
Text Box
Technology Drive



 
Note:  This page is intentionally left blank. 

 



Project No. 12979
CONSULTANT SELECTION MATRIX

Item Description Weights

A

1 Project Understanding & Approach 60%

2 Project Experience 20%

3 Project Team 20%

Weighted Score

B

TASK Task Hours Fee Task Hours Fee Task Hours Fee

1 108 $23,476 93 $22,475 122 $37,978

2 628 $248,507 492 $305,234 626 $329,280

736 $271,983 585 $327,709 748 $367,258

C

3 1 2

Technology Drive and Ada Drive Recycled Water Pipeline Replacement

Cannon MKN West Yost

TECHNICAL APPROACH

3 2 1

3 2 1

3.0 1.3 1.6

Ranking of Consultants 3 1 2

OTHER

Total Engineering Services Fee

SCOPE OF WORK

Project Management

Final Design

Ninyo & Moore AESCO Converse Consultants

Number of Drawings 24 39 23

Engineering Design Services Fee per Drawing $11,333 $8,403 $15,968
Sub Consultants

Insurance (Professional & General Liability) Workers' Comp missing check 
under Waiver of Subrogation

Expired Policy

Automobile Liability only covers 
hired and non-owned where 

should cover any auto.
Expired policy.

Workers' Comp missing check 
under Waiver of Subrogation but 

present in description.
Expired Policy

Potholing AirX Utility Surveyors, Inc. Underground Solutions Inc. Underground Solutions Inc.
DIR Numbers Provided 1000001861 (Cannon)

1000004481 (N&M)
1000008968 (AirX)

1000047956 (MKN) 1000028648 (WY&A)
1000012721 (BS&M)

1000001465 (Conv. Cons)
1000018146 (TCE)
1000014790 (USI)

Survey Cannon CALVADA Borchard Surveying
Traffic Control Engineering Cannon Traffic Control Engineering Traffic Control Engineering

Geotech

Exhibit "B"



Note:  This page is intentionally left blank. 



PROPOSAL FOR 
Engineering Design Services for Replacement of 
6-inch Recycled Water Pipelines
in Technology Drive and Ada
Submittal Due Date: September 3, 2024 at 4pm 
Malcolm A. Cortez, PE | Engineering Manager 
Submitted Via Email 

M K N | 1 6 3 1 0 B  A K E P A R K  W  A Y | I  R V I  N E , C A 9  2 6 1 8 | T 7 1 4 . 2 1 3 . 9 7 5 8 

Exhibit "C"

C - 1



PROPOSAL FOR IRVINE RANCH WATER DISTRICT - ENGINEERING DESIGN SERVICES FOR THE 
REPLACEMENT 6-INCH RECYCLED WATER PIPELINES IN TECHNOLOGY DRIVE AND ADA 1 

September 3, 2024 

Alex Murphy, PE  
Senior Engineer / Project Manager 
Operations Support and Pipelines 
Irvine Ranch Water District 
Via Email 

Subject: Proposal for Engineering Design Services for the 6-inch Replacement Recycled Water Pipelines in Technology 
Drive and Ada 

Dear Alex, 

Thank you for considering MKN and Associates (MKN) to submit a proposal for engineering design services for the 6-inch 
Replacement Recycled Water Pipelines in Technology Drive and Ada (Project). With our extensive experience and local 
expertise, we are confident in our ability to deliver a project that meets the Irvine Ranch Water District’s (IRWD) high 
standards for quality, efficiency, and reliability. 

Understanding of the Project: Our team fully understands the critical importance of maintaining and upgrading the 
recycled water infrastructure to ensure continued service reliability and operational efficiency. The aging 6-inch recycled 
water lines pose potential challenges that require meticulous planning and execution to minimize disruption to the 
community and ensure a seamless transition to the new system. To be prepared and expedite the design services, MKN 
has studied the project requirements and available background data such as IRWD provided record drawings, has 
produced the existing utility log for utilities in the project area, has made several site visits, and is fully prepared to hit 
the ground running. 

Local Expertise and Experience: What sets MKN apart is our strong connection to both the Irvine Ranch Water District 
and the City of Irvine. Our local team has a profound understanding of the district’s operations and the unique 
characteristics of the local environment through our recent design projects. We are proposing the same familiar team of 
Parasto Azami and Safa Kamangar for this project, augmented with additional design staff – all locally situated in Irvine 
– along with the expertise of Kevin Saleh as the technical lead for the project. This familiarity allows us to anticipate
potential issues and tailor our approach to fit the specific needs of your infrastructure.

Additionally, Safa Kamangar has previously served the City of Irvine as Consultant Project Manager. Through this 
experience, he understands, intimately, the City’s policies and procedures and has an established working relationship 
with the City’s Project Delivery and Inspection Team, including Alex Salazar, Manager of Project Delivery. This 
understanding and relationship will benefit the Project by minimizing the chance of design modifications during the 
construction. 

Moreover, our team brings extensive experience in handling similar projects. We have successfully completed numerous 
infrastructure upgrades within Orange County, including projects involving recycled water systems. Our track record 
demonstrates our commitment to excellence, adherence to timelines, and cost-effective solutions. 

Commitment to Quality and Collaboration: We are dedicated to maintaining open lines of communication with IRWD 
throughout the project lifecycle. Our approach emphasizes collaboration and transparency, ensuring that all stakeholders 
are informed and involved in key decisions. Our local presence allows us to be highly responsive and adaptable, 

C - 2



PROPOSAL FOR IRVINE RANCH WATER DISTRICT - ENGINEERING DESIGN SERVICES FOR THE 
REPLACEMENT 6-INCH RECYCLED WATER PIPELINES IN TECHNOLOGY DRIVE AND ADA 2 

addressing any concerns or adjustments promptly. 

In conclusion, MKN and Associates is well-positioned to execute the Project with the utmost professionalism and 
efficiency. We are excited about the opportunity to contribute to the enhancement of Irvine’s recycled water 
infrastructure and are confident that our proposal aligns with your objectives for this important project. We look forward 
to the opportunity to discuss our approach in greater detail and to answer any questions you may have. Please feel free 
to contact me directly at 949.637.3999 or skamangar@mknassociates.us. 

Sincerely, 

Safa Kamangar Parasto Azami 
Operations Manager/Quality Control Project Manager 

C - 3



PROPOSAL FOR IRVINE RANCH WATER DISTRICT - ENGINEERING DESIGN SERVICES FOR THE 
REPLACEMENT 6-INCH RECYCLED WATER PIPELINES IN TECHNOLOGY DRIVE AND ADA 3 

APPROACH 
MKN has provided an experienced, local team for the 
District’s project. This team has reviewed available as-
builts and visited the project site to assist in 
developing a detailed project approach and level of 
effort. 

To effectively manage the design services for the 6-inch 
Replacement Recycled Water Pipelines in Technology 
Drive and Ada, MKN will implement a comprehensive and structured approach. This approach will focus on ensuring 
minimal disruption to the Irvine Spectrum business area and complying with the City of Irvine's requirements. Below is 
a detailed plan for the design and coordination of this project: 
• City of Irvine Consultation: MKN will reach out to the City of Irvine early in the project to gather information on

existing pavement type, thickness, and the presence of paving fabrics (such as Petromat). Establish a point of
contact within the city's engineering and project delivery of public works department (both inspection group and
engineering group) for ongoing coordination.

• Community and Business Outreach: MKN will engage with Irvine Spectrum representatives, to inform them
about the project scope, timeline, and potential impacts. Establish a communication plan to keep stakeholders
informed throughout the project.

• Slurry Backfill and Steel Plating: MKN will coordinate with the City of Irvine in early stage of design regarding the
use of concrete slurry backfill in trench restoration.

• Meter Box Assessment: MKN will provide an initial condition evaluation of existing meter boxes for IRWD review 
and decision making. Evaluation will document the condition of each box and its surroundings to determine
which boxes require replacement or maintenance.

• Traffic Control: MKN’s traffic control subconsultant, David Kuan will identify Caltrans traffic control requirements 
and will develop a detailed traffic control plan that minimizes disruption to local businesses and traffic. Include
plans for phased construction, work during hours, and potentially night work, if required by stakeholders.

together, including 
IRWD, SCWD, EOCWD, YLWD

APPROACH & SCOPE 

C - 4



PROPOSAL FOR IRVINE RANCH WATER DISTRICT - ENGINEERING DESIGN SERVICES FOR THE 
REPLACEMENT 6-INCH RECYCLED WATER PIPELINES IN TECHNOLOGY DRIVE AND ADA 4 

MKN has reviewed the project record drawings and visited the project site and developed Figure 1 which highlights 
several of the design considerations, as outlined in the table below.  

Challenge Approach 
Traffic control – I5 FWY offramp Coordinate with Caltrans in early stage to 

coordinate work hours and traffic control 
measures 

Storm Drain Culvert - Crossing at 
Technology Dr and Parallel along 

ADA 

Obtain record drawings, perform pothole to 
maintain required clearance 

School Limit construction time around school schedule 
and maintain access during drop off and pick up 

Bus Stop Coordinate with OCTA in early stage to 
coordinate temporary bus stop relocations/ 
temporary closure 

C - 5



N

➤➤

N
Data SIO, NOAA, U.S. Navy, NGA, GEBCO

Data SIO, NOAA, U.S. Navy, NGA, GEBCO

Data SIO, NOAA, U.S. Navy, NGA, GEBCO

Image Landsat / CopernicusImage Landsat / Copernicus

Transformer

Transformer

BUS STOP

BUS STOP

BUS STOP

BUS STOP
BUS STOP

BUS STOP

BUS STOP

MONTESORI
SCHOOL

SCE Underground

Transformer

Transformer

Transformer

Underground
Power lines

Transformer
Telephone
Lines

3 Transformers

LEGEND
Current 6-inch ACP
Recycled Water

Underground
storm drain

Project Area of Concerns

Triple storm drain

Triples 12' x 11'
RCB storm
drain

BARANCA PKWY

ADA

TECHNO
LO

G
Y DR

ALTO
N PKW

Y

MAUCHLEY

I-5 FW
Y

Triples 12' x 11'
RCB storm
drain

Traffic Control
Signal

C - 6



PROPOSAL FOR IRVINE RANCH WATER DISTRICT - ENGINEERING DESIGN SERVICES FOR THE 
REPLACEMENT 6-INCH RECYCLED WATER PIPELINES IN TECHNOLOGY DRIVE AND ADA 6 

SCOPE OF WORK 
The following scope of work is based on our extensive pipeline design experience and the requested scope 
provided in the District’s RFP. We have provided a detailed scope of work as part of our proposal to assist in an 
expedited process between selection and notice to proceed. 

T A S K  1 

Project Management 

Task 1.A | Meetings 
Overall project management, which includes supervision of in-house staff, planning and monitoring of contract 
budget and schedule, and coordination with the District and MKN’s project team will be conducted by the MKN 
Project Manager. The Project Manager will review the status of budget, schedule, and relevant project issues with 
the District’s Project Manager on a bi- weekly basis via email or telephone. The design phase is assumed to be five 
(5) months.
MKN shall organize, attend, and conduct four

(4) meetings as part of this scope of services. The following meetings are included:
1. Kick Off Meeting (PM, PE) – 1-hour, virtual meeting
2. Preview Proposed Alignment Meeting (25%) - 1-hour, Virtual (25%) (PM, PE)
3. Presentation of the 70% Design (PM, PE) - 1-hour, In-person meeting
4. Presentation of the 100% Design (PM, PE) - 1-hour, In-person meeting

MKN will submit meeting agendas one week prior to the meeting and provide meeting minutes within one week of 
the meeting date. 

Deliverables: 
• Meeting Agendas/Meeting Minutes (8 total).

Task 1.B | Agency Coordination: 
MKN will coordinate with the City of Irvine and the California Department of Transportation (Caltrans) and identify all 
agency requirements for both design and construction.  MKN will present an estimated timeline for agencies to 
complete their plan review and work. In addition, MKN will coordinate with the Spectrum Center on construction 
sequencing and hours. MKN will explore alternative construction hours and days with representatives of stakeholders 
to minimize disruption to the heavily visited adjacent business and shopping Irvine Spectrum development.  

Deliverables: 
• Meeting Agendas/Meeting Minutes (3 total).

Task 1.C | Quality Assurance/Quality Control (QA/QC)
MKN will provide senior technical review and implement our quality assurance and quality control (QA/QC) measures 
throughout the project. Safa Kamangar will lead the QA/QC work throughout the project, Safa has provided 
engineering review for over 20 year and understands the District's protocols regarding project implementation. 

C - 7



PROPOSAL FOR IRVINE RANCH WATER DISTRICT - ENGINEERING DESIGN SERVICES FOR THE 
REPLACEMENT 6-INCH RECYCLED WATER PIPELINES IN TECHNOLOGY DRIVE AND ADA 7 

T A S K  2 

Final Design 
Task 2.A | Project Manual 
MKN will prepare Project Manual in standard IRWD format for the Contract Documents. IRWD’s front end 
documents will be utilized, and supplemental sections will be prepared as needed for the construction of a 
complete project. The Project Manual will describe the work, schedule, access or constraints, and sequencing 
associated with the work. The Project Manual also includes General Technical Specifications, modifications 
thereto, and any Project Technical Specifications. MKN will prepare the Project Manual in standard IRWD format. The 
Project Manual template will be provided in Microsoft Word format. MKN will provide a searchable PDF file of 
the bidding documents in 8-1/2 inch x 11-inch paper size. 

Deliverables: 
• Draft Project Manual Table of Contents to be submitted as part of the 25% submittal

• 70% Design Submittal – Complete Draft Project Manual.

• 100% Draft Design Submittal – Complete 100% Project Manual.

• Final Submittal – Final Project Manual, be QA/ QC’d by the Engineer, and with the Engineer’s electronic stamp and
signatures, ready for reproduction.

Task 2.B | Construction Plans 
MKN will prepare detailed Drawings on 22-inch x 34-inch paper size. The Drawings will be developed in the latest 
version of AutoCAD, using NCS V4.0 layering standards, and utilizing IRWD’s standard border template. Drawings 
prepared in AutoCAD with survey file provided by our sub as a base map. MKN will use the NAVD 88 and NAD 83 survey 
standards. The Drawings will include a sheet index/location map/legend, general notes, index map, notes, site plan, 
pipe abandonment, plan and profile, details, sections, elevations, and all details necessary for the construction of the 
Project. MKN will develop a detailed construction sequencing, shutdown, and dewatering strategy to minimize service 
interruptions. MKN will propose the pipe material based on utility research, potholing and geotechnical consideration. 
The following is a list of anticipated design drawings: 

Sheet 
No. 

Drawing No. Title 

1 G-001 Title Sheet 
2 G-002 Drawing Index, Abbreviations, Location and Index 

Maps, Legend, and Symbols 
3 G-003 Construction, Recycled Water and Surveying 

Notes 
4 D-101 Demolition Plan 
5 C-101 Plan and Profile Technology Drive I 
6 C-102 Plan and Profile Technology Drive II 
7 C-103 Plan and Profile Technology Drive III 
8 C-104 Plan and Profile Technology Drive IV 
9 C-105 Plan and Profile ADA I 

10 C-106 Plan and Profile ADA II 
11 C-501 Connection Details 
12 C-502 Standard Details 

13-39 TC-101- TC-127 Traffic Control Plans 

C - 8



PROPOSAL FOR IRVINE RANCH WATER DISTRICT - ENGINEERING DESIGN SERVICES FOR THE 
REPLACEMENT 6-INCH RECYCLED WATER PIPELINES IN TECHNOLOGY DRIVE AND ADA 8 

Deliverables: 
• 25% Draft design of alternative alignments as

• 70% Draft in Pdf format

• 100% Draft in Pdf format

• Final Drawings in Pdf format and CAD source files

Task 2.B-1 | Review of Background Material 
MKN shall review the data provided by the District as 
part of the District’s RFP; these documents include as-
built files and pipeline Atlas for the project area. MKN 
will prepare and submit a data request form for 
additional information needed from the District, which 
shall include but is not limited to: 

1. IRWD CAD standards, Title block and pen table
2. IRWD Project Manual template in Microsoft Word

format

3. IRWD Construction Manual
4. IRWD Standard Liquidated Damage Calculation Form

Task 2.B-2 | Utility Review 
MKN will perform utility research to locate utilities or other 
physical features including District utilities and utilities 
owned by other agencies (e.g., storm drain, electrical, gas, 
and telephone/communication duct banks). MKN will 
conduct multiple contacts to utilities failing to respond, and 
document all correspondence within a utility log. 
Additionally, MKN will review street improvement record 

drawings from the City of Irvine to confirm the existing street paving type (e.g. rubberized, Petromat) and any 
special requirements and costs for removal and disposal. Responses, including relevant utilities, will be included in 
the utility log. 

Deliverables: 
• Utility Log (PDF)

Task 2.B-3 | Pothole Investigation 
MKN’s subconsultant, USI, will complete potholes as needed to determine utility conflicts, e.g. proximity of 
crossings with existing water, sewer, storm drain, and dry utilities, with the proposed alignments of the replacement 
pipelines or to determine the locations and depths of existing mains at proposed points of connection. MKN has 
provided a unit cost to complete a total of 20 pothole excavations. This work shall include obtaining permits, and 
all necessary traffic control measures to perform the pothole excavations. If additional potholes are needed, they 
will be invoiced at the proposed unit price. All potholes will be surveyed. 

C - 9



PROPOSAL FOR IRVINE RANCH WATER DISTRICT - ENGINEERING DESIGN SERVICES FOR THE 
REPLACEMENT 6-INCH RECYCLED WATER PIPELINES IN TECHNOLOGY DRIVE AND ADA 9 

Deliverables: 
• Pothole Report (PDF)

Task 2.B-4 | Topographic Field Survey 
MKN’s subconsultant, Calvada, will perform field surveying and produce topographic maps that will be used as a 
base plan for the proposed improvements. Topographic map will Include all street right-of-way, property line and 
existing easement boundaries in the project area in the base map. MKN will recommend the width and length of 
the field surveying to capture the topographic features needed to complete the design. Our surveyor will obtain 
appropriate permits as required to perform the field survey. 

Task 2.C | Geotechnical 
MKN’s subconsultant, Aesco, will conduct an initial geotechnical study consisting of the following: 

• Review historical geotechnical reports for the site.

• Review and consultation with MKN regarding the existing pipeline, new pipeline construction methods,
and geotechnical aspects of the project.

• Perform geotechnical investigations (if needed, pending review of existing report) and up to 4 exploratory
borings (1 to 30 feet deep) to determine soil properties and conditions, and groundwater levels.

• Preparation of a Geotechnical report for the project summarizing our findings and conclusions regarding the
geotechnical conditions along the alignment.

Assumptions: 
Excavations will be backfilled and tamped with the excavated spoils and capped with hot-patch asphalt in 
pavement areas. No contaminated soil in the project area. Traffic control is required to perform the work. 

Deliverables: 

• Geotechnical report (PDF)

Task 2.D | Permits 
MKN will identify all permits required and their controlling agencies during the construction phase, including but not 
limited to the City of Irvine. Initiate and complete application process and secure permits with appropriate agencies 
and includes a copy of completed permits or the permit’s conditions at minimum as part of the Project Manual. 
Additionally, MKN will coordinate with property owners if a temporary construction permit is needed. 

Deliverables: 
• Completed permit application or the permit’s condition

Task 2.E | Project Schedule 
MKN will prepare a project schedule, utilizing Microsoft Project, which includes design through construction phases. 
MKN will prepare and include schedules with the following deliverables: 70% and 100%. 

Deliverables: 
• Project schedule as described above in PDF format

Task 2.F | CEQA Documentation 
MKN will provide exhibits and other information to assist IRWD with preparation of the CEQA documentation. 

C - 10



PROPOSAL FOR IRVINE RANCH WATER DISTRICT - ENGINEERING DESIGN SERVICES FOR THE 
REPLACEMENT 6-INCH RECYCLED WATER PIPELINES IN TECHNOLOGY DRIVE AND ADA 10 

 

  

Deliverables: 
• Exhibits as described above in PDF format 

Task 2.G | Liquidated Damages Calculations 

MKN will assist in calculation liquidated damages values using the IRWD's standard liquidated damage calculation 
forms provided by the District. 

Task 2.H | Opinion of Probable Construction Cost 
MKN will prepare a detailed and itemized opinion of probable construction cost for the proposed facilities for 
submission with each of the design deliverables (25%, 70%, 100% and Final). The Opinion of Probable Construction 
provided at the 100% and Final deliverable will be in the form of the Schedule of Work as included in the Bid Documents 
section of the Project Manual. The cost at 25% & 70% will be in unit cost form and considered a Class 3 per AACE 
Classification System. 

Task 2.I | Design Deliverables 
• 25% Draft: A searchable 25% design concept drawings, table of contents of Technical Specifications, and opinion 

of probable construction cost in PDF format. 
• 70% Draft: A searchable 70% design drawings, 70% Draft Project Manual, Project Schedule, and opinion of 

probable construction cost in PDF format. 
• 100% Draft: A searchable 100% design drawings, 100% Draft Project Manual, Project Schedule, and opinion of 

probable construction cost in PDF format. 
• Final: Final design drawings, Final Project Manual and Final opinion of probable construction cost in PDF format, 

CAD and Word source files 

Task 2.J | Bid Period Assistant 
 
During the bidding period, MKN shall assist with providing information and clarification of bid documents to prospective 
bidders. This shall include the preparation of one addendum for bidding, including revisions to the design plans and 
specifications and assistance with addressing bidder questions. The level of effort assumed for this task includes: 

• Plan Revisions: Eight (8) hours for plan revisions to the construction drawings. 
• Specification Revisions: Eight (8) hours for revisions or additions to the project specifications. 
• Bidder Questions: Four (4) hours to address and respond to bidder questions. 
• Pre-Bid Meeting: Attend a pre-bid meeting which may include a site visit. 

Deliverables: 
• One addendum (PDF)
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 

C - 11



PROPOSAL FOR IRVINE RANCH WATER DISTRICT - ENGINEERING DESIGN SERVICES FOR THE 
REPLACEMENT 6-INCH RECYCLED WATER PIPELINES IN TECHNOLOGY DRIVE AND ADA 11 

 

  

Ryan Gallagher, 
PE 

Irvine 

Safa Kamangar, 
PE 

Irvine 

PIPELINE DESIGN 
Lead Engineer: Ivy Sanders, PE 
Project Engineer: Judy Beik, PE 

Project Engineer: Cindy Esparza, PE 
Assistant Engineer: Sabrina Ryan 

TECHNICAL ADVISOR 
Kevin Saleh, PE 

 
 

SURVEY 
CALVADA 
Survey 

 
 

 

 

POTHOLING 
Underground 
Solutions Inc. 

 
Traffic Control 
Engineering 

  
 

  
 

 

 
 

 

PROJECT MANAGER 

Parasto Azami, PE 
 

PROJECT TEAM 

Principal-In-Charge QA/QC 

SECTION B 

 

Key Project Team Take-Aways: 
Local – All project team members 
are located less than 2.5 miles from 
the project site. 
Best Value - Project team members 
with decades of experience with 
similar projects. 
Local Experience – Key team 
members have extensive experience 
with IRWD, the City of Irvine, and The 
Irvine Company. 

C - 12



PROPOSAL FOR IRVINE RANCH WATER DISTRICT - ENGINEERING DESIGN SERVICES FOR THE 
REPLACEMENT 6-INCH RECYCLED WATER PIPELINES IN TECHNOLOGY DRIVE AND ADA 12 

 

  

Parasto Azami brings over 10 years of experience in water and wastewater engineering design, 
with a strong focus on pipeline design. Her expertise includes water conveyance systems, gravity 
sewers, force mains, pump stations, and the rehabilitation and condition assessment of 
infrastructure. She has successfully led numerous complex, large-scale pipeline projects, 
delivering reliable and sustainable solutions. Parasto's deep understanding of engineering 
challenges and commitment to excellence ensures optimal outcomes for her clients and 
stakeholders. 

Serrano Creek Raw Waterline Replacement | Irvine Ranch Water District, Irvine, CA  

Design Lead for replacement of an existing 8-inch diameter asbestos cement raw water pipe in the 
vicinity of Serrano Creek Trail in City of Lake Forest, with over 100 feet of trenchless/ tunneling 
pipe under the community wall. Task included identifying optimum alignment, coordinating with 
utility and jurisdiction agencies, preparing plans, specifications, cost estimates and construction 
schedules. 

Capital Improvement Water, Sewer, and Reclaimed Water Lines – Portola Parkway, 
Irvine Ranch Water District | Irvine, CA  

Project Engineer for design over 2 miles 30-inch domestic transmission water line, 10-inch sewer 
line, 16-inch recycled water lines and over 200 feet of trenchless/ tunneling pipe for new 
developments along Portola pkwy. 

Park Plaza Recycled Waterline Replacement | Irvine Ranch Water District, Irvine, CA  

Design Lead and Project Manager (on going) for replacement of existing 6-inch and 8-inch 
diameter asbestos cement recycled water pipe in Park Plaza. Task included identifying optimum 
alignment, coordinating with Irvine Company for work hours and traffic control, preparing plans, 
specifications, cost estimates and construction schedules. 

Circula Panorama Pipeline Replacement, East Orange County Water District | Orange, 
CA  

Project Manager for preliminary and final design of 4,000 feet of new 12-inch waterlines and three 
pressure reducing facilities. Major tasks included alternative analysis, utilities research, 
coordination with County for Traffic and pavement replacement requirements. 

Coastal Recycled Water Expansion Program Phase 4 Project, South Coast Water 
District | Dana Point, CA 

Project Manager (Ongoing) for design of 5,500 LF of new 8-inch PVC recycled water pipe as well 
as a new pressure reducing station along Ritz Carlton Dr, Selva Road and Pacific Coast HWY in 

the City of Dana Point. Key responsibilities include coordinating with the City of Dana Point and Caltrans for traffic control and work 
hours and conducting an alternatives analysis to determine the pipeline alignment with minimal impact on community access. 

Hollywood Beach & Roosevelt Waterline Replacement, Channel Islands Beach Community Services District | Channel 
Islands Harbor, CA 

Project Manager and Design Lead for replacement of an existing potable water line located within private easements and transferring 
customer services to new pipeline.  

Marriott Pipeline, South Coast Water District | Dana Point, CA 

Project Manager and Design Lead for design of new 12-inch water main via open trench and trenchless installation in the vicinity of 
the Laguna Cliffs Marriott in the City of Dana Point. 

 

PARASTO 
AZAMI, PE, PM 
PROJECT MANAGER 
 

EDUCATION 

MS, Civil Engineering, University 
of California Irvine, CA 

BS, Mechanical Engineering, 
Tabriz University, Iran  

LICENSES & REGISTRATIONS 

California Professional Engineer - 
Civil - No. 91468 

Project Management (PM) 
Certification - University of 
California, Irvine, CA 

PROFESSIONAL ASSOCIATIONS 

American Society of Civil 
Engineers (ASCE) 

Orange County Water Association 
(OCWA) 

UCI-CEE Affiliates (Former 
Program Committee Chair) 

Association of Women in Water, 
Energy & Environment (AWWEE) 

Woman in Water (OC Chapter) 

C - 13



PROPOSAL FOR IRVINE RANCH WATER DISTRICT - ENGINEERING DESIGN SERVICES FOR THE 
REPLACEMENT 6-INCH RECYCLED WATER PIPELINES IN TECHNOLOGY DRIVE AND ADA 13 

 

  

Safa Kamangar is a highly experienced professional with 27 years of expertise in water, 
wastewater, and water reuse. As a design engineer, Safa has provided hydraulic calculations, 
mechanical design, detailed design drawings, and development of specifications. He has a 
strong background in planning, design, and construction management, gained from working in 
both the private and public sectors. His expertise encompasses design, construction, and 
commissioning of water/wastewater infrastructure including more than 50 pumping facilities, 
15 wells, and more than 150 miles of pipeline ranging from 4 inches to 72 inches in diameter.  

Bonita Canyon Zone D to B Pressure Reducing Station Supply Pipeline Replacement 
| Irvine Ranch Water District, Irvine, CA 

Project Manager. Responsible for project oversight. The project included the design of a 12” 
CML&C pipe replacement across Bonita Canyon Road, connecting the recycled water Zone D 
of IRWD’s system to its Zone B system via an existing PRV Station. The project included 
extensive coordination with Caltrans and the City of Irvine for permitting the construction. 

Rockfield Zone 4 & 5 Flow Control Station | Irvine Ranch Water District, CA 

Project included installation of new flow control valve and by-pass to connect two different 
zones, including installation of a new SCADA cabinet and antenna, vault, new service, and 
provide traffic control plans and obtain permits from Cities of Irvine Lake Forest. 

Silverado Canyon Road Pipeline, Irvine Ranch Water District | Irvine, CA 

Project Manager for the design of pipeline based on data gathering and information collection 
performed. Work included performing field reconnaissance, field survey topographic maps, 
pothole information and geotechnical engineering recommendations. Design included plan and 
profile, pipeline connection details, road trench section replacement, traffic control plans, and 
all details necessary for construction of improvements for existing 8-inch domestic water line. 

Recycled Water Lateral Installation | West Basin Municipal Water District, CA 

Design services for construction of new RW pipeline and services in City of El Segundo to 
serve 5 new customers including Boeing and Digital Realty. Project included coordination and 
permitting from City and Metro, as well as coordination with final users for meter locations 
and easement requirements. 

UCI 12" Recycled Water, Irvine Ranch Water District | Irvine, CA 

Project Manager for preliminary design and alternative alignment evaluation for UCI's new 
12" recycled water system. Reviewed over 8 different possible alignments and made 
recommendations for construction. Designed the project and oversaw the construction. 

PA-5 New 24" Recycled Water Study, Irvine Ranch Water District | Irvine, CA 

Project Manager for preliminary design and alternative alignment evaluation for PA-5's new 
24" recycled water system. 

Project Lateral 6B, USACE/West Basin Municipal Water District | Los Angeles 
County, CA 

Project Engineer. In charge of design and calculations for 48,000-feet of recycled water 
pipeline ranging from 12-inch to 24-inch and a 5000 gpm booster pump station. Preliminary design report (PDR) and engineering 
calculations for 48,000-feet of recycled water pipeline ranging from 12-inch to 24-inch and 2500 gpm booster pump station. 

 

 

SAFA 
KAMANGAR, PE, PMP, 
CCM, QSD/P 
QUALITY CONTROL 
OFFICER 

EDUCATION 

Azad University, Iran - BS Civil 
Engineering 

University of Tehran - MS Civil 
Engineering 

LICENSES & REGISTRATIONS 

California Professional Engineer - 
No. C70118 (2006) 

Qualified SWPPP Developer (QSD), 
California - No. 23059 (2012) 

Project Management Professional 
(PMP) - No. 1863656 (2015) 

Certified Construction Manager - 
No. 6341 (2016) 

OSHA 30-Hour Construction 
Outreach Training 

OSHA 40-Hour HAZWOPER 
Certification 

Confined Space Training 

PROFESSIONAL ASSOCIATIONS 

American Public Works Association 
(APWA) 

American Society of Civil Engineers 
(ASCE) 

American Water Works Association 
(AWWA) 

Orange County Water Association 
(OCWA) 

C - 14



PROPOSAL FOR IRVINE RANCH WATER DISTRICT - ENGINEERING DESIGN SERVICES FOR THE 
REPLACEMENT 6-INCH RECYCLED WATER PIPELINES IN TECHNOLOGY DRIVE AND ADA 14 

 

  

Mr. Saleh has 29 years of experience as a civil engineer. His professional experience includes 
planning, design, construction management, and construction support services for various public 
works projects, with specific areas of practice in water and wastewater. His relevant experience 
includes water distribution and treatment facilities, pumping facilities, treatment plant 
projects/processes, reservoirs, pressure reducing, and surge facilities. Wastewater projects include 
conveyance systems, pumping stations, and treatment plant projects and processes. 

Turtle Rock Zone 3 Reservoir Chloramine Booster Station | Irvine Ranch Water District, 
CA 

Project Manager for this chloramine booster station installation project. The Turtle Rock Zone 3 
Reservoir (TR Z3 Res) is located at 13½ Minaret Drive in Irvine. It supplies water to the 
surrounding Turtle Rock neighborhood and the Zone 3 to 4 Pump Station (TR Z4 PS), which 
serves the uppermost portion of the community. IRWD has experienced degraded water quality at 
the TR Z3 Res due to nitrification caused by the loss of chlorine residual, excess free ammonia, 
and low water supply turnover. Currently, IRWD doses chlorine and ammonia at the Turtle Rock 
Zone 1 to 3 Pump Station to reduce nitrification in the system; however, this process is susceptible 
to chemical precipitation in the pipe where the chemical is injected and has required multiple 
replacements of the injection pipe. This project will install a chloramine booster station at TR Z3 
Res, similar to the chloramine booster stations that are in service at various reservoirs throughout 
IRWD’s potable system, to address and prevent nitrification and in-pipe chemical precipitation 
issues. 

Orange Heights Zone 5 to 6 Domestic Water and Zone C+ to D Recycled Water Booster 
Pump Station Project | Irvine Ranch Water District, CA 

Project Engineer responsible for the design of a combined domestic water pump station and 
recycled water pump station facility for a new 398-acre medium- and high-density residential 
development. The $2.0 million domestic water pump station consists of four (4) 15 HP and two 
(2) 100 HP variable frequency drive pumps, including standby pumps with a combined total 
capacity of 1,500 gpm, and the $1.9 million recycled water pump station consists of four (4) 15HP 
variable frequency drive pumps with a combined total capacity of 1,300 gpm. Both stations have 
5 HP jockey pumps. The preliminary design scope of work included hydraulic analysis and 
modeling, along with site and masonry building layout, perimeter walls with vehicular access, 
mechanical equipment and yard piping, and instrumentation and control systems.  

UCI Recycled Water Line | Irvine Ranch Water District, CA 

Project Engineer. Responsible for design, preparation of contract documents, and engineering 
services during construction for a new metering vault and approximately 5,700 LF of 16-inch and 
12-inch pipeline in California Ave from University Drive to Theory Lane and on Academy Way 
and Palteson Drive from California Avenue to the Cooling Towers. of 16-inch and 12-inch 
recycled water pipeline for UCI cooling towers.  

Rockfield Zone 4 to 3 Automated Valve Vault Rehabilitation | Irvine Ranch Water 
District, CA 

Project Manager. Responsible for the design of the rehabilitation of the existing valve vault and adding a control/pressure reducing 
valve and flowmeter, electrical panels, and SCADA system antenna.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

KEVIN 
SALEH, PE, PM 
TECHNICAL ADVISOR 

EDUCATION 

University of Tabriz, Iran - BS Civil 
Engineering 

Seneca College, Toronto - 
Computer Programming / System 
Analysis 

LICENSES & REGISTRATIONS 

Professional Engineer, Maryland - 
No. 36759 

Professional Engineer, California - 
Civil - No. C90535 

Project Management (PM) 
Certificate, Cornell University, 
Ithaca 

PROFESSIONAL ASSOCIATIONS 

American Membrane Technology 
Association (AMTA) 

Water Environment Federation 
(WEF) 

 

C - 15



PROPOSAL FOR IRVINE RANCH WATER DISTRICT - ENGINEERING DESIGN SERVICES FOR THE 
REPLACEMENT 6-INCH RECYCLED WATER PIPELINES IN TECHNOLOGY DRIVE AND ADA 15 

 

  

Ivy Sanders has been contributing to water infrastructure and site civil design projects for over 
five years. Ivy has worked on dozens of projects across California involving pressurized and 
gravity pipelines, pump stations, drainage infrastructure, and spillway and dam inlet/outlet works. 
Ivy specializes in hydraulic and hydrology analyses, system design, and preparation of plans, 
specifications and reports. Ivy also contributes to cost estimation, scheduling and logistics of 
project delivery. 

Serrano Creek Raw Waterline Replacement, Irvine Ranch Water District | Lake Forest, 
CA 

Project Engineer (Ongoing) for replacement of an existing 8-inch diameter asbestos cement raw 
water pipe in the vicinity of Serrano Creek Trail in City of Lake Forest. The major challenges to 
this project included identifying an optimal alignment for a new PVC raw water pipe that avoids 
encroaching on private property, provides adequate maintenance access and limits public impacts. 
The replacement design included a trenchless installation of a portion of the proposed pipe.  

Marriott Pipeline, South Coast Water District | Dana Point, CA 

Project Engineer (Ongoing) for design of new 12-inch water main via open trench and trenchless 
installation in the vicinity of the Laguna Cliffs Marriott in the City of Dana Point. 

Coastal Recycled Water Expansion Program Phase 4 Project, South Coast Water 
District | Dana Point, CA 

Project Engineer (Ongoing) for design of new 8-inch PVC recycled water pipe in the City of Dana 
Point to accomplish phase 4 of SCWD’s Recycled Water Roadmap.  

Jefferson Avenue Interconnection with Rancho California Water District Project, 
Western Municipal Water District | Murrieta, CA 

Project Engineer (Ongoing). Project involves designing an 18-inch PVC water pipe and two 
interconnection facilities to connect Western’s water supply system and the transmission facility 
owned by Rancho California Water District to enhance water supply reliability and resiliency to 
the Innovation Zone in City of Murrieta. The project also involves evaluating design alternatives 
for the pipe alignment and interconnection locations, preparing preliminary design report, and 
construction plans and cost estimates.  

Mockingbird Canyon Pipeline Emergency Repair Project, Western Municipal Water 
District | Riverside, CA 

Project Engineer. Project involves replacing a 20-inch steel pipe that is exposed to a creek bed 
located east of Mockingbird Canyon Road in City of Riverside with a 20-inch HDPE pipe. The 
project also involves site civil design such as backfilling of the exposed pipe area, installing 
gabions for erosion control, and earthen V-ditch to re-direct the creek flow. One challenge 
associated with the project is to complete design and construction within a fairly short time frame 
for the emergency repair.  

Calabasas Recycled Water Improvement, Las Virgenes Municipal Water District | 
Calabasas, CA 

Project Engineer for evaluation of 8,478 feet long recycled water pipeline with different size and materials following multiple leaks 
and breaks and abnormal pressure fluctuation within the pipe along Park Entrada in the City of Calabasas.  

 

 

IVY 
SANDERS, PE 
LEAD PROJECT 
ENGINEER 

EDUCATION 

University of California, Berkeley - 
MS Civil Engineering 

University of California, Irvine - 
BS Environmental Engineering 

LICENSES & REGISTRATIONS 

California Professional Engineer - 
Civil - No. C93269 

PROFESSIONAL ASSOCIATIONS 

Asian American 
Architect/Engineers Association 
(AAa/e, 2020–Present) 

Civil and Environmental 
Engineering Affiliates @ UCI 
(2020–Present, President 2021–
2022) 

Government Relations 
Committee, Orange County 
Branch, ASCE (2022–Present) 

Orange County Water Association 
(2021–Present) 

Orange County Branch, ASCE 
(2020–Present) 

Orange County Chapter, 
WaterReuse (2024-Present) 

 

 

C - 16



PROPOSAL FOR IRVINE RANCH WATER DISTRICT - ENGINEERING DESIGN SERVICES FOR THE 
REPLACEMENT 6-INCH RECYCLED WATER PIPELINES IN TECHNOLOGY DRIVE AND ADA 16 

 

  

 

 
 
 

SECTION C 

REFERENCES 

C - 17



PROPOSAL FOR IRVINE RANCH WATER DISTRICT - ENGINEERING DESIGN SERVICES FOR THE 
REPLACEMENT 6-INCH RECYCLED WATER PIPELINES IN TECHNOLOGY DRIVE AND ADA 17 

 

  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

C - 18



PROPOSAL FOR IRVINE RANCH WATER DISTRICT - ENGINEERING DESIGN SERVICES FOR THE 
REPLACEMENT 6-INCH RECYCLED WATER PIPELINES IN TECHNOLOGY DRIVE AND ADA 18 

 

  

 

C - 19



PROPOSAL FOR IRVINE RANCH WATER DISTRICT - ENGINEERING DESIGN SERVICES FOR THE 
REPLACEMENT 6-INCH RECYCLED WATER PIPELINES IN TECHNOLOGY DRIVE AND ADA 19 

 

  

 

SECTION D 

SCHEDULE 

ID Task Name Duration Start Finish Predecessors

1 PROJECT MANAGEMENT 6 days Tue 9/24/24 Tue 10/1/24

2 Notice of Award 0 days Tue 9/24/24 Tue 9/24/24

3 Prepare Work Plan 3 days Tue 9/24/24 Thu 9/26/24 2

4 Internal Kickoff Meeting 1 day Fri 9/27/24 Fri 9/27/24 3

5 Design Kickoff Meeting 0 days Tue 10/1/24 Tue 10/1/24 4FS+2 days

6 DESIGN 25 days Tue 12/17/19 Mon 1/20/20

7 Topographic Field Survey 15 days Fri 9/27/24 Thu 10/17/24 3

8 Review of Background Material 10 days Fri 9/27/24 Thu 10/10/24 3

9 Utility Review 10 days Fri 9/27/24 Thu 10/10/24 3

10 25% Design Set 9 days Fri 10/18/24 Wed 10/30/24 5,7,8,9

11 QC 3 days Thu 10/31/24 Mon 11/4/24 10

12 Deliver 25% Design Set 0 days Mon 11/4/24 Mon 11/4/24 11

13 25% Design Concept Preview Meeting 0 days Tue 11/5/24 Tue 11/5/24 12FS+1 day

14 Pothole Investigation 8 days Wed 11/6/24 Fri 11/15/24 13

15 Geotechnical 20 days Wed 11/6/24 Thu 12/5/24 13

16 70% Design Set 5 days Mon 11/18/24 Fri 11/22/24 13,14

17 QC 2 days Mon 11/25/24 Tue 11/26/24 16

18 Deliver 70% Design Set 0 days Tue 11/26/24 Tue 11/26/24 17

19 70% Design Submittal Preview Meeting 0 days Wed 11/27/24 Wed 11/27/24 18FS+1 day

20 Permits 15 days Mon 12/2/24 Fri 12/20/24 19

21 CEQA Documentation 15 days Mon 12/2/24 Fri 12/20/24 19

22 100% Design Set 32 days Fri 12/6/24 Thu 1/23/25 15,19

23 QC 3 days Fri 1/24/25 Tue 1/28/25 22

24 Deliver 100% Design Set 0 days Tue 1/28/25 Tue 1/28/25 23

25 100% Design Submittal Preview Meeting 0 days Thu 1/30/25 Thu 1/30/25 24FS+1 day

26 Final Design Set 8 days Thu 1/30/25 Mon 2/10/25 25,20,21

27 QC 3 days Tue 2/11/25 Thu 2/13/25 26

28 Deliver Final Design Set 0 days Thu 2/13/25 Thu 2/13/25 27

29 BID PHASE 38 days Thu 2/20/25 Tue 4/15/25

30 Bid Advertising 0 days Thu 2/20/25 Thu 2/20/25 27FS+4 days

31 Bid Opening 20 days Fri 2/21/25 Thu 3/20/25 30

32 Construction Award 18 days Fri 3/21/25 Tue 4/15/25 31

9/24

10/1

11/4

11/5

11/26

11/27

1/28

1/30

2/13

2/20

23 28 2 7 12 17 22 27 2 7 12 17 22 27 1 6 11 16 21 26 1 6 11 16 21 26 31 5 10 15 20 25 30 4 9 14 19 24 1 6 11 16 21 26 31 5 10 15 20 25 30

September 2024 October 2024 November 2024 December 2024 January 2025 February 2025 March 2025 April 2025 May 2

Task

Split

Milestone

Summary

Project Summary

Inactive Task

Inactive Milestone

Inactive Summary

Manual Task

Duration-only

Manual Summary Rollup

Manual Summary

Start-only

Finish-only

External Tasks

External Milestone

Deadline

Critical

Critical Split

Progress

Manual Progress

IRVINE RANCH WATER DISTRICT

6-inch Recycled Water Pipelines Replacement in Technology Drive and Ada 

Page 1

Project: IRWD Technology Dr-Schedule

Date: Tue 9/3/24

C - 20



No. 11 MWRP Programming Consultant Selection 11 

September 23, 2024 
Prepared by: R. Ovcharenko / R. Mori 
Submitted by: K. Burton 
Approved by: Paul A. Cook 

 
CONSENT CALENDAR 
 

CONTROL SYSTEM PROGRAMMING SERVICES FOR THE MICHELSON WATER 
RECYCLING PLANT TERTIARY FILTER IMPROVEMENTS PROJECT 

CONSULTANT SELECTION 
 
SUMMARY: 
 
The Michelson Water Recycling Plant (MWRP) Tertiary Filter Improvements project will 
rehabilitate the tertiary filters at this facility to improve performance and reliability by replacing 
deteriorating and obsolete equipment and infrastructure at the tertiary filter tanks area, air scour 
blower area, and the backwash supply pumps area.  Staff solicited proposals from control system 
programming firms for programmable logic controller (PLC), supervisory control and data 
acquisition (SCADA), and operator interface terminal (OIT) programming services for the 
project. 
 
Staff recommends that the Board authorize the General Manager to execute a Professional 
Services Agreement with W.M. Lyles Co. in the amount of $326,800 for control system 
programming services for the MWRP Tertiary Filter Improvements project. 
 
BACKGROUND: 
 
The purpose of the project is to rehabilitate the tertiary filtration system, which includes 
replacement of obsolete equipment and infrastructure at the tertiary filter tanks area, air scour 
blower area, and the backwash supply pumps area.  Items being rehabilitated include valves, 
slide gates, instrumentation, above-ground piping, yard piping, air compressor, air scour blower, 
backwash supply pumps, PLCs, electrical equipment, and electrical conduits.  The scope also 
includes construction of a new masonry block electrical building, concrete rehabilitation at the 
backwash supply tank, temporary backwash supply pumping, and temporary instrumentation and 
control systems to allow the existing tertiary filters to remain in service throughout the 
construction phase.  In May 2023, IRWD awarded construction of the project to Innovative 
Construction Solutions (ICS), and construction has been underway since then.  The project is 
scheduled for completion in April 2026. 
 
The control system programming for the project is a critical element that will ensure that the newly 
installed and upgraded control components are fully integrated into the existing MWRP SCADA 
system.  The project includes installation and programming of two new permanent PLCs, one 
temporary PLC, two new OITs, and 11 new valve control panels. 
 
The tertiary filters will remain in service throughout the duration of the construction.  As such, the 
field startup and testing activities for the new control system components will be conducted in a 
series of twelve phases over thirteen months in which each phase will require four to five days of 
field support from the control system programmer.  



Consent Calendar:  Control System Programming Services for the Michelson Water Recycling 
Plant Tertiary Filter Improvements Project Consultant Selection 
September 23, 2024 
Page 2 

Consultant Selection: 

Staff issued a Request for Proposal for control system programming services to three firms: 
Enterprise Automation, Prime Systems Industrial Automation, and W.M. Lyles Co.  Staff 
received proposals from all three firms.  While all three firms provided proposals that met the 
project objectives, W.M. Lyles Co.’s approach to the project exceeded that presented by the 
other firms.  The proposed key members of the W.M. Lyles Co. team have successfully 
completed previous projects for IRWD, and those key team members are well-versed in the 
District’s automation programming standards and requirements.  In addition, W.M. Lyles Co.’s 
estimated total hours to complete the work closely aligned with staff expectations.  The 
consultant selection matrix is provided as Exhibit “A”, and W.M. Lyles Co.’s scope of work and 
fee proposal as Exhibit “B”. 

Staff recommends that the Board authorize the General Manager to execute a Professional 
Services Agreement in the amount of $326,800 with W.M. Lyles Co. 

FISCAL IMPACTS: 

The MWRP Tertiary Filter Improvements, Project 07892, is included in the Fiscal Year 2024-25 
Capital Budget.  The existing budget is sufficient to fund the recommendation presented herein. 

ENVIRONMENTAL COMPLIANCE: 

This project is exempt from the California Environmental Quality Act as authorized under the 
California Code of Regulations, Title 14, Chapter 3, Section 15301 which provides exemption 
for minor alterations of existing public or private structures, facilities, mechanical equipment, or 
topographical features, involving negligible or no expansion of use beyond that existing at the 
time of the lead agency's determination.  A Notice of Exemption for the project was filed with 
the Orange County Clerk Recorder on April 2, 2021. 

COMMITTEE STATUS: 

This item was reviewed by the Engineering and Operations Committee on September 18, 2024. 

RECOMMENDATION: 

THAT THE BOARD AUTHORIZE THE GENERAL MANAGER TO EXECUTE A 
PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT WITH W.M. LYLES CO. IN THE AMOUNT 
OF $326,800 FOR CONTROL SYSTEM PROGRAMMING SERVICES FOR THE 
MICHELSON WATER RECYCLING TERTIARY FILTER IMPROVEMENTS, 
PROJECT 07892. 

LIST OF EXHIBITS: 

Exhibit “A” – Consultant Selection Matrix 
Exhibit “B” – Scope of Work and Fee Proposal 



Exhibit "A"

CONSULTANT SELECTION MATRIX

Item Description Weights

A TECHNICAL APPROACH

1 Project Understanding 30%

2 Project Approach 30%

3 Project Team 40%

Weighted Score

Ranking of Consultants

B SCOPE OF WORK

TASK Task Hours FEE Task Hours FEE Task Hours FEE

1 Project Management and Meetings 71 $16,565 280 $63,585 102 $20,400

2
Control System Software Configuration and 
Programming

733 $165,794 582 $131,532 1,001 $200,200

3 Field Startup and Testing 1,047 $240,358 670 $154,653 523 $106,200

TOTAL PROGRAMMING SERVICES 
FEE

1,851 $422,717 1,532 $349,770 1,626 $326,800

C OTHER

Exceptions taken to IRWD Std. Contract

Insurance (Professional & General Liability) Yes Yes

None None

3 1

2.7 1.0

3 1

Control System Programing Services for the Michelson Water 
Recycling Plant Tertiary Filter Improvements Project

Prime Systems Industrial 
Automation, Inc.

W.M. Lyles Co.

3 1

2 1

Enterprise Automation

2

3

Yes

2

2.3

2

None

9/6/2024 Exhibit A - Programming Services for MWRP Tertiary Filters Consultant Evaluation Matrix.xls



 
Note:  This page is intentionally left blank. 

 



2Scope

Exhibit "B"

B - 1



 1W. M. Lyles Co. System Integration Division

PROJECT UNDERSTANDING:
The Michelson Water Recycling Plant (MWRP) is a vital facility 
within the Irvine Ranch Water District (IRWD), treating up to 
28 million gallons per day (mgd) of sewage to produce Title 
22 recycled water for unrestricted use throughout the service 
area. A critical component of this treatment process is the 
tertiary filtration system, which relies on seven dual media 
filters to ensure water quality meets regulatory standards. 
The current project aims to rehabilitate this filtration 
system by replacing obsolete equipment and infrastructure 
to maintain operational efficiency and compliance. 

The scope of work involves significant upgrades to the tertiary 
filter tanks area, air scour blower area, and backwash supply 
pumps area. This includes the replacement of valves, slide gates, 
instrumentation, piping (both above-ground and yard piping), 
and other essential equipment such as air compressors, air 
scour blowers, backwash supply pumps, and programmable 
logic controllers (PLCs). Additionally, the project requires 
the construction of a new masonry block electrical building, 
rehabilitation of the backwash supply tank, and the installation 
of temporary systems to ensure continuous operation of the 
existing tertiary filters throughout the construction phase. 

The control system programming for this project is a critical 
element, ensuring that the newly installed and upgraded 
components are fully integrated into the plant’s operations. 
This includes the installation of a new PLC-810 for the 
tertiary filtration system, replacement of the existing PLC-
53, installation of new operator interface terminals (OITs), 
and the configuration of new valve control panels across 
the filtration and valve vault systems. Moreover, the project 
requires modifications to the existing PLC-8 to accommodate 
new air scour blowers and the installation of a new PLC-1060 
for the backwash supply pumps, alongside a temporary 
PLC-1060-Temp to manage the temporary backwash pump 
supply system.

PROJECT APPROACH:
With W. M. Lyles - System Integration Division’s (The WML-
SID) extensive history and experience in water and wastewater 
system integration, we understand that collaboration with the 
end-customer and system operators results in successful, 
high-quality projects. While each project may be unique, 
we find that taking a systematic approach and developing 
a clearly defined schedule provides transparency and open 
communication throughout the project. This approach 
ensures there are no surprises throughout the project 
lifecycle. For this project, we will leverage IRWD’s well-defined 
“Workflow Sequence for Software Development and Testing” 
process and IRWD’s programming standards, specifically 
the PLC control block library of DFBs and SCADA pre-built 

templates and objects. Additionally, we will develop the 
required new process DFB’s CtrlWTP001_Filter_t301 and 
Filter_t302 using IRWD’s defined workflow for custom DFB 
development. Our team is adept with IRWD’s standards and 
finds the process and use an effective means in achieving 
highly repeatable and consistent projects, from start to finish.
Due to the project being well-defined by IRWD with strong 
standards in place, the The WML-SID will follow the defined 
schedule set forth:

Kick-Off Meeting
Date: October 8, 2024
The Kick-Off meeting will involve the key team members 
to review the project. The The WML-SID will allocate a 
minimum of two (2) hours and will trigger steps 2 - 8 in 
the “Workflow Sequence”. 

Project Development
Steps 2 - 8 will cover all development and testing efforts 
associated with PLC-810 and PLC-1060. 
Steps 9 - 16 will be divided into twelve (12) startup 
phases, allowing IRWD to maintain the filtration system 
throughout the improvement process. The The WML-
SID will host four (4), two (2) hour design review 
meetings with IRWD as part of step three (3). Upon 
approval, we will host two (2), one (1) hour meetings for 
step four (4) quality review. The next stage is testing. 
The The WML-SID will adhere to IRWD’s steps 5 - 7 
process in developing a bench test plan, performing 
unwitnessed testing, then moving to step eight (8) and 
hosting four (4), eight (8) hour witnessed testing days 
at IRWD’s facility. All the above-mentioned activities will 
occur prior to the Phase 1 startup date scheduled for 
February 2025.

Field Startup and Commissioning
Phase 1 - PLC-810 and SCADA Setup for Field Testing/
Startup
Estimated startup date: February 2025
The WML-SID will perform step 9 for Phase 1.

Phase 2 - Filter 7 Field Startup and Testing
Estimated startup date: April 2025
The WML-SID will perform steps 9 10 - 16 for Phase 2.

Phase 3 - PLC-1060-Temp Field Startup and Testing
Estimated startup date: June 2025
The WML-SID will perform steps 9 - 16 for Phase 3.

CONTROL SYSTEM PROGRAMING SERVICES FOR THE MICHAELSON WATER RECYCLING PLANT
IRVINE RANCH WATER DISTRICT

B - 2



 2W. M. Lyles Co. System Integration Division

Phase 4 - Filter 6 Field Startup and Testing
Estimated startup date: June 2025
The WML-SID will perform steps 10 - 16 for Phase 4.

Phase 5 - Filter 5 Field Startup and Testing
Estimated startup date: August 2025
The WML-SID will perform steps 10 - 16 for Phase 5.

Phase 6 - Air Scour Blowers Startup and Testing and 
Modifications to Existing PLC-8
Estimated startup date: September 2025
The WML-SID will perform steps 10 - 16 for Phase 6.

Phase 7 - Filter 4 Field Startup and Testing
Estimated startup date: September 2025
The WML-SID will perform steps 10 - 16 for Phase 7.

Phase 8 - Filter 3 Field Startup and Testing
Estimated startup date: November 2025
The WML-SID will perform steps 10 - 16 for Phase 8.

Phase 9 - PLC-1060 Field Startup and Testing
Estimated startup date: December 2025
The WML-SID will perform steps 9 - 16 for Phase 9.

Phase 10 - Filter 2 Field Startup and Testing
Estimated startup date: January 2026
The WML-SID will perform steps 10 - 16 for Phase 10.

Phase 11 - Filter 1 Field Startup and Testing
Estimated startup date: March 2026
The WML-SID will perform steps 10 - 16 for Phase 11.

Phase 12 - Final Cutover from Existing PLC-53 to PLC-
810
Estimated startup date: March 2026
The WML-SID will perform steps 10 - 16 for Phase 12.

Project Handover
Upon completion of all twelve (12) phases, The WML-
SID will handover all project documentation to IRWD in 
compliance with the workflow sequence, step 12.

Project Complete

April, 2026

CONTROL SYSTEM PROGRAMING SERVICES FOR THE MICHAELSON WATER RECYCLING PLANT
IRVINE RANCH WATER DISTRICT

WM Lyles Co
Control System 
Integration and 

Solutions 

Engineering & 
Project 

Management

Electrical, 
Instrumentation, 

& Controls 
Design

SCADA Design 

Panel Design 
and Fabrication 

Retrofit 
Installation

Testing & 
Commissioning 

MULTI-DISCIPLINARY APPROACH
Our approach ensures that we not only meet but exceed client 

expectations, reinforcing our reputation as a trusted partner in the 
Water & Wastewater Industry.

B - 3



Job Name: Michelson Water Recylcing Plant Tertiary Filter Improvements

End Customer: Irvine Ranch Water District

Presented by: W. M. Lyles- System Integration Division

IR
W

D W
ork

flo
w

 

Sequence S
te

p

In
te

rn
al T

ask code

Pro
je

ct T
ask 

Descrip
tio

n

Auto
m

atio
n 

Engin
eerin

g
David

 E
ste

lle
Nath

an V
asquez

AJ C
otte

ngim
Jo

e V
ang

Danie
l T

am
Pro

je
ct M

anagem
ent

Kevin
 Ford

Task Tota
l H

ours
Pro

je
ct P

hase

Est. 
Pro

je
ct D

ate
s

Task C
ost

Com
p F

ee S
chedule

1 MTG - Meetings Project Kick-Off Meeting 2 1 1 1 1 16 22 0.1 10/8/2024 4,400.00$     

1 MTG - Schedule Development Generate Project Schedule to be presented to IRWD 32 32 0.1 6,400.00$     

Misc MTG - Project Scheduling Project Coordination, Updates, & Scheduling 24 24 0.1 4,800.00$     

2 WRK - Formal Workshop Generate Agenda & Attend Design Review Meeting 1 (Step 2) - PLC-810 8 8 0.2 1,600.00$     

2 WRK - Formal Workshop Generate Agenda & Attend Design Review Meeting 2 (Step 2) - PLC-1060 4 2 1 1 8 16 0.2 3,200.00$     20,400.00$     

2.5 IODB - Prepare IO Database Generate PLC Config File - PLC-810 (Step 2 to 3) 14 2 16 0.3 3,200.00$     

2.5 IODB - Prepare IO Database Generate PLC Config File - PLC-810 (Step 2 to 3) - Quality Control Check 3 3 0.3 600.00$     

2.5 IODB - Prepare IO Database Generate PLC Config File - PLC-1060 (Step 2 to 3) 10 2 12 0.3 2,400.00$     

2.5 IODB - Prepare IO Database Generate PLC Config File - PLC-1060 (Step 2 to 3) - Quality Control Check 3 3 0.3 600.00$     

2.5 IODB - Prepare IO Database Generate PLC Config File - PLC-1060 Temp (Step 2 to 3) 6 6 0.3 1,200.00$     

2.5 IODB - Prepare IO Database Generate PLC Config File - PLC-1060 Temp (Step 2 to 3) - Quality Control Check 3 3 0.3 600.00$     

2.5 PLC - Develop PLC Program Generate CtrlWTP001_Filter_t301 Derived Function Block Code (Step 2 to 3) 20 4 24 0.4 4,800.00$     

2.5 PLC - Develop PLC Program
Generate CtrlWTP001_Filter_t301 Derived Function Block Code (Step 2 to 3) - 

Quality Control Check
4 4 0.4 800.00$     

3.5 PLC - Develop PLC Program Generate Filter_t302 Derived Function Block Code (Step 3 to 4) 20 4 24 0.4 4,800.00$     

3.5 PLC - Develop PLC Program
Generate Filter_t302 Derived Function Block Code (Step 3 to 4) - Quality Control 

Check
4 4 0.4 800.00$     

2.5 OTS - Prepare Other Submittal Generate Custom DFB Manual - CtrlWTP001_Filter_t301 (Step 2 to 3) 34 6 2 42 0.5 8,400.00$     

2.5 OTS - Prepare Other Submittal Custom DFB Manual - CtrlWTP001_Filter_t301 (Step 2 to 3) - Quality Control Check 6 2 8 0.5 1,600.00$     

2.5 OTS - Prepare Other Submittal Generate Custom DFB Manual - Filter_t302 (Step 2 to 3) 34 6 2 42 0.5 8,400.00$     

2.5 OTS - Prepare Other Submittal Custom DFB Manual - Filter_t302 (Step 2 to 3) - Quality Control Check 6 2 8 0.5 1,600.00$     

3 OTS - Prepare Other Submittal
Generate  Design Package 1 (DSPKG#01) - PLC-810 (Step 3). Includes Custom DFB 

Manuals, PLC Config Files, loop descriptions, & initial graphical framework.
2 26 2 30 0.5 6,000.00$     

3 OTS - Prepare Other Submittal Design Package 1 (DSPKG#01) - PLC-810 - Quality Control Check 4 2 6 0.5 1,200.00$     

3 OTS - Prepare Other Submittal
Generate  Design Package 1 (DSPKG#01) - PLC-1060 (Step 3). Includes Custom 

DFB Manuals, PLC Config Files, loop descriptions, & initial graphical framework.
2 22 2 26 0.5 5,200.00$     

3 OTS - Prepare Other Submittal Design Package 1 (DSPKG#01) - PLC-1060 - Quality Control Check 4 2 6 0.5 11/12/2024 1,200.00$     53,400.00$     

3.5 PLC - Develop PLC Program Generate PLC-810 PLC Program (Step 3 to 4) 24 112 136 0.6 27,200.00$     

B - 4



Job Name: Michelson Water Recylcing Plant Tertiary Filter Improvements

End Customer: Irvine Ranch Water District

Presented by: W. M. Lyles- System Integration Division

IR
W

D W
ork

flo
w

 

Sequence S
te

p

In
te

rn
al T

ask code

Pro
je

ct T
ask 

Descrip
tio

n

Auto
m

atio
n 

Engin
eerin

g
David

 E
ste

lle
Nath

an V
asquez

AJ C
otte

ngim
Jo

e V
ang

Danie
l T

am
Pro

je
ct M

anagem
ent

Kevin
 Ford

Task Tota
l H

ours
Pro

je
ct P

hase

Est. 
Pro

je
ct D

ate
s

Task C
ost

Com
p F

ee S
chedule

3.5 PLC - Develop PLC Program PLC-810 PLC Program(Step 3 to 4) - Quality Control Check 12 12 0.6 2,400.00$     

3.5 PLC - Develop PLC Program Generate PLC-1060 PLC Program (Step 3 to 4) 16 72 88 0.6 17,600.00$     

3.5 PLC - Develop PLC Program PLC-1060 Program (Step 3 to 4) - Quality Control Check 8 8 0.6 1,600.00$     

3.5 PLC - Develop PLC Program Generate PLC-1060 Temp Program (Step 3 to 4) 2 40 42 0.6 8,400.00$     

3.5 PLC - Develop PLC Program PLC-1060 Temp PLC Program (Step 3 to 4) - Quality Control Check 6 6 0.6 1,200.00$     

3.5 OIT - Develop OIT Program Generate PLC-810 AVEVA Edge OIT application (Step 3 to 4) 50 10 60 0.6 12,000.00$     

3.5 OIT - Develop OIT Program PLC-810 AVEVA Edge OIT application (Step 3 to 4) - Quality Control Check 6 2 8 0.6 1,600.00$     

3.5 OIT - Develop OIT Program Generate PLC-1060 AVEVA Edge OIT application (Step 3 to 4) 32 8 40 0.6 8,000.00$     

3.5 OIT - Develop OIT Program PLC-1060 AVEVA Edge OIT Application (Step 3 to 4) - Quality Control Check 2 2 4 0.6 800.00$     

3.5 SCA - Develop SCADA application PLC-810 Process Area System Platform Process Area Development (Step 3 to 4) 60 20 80 0.6 16,000.00$     

3.5 SCA - Develop SCADA application
PLC-810 Process Area System Platform Process Area (Step 3 to 4) - Quality Control 

Check
8 8 0.6 1,600.00$     

3.5 SCA - Develop SCADA application PLC-1060 Process Area System Platform Process Area Development (Step 3 to 4) 32 8 40 0.6 8,000.00$     

3.5 SCA - Develop SCADA application
PLC-1060 Process Area System Platform Process Area (Step 3 to 4) - Quality 

Control Check
6 6 0.6 1,200.00$     

4 OTS - Prepare Other Submittal

Generate Quality Review Package #1 (QRPKG#01) - PLC-810 (Step 4). This includes 

Custom DFB, custom DFB manuals, current PLC config files, PLC program, SCADA 

backup, & OIT application file.

4 2 6 0.7 1,200.00$     

4 OTS - Prepare Other Submittal Quality Review Package (QRPKG#01) - PLC-810 (Step 4) - Quality Control Check 1 2 3 0.7 600.00$     

4 OTS - Prepare Other Submittal

Generate Quality Review Package #1 (QRPKG#01) - PLC-1060 (Step 4). This 

includes Custom DFB, custom DFB manuals, current PLC config files, PLC program, 

SCADA backup, & OIT application file.

4 2 6 0.7 1,200.00$     

4 OTS - Prepare Other Submittal Quality Review Package (QRPKG#01) - PLC-1060 (Step 4) - Quality Control Check 1 2 3 0.7 12/31/2024 600.00$     111,200.00$       

5 FFTP - Prepare Test Plans Submittal
Generate Control Systems Bench Test Submittal Package 1 (CSBTPKG#1) -  PLC-

810 (Step 5)
24 4 4 2 34 0.7 6,800.00$     

5 FFTP - Prepare Test Plans Submittal
Control Systems Bench Test Submittal Package 1 (CSBTPKG#1) - PLC-810 - Quality 

Control Check
8 2 10 0.7 2,000.00$     

5 FFTP - Prepare Test Plans Submittal
Generate Control Systems Bench Test Submittal Package 1 (CSBTPKG#1) -  PLC-

1060 (Step 5)
20 2 2 2 26 0.7 5,200.00$     

5 FFTP - Prepare Test Plans Submittal
Control Systems Bench Test Submittal Package 1 (CSBTPKG#1) - PLC-1060 - 

Quality Control Check
6 2 8 0.7 1,600.00$     

6 IST - Internal System Test
Perform Unwitnessed Control System Bench Test (CSBT1) -  PLC-810 (Step 

6/Step7). Results to be submitted prior to Witnessed Bench Test.
14 2 4 4 1 25 0.8 5,000.00$     

6 IST - Internal System Test
Perform Unwitnessed Control Systems Bench Test (CSBT1) -  PLC-1060 (Step 

6/Step 7). Results to be submitted prior to Witnessed Bench Test.
14 2 4 4 1 25 0.8 5,000.00$     

B - 5



Job Name: Michelson Water Recylcing Plant Tertiary Filter Improvements

End Customer: Irvine Ranch Water District

Presented by: W. M. Lyles- System Integration Division

IR
W

D W
ork

flo
w

 

Sequence S
te

p

In
te

rn
al T

ask code

Pro
je

ct T
ask 

Descrip
tio

n

Auto
m

atio
n 

Engin
eerin

g
David

 E
ste

lle
Nath

an V
asquez

AJ C
otte

ngim
Jo

e V
ang

Danie
l T

am
Pro

je
ct M

anagem
ent

Kevin
 Ford

Task Tota
l H

ours
Pro

je
ct P

hase

Est. 
Pro

je
ct D

ate
s

Task C
ost

Com
p F

ee S
chedule

7 - 8 FAT - Factory Acceptance Test Perform Witnessed Control System Bench Test (CSBT2) - PLC-810 (Step 8) 32 1 33 0.9 6,600.00$     

7 - 8 FAT - Factory Acceptance Test Perform Witnessed Control System Bench Test (CSBT2) - PLC-1060 (Step 8) 16 1 17 0.9 1/20/2025 3,400.00$     35,600.00$     

9 STC - Startup & Commissioning Phase 1 - PLC-810 & SCADA Setup for Field Startup (Step 9) 32 3 35 1 2/17/2025 7,000.00$     

9 - 11 STC - Startup & Commissioning Phase 2 - Filter 7 Setup for Field Startup & Loop Testing (Step 9/Step 10/Step 11) 20 20 2 4/14/2025 4,000.00$     

12 - 13 STC - Startup & Commissioning Phase 2 - Filter 7 Operational Testing (Step 12/Step 13) 8 8 2 1,600.00$     

14 - 15 STC - Punchlist Phase 2 - Filter 7 Punchlist (Step 14/Step 15) 4 4 2 800.00$     

9 STC - Startup & Commissioning Phase 3 - PLC1060-Temp Setup for Field Startup (Step 9) 32 32 3 6/9/2025 8,000.00$     

9 - 11 STC - Startup & Commissioning Phase 4 - Filter 6 Setup for Field Startup & Loop Testing (Step 9/Step 10/Step 11) 8 4 2 14 4 6/23/2025 2,800.00$     

12 - 13 STC - Startup & Commissioning Phase 4 - Filter 6 Operational Testing (Step 12/Step 13) 8 8 16 4 3,200.00$     

14 - 15 STC - Punchlist Phase 4 - Filter 6 Punchlist (Step 14/Step 15) 4 4 4 800.00$     

9 - 11 STC - Startup & Commissioning Phase 5 - Filter 5 Setup for Field Startup & Loop Testing (Step 9/Step 10/Step 11) 4 8 2 14 5 8/11/2025 2,800.00$     

12 - 13 STC - Startup & Commissioning Phase 5 - Filter 5 Operational Testing (Step 12/Step 13) 8 8 16 5 3,200.00$     

14 - 15 STC - Punchlist Phase 5 - Filter 5 Punchlist (Step 14/Step 15) 4 4 4 800.00$     

9 - 11 STC - Startup & Commissioning
Phase 6 - Air Scour Blowers Startup & Loop Testing & Modifications to Existing PLC-8 

(Step 9/ Step 10/ Step 11)
16 16 6 9/8/2025 3,200.00$     

12 - 13 STC - Startup & Commissioning Phase 6 - Air Scour Blowers Operational Testing to Existing PLC-8 (Step 12/ Step 13) 4 8 12 6 2,400.00$     

14 - 15 STC - Punchlist Phase 6 - Air Scour Blowers Punchlist (Step 14/ Step 15) 4 4 4 800.00$     

9 - 11 STC - Startup & Commissioning Phase 7 - Filter 4 Setup for Field Startup & Loop Testing (Step 9/Step 10/Step 11) 16 2 18 7 9/22/2025 3,600.00$     

12 - 13 STC - Startup & Commissioning Phase 7 - Filter 4 Operational Testing (Step 12/Step 13) 4 8 12 7 2,400.00$     

14 - 15 STC - Punchlist Phase 7 - Filter 4 Punchlist (Step 14/Step 15) 4 4 4 800.00$     

9 - 11 STC - Startup & Commissioning Phase 8 - Filter 3 Setup for Field Startup & Loop Testing (Step 9/Step 10/Step 11) 16 2 18 8 11/3/2025 3,600.00$     

12 - 13 STC - Startup & Commissioning Phase 8 - Filter 3 Operational Testing (Step 12/Step 13) 4 8 12 8 2,400.00$     

14 - 15 STC - Punchlist Phase 8 - Filter 3 Punchlist (Step 14/Step 15) 4 4 4 800.00$     55,000.00$     

9 STC - Startup & Commissioning Phase 9 - PLC-1060 Setup for Field Startup (Step 9) 32 2 34 9 12/8/2025 6,800.00$     

9 - 11 STC - Startup & Commissioning Phase 10 - Filter 2 Setup for Field Startup & Loop Testing (Step 9/Step 10/Step 11) 24 2 26 10 1/12/2026 5,200.00$     

B - 6



Job Name: Michelson Water Recylcing Plant Tertiary Filter Improvements

End Customer: Irvine Ranch Water District

Presented by: W. M. Lyles- System Integration Division

IR
W

D W
ork

flo
w

 

Sequence S
te

p

In
te

rn
al T

ask code

Pro
je

ct T
ask 

Descrip
tio

n

Auto
m

atio
n 

Engin
eerin

g
David

 E
ste

lle
Nath

an V
asquez

AJ C
otte

ngim
Jo

e V
ang

Danie
l T

am
Pro

je
ct M

anagem
ent

Kevin
 Ford

Task Tota
l H

ours
Pro

je
ct P

hase

Est. 
Pro

je
ct D

ate
s

Task C
ost

Com
p F

ee S
chedule

12 - 13 STC - Startup & Commissioning Phase 10 - Filter 2 Operational Testing (Step 12/Step 13) 6 6 10 1,200.00$     

14 - 15 STC - Punchlist Phase 10 - Filter 2 Punchlist (Step 14/Step 15) 2 2 4 400.00$     

9 - 11 STC - Startup & Commissioning Phase 11 - Filter 1 Setup for Field Startup & Loop Testing (Step 9/Step 10/Step 11) 24 2 26 11 3/9/2026 5,200.00$     

12 - 13 STC - Startup & Commissioning Phase 11 - Filter 1 Operational Testing (Step 12/Step 13) 6 6 11 1,200.00$     

14 - 15 STC - Punchlist Phase 11 - Filter 1 Punchlist (Step 14/Step 15) 2 2 4 400.00$     

9 - 13 STC - Startup & Commissioning Phase 12 - Final Cutover from Existing PLC-53 to PLC-810 8 24 32 12 3/23/2026 6,400.00$     

17 SNH - Project Handoff & Closeout Project Handover Documentation (Step 17) 4 4 8 16 13 4/1/2026 3,200.00$     

Misc AOC - Auxiliary & Other Equip Config

Valve Control Panel Setup. Configuration, Programming, & testing of the new valve 

control panels: LCP-0100, LCP-0200, LCP-0300, LCP-0400, LCP-0500, LCP-0600, 

LCP-0700, LCP-0800, LCP-0900, LCP-1000, LCP-1100,

80 14 12 106 21,200.00$     51,200.00$     

326,800.00$   

1477

149

1626Total

Total Project Cost

Project Hours

Automation Eng

Project Management

B - 7



 
Note:  This page is intentionally left blank. 

 



No. 12 On-Call Environmental Consultants 12 

September 23, 2024 
Prepared by: A. Uk 
Submitted by: F. Sanchez / P. Weghorst 
Approved by: Paul A. Cook 

ACTION CALENDAR 

ON-CALL ENVIRONMENTAL CONSULTANT SELECTIONS 

SUMMARY: 

IRWD retains consultants to provide on-call environmental compliance as well as monitoring and 
permitting services pursuant to the California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA), the National 
Environmental Policy Act (NEPA), and other regulatory requirements.  Staff has solicited and 
evaluated proposals from firms to perform future on-call services.  Staff recommends that the Board 
authorize the General Manager to: 

• Execute Professional Services Agreements for on-call CEQA / NEPA services, to be
provided for the next three years, with Environmental Science Associates (ESA), Psomas,
and Rincon Consultants, Inc. for $300,000 each, and

• Execute Professional Services Agreements for on-call biological monitoring and permitting
services, to be provided for the next three years, with Harmsworth Associates, Psomas, and
ESA for $300,000 each.

BACKGROUND: 

IRWD must comply with the requirements of CEQA for all project activities.  Where federal 
government action or funding is involved, compliance with NEPA is required.  IRWD must also 
comply with statutes, regulations, policies, and programs that require biological monitoring and 
permitting to carry out new projects, conduct operations and maintenance activities, and to address 
emergency conditions.  Following is a description of how IRWD uses on-call consulting services to 
fulfill these requirements.  Also provided is an overview of expected future on-call service 
requirements, and the selection of consultants to provide these services for the next three years. 

On-Call CEQA / NEPA Services: 

The use of on-call consultant for CEQA / NEPA work allows staff to efficiently address 
environmental review requirements for projects.  The types of tasks performed under on-call 
CEQA / NEPA consultants include general consultations and the preparation of Negative 
Declarations, Mitigated Negative Declarations, Environmental Impact Reports, Addenda, 
Environmental Assessments, and Findings of No Significant Impact.  Over the past four years, 
approximately $757,000 of CEQA / NEPA services were obtained on an on-call basis under 
agreements with environmental consultants at Dudek, ESA, LSA Associates and Psomas. 

On-Call Biological Monitoring and Permitting Services: 

The use of on-call consultants for biological monitoring and permitting services allows IRWD to 
task the consultants with time-sensitive activities.  Most of the tasks performed under such 
agreements include biological surveys, preparation of regulatory agency permit applications, wetland 



Action Calendar:  On-Call Environmental Consultant Selections 
September 23, 2024 
Page 2 
 
 
delineations and jurisdictional delineations, and mitigation monitoring.  Over the last four years, 
approximately $461,000 of monitoring and permitting services were obtained on an on-call basis 
under agreements with ESA, Harmsworth Associates, and Psomas. 
 
Future On-Call Requirements: 
 
To estimate future on-call CEQA / NEPA as well as biological monitoring and permitting needs, 
staff reviewed past utilization of on-call consultants.  Next, staff reviewed the capital budget for the 
next several years and determined that there will be continued need for CEQA / NEPA compliance 
services to support future projects.  Additionally, numerous existing and future capital projects will 
result in an increased need for multi-year mitigation monitoring reporting and permitting assistance.  
Based on these expectations, staff has estimated future on-call CEQA / NEPA and permitting needs 
for the next three years. 
 
Staff recommends an approach whereby six firms are retained to provide on-call services over the 
next three years.  Three of the firms are recommended to provide CEQA / NEPA services under 
agreements for amounts up to $300,000 each, and three firms are recommended to provide 
monitoring and permitting services under agreements for amounts up to $300,000 each.  Under these 
agreements, staff will issue project specific task orders based on negotiated scopes of work, cost 
estimates, and schedules for projects that have existing approved budgets. 
 
Consultant Selection Process: 
 
A Request for Proposals (RFP) for on-call CEQA / NEPA services was distributed to six 
environmental consulting firms.  Proposals to provide on-call CEQA / NEPA consulting services 
were received from Adurra Group, Inc., Dudek, ESA, LSA, Psomas, and Rincon.  Within the RFP, 
the consultants were asked to demonstrate: 

• A thorough understanding of CEQA and NEPA and associated processes; 

• A broad expertise and experience in performing CEQA / NEPA analysis and review work; 

• A history of successful CEQA / NEPA activities on behalf of clients; and 

• A long-standing working relationship with the natural resources agencies representatives. 
 
A separate RFP for on-call monitoring and permitting services was distributed to five environmental 
consulting firms.  Proposals for were received from Endemic Environmental Services, ESA, Psomas, 
Harmsworth Associates, and Rincon.  The monitoring and permitting RFP asked each consultant to: 

• Demonstrate an understanding of the processes of natural resources, wildlife, and regulatory 
requirements as well as the agencies with jurisdiction over permits and mitigation 
requirements; 

• Commit to responding to requests for service from IRWD in a timely and cost-effective 
manner; and 

• Document its knowledge and experience with endangered species issues and regulations, 
mitigation monitoring and reporting, IRWD’s Natural Treatment System, and the Natural 
Community Conservation Plan.  



Action Calendar:  On-Call Environmental Consultant Selections 
September 23, 2024 
Page 3 
 
 
Staff reviewed and evaluated each of the consultants’ proposals and recommends that Professional 
Services Agreements be awarded for CEQA / NEPA services to ESA, Psomas, and Rincon for 
$300,000 each.  Staff also recommends that Professional Services Agreements for biological 
monitoring and permitting services be awarded to Harmsworth Associates, Psomas, and ESA for 
$300,000 each.  The duration of each agreement will be three years. 
 
Each recommended firm has demonstrated extensive knowledge and experience with CEQA, NEPA, 
monitoring, and permitting requirements.  Each firm has committed to staff availability on an on-call 
basis and demonstrated excellent project team qualifications.  Each firm’s team have individuals that 
have demonstrated previous experience assisting IRWD or similar agencies with various 
CEQA / NEPA and permitting projects. 
 
A CEQA / NEPA services evaluation matrix based on staff’s review of the proposals is provided as 
Exhibit “A” and an evaluation matrix for monitoring and permitting services is provided as 
Exhibit “B.”  Pertinent sections of the CEQA / NEPA proposals from the recommended firms ESA, 
Psomas, and Rincon are included as Exhibits “C,” “D,” and “E,” respectively.  Pertinent sections of 
the monitoring and permitting proposals from the recommended firms Harmsworth Associates, 
Psomas, and ESA are included as Exhibits “F”, “G”, and “H” respectively. 
 
FISCAL IMPACTS: 
 
No new project budgets are required in executing these Professional Services Agreements.  Task 
orders for specific projects with existing approved budgets will be issued to the consultants under the 
terms of the agreements and negotiated scopes of work, costs, and schedules. 
 
ENVIRONMENTAL COMPLIANCE: 
 
Not applicable. 
 
COMMITTEE STATUS: 
 
This item was reviewed at the Engineering and Operations Committee Meeting on September 18, 
2024. 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
 
THAT THE BOARD AUTHORIZE THE GENERAL MANAGER TO EXECUTE 
PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENTS WITH ESA, PSOMAS, AND RINCON TO 
PROVIDE ON-CALL CEQA / NEPA SERVICES, FOR THE NEXT THREE YEARS, FOR 
NOT-TO-EXCEED AMOUNTS OF $300,000 EACH AND WITH HARMSWORTH 
ASSOCIATES, PSOMAS, AND ESA TO PROVIDE ON-CALL MONITORING AND 
PERMITTING SERVICES, FOR THE NEXT THREE YEARS, FOR NOT-TO-EXCEED 
AMOUNTS OF $300,000 EACH.  



Action Calendar:  On-Call Environmental Consultant Selections 
September 23, 2024 
Page 4 
 
 
LIST OF EXHIBITS: 
 
Exhibit “A” – 2024 On-Call CEQA / NEPA Services Evaluation Matrix 
Exhibit “B” – 2024 On-Call Monitoring and Permitting Services Evaluation Matrix 
Exhibit “C” – ESA Proposal for On-Call CEQA / NEPA Services 
Exhibit “D” – Psomas Proposal for On-Call CEQA / NEPA Services 
Exhibit “E” – Rincon Proposal for On-Call CEQA / NEPA Services 
Exhibit “F” – Harmsworth Associates Proposal for On-Call Monitoring and Permitting Services 
Exhibit “G” – Psomas Proposal for On-Call Monitoring and Permitting Services 
Exhibit “H” – ESA Proposal for On-Call Biological Monitoring and Permitting Services 



2024 ON-CALL CEQA / NEPA CONSULTATION SERVICES EVALUATION MATRIX
Item Description Weights

A Demonstration of CEQA/NEPA Skills and Rates
1 Understanding of IRWD's Needs 20%
2 Demonstration of CEQA Skills and Abilities 20%
3 Demonstration of NEPA Skills and Abilities 20%

4
Provided Staff Rates Consistent with Skills and Abilities 
Over Range of Staff on Project 20%

5
Demonstrated Ability to Coordinate with Other Consultants / 
Engineers 10%

6 Demonstrated Experience with MMRP's 10%
Weighted Score 30%

B DEMONSTRATION OF PROJECT SCOPING, COST ESTIMATING, 
AND SCHEDULING

1 Demonstrated Knowledge of Scope of Work 33.33%
2 Demonstrated Knowledge of Cost Estimates 33.33%
3 Demonstrated Knowledge of Project Schedules 33.33%

Weighted Score 20%
C QUALIFICATION AND EXPERIENCE

20%

30%
3 Project Team 30%
4 Firm's Relevance Experience 20%

Weighted Score 40%
D REFERENCES

Reference Project 1 

Score 50%

Reference Project 2

Score 50%
Weighted Score 10%

COMBINED WEIGHTED SCORE 100%
E OTHER

Multiplier

Sub Consultants
Exceptions taken to IRWD Std. Contract
Insurance (General Liability)
Insurance (Professional)

Rates Escalation

(Future years subject to 
review for Consumer 
Price Index escalation or 
3%, whichever is greater)

Increase in-line with CPI-U or 
3% whichever is greater N/A Changes annually per LSA 

discretion N/A 3.5% annual escalation

Principal In Charge Rate /hr $330 $300 $295 $190 $265 $307
Project Manager Rate /hr $280 $275 $256 $150 $207 $255

Ardurra Dudek ESA LSA Psomas

6 5 1 4 3 2

Rincon

5 6 1 5 3 2
5 6 1 4 3 2

6 4 2 5 1 3

6 5 2 4 1 3

5.60 5.20 1.30 4.40 2.40 2.30
6 4 1 5 3 2

6 5 1 4 3 2

6 5 1 3 2 4
5 6 1 4 2 3

5.67 5.33 1.00 3.67 2.33 3.00

Jennifer Jacobus
P.E., BS 35 years PhD. 26 years BA, 26 years BS, 35 years BS, 25 years PhD, 241 Principal / Director

Lisa Penna Rachel Struglia Tom Barnes

6 5 2

2
Project / Contract Manager Lori Trottier Rachel Struglia Sarah Spano Shanna Guiler

Deborah Pracilio Jennifer Marks

Sean Noonan Annaliese Torres
BS, AICP 34 years PhD. 26 years BA, 13 years MA, 21 years MS, 13 years BS, 7 years

4 3 1

6 5 1 4 2 3
4 2 1 5 3 6

5.40 4.10 1.20 4.30 2.50 3.50
6 5 1 4 2 3

OLIVENHAIN TRUNK 
SEWER IMPROVEMENT

Irvine Ranch Water District On-
Call Environmental Services

Syphon Reservoir Improvement 
Project EIR

The Woods Sewer 
Improvements

Santiago Creek Dam
Outlet Tower and

Spillway Improvement

Eastern Municipal Water District, 
On-Call Environmental Services: 
Cactus Avenue Corridor Project

CARANCHO PUMP 
STATION

Syphon Reservoir Improvement 
Project Interim Road Access

Eastern Municipal Water District 
On-Call

Environmental Services

San Joaquin Reservoir Filtration 
Facility
Project

Zone A to Rattlesnake 
Reservoir

Pump Station Project MND

City of Pismo Beach, Central 
Coast Blue Project

6 3 1 5 2 4

6.00 3.00 2.50 3.50 1.50 4.50
6 3 4 2 1 5

5.57 4.57 1.32 4.12 2.34 3.14

Yes; AQ/GHG, Noise, No No No No Yes, traffic

Yes; 1.5 rates over 8 hours 
single or Saturdays, double 
time Sundays and holidays

Yes; emergency and holidays 
@ two hours at 1.75 times

Yes, subcontracted services @ 
1.15 times invoiced amount; 

labor charges x 3% for tech and 
data management

No No No

YES YES YES YES YES YES
NONE Yes, Section 9 of Proposal NONE NONE NONE NONE

3Forced Rankings:(Enter 1-6, 1 being best) 6 5 1 4 2
YES YES YES YES YES YES

9/6/2024 Matrix_CEQA_NEPA 2024 - Combined Reviews

Exhibit "A"



 
Note:  This page is intentionally left blank. 

 



Exhibit "B"

2024 ON-CALL MONITORING AND PERMITTING SERVICES EVALUATION MATRIX

Item Description Weights

A Demonstration of Permitting Skills and Rates
1 Understanding of IRWD's Needs 10%
2 Land Use Planning 5%

3 Regulatory Agency Consultation, Permit Application and 
Procurement 10%

4 Wetland Delination 10%
5 Biological Survey, Monitoring, Assessment 10%

6 Threatened & Endangered Species Regulation, Monitoring 
and Reporting 10%

7 Mitigation Monitoring and Reporting 5%
8 Water Quality, Stormwater Monitoring and Reporting 5%
9 Natural Treatment System (NTS) 10%

10 Natural Community Conservation Plan/Habitat Conservation 
Plan (NCCP) 10%

11 Coordination with other Consultants/Engineers 5%

12 Staff rates consistent with skills and abilities over range of 
staff on the project 10%

Weighted Score 30%

B DEMONSTRATION OF PROJECT SCOPING, COST ESTIMATING, 
AND SCHEDULING

1 Demonstrated Knowledge of Scope of Work 33.33%
2 Demonstrated Knowledge of Cost Estimates 33.33%
3 Demonstrated Knowledge of Project Schedules 33.33%

Weighted Score 20%
C QUALIFICATION AND EXPERIENCE

20%

30%
3 Project Team 30%
4 Firm's Relevance Experience 20%

Weighted Score 40%
D REFERENCES

Reference Project 1 

Score 50%

Reference Project 2

Score 50%
Weighted Score 10%

COMBINED WEIGHTED SCORE 100%
E OTHER

Multiplier
Sub Consultants
Exceptions taken to IRWD Std. Contract
Insurance (General Liability)
Insurance (Professional)

Endemic ESA Harmsworth Psomas Rincon

5 4 1 3 2
5 1 4 3 2

5 3 4 1 2

5 1 4 2 3
1 3 2 5 4

1 3 2 5 4

5 1 4 3 2
5 1 4 2 3
1 2 3 5 4

5 1 4 3 2

5 1 3 2 4

2 5 1 3 4

3.50 2.40 2.85 3.20 3.05

4 1 2 3 5
3 5 1 2 4
4 5 1 2 3

3.67 3.67 1.33 2.33 4.00

1 3 5

3 5 4 2 1

Jennifer Marks Jennifer Jacobus
MS, 18 years BA, 26 years PhD, 35 years BS, 24 years PhD, 20 years

Tom Barnes Rodney Harmsworth
1 Principal / Director

Barry Nerhus

5 3 4 1 2

2
Project Manager Brian Mayerle Scott Holbrook Paul Galvin Amber Heredia Brenna Vredeveld

BS, 30 years BA, 30 years MS, 30 years MS, 28 years MS, 15 years
4 2

5 2 1 3 4
4.30 2.90 2.50 2.20 3.10

Fairview Park Wetlands 
Biological Monitoring and 

Riparian Habitat Restoration 
Project

Syphon Reservoir Geotechnical 
Investigation Project IS/MND

Permits for Irvine Ranch Water 
District projects – Irvine Ranch 

Water District

Santiago Creek Dam
Outlet Tower and

Spillway Improvement

The Metropolitan Water District 
of Southern California, On-Call 

Contract to
Provide Biological Resources 

Management, Regulatory 
Permitting and Guidance,

and Environmental Planning

5 1 2 3 4

Orange County Water 
District Prado Basin 

Sediment Demonstration 
Project for Habitat 

Restoration

San Joaquin Marsh 
Wetland/Riparian Habitat 

Concept Development

NROC coordination for Irvine 
Ranch Water District projects – 

Irvine Ranch Water District

Irvine Lake Pipeline (ILP) North
Conversion Project MND

Santa Clarita Valley Water 
Agency, Environmental On Call 

& Multiple Projects

5 1 2 3 4
5.00 1.00 2.00 3.00 4.00
4.00 2.71 2.32 2.61 3.35

Overtime- 9-12hrs per day Yes, subcontracted services @ No No No
No No No No Yes, Tierra Data, Inc for NTS 
No No No No

Forced Rankings:(Enter 1-5, 1 being best) 5 3 1 2 4

YES YES YES YES YES
YES YES YES YES YES

9/9/2024 Matrix_Permitting 2024 - Combined Reviews



 
Note:  This page is intentionally left blank. 

 



Irvine Ranch Water District

On-Call CEQA and NEPA 
Consultation

July 18, 2024
Environmental Science Associates

esassoc.com

Exhibit "C"

C-1



420 Exchange, Suite 260 
Irvine, CA 92602 
949.753.7001 phone 
949.753.7002 fax 
esassoc.com 

Environmental Science Associates 
esassoc.com 

July 18, 2024 

Irvine Ranch Water District 
Attention: Fiona M. Sanchez 
15600 Sand Canyon Avenue 
Irvine, CA 92618 

RE: Proposal for On-Call CEQA and NEPA Consultation 

Dear Ms. Sanchez:  

Environmental Science Associates (ESA), an employee-owned California corporation with an office in Irvine and 21 other loca-
tions, is an award-winning environmental consulting firm with 55 years of experience guiding projects through the environmen-
tal review process. Since 2009, ESA has enjoyed a solid working relationship with the Irvine Ranch Water District (IRWD or Dis-
trict) as a trusted California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) and National Environmental Policy Act (NEPA) on-call consult-
ant. We are pleased to present this proposal and look forward to continuing our successful work with the District. Our proposal 
includes a summary of ESA’s experience and capabilities; our key strengths that set us apart are summarized below: 

 ESA’s focus on CEQA and NEPA compliance for water and wastewater clients is unmatched. We provide the full
array of technical expertise needed to successfully prepare legally defensible environmental documentation for wa-
ter supply projects. Our Water Group’s core business is providing CEQA/NEPA compliance services to water utilities,
and the entire firm is focused on environmental problem solving that expedites project implementation.

 Experienced on-call environmental consultation providers. We have extensive experience providing on-call envi-
ronmental compliance services to public utilities in Southern California, including IRWD since 2009, Eastern Munici-
pal Water District since 2013, Inland Empire Utilities Agency since 2013, Los Angeles Department of Water and Power
since 2011, and California Department of Water Resources since 2000. We know what it takes to manage on-call con-
tracts effectively and successfully.

 We provide exceptional Senior Managers and a deep bench of Technical Experts. ESA’s senior management
team, led by Tom Barnes and Sarah Spano, provides centralized leadership, strategic support, and a commitment to
quality. Our job is to understand IRWD’s objectives and collaborate with the District to overcome environmental
compliance challenges. Sarah will be the primary point of contact and responsible for quality control of all products.

 We know IRWD. As an incumbent, ESA will hit the ground running. We have learned the District’s specific style, qual-
ity commitments, and cost control expectations, and we have established effective relationships with IRWD project
staff. This experience brings value to the District through strategic approaches to project implementation that mini-
mize costs through careful staffing and scoping based on current real-world experience and institutional knowledge.
ESA is committed to continuing this partnership with a strong level of excellence.

We have greatly valued our partnership with the District over the past 15 years, and we appreciate this opportunity to be con-
sidered for another contract term. This letter is signed by Tom Barnes, who as vice president has the authority to represent and 
contractually bind the firm, and Sarah Spano as the proposed client/project manager. Should you have any questions, please 
feel free to contact Sarah Spano at 213.599.4325 or sspano@esassoc.com.  

Sincerely, 

Sarah Spano,  
Client/Project Manager, Southern California Water Group Director 

Tom Barnes 
Principal Associate and Vice President 

C-2



Introduction
ESA is a leading planning and environmental consulting firm with 
over 750 employees across 21 office locations, including Irvine, 
along our nation’s West Coast and in Florida. With a commitment 
to the principles of responsible development and environmental 
stewardship, we bring 55 years of integrated experience in 
all aspects of project planning, regulatory compliance, and 
environmental analysis and assessment. ESA’s mission is to assist 
clients with advancing sustainability through planning, program 
development and implementation, and technical analyses that 
support strategic decision making. Our professionals regularly 
engage with public-sector clients to act as a single source for well-
reasoned and effective solutions.

We Know CEQA/NEPA
ESA has provided on-call environmental services to Irvine Ranch 
Water District (IRWD or District) since 2009. Accordingly, the staff 
selected for this on-call California Environmental Quality Act 
(CEQA) and National Environmental Policy Act (NEPA) consultation 
contract have an extensive portfolio of experience supporting the 
District with environmental compliance for small projects. As a 
foundation of our business, ESA is an expert in the development 
of CEQA/ NEPA compliance documents for municipal utilities, 
particularly Initial Studies, Addenda, Negative Declarations, 
Mitigated Negative Declarations (MNDs), and Environmental 
Impact Reports (EIRs). We also provide a full range of support 
services, including preparation of stand-alone technical studies 
and constraints analyses, biological and cultural surveys, water 
quality assessments, permit compliance, and construction 
monitoring. Our team is composed of scientists, planners, and 
engineers encompassing a wide diversity of specialties in the fields 
of biology, ecology, geology, hydrology, water quality, archaeology, 
architectural history, paleontology, air quality, greenhouse gases 
and climate change, noise, traffic management, city planning, and 
environmental sciences. 

SECTION 1:  SCOPE OF WORK
The following scope of work outlines the tasks necessary to 
provide IRWD with on-call professional services for CEQA and 
NEPA analysis and compliance as requested in the RFP. 

ESA'S CONTINUED 
COMMITTMENT TO IRWD
We are committed to quality 
assurance and quality control. 
Our value is linked to the quality of our 
analysis and documentation. As detailed 
in Section 2, ESA follows a strict QA/QC 
Plan. Comprehensive document reviews 
are crucial for successful projects.

We are committed to effective 
cost controls and pricing 
efficiency.  
From experience, we know cost controls 
are vital in scope and fee preparation, 
as costs relate to services, staff, and 
time. We review the scope to meet 
the District's objectives efficiently, 
recommending where to gain efficiencies 
without compromising essential support.

We are committed to close 
communication with IRWD staff. 
From experience, we know the 
importance of quickly elevating 
information to management. Prompt 
communication manages risks and 
fosters team trust.

On-Call CEQA and NEPA Consultation
  / July 18, 2024

1 Environmental Science Associates
esassoc.com

C-3



Management Approach
Availability and Schedule
IRWD’s need for on-call services over the next three years and the schedule for on-call projects will drive the team’s 
dedication to tasks as they are identified. Both Principal-In-Charge Tom Barnes and Project Manager Sarah Spano will 
commit time as specific tasks warrant. ESA is committed to meeting project schedule deadlines, and we have recent 
experience dedicating the time needed to get the job done on schedule. For example, under a previous on-call contract 
for IRWD, ESA completed four NOEs for and IRWD’s Energy Storage Systems Project within three days, as requested by 
IRWD to meet deadlines for consideration approval by IRWD’s Board of Directors. 

Sarah will manage project schedules, including monitoring progress of technical analyses, notifying team members of 
deadlines ahead of time, organizing conference calls, and managing production staff. Tom and Sarah have successfully 
partnered with IRWD to complete larger multi-year projects, like the Syphon Reservoir Improvement Project, while also 
completing CEQA/NEPA compliance for small projects as an on-call contract holder (see Table 1 below).

Project Controls and Invoicing
ESA takes a proactive approach to tracking, reporting, and controlling costs so that budgets are managed effectively. 
The first step in managing project costs is working closely with IRWD to establish a clear and detailed scope, schedule, 
and budget. As project manager, Sarah will work closely with the internal ESA team once scopes of work are approved 
by IRWD to ensure team members stay within the approved scope and budget. As part of this process, Sarah will 
identify in advance any work that is out of scope and communicate with IRWD. ESA has worked with IRWD in the past to 
move budget and scope within approved contracts to ensure the timely continuation of project work.  

ESA uses the Deltek electronic time reporting system to monitor and track staff activities for each project and submit 
monthly invoices efficiently. This system allows real-time monitoring of labor costs, which are compiled weekly and 
used to measure project performance as well as percentage of completion and percentage of budget spent. Our 
invoices include individual staff hours per project and any reimbursable, permitting, and filing fees. We include a 
customized progress report with each monthly invoice, indicating activities performed for active tasks during the 
invoicing period, expected activities for the next monthly period, and any expected challenges or problems. Under this 
contract, ESA will provide separate invoices for each project, and if requested by IRWD can provide a monthly summary 
of the overall purchase order status. 

Quality Control / Quality Assurance
All ESA work products are subject to a stringent QA/QC Program. The program consists of multiple levels of review, 
each requiring a sign-off from the manager in charge.

This approach provides for preparation of documents that have received reviews from senior technical leaders for 
accuracy of content, the overall project manager for compliance of task objectives, a technical editor for style and 
readability, and a project director to ensure documents are legally defensible, technically accurate, and tailored to meet 
client needs. As principal-in-charge, Tom will continue to oversee ESA’s QA/QC program in order to uphold IRWD’s 
rigorous standards for technical excellence in environmental documentation.  

Technical
Analysis

Technical
Lead Editorial Project

Manager
Principal-
In-Charge

REVIEW &
UPDATE

REVIEW &
UPDATE

REVIEW &
UPDATE

REVIEW &
UPDATE

On-Call CEQA and NEPA Consultation
  / July 18, 2024

2 Environmental Science Associates
esassoc.com

C-4



Technical Approach
Task 1: CEQA 
We understand IRWD has upcoming small-scale projects that could be implemented over the next three years. 
IRWD needs a firm that can respond quickly and efficiently to produce cost-effective, high-quality environmental 
documentation in compliance with CEQA. ESA’s Southern California Water Group specializes in impact assessments for 
the construction and operation of water infrastructure projects, including wells, pipelines, pump stations, storage tanks, 
and reservoirs. Providing CEQA compliance in the form of Addenda, Negative Declarations, and MNDs for these types 
of projects is our primary business. ESA provides full-service environmental support that includes in-house capabilities 
to perform technical studies, such as air emissions models; greenhouse gas (GHG) emissions analyses; noise models; 
biological surveys and monitoring; cultural resources surveys, monitoring, and tribal consultations; historic architectural 
assessments; traffic impact assessments; and visual simulations. Over the years, ESA has prepared multiple CEQA 
documents for IRWD, from the Syphon Reservoir Improvement Project EIR to smaller documents such as the Baker 
Water Treatment Plant Solar Addendum. 

ESA’s biologists have specialized experience working on projects within Orange County and the Orange County Natural 
Community Conservation Plan (NCCP)/Habitat Conservation Plan (HCP). ESA’s biology team is currently assisting IRWD 
with NCCP coordination for the Syphon Reservoir Improvement Project, meeting with the U.S. Fish and Wildlife Service 
(USFWS) and California Department of Fish and Wildlife (CDFW) to negotiate a mitigation plan. Also, our Southern 
California Cultural Resources Group is extremely knowledgeable about Assembly Bill (AB) 52, which was signed into 
law in September 2014 and requires lead agencies to consider the effects of projects on tribal cultural resources and 
to conduct consultation with federally and non-federally recognized Native American tribes early in the environmental 
planning process. ESA will assist the District with implementing this process and will ensure that CEQA/NEPA 
documents appropriately include the outcome of the Assembly Bill (AB) 52 consultation. This could include preparation 
of draft AB 52 consultation letters for submission to tribes that have requested consultation with IRWD. ESA is currently 
recently providing CEQA support to IRWD on the Syphon Reservoir Improvement Project Mitigation Site Addendum, 
including biological and cultural resources technical reports. 

For each CEQA or NEPA task order that is approved and issued by IRWD, we know there to be several rounds of review 
to ensure comments have been adequately addressed. IRWD expects to see a full Administrative Draft environmental 
document, a Screencheck Draft document showing revisions to IRWD comments, and finally a Public Draft 
environmental document that has been fully QA/QC reviewed before publication. After public comments are received 
on a draft document, ESA will prepare a final document and ensure appropriate public circulation prior to IRWD Board 
of Directors approval/certification hearings. 

Task 2: NEPA
We understand IRWD needs a firm that provides high-quality environmental documentation that complies with NEPA 
to satisfy the requirements of potential partner funding entities. ESA regularly produces joint CEQA/NEPA documents 
and stand-alone NEPA documents. We have recent experience working with staff at the State Water Resources Control 
Board (SWRCB), U.S. Bureau of Reclamation (Bureau), U.S. Army Corps of Engineers (USACE), and U.S. Environmental 
Protection Agency, to prepare CEQA-Plus and NEPA documents for projects that either will be located on federal lands 
or will be receiving federal funding. Tom and Sarah both have extensive experience assisting CEQA lead agencies to 
get through the CEQA-Plus review process for federally funded projects, as well as leading NEPA projects. Tom and 
Sarah are currently assisting Coachella Valley Water District (CVWD) on a CEQA-Plus EIR for a reduced water diversion 
project near the Salton Sea, working with the Bureau to satisfy federal funding requirements. Sarah is currently assisting 
Eastern Municipal Water District (EMWD) on a joint CEQA/NEPA MND/Environmental Assessment on an inland brackish 

On-Call CEQA and NEPA Consultation
  / July 18, 2024

3 Environmental Science Associates
esassoc.com

C-5



desalination project with the USACE as the federal lead. For IRWD, ESA prepared the Stockdale Integrated Banking 
Project EIR, which required coordination with the Bureau due to federal funding for the wells on Stockdale West; 
Sarah was deputy project manager and assisted in preparing the NEPA review. We have good working relationships 
with staff at federal agencies that are common funding sources, and we understand their specific NEPA compliance 
requirements. For example, the Bureau typically suggests preparation of a CEQA-Plus document with robust supporting 
cultural and biological technical studies that meet their requirements for federal cross-cutter consultation, such as 
State Historic Preservation Office and USFWS consultation. ESA understands the nuances and requirements of all 
federal lead agencies with whom IRWD may partner for funding purposes and is ready to provide comprehensive 
services. 

In addition, ESA has gained strategic staff additions from federal agencies, including Dr. Daniel Swenson, who worked at 
the USACE for 20 years. Daniel has leveraged his past relationships at USACE to move agency consultation and NEPA 
projects forward. Having former regulators on ESA staff will help the District interface with USACE.

Similar to the CEQA scope of work, ESA understands that IRWD will want several review cycles to finalize a NEPA 
document. Because there often is a federal joint lead agency involved, the review cycle for joint CEQA/NEPA 
documents can be more intensive. ESA will take into account these factors when preparing scopes and costs for 
individual task orders. 

Task 3: Staff Rates
The hourly rates for all staff and services resulting from this contract are provided in Section 5. Charges for time spent 
on project management, consultation, meetings, field work, data analysis, report preparation and review, etc., will be 
made at the category rates set forth in Section 5. Rates for non-labor expenses, such as reimbursable expenses and 
equipment usage are also provided in Section 5. 

Task 4: Project Task Item Estimates
Our typical on-call services contracts require us to prepare scopes of work, cost estimates, and schedules for projects 
as they arise. Level-of-effort estimates are developed by our project management team in coordination with technical 
staff as necessary. Staff are assigned based on project requirements. For IRWD, each new project will be established 
under this on-Call CEQA and NEPA consultation master contract and IRWD’s purchase order. Upon request, ESA will 
prepare and submit a scope of work, schedule, and budget to the District for new projects as they arise within three 
to five days. We also know sometimes that much time is not afforded, and have been able to provide a scope of work 
within one to two days. The most important aspect is to clearly understand IRWD’s expectations so that the scope 
and cost estimate meet the mark. ESA may want to have a meeting with IRWD to understand assumptions. The costs 
associated with preparing scope/schedule/budget packages will be ESA’s responsibility. With District approval of the 
scope and fee, ESA will begin work on new projects immediately following a notice to proceed.

Task 5: Team Experience
ESA has 55 years of experience in the environmental consulting business. We have excellent knowledge of the business 
locally, statewide, and nationally. Please refer to Section 2 for summaries of the experience, education, and skills of the 
key staff on the ESA team proposed for this on-call CEQA and NEPA consultation contract. Additional details about each 
team member are provided in the resumes attached as Appendix A.

Task 6: Project Coordination
ESA is accustomed to working with multiple stakeholders, agencies, and other consultants. Under the direction 
of IRWD, ESA will team or collaborate with other consultants in order to provide the best technical or regulatory 
expertise required to meet project objectives and provide services that are in the best interest of the District. One of 

On-Call CEQA and NEPA Consultation
  / July 18, 2024

4 Environmental Science Associates
esassoc.com

C-6



the most important aspects of environmental consulting is the ability to coordinate with multiple state and federal 
agencies on projects. Whether it be in the form of co-lead agencies for joint CEQA-NEPA projects, or early consultation 
with permitting agencies while a project is undergoing environmental review, ESA has demonstrated our ability to 
successfully coordinate with other agencies on IRWD’s behalf. Most notably for the Syphon Reservoir Improvement 
Project, which involved up-front coordination with the City of Irvine for traffic-related issues, as well as extensive 
consultation with USACE, RWQCB, and CDFW. Tom Barnes has been in the industry for decades and will be available 
to activate his extensive network of agency contacts for IRWD. To facilitate coordination of teams comprised of multiple 
consultants and agencies, ESA utilizes regularly scheduled conference call meetings to maintain focus of analyses, 
provide a forum for information exchange, and maintain compliance with project schedules and budgets.  

Task 7: Mitigation Monitoring and Reporting
As part of a typical scope of work for environmental compliance, ESA includes development of the Mitigation 
Monitoring and Reporting Program (MMRP) as required by CEQA. If requested by IRWD under this contract, ESA will 
implement the MMRPs associated with projects, including preparation of a reporting program designed to track 
the implementation and completion of each required mitigation measure, management of periodic monitoring 
activities and required field surveys, and preparation of periodic reports to document ongoing activities and eventual 
completion of the MMRP. ESA has staff that specialize in construction monitoring in both our Biological Resources & 
Land Management Group and Cultural Resources Group, and the project managers in our SoCal Water Group regularly 
manage large compliance efforts for water districts. 

ESA is currently implementing several large-scale MMRP compliance efforts for water districts in Southern California, 
including the Metropolitan Water District of Southern California (Metropolitan) Colorado River Aqueduct Conduit 
Structural Protection Project, the Los Angeles Department of Water and Power’s (LADWP) North Haiwee Dam No. 
2 Project, and EMWD’s San Jacinto Valley Enhanced Recharge and Recovery Program, all of which require multiple 
biological and cultural field staff conducting environmental compliance and rigorous systems to manage the volume of 
work and staffing. In the past five years, ESA has become highly adept at building teams to conduct this work, and we 
look forward to implementing MMRPs for various IRWD projects as part of this on-call services contract. 

Task 8: References 
As requested in the RFP, within Table 3-1, ESA provided two projects recently completed for IRWD in which IRWD staff 
members were involved. Figure 3-1: Irvine Ranch Water District Project Experience demonstrates projects the ESA team 
have completed over the course of our current on previous on-call contracts with IRWD. 

SECTION 2:  TEAM
Taking into consideration the nature of the contract, anticipated projects, and the various disciplines necessary to 
address CEQA/NEPA requirements, ESA has selected the proposed team based on continuity, technical expertise, 
exemplary qualifications, location and availability. These key personnel—the principal-in-charge, client/project 
manager, and task managers—will continue to lead, oversee, and be hands-on in their execution of the contract tasks. 
With intimate knowledge and understanding of IRWD’s policies and procedures, these task managers will continue to 
provide high-quality and responsive technical service as scientists, biologists, ecologists, and regulatory specialists. Our 
deep bench of specialists ensures that ESA can maintain responsiveness in the face of potential multiple, concurrent 
task orders and provide expedited service. ESA understands any substitution or addition of any key personnel must 
be requested in writing, along with a statement of qualifications and time commitment. We understand this request 
must be approved in writing in advance. Resumes of key personnel are provided in Appendix A. Following our key staff 
biographies, we have provided Table 2-1 demonstrating our support staff’s qualifications. Full resumes for technical 
support staff are available upon request.

On-Call CEQA and NEPA Consultation
  / July 18, 2024

5 Environmental Science Associates
esassoc.com

C-7



Technical Team Availability 
The ESA team understands that the availability of team members is of importance to the District; therefore, only staff 
with the availability to commit to this on-call CEQA and NEPA consultation contract’s scope of services are assigned to 
this project. We have included a generalized time-available percentage, but recognize that the services needed under 
this contract will be intermittent and varied, requiring periods of 100 percent commitment of key staff until tasks are 
complete. The work effort for our proposed key staff members will fluctuate as individual projects move from one phase 
to another. Based on the schedule and projected staff hours for implementation of the projects under this contract, we 
can confidently commit to the availability and participation of our proposed management and technical team leaders. 

Management Team Biographies
Tom Barnes | Principal-in-Charge  
Tom is an ESA vice president and a principal associate in the Southern California Water Group, focused 
on providing environmental planning and management services for water and wastewater utilities in 
the Southern California region. He has over 26 years of experience in CEQA/NEPA analysis, project 
management, environmental documentation, permit review and facilitation, and data analysis. A 

proven project manager specializing in water projects, Tom manages on-call multi-year environmental contracts for 
Southern California agencies, including Metropolitan and Orange County Sanitation District. Tom served as the project 
director for all IRWD projects described in Table 1, as well as smaller projects stemming from our previous and current 
on-call contracts with IRWD. Tom knows IRWD and your expectations for technical excellence. In addition, Tom has 
most recently overseen the completion of the following projects: West Basin Municipal Water District Ocean Water 
Desalination Project EIR; City of Ventura’s Ventura Water Supply Projects EIR; and the San Gabriel River Reduced 
Discharge EIR for the Los Angeles County Sanitation District. 

Project Availability:15% | Labor Category: Senior Principal Consultant 3 | Education: BA English, University of 
California, Berkeley

Sarah Spano | Client/Project Manager/CEQA/NEPA Documentation 
Technical Lead
Sarah has stepped into the role of director of ESA’s Southern California Water Group, managing a team 
of CEQA/NEPA planners who conduct environmental documentation and compliance for water and 
wastewater utilities throughout Southern California. She has over 13 years of experience managing 

CEQA documentation and coordinating environmental review for a variety of complex and controversial water and 
wastewater projects. She is currently the project manager for ESA’s on-call contracts with several large public water 
utilities in California, including DWR, EMWD, CVWD, and Otay Water District, for which she manages ESA’s technical 
and subconsultant team, tracks project schedules and milestones, and ensures timely and accurate transmission of 
deliverables. Sarah will serve as the project manager and primary point of contact for the District. She is experienced 
with processes like task order execution and organization and will provide prompt responses to IRWD task order 
requests and compile thoughtfully organized teams. She will also oversee all CEQA/NEPA documents prepared that 
may come out of this contract. Sarah has worked for IRWD as a deputy project manager for nearly 10 years, working 
on the Stockdale West Integrated Banking Project EIR, the Syphon Reservoir Improvement Project EIR, and the Syphon 
Reservoir Geotechnical Investigations Project MND, and is managing preparation of the Syphon Reservoir Improvement 
Project Mitigation Site Addendum. She understands IRWD’s expectations and looks forward to bringing her skills as 
contract manager for other water district on-calls to the District. 

Project Availability: 50% | Labor Category: Managing Consultant 4 | Education: BA, Anthropology/ Archaeology, New 
York University, magna cum laude

On-Call CEQA and NEPA Consultation
  / July 18, 2024

6 Environmental Science Associates
esassoc.com

C-8



Task Managers Biographies
Michael Burns | Geology/Hazards and Hazardous Materials & 
Groundwater Technical Lead
Michael has over 30 years of experience in the environmental and geological sciences including 
CEQA/NEPA assessment and impact analyses. He provides expert services in planning and permitting, 
site characterization, Superfund sites, remedial investigation/feasibility studies, waste management, 

litigation support, property assessments, development and redevelopment, soil and groundwater remediation, and 
water rights. His projects include municipal and regional water supply, industrial and manufacturing facilities, general 
plan updates, airports, levees, landfills, refineries, research and development facilities, hazardous waste management, 
vineyards, and commercial properties. Michael prepared the technical hazards, geology, and hydrology analysis for the 
Syphon Reservoir Improvement Project EIR and the Syphon Reservoir Geotechnical Investigations Project MND. 

Project Availability: 20% | Labor Category: Principal Consultant 3 | Education: B.S., Geology, San Jose State University 

Kyle Garcia | Cultural Resources/Tribal Consultation/AB 52 Technical 
Lead
Kyle has over 20 years of experience in cultural resources management, directing teams of specialists 
on projects involving a wide breadth of resource types in compliance with federal and state laws 
and regulations, including AB 52 and tribal consultations. He has served as cultural resources task 

lead on dozens of tasks for on-call contracts throughout Southern California, including projects for water utilities, 
sewer departments, and public works departments. He is skilled in evaluating historic and prehistoric archaeological 
resources, agency and Native American consultation, pedestrian surveys, testing and evaluation excavations, 
archaeological and paleontological construction monitoring, and laboratory processing. Kyle is a certified archaeologist 
and paleontologist in Riverside and Orange counties, and managed preparation of the Syphon Reservoir Mitigation Site 
Addendum Cultural Resources Assessment.

Project Availability: 20% | Labor Category: Principal Consultant 3 | Education: MA, Anthropology (Archaeology 
Option), California State University Los Angeles; BA, Anthropology, (Physical/ Biological Emphasis), University of 
California, Santa Barbara

Nick Garrity | Hydrology/Water Quality Technical Lead
Nick is the director of ESA’s Southern California Environmental Hydrology & Design Group. He is a 
hydrologist and civil engineer with more than 23 years of experience working with wetland, river, 
estuary, and coastal systems. His technical and project management experience includes the planning 
and design of multi-benefit wetland enhancement, restoration, and management projects; water 

quality and flood hazard studies; hydrodynamic modeling; environmental impact assessments; and post-project 
monitoring and evaluation. His technical skills and expertise include the assessmodeling of wetland hydraulics and 
water quality, sediment dynamics, and engineering design. With previous experience leading ESA’son the San Joaquin 
Marsh for the Peters Canyon Water Capture and Reuse Project, as well as the San Joaquin Marsh Wetland Mitigation 
Concept Design and Feasibility Study, and experience with various treatments wetlands and wetland maintenance and 
restoration projects, including San Joaquin Marsh/Peters Canyon, Big Canyon, and Aliso Creek, he is well-suited to lead 
the hydrology studies and analyses for IRWD.

Project Availability: 20% | Labor Category: Principal Consultant 3 | Education: MS, Civil and Environmental 
Engineering, University of California at Berkeley; B.S., Geology– Physics/ Mathematics, Brown University

On-Call CEQA and NEPA Consultation
  / July 18, 2024

7 Environmental Science Associates
esassoc.com

C-9



Alan Sako, LEED AP BD+C | Air Quality/Greenhouse Gas/Noise 
Technical Lead
Alan has over 22 years of experience in preparing and managing air quality and climate change 
analyses, performing ambient air quality impact analyses and health risk assessments for CEQA and 
NEPA documents, and providing air quality permitting and compliance support. He has experience with 

water infrastructure projects including facility master plans and projects spanning multiple city and county boundaries. 
Alan is cross trained in acoustical/noise modeling, and preparing hazardous materials business plans, risk management 
plans for hazardous substances, and off-site consequence analyses for hazardous substances. Alan oversaw 
preparation of the air quality, greenhouse gas emissions, energy, and noise assessments for the Syphon Reservoir 
Improvement Project EIR, Syphon Reservoir Geotechnical Investigations Project MND, and the Syphon Reservoir 
Improvement Project Mitigation Site Addendum. 

Project Availability: 20% | Labor Category: Principal Consultant 2 | Education: BS, Atmospheric, Oceanic & 
Environmental Science, University of California, Los Angeles 

Maile Tanaka | Biological Surveys/Monitoring & Reporting; T&E 
Species; MMRP Technical Lead
Maile has more than 18 years of experience in the field of consulting biology and is the Southern 
California biological resources CEQA/NEPA program manager at ESA. Her professional experience 
includes vegetation mapping, habitat assessments, botanical surveys (including tree inventories and 

rare plant surveys), focused surveys for special-status wildlife, nesting bird surveys, and jurisdictional delineations 
throughout Southern California. She has experience in preparing technical biological resources documents in 
accordance with CEQA guidelines for numerous complex projects and is well-versed with the requirements of the 
Orange County NCCP/HCP. Maile prepared the biological technical report for the Syphon Reservoir Improvement 
Project and the Project, which analyzed the project’s consistency with the County of Orange Central & Coastal 
Subregion NCCP/HCP. She also was the lead biologist who conducted and coordinated multiple years of focused 
surveys for special-status floral and faunal species in support of the, coordinated with USFWS and CDFW, and oversaw 
the biological monitoring conducted in compliance with the project’s MMRP and permit during implementation of 
the geotechnical work. Maile also coordinated with USFWS and CDFW regarding implementation of NCCP/HCP 
Construction-Related Minimization Measures.  

Project Availability: 30% | Labor Category: Managing Consultant 3 | Education: Master of Environmental Science 
& Management, University of California, Santa Barbara; BS, Organismic Biology, Ecology & Evolution, University of 
California, Los Angeles

Jonthan Teofilo | Traffic Technical Lead
Jonathan has over 10 years of experience providing analytical and technical leadership for a variety 
of transportation planning projects throughout the United States. Jon is actively managing or part of 
the management team for multiple CEQA and NEPA projects and oversees critical aspects of projects 
including document preparation and permit coordination. He is highly skilled in project management 

and coordination, public outreach activities, the preparation of environmental documents following state and federal 
regulations, and traffic and transit operations analysis.

Project Availability: 20% | Labor Category: Managing Consultant 3 | Education: BS, Environmental Studies, Biology 
Minor, California State University Sacramento 

On-Call CEQA and NEPA Consultation
  / July 18, 2024

8 Environmental Science Associates
esassoc.com

C-10



TABLE 2-1: SUMMARY OF ESA TECHNICAL TEAM STAFF AND QUALIFICATIONS

Name Education Technical Expertise

Nicolle Steiner
CEQA/NEPA Specialist
Availability: 40%
Labor Category: Managing 
Consultant 4

BS, Biology 
(Environmental), California 
State University, Northridge

Nicole has 18 years of experience performing 
environmental analysis to support CEQA and NEPA 
documentation. Nicole provides project management 
and senior oversight and analysis for water utility and 
municipal clients to facilitate timely completion of 
work products.

Kevin Smith 
CEQA/NEPA Specialist
Availability: 40%
Labor Category: Managing 
Consultant 3

BS, Natural Resource 
Management, 
Environmental 
Management, California 
Polytechnic State 
University, San Luis Obispo

Kevin has 15 years of experience as a senior 
environmental planner and project manager with 
focus on water and wastewater infrastructure 
projects. Kevin provides management, planning, 
and scientific expertise to support CEQA and NEPA 
compliance documents.

Justin Nguyen
CEQA/NEPA Specialist
Availability: 40%
Labor Category: Consultant 6

MS, Environmental Studies, 
California State University, 
Fullerton

BS, Biochemistry California 
State University, Fullerton

Justin has one year of experience in preparing 
environmental analysis documentation, primarily 
for hazards, geology, and hydrology. Justin is a 
deputy project manager who assists in schedule and 
assignment tracking. 

Katherine Tovey
CEQA/NEPA Specialist
Availability: 40%
Labor Category: Consultant 4

BS, Environmental 
Management and 
Protection, California 
Polytechnic State

University, San Luis Obispo

Kate has one year of experience preparing aesthetics, 
hydrology, and traffic CEQA sections, among others, 
for infrastructure projects.  

Amanda French
Biological Resources Specialist
Availability: 20%
Labor Category: Senior 
Consultant 1

BS, Field Biology, Ecology 
and Organismal Biology, 
Southern Oregon University 

Amanda has five years of experience in biological 
and regulatory monitoring, aquatic resources 
delineations, biological resources assessments, and 
protocol-level surveys.

Florence Chan 
Biological Resources Specialist
Availability: 20%
Labor Category: Senior 
Consultant 2

MS, Plant and Soil Sciences 
(Emphasis: Wildlife), 
Alabama A&M University
BS, Physical Geography, 
University of British 
Columbia

Florence has 18 years of experience in biological 
assessments, vegetation mapping, focused surveys 
for special-status species, nesting bird surveys, 
mitigation monitoring, and construction monitoring.

Fatima Clark
Archaeological Resources 
Specialist
Availability: 20%
Labor Category: Managing 
Consultant 3

BA, Anthropology, 
California State University, 
Fullerton

Fatima has over 15 years of archaeological 
experience, including CEQA/NEPA report writing, 
archaeological testing, site recordation, laboratory 
analysis, pedestrian surveys, records searches, and 
monitoring for a wide variety of energy, water, and 
road infrastructure projects

On-Call CEQA and NEPA Consultation
  / July 18, 2024

9 Environmental Science Associates
esassoc.com

C-11



TABLE 2-1: SUMMARY OF ESA TECHNICAL TEAM STAFF AND QUALIFICATIONS

Claudia Camacho-Trejo
Cultural Resources Specialist
Availability: 20%
Labor Category: Senior 
Consultant 1

BA, Anthropology, 
California State University, 
Los Angeles 
AA, Behavioral Studies, 
East Los Angeles 
Community College 

Claudia has 6 years of experience working as 
a cultural resource specialist and has authored 
and co-authored several technical reports for 
CEQA documents, archaeological peer reviews, 
archaeological monitoring reports, and reports under 
Bureau of Land Management requirements.

Shelbi Skillern 
Cultural Resources Specialist 
Availability: 
Labor Category: Consultant 2

AA, Anthropology and 
General Studies, Palomar 
College

Shelbi has 3 years of experience in survey, excavation, 
laboratory analysis and monitoringprojects.

James Jackson, PE
Hydrology Specialist
Availability: 10%
Labor Category: Senior 
Consultant 5

MS, Environmental 
Engineering, University of
California, Berkeley
BS, Civil and
Environmental
Engineering, University of
California, Berkeley

James has over 11 years of experience working with 
habitat restoration design and feasibility studies, 
floodplain and stormwater management, coastal 
and fluvial hydrology and geomorphology, local and 
regional climate change/sea-level rise vulnerability 
assessments, and coastal adaptation planning.

Elbert Hsiung
AQ/GHG/Energy Specialist
Availability: 20%
Labor Category: Senior 
Consultant 4

MPH, Public Health - 
Environmental Health 
Sciences, University of 
California Los Angeles
BS, Ecology, University 
of California, San Diego 
(Summa Cum Laude)

Elbert has six years of experience in performing air 
quality, greenhouse gases, health risk, energy, and 
noise analyses. Elbert assists in preparing and refining 
of air quality, GHG, and noise assessments to support 
planning and environmental review, including CEQA 
and NEPA documents.

Tim Witwer
Noise Specialist
Availability: 20%
Labor Category: Senior 
Consultant 3

BA, Environmental Studies, 
University of California, 
Santa Barbara

Tim has 8 years of experience with performing 
air quality impact assessments, GHG analyses, 
and energy assessments to support planning and 
environmental review, including CEQA and NEPA 
documents.

SECTION 3:  REFERENCES
Over the past 15 years, we have built a relationship with IRWD founded on trust and mutual respect, consistently 
reinforcing our commitment through successful projects. Our partnership thrives on open communication and shared 
values, ensuring that each project meets its goals with precision and excellence. Through our dedication and deep 
understanding of each project’s needs, our relationship has only grown stronger, delivering ever-greater results. The 
map below illustrates the success of our partnership, serving as a testament to our enduring commitment to IRWD and 
the communities that benefit from our collaborative efforts.

On-Call CEQA and NEPA Consultation
  / July 18, 2024

10 Environmental Science Associates
esassoc.com

C-12



In addition to our longstanding partnership with IRWD, ESA has a proven track record of supporting water districts 
across Southern California with services that align with the requirements outlined in this RFP. For over a decade our 
clients including Metropolitan, EMWD, LADWP, and DWR have benefited from our expert as-needed consultant 
services as we have consistently delivered defensible CEQA/NEPA support, technical assistance (such as biological, 
cultural, hydrologic, and permitting expertise), resource management planning, and comprehensive long-range 
planning documents similar to the scope of our work with IRWD. Detailed descriptions of these projects, along with an 
overview of our current IRWD contract, are provided below, showcasing our capability and commitment to excellence.

On-Call Contracts
Irvine Ranch Water District | On-Call Environmental 
Services
Since 2009, ESA has supported IRWD with on-call environmental services for its 
project planning, construction, operation, and maintenance activities, including 
CEQA/NEPA and permitting services, biological/cultural resources assessments, 
hydrologic modeling, water quality assessment, and mitigation compliance 
monitoring. To date, ESA has responded to over 20 individual task order 
assignments, mostly including IS/MNDs and CEQA Addenda from prior EIRs. 
ESA has also assisted in emergency repair work for IRWD treatment facilities, 
including the Michelson Water Reclamation Plant Phase 2/3 Capacity Expansion 
EIR Addendum No.4: Emergency Recycled Water Discharge.

Figure 3-1: Irvine Ranch Water District Project Experience

IRWD Staff: Paul Weghorst, Fiona 
Sanchez, Kellie Welch, Andy Uk

Dates: 2009-Present

On-Call CEQA and NEPA Consultation
  / July 18, 2024

11 Environmental Science Associates
esassoc.com

C-13



Tabel 3-1: IRWD Reference Projects

Syphon Reservoir Improvement Project EIR. ESA prepared an EIR for the expansion of Syphon Reservoir and Dam in 
Orange County. ESA provided extensive biological surveys and cultural surveys, assisted IRWD with AB 52 process 
for Tribal consultation, facilitated coordination with USFWS and CDFW for mitigation associated with the Orange 
County Central/ Coastal NCCP/HCP and applicable Grant Deed restrictions for the site, and obtained a Jurisdictional 
Determination from USACE and worked with IRWD to negotiate a Streambed Alteration Agreement with CDFW 
covering all geotechnical investigation activities in less than one year. The project would increase its recycled water 
storage capacity from 500 to 5,000 acre-feet. This will allow IRWD to maximize use of its recycled water instead of 
discharging it into the ocean while reducing the District’s dependence on imported water supplies during the summer 
months. The Reservoir Expansion Draft EIR was published in March 2021.  
Staff: Paul Weghorst, Fiona Sanchez, Kellie Welch

Syphon Reservoir Geotechnical Investigations Project. Syphon Reservoir Geotechnical Investigations Project. ESA 
prepared an MND that geotechnical work needed in order to determine the design of the future enlarged dam at 
Syphon Reservoir. ESA provided extensive biological surveys and cultural surveys in support of the Initial Study/
MND; assisted IRWD with the AB 52 process for tribal consultation; facilitated coordination with USFWS and CDFW 
for mitigation associated with the Orange County Natural Community Conservation Plan/Habitat Conservation Plan 
and Grant Deed restrictions for the site; and secured a Jurisdictional Determination from the USACE and Streambed 
Alteration Agreement from CDFW in less than 1 year. The Final Initial Study/MND was adopted by IRWD in June 2019. 
Staff: Paul Weghorst, Fiona Sanchez

Eastern Municipal Water District | On-Call 
Environmental Services
Since 2013, ESA has provided CEQA and NEPA consulting services to EMWD. In 
that time, ESA has become a trusted advisor in the development of technically 
sound and comprehensive environmental documents for various water 
infrastructure projects. Most notably, ESA prepared a Program EIR for the San 
Jacinto Valley Enhance Recharge and Recovery Project that included many CIP 
projects intended to capture and store imported water for later use. The PEIR 
included project-level CEQA analysis for facilities EMWD planned for the near 
term, allowing the design and construction to begin immediately after CEQA 
approval. These facilities include recharge basins, pipelines, wells, and treatment 
facilities in San Jacinto and Hemet, for which ESA conducted biological and 

cultural resources compliance monitoring in accordance with the approved MMRP. For the more long-term components 
of the project, ESA prepared program-level CEQA documentation that allows EMWD to analyze environmental 
impacts generally at the conceptual level in order to cover the entire program. ESA is currently working with EMWD on 
subsequent phases of the ERRP, tiering appropriately from the PEIR by means of CEQA Addenda.

Los Angeles Department of Water and Power | On-Call 
Environmental Services
Since 2011, ESA has supported LADWP by providing a full array of environmental 
services in an on-call capacity to the Office of Environmental Planning and 
Assessment. ESA has responded to a wide range of planning, permitting, and 
compliance needs for capital projects and for routine and emergency operations 
and maintenance activities with qualified technical experts in all environmental 
disciplines. Over the 13 years that ESA has been contracted with LADWP, we have 
routinely worked on approximately 20 open task orders simultaneously at any 
given time. To date, ESA has responded to 132 individual task order assignments 

Client Contact: Joseph 
Broadhead, Principal Water 
Resource Specialist,

Phone: 951.928.3777 ext. 4545

Dates: 2013-Present

Client Contact: Jane Hauptman, 
Manager of Environmental 
Planning and Assessment

Phone:  213.367.0968

Dates: 2011-Present

On-Call CEQA and NEPA Consultation
  / July 18, 2024

12 Environmental Science Associates
esassoc.com

C-14



for projects involving CEQA and construction monitoring/compliance, including Operation NEXT Water Supply Program 
EIR, Century Trunk Line Project MND, and cultural resources construction monitoring and MMRP compliance for the 
North Haiwee Dam No 2 Project.

California Department Of Water Resources | On-Call 
Environmental Services
Since 2006, ESA has supported DWR on a range of projects within the Southern 
Division of the California State Water Project system. ESA’s services have 
included strategic environmental planning, impact assessment, NEPA/CEQA, 
biological and cultural surveys, mitigation planning, mitigation monitoring, 
habitat conservation plan compliance, and permitting for multiple task orders. 
To date, ESA has responded to over 100 individual task order assignments. In 
the past five years, ESA supported four of DWR’s largest programs from the San 
Luis to the Southern Field Division: two MNDs to support the California Aqueduct 
Subsidence Program, the Castaic Dam High Intake Tower Access Bridge Retrofit 
Project IS/MND, Lake Perris Emergency Release Facility Project permitting and 
pre-construction activities, and the Salton Sea Monitoring Implementation Plan.

SECTION 4:  SCHEDULE
Responsiveness
ESA is a seasoned on-call environmental consultant serving public and private entities. In some cases, project 
assignments are initiated on short notice with a quick turn-around time required. In many cases, ESA has signed a 
master services agreement specifically to facilitate quick project turnarounds. Depending on the nature of the project, 
ESA is poised to respond within hours, if needed. Moreover, due to our Irvine office’s proximity to IRWD headquarters 
and central location within the overall jurisdiction, we can participate in on-site meetings or be at an IRWD project site 
with short notice; these attributes are representative of an extension of staff. ESA prides itself on the ability to deliver 
high quality consultation and documentation to meet the specific needs of specific task assignments under other on-
call contracts and ESA will perform and provide this high-quality work for all projects undertaken for IRWD.

Project Schedule
ESA understands the schedule required for CEQA compliance depends on the complexity of the project, the 
completeness of the project objectives and description, and the level of controversy associated with project 
components. We know that the tasks to initiate immediately are AB 52 outreach with Native American tribes, which can 
take several months, as well as initiation of technical surveys and reports, which can require up-front records searches 
that must be completed before surveys are conducted. With a completely developed project description, a Mitigated 
Negative Declaration requires approximately four to six months to prepare, circulate for public review, and certify. An 
Addendum to an EIR typically can be completed within one to two months. When a project requires intensive technical 
studies or neighborhood outreach, the schedule can be extended by several months. 

NEPA documents also can be prepared efficiently depending on the complexity of the project and the federal lead 
agency involved. However, federal approval of EAs generally adds at least several months to the CEQA schedule due 
to the additional agency coordination. For this reason, we typically work with the federal lead agency to negotiate 
preparation of a CEQA-Plus document instead of a joint CEQA/NEPA document. We have found that after completion 
of a CEQA-Plus document, the process of coordination with the SWRCB for SRF funding can add several months to 
the project schedule, depending on the level of effort needed to comply with Section 106 of the National Historic 
Preservation Act, and any consultation that may be needed with USFWS. 

Client Contact: Sarah Cannon, 
Manager of the Environmental 
Coordination Section, Division of 
Engineering

Phone: 916.882.2829

Dates: 2000-Present

On-Call CEQA and NEPA Consultation
  / July 18, 2024

13 Environmental Science Associates
esassoc.com

C-15



SECTION 5:  FEE SCHEDULE
The range of rates shown for each staff category reflects ESA staff qualifications, expertise, and experience levels. 
These rate ranges allow our project managers to assemble the best project teams to meet the unique project 
requirements and client expectations for each opportunity. Subcontracted services will be invoiced at cost multiplied 
by 1.15. We have provided our Fee Schedule following Section 9: Sample Contract.

Environmental Science Associates | Fee Schedule
Charges will be made at the category hourly rates set forth below for time spent on project management, consultation, 
or meetings related to the project, field work, report preparation and review, travel time, etc. Time spent on projects in 
litigation, in depositions, and providing expert testimony will be charged at the category rate times 1.5. The estimated 
hours below are representative of a typical MND ESA might prepare under this on-call, with the total budget estimated 
at $94,440. 

Staff Name, Role, Labor Category Hourly Rate Estimated Hours

Tom Barnes, Principal-In-Charge, Senior Principal Consultant 3 $295 24

Michael Burns, Geology/Hazards and Hazardous Materials & Groundwater 
Technical Lead, Principal Consultant 3

$265 0

Kyle Garcia, Cultural Resources/Tribal Consultation/AB 52 Technical Lead, 
Principal Consultant 3

$265 16

Nick Garrity, PE, Hydrology/Water Quality Technical Lead, Principal Consultant 3 $265 0

Alan Sako, LEED AP BD+C, Principal Consultant 2 $238 0

Sarah Spano, Client/Project Manager/CEQA/NEPA Documentation Technical 
Lead, Managing Consultant 4

$256 40

Nicolle Ianelli Steiner, CEQA/NEPA Specialist, CEQA/NEPA Specialist, Managing 
Consultant 4

$256 0

Maile Tanaka, Biological Surveys/Monitoring & Reporting; T&E Species; MMRP, 
Managing Consultant 3

$234 24

Jonathan Teofilo, Traffic Technical Lead, Managing Consultant 3 $234 16

Fatima Clark, Archaeological Resources Specialist, Managing Consultant 3 $234 0

Kevin Smith, CEQA/NEPA Specialist, Managing Consultant 3 $234 0

James, Jackson, PE, Hydrology Specialist, Senior Consultant 5 $233 0

Elbert Hsiung, Air Quality/Greenhouse Gas/Energy Specialist, Senior Consultant 4 $212 60

Tim Witwer, LEED AP BD+C, Noise Specialist, Senior Consultant 3 $192 20

Florence Chan, Biological Resources Specialist, Senior Consultant 2 $171 80

Claudia Camacho-Trejo, Senior Consultant 1 $155 80

Amanda French, Biological Resources Specialist, Senior Consultant 1 $155 0

Justin Nguyen, CEQA/NEPA Specialist, Consultant 6 $169 0

Katherine Tovoy, CEQA/NEPA Specialist, Consultant 4 $143 140

Shelbi Skillern, CEQA/NEPA Specialist, Consultant 2 $117 0

On-Call CEQA and NEPA Consultation
  / July 18, 2024

14 Environmental Science Associates
esassoc.com

C-16



ESA Expenses
A. Travel Expenses

1. Transportation
a. Company vehicle – fixed rate + fee for mileage in excess of 100 miles.
b. Common carrier or car rental – actual expense multiplied by 1.15
c. If company vehicle is to be used in off-road conditions, a daily $15 use fee will be added to the stan-

dard daily vehicle rate.
2. Lodging, meals and related travel expenses – direct expenses multiplied by 1.15

B. Technology and Data Management Fee
Non-travel expenses incurred for the duration of the agreement for project support but not itemized below. Proj-
ect labor charges multiplied by 3%.Fee encompasses the following:
1. Ongoing long-term retention and retrieval, management, and security of project-related data.
2. Proprietary tools, cloud data services (ArcGIS Online Hosting $225 per month), data science and AI 

capabilities as required for project delivery.
C. Printing/Production Rates

Our innovative production equipment ensures high efficiency and exceptional quality in every project ranging in 
$0.15 (letter) – $0.30 (legal) per page for black and white prints, $0.50 (letter) – $0.80 (legal) per page for color 
prints, and $10.00 per CD.

SECTION 6:  JOINT VENTURE 
ESA will not employ a joint venture during the course of this contract. Typically, ESA’s in-house staff has capabilities 
that are comprehensive and sufficient for completing environmental compliance documents for small projects. 
However, ESA routinely engages in subcontract arrangements when technical specialties that are beyond our in-
house capabilities are required and appropriate for a project. We have worked with many firms in the area, including 
traffic engineering firms, geotechnical firms, local cultural resources specialists, and specialized biological resource 
personnel. We are open to a variety of teaming arrangements which suit IRWD and the particular projectriate 
subconsultants. 

SECTION 7:  CONFLICT OF INTEREST
To the best of our knowledge, ESA does not have existing personal, financial, and/or organization conflicts of interest 
prohibited by law. 

SECTION 8:  INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS 
If selected to provide the services under this contract, ESA is prepared to furnish IRWD with acceptable evidence 
showing that the insurance coverage required has been procured. ESA has insurance coverage of at least $1 million 
each for commercial general liability, worker’s compensation, automobile, and professional liability. We will provide 
proof of insurance through our broker, IOA Insurance Services, upon the awarding of this contract. A copy of our sample 
certificate can be found in Appendix B.

SECTION 9:  SAMPLE CONTRACT 
ESA has reviewed the draft agreement and generally accepts the terms. If selected, ESA would request an opportunity 
to discuss modification of a few of the proposed terms as well as some additional terms that ESA believes are consistent 
with the provision of professional services and industry standards.   

On-Call CEQA and NEPA Consultation
  / July 18, 2024

15 Environmental Science Associates
esassoc.com

C-17



 
Note:  This page is intentionally left blank. 

 



Proposal | 07.18.2024

On-Call CEQA and NEPA 
Consultation
IRVINE RANCH WATER DISTRICT

Exhibit "D"

D-1



July 18, 2024
Fiona M. Sanchez, Director of Water Resources  
Irvine Ranch Water District 
15600 Sand Canyon Avenue 
Irvine, CA 92618
Subject: Proposal for On-Call CEQA/NEPA Consultation
Dear Ms. Sanchez:
Dedicated to balancing the natural and built environment, Psomas has been providing sustainably engineered solutions to 
public and private clients throughout our 78-year history. As a full-service consulting firm, we help our clients create value 
and deliver complex projects. Psomas looks forward to continuing our partnership with Irvine Ranch Water District (IRWD) 
as a trusted on-call consultant to provide environmental consulting services. In reviewing the attached proposal, IRWD will 
find a team that is prepared to undertake a variety of projects to assist IRWD in implementing their project activities on an 
on-call basis. 
We believe our continued partnership with IRWD will be mutually rewarding because: 

f Psomas presents a comprehensive, multidisciplinary team that is able to respond and provide the various types of
expertise IRWD needs for its upcoming projects. We will draw upon our recent experience with IRWD to anticipate 
potential areas of controversy and resource sensitivities. 

f As the District's primary point of contact, I, Jennifer Marks, am a Vice President at Psomas and have served as a 
Principal-in-Charge and Project Director on similar on-calls with water agencies, including our current contract 
with IRWD. I bring over 24 years of experience managing a variety of project types, including water and wastewater 
infrastructure, and development projects. I have worked with water districts and local city-owned utilities throughout 
Southern California and am familiar with the unique challenges facing special utility agencies, including the need to 
satisfy requirements set forth by multiple jurisdictions and interests of numerous stakeholders. 

f I will be supported by fully committed in-house subject matter experts from our Santa Ana, Los Angeles, and 
Pasadena offices with the necessary registrations, certifications/permits, and resource agency relationships to 
assist the District in completing capital improvement and/or maintenance projects in a timely manner. Each key 
professional proposed is an expert in his/her discipline and are also familiar with local, state and federal procedures
and preferences, having completed projects with diverse sources of funding. 

Psomas acknowledges and confirms receipt of IRWD’s Q&A, issued July 15, 2024.
As a Vice President and Officer of Psomas, I, Jennifer Marks, will be the individual authorized to enter into an agreement 
with IRWD on behalf of the firm. I will serve as the day-to-day contact managing all task orders, act as a conduit of 
information between any task-specific project managers, and verify overall quality and responsiveness. We consider our 
clients a top priority and we are eager to continue our important work for IRWD. Should you have any questions concerning 
our proposal, please do not hesitate to contact me by email at jennifer.marks@psomas.com or by phone at 949.322.6774.
Sincerely,

Jennifer Marks 
Vice President/Principal

Balancing the Natural and Built Environment

5 Hutton Centre Drive 
Suite 300 
Santa Ana, CA 92707

Tel 714.751.7373 
www.Psomas.com

D-2



iii

Ta
bl

e 
of

 C
on

te
nt

s
FIRM PROFILE 1

1 SCOPE 1

Approach 2

Project Controls  5

2 TEAM 6

3 REFERENCES 11

ADDITIONAL ITEMS 12

4. Schedule 12

5. Budget 12

6. Joint Venture 12

7. Conflict of Interest 12

8. Insurance 12

9. Contract 12

Psomas  |  On-Call CEQA and NEPA Consultation – Irvine Ranch Water DistrictD-3



1

Dedicated to balancing the 
natural and built environment, 
Psomas provides sustainably 
engineered solutions to public 
and private clients. Psomas, 
a California Corporation, 
was founded in 1946 and is a 
multi-faceted consulting firm 
with over 750 employees, 
providing our core services 
of environmental consulting, 
civil engineering, survey and 
mapping, and construction 
management. While the 
firm as a whole offers a wide 
variety of services, Psomas’ 
Environmental Services Group 
is capable of supporting the 
needs that are most relevant 
to the Irvine Ranch Water 
District’s (IRWD’s) On-Call 
California Environmental 
Quality Act (CEQA) and National 

Environmental Policy Act (NEPA) 
contract. Psomas’ Environmental 
Services Group specializes in providing 
the following services:

	f CEQA and NEPA documentation
	f Air Quality and Greenhouse Gas 

(GHG) Emissions Analyses

	f Energy Analyses and Health Risk 
Assessments
	f Noise and Vibration Studies
	f Cultural Resources including 

Archaeological and Paleontological 
Assessments, Monitoring, and 
Tribal Cultural Coordination
	f Biological Resources Surveys and 

Assessments
	f Jurisdictional Evaluations/

Delineations, Regulatory 
Permitting, and Agency 
Coordination
	f Habitat Restoration/Mitigation 

Planning, Monitoring, and Reporting
For over 30 years, Psomas' technical 
staff have been actively engaged in 
providing a variety of similar CEQA and 
NEPA environmental consulting services 
for many public agencies and private 
companies in Southern California, with 
many projects occurring in the vicinity 
of IRWD projects and in Orange County. 
Our Team’s extensive qualifications 
are demonstrated by the type and 
range of resource management and 
environmental services we have been 
providing to our clients, including the 
IRWD. 

Firm Profile

In accordance with IRWD’s request, 
Psomas, with our understanding of the 
vision, environment, and priorities of 
IRWD, is proposing to provide On-Call 
CEQA and NEPA Consultation, including 
CEQA and NEPA documentation, 
technical study preparation, mitigation 
monitoring and reporting tasks, 
and overall strategic consultation 
to IRWD. Our staff’s water utility 
agency experience ranges from small 
pipeline replacement projects that 

Scope1
may require Categorical Exemptions 
(CEs), Categorical Exclusions (CEs) 
or Addendum documents, to mid-
size projects such as water tanks or 
pump stations that require Negative 
Declarations (NDs), Mitigated Negative 
Declarations (MNDs), Environmental 
Assessments (EAs), and Findings of 
No Significant Impact (FONSIs), to 
large-scale projects such as the current 
Santiago Creek Dam Outlet Tower 
and Spillway Improvements Project 

Psomas  |  On-Call CEQA and NEPA Consultation – Irvine Ranch Water DistrictD-4



2

that require Environmental Impact Reports (EIRs), or 
Environmental Impact Statements (EISs). Our depth 
of experience in various types of environmental 
documents and geographies provides us with a range 
of knowledge and expertise that will apply to a variety of 
projects for IRWD. Our previous experience preparing 
CEQA documentation for IRWD projects as well as our 
local knowledge of the IRWD service area give Psomas 
a unique understanding of priorities, key stakeholders, 
and potential challenges. 
Additionally, if requested, Psomas’ specialists will 
prepare technical studies for Air Quality, Energy, 
Greenhouse Gas Emissions, Noise, and Transportation, 
in addition to Biological Resources and Regulatory 
Permitting, Cultural Resources, Tribal Cultural 
Resources, Hydrology, and Water Quality, as deemed 
necessary. However, if technical studies are prepared 
by other consultants under contract to IRWD, Psomas 
can perform peer reviews of such studies and prepare 
memoranda summarizing the findings of the peer 
reviews. 
Psomas understands IRWD will notify the selected 
consultants of future projects, at which time Psomas 
and other consultants will submit work plans, cost 
estimates, and schedules to IRWD. Upon being selected 
for preparation of an environmental document for 
a future project, Psomas will initiate the process 
by meeting with IRWD to define the project and 
coordinate on the technical approach. Subsequently, 
the Psomas Team will conduct research and gather 
data; prepare technical studies, as necessary; or peer 
review the technical studies prepared by others. Upon 
completion of the technical studies or peer review of 
technical studies, Psomas will prepare administrative 
or screencheck drafts of the environmental document 
and a final draft for review and approval by IRWD 
prior to distribution for public review. 
Upon receipt of comments from the 
public, Psomas will prepare draft and 
final responses to comments and final 
document for review and approval 
by IRWD prior to distribution to the 
commenters and the decision makers. 
Additionally, Psomas will attend scoping 
meetings, study sessions, and Board of 
Director hearings upon request. Psomas 
will also be responsible for preparing all 
the notices required for the particular 
type of environmental document 
prepared. 

Psomas will provide quality control for each draft of 
the document. Our in-house quality assurance/quality 
control process will confirm that all deliverables are 
accurate and legally defensible. Furthermore, while 
IRWD may identify the anticipated and appropriate 
CEQA document for future projects, Psomas will review 
and provide recommendations, including identifying the 
required technical studies. The potential need for NEPA 
documentation, or CEQA-Plus in accordance with the 
California Clean Water/Drinking Water State Revolving 
Fund (CW/DWSRF), will also be assessed and discussed 
with IRWD and required federal agency permitting 
identified.

Approach
Kick-Off Meeting 
Upon being selected by IRWD for a future project, the 
Psomas Project Manager will meet with IRWD to initiate 
the assigned project. The kick-off meeting will provide 
an opportunity to discuss and/or confirm the approach 
to the CEQA or NEPA document and environmental 
process; discuss the technical analyses/studies; 
and identify the key community issues/concerns. 
Additionally, the project schedule will be discussed, and 
a communication protocol established. Psomas will 
identify information needs and prepare a data needs 
request. The project initiation task will also include 
conducting a site visit, data collection, and preparing a 
project description. 

Draft Initial Study and Required 
Technical Studies 
Psomas routinely prepares Initial Studies (ISs) 
to determine the appropriate environmental 

Scope 1

Psomas  |  On-Call CEQA and NEPA Consultation – Irvine Ranch Water DistrictD-5



3

documentation. Upon a project kick-
off meeting, Psomas will prepare an 
IS in accordance with the State CEQA 
Guidelines (California Code of Regulations 
(CCR), Title 14, Chapter 3, Sections 15000, 
et seq.) to determine the appropriate 
CEQA documentation for a project. All 
topical issues will be evaluated in the IS, 
and all conclusions will be substantiated by 
technical information. Psomas’ technical 
experts will prepare technical analyses, 
including air quality, energy, greenhouse 
gas emissions, noise, transportation, 
hydrology/drainage, and Water Quality 
Management Plan (WQMP). For certain 
technical disciplines such as geology 
and soils, hazards materials, and historic 
resources, Psomas will engage experts/
firms within the industry who have worked 
extensively with Psomas. If technical 
studies are prepared by the applicant’s 
consultants, Psomas’ technical experts will 
conduct peer reviews of those studies for 
technical adequacy and compliance with 
CEQA requirements. 

Draft Environmental Document 
Psomas recognizes that future IRWD projects, 
depending on their types, size, and issues of concern, 
may require any type of CEQA or NEPA document. 
As indicated above, upon completion of the analysis in 
the IS and based on conclusions of the technical studies, 
IRWD and Psomas will determine the appropriate 
type of CEQA document for the project, unless a 
determination has already been made by IRWD. 

	f Categorical Exemption: Article 19 of CEQA 
Guidelines (Sections 15300 to 15333) lists 
the criteria for categorical exemptions. If it is 
determined that a project is within one of the 
classes of projects that have been determined not 
to have a significant impact on the environment, 
that project would be exempt from provisions of 
CEQA. Additionally, if it is determined through the 
IS analysis that no significant impacts would result 
from the said project, a CE would be prepared, and 
no additional environmental documentation will be 
required. 
	f Negative Declaration: Per the analysis in the IS 

or IRWD’s prior finding, if it is determined that 
the potential impacts of the project are less than 

significant such that no mitigation measures would 
be required, an ND would be the appropriate CEQA 
document for that project. The ND will be prepared 
in compliance with Article 6 of CEQA Guidelines 
(Section 15070 to 15075), which includes the 
criteria, requirements, contents, and process for an 
ND. 
	f Mitigated Negative Declaration: If it is determined 

that the project would result in potentially 
significant impacts, and that mitigation measures 
would be required to reduce the potentially 
significant impacts to less than significant 
level, an MND would be the appropriate type of 
environmental documentation for that project. 
The MND will be prepared in compliance with 
Article 6 of CEQA Guidelines (Section 15070 to 
15075), which includes the criteria, requirements, 
contents, and process for an MND. 
	f Environmental Impact Report: If it is determined 

that the project would result in potentially 
significant impacts, and the impacts of the project 
are such that, even with incorporation of mitigation 
measures, some of the impacts would remain 
significant and unavoidable, an EIR would be the 
appropriate type of environmental documentation 

Scope 1

Psomas  |  On-Call CEQA and NEPA Consultation – Irvine Ranch Water DistrictD-6



4

for that project. The EIR will be prepared in 
compliance with Article 7 of CEQA Guidelines 
(Section 15080 to 15097), which includes the 
criteria, requirements, and process for an EIR. 
Article 9 of CEQA Guidelines (Sections 15120 to 
15132) lists the contents of an EIR. The specific 
type of EIR (e.g., project, program, master) will 
depend on the scale, schedule/duration, phasing, 
and level of detail available. 
	f NEPA Documentation: Usually, the CEQA and 

NEPA documentation will be coordinated for 
increased efficiency in the schedule, document 
preparation, and processing involved. The format 
and content requirements for NEPA documents 
can vary significantly and are determined by the 
affected federal agency and/or the federal agency 
providing funding (e.g., US Forest Service (USFS), 
U.S. Department of Transportation [through 
Caltrans], U.S. Bureau of Reclamation); each 
federal agency has their own set of requirements 
for achieving NEPA compliance. For example, 
projects requiring NEPA approval through Caltrans 
would be prepared in accordance with the Caltrans 
Standard Environmental Reference (SER). Common 
types of NEPA documents include Categorical 
Exclusions which address a category of actions that 
a Federal agency has determined normally does 
not significantly affect the quality of the human 
environment,  Environmental Assessment leading 
to a Finding of No Significant Impact (EA/FONSI), 
and an Environmental Impact Statement. More 
commonly, water agencies in California are required 
to meet abbreviated NEPA-like requirements 
(based largely on Federal laws, acts, and Executive 
Orders) set forth for projects pursuing funding 
through the CWSRF or DWSRF, also known as 
CEQA-Plus or Federal Cross-Cutters. While much 
of the required documentation is similar to what 
would likely be prepared for the CEQA document, 
Psomas has extensive experience preparing 
supplemental documentation and analysis 
to support preparation of the Environmental 
Package Form. Specifically, items that generally 
require supplemental documentation include 
research and findngs associated with the Clean Air 
Act, Coastal Zone Management Act, Floodplain 
Management Executive Orders, Federal Lands, 
Coastal Barriers Resources Act, Magnuson-
Stevens Fishery Conservation and Management 
Act, the Safe Drinking Water Act/Sole Source 

Aquifer Protection, and the Wild and Scenic Rivers 
Act.

Regardless of the type of the document, upon 
completion, administrative or screencheck drafts of 
the environmental document will be provided to IRWD 
staff and the applicant for review. Upon receipt of 
comments, they will be addressed prior to resubmitting 
the document for a second round of review. The draft 
document will be approved by IRWD prior to distribution 
for public review. Psomas will distribute the draft 
documents for public review. 

Final Environmental Document 
	f Final Negative Declaration or Mitigated Negative 

Declaration: Upon completion of the 20- or 30-day 
public review period for an ND or MND, Psomas 
will coordinate with IRWD on the approach to 
preparing responses received on the ND or MND. 
Preparation of responses to comments on an 
ND or MND is not required but recommended to 
assist IRWD in the decision-making process. All 
environmental comments on the ND or MND will 
receive responses. Upon finalizing the response 
to comments, they will be mailed out to the 
commenting agencies at least 10 calendar days 
prior to any public hearings. 
	f Final Environmental Impact Report: Upon 

completion of the 45-day public review period for 
a draft EIR, Psomas will coordinate with IRWD on 
the approach to preparing responses to comments 
on the draft EIR. Upon finalizing the final EIR and 
response to comments, including errata, Psomas 
will mail out the responses to commenting 
agencies at least 10 calendar days prior to any 
public hearings. 
	f Mitigation Monitoring and Reporting Program: 

Pursuant to Section 15097 of the State CEQA 

Scope 1

Psomas  |  On-Call CEQA and NEPA Consultation – Irvine Ranch Water DistrictD-7



5

Guidelines, Psomas will prepare a Mitigation 
Monitoring and Reporting Program (MMRP) for the 
CEQA document (MND and EIR). The MMRP will 
confirm that the mitigation measures proposed 
and contained in the final environmental document 
are implemented. 
	f Findings of Fact and Statement of Overriding 

Considerations: As part of the final EIR, Psomas 
will prepare the findings of fact and, if applicable, 
a statement of overriding considerations, for the 
project pursuant to Sections 15091 and 15093 of 
the State CEQA Guidelines. 
	f Noticing: Psomas will prepare and distribute 

all applicable notices for all types of CEQA and 
NEPA documents, upon project initiation, public 
distribution of CEQA and NEPA documents, and 
document certification. This task will include 
Notice of Exemption (NOE), Notice of Completion 
(NOC), Notice of Availability (NOA), Notice of 
Intent (NOI) (to adopt an ND or an MND), Notice of 
Preparation (NOP), and Notice of Determination 
(NOD). 

Attendance at Meetings and Public 
Hearings 
Throughout the environmental process, Psomas 
will attend various meetings, including project team 
meetings, community meetings (if requested), and 
scoping meetings. Additionally, upon completion of the 
environmental document, Psomas will attend Board of 
Directors public study sessions (if requested) and public 
hearings where decision makers consider projects. 
Psomas will be available to make presentations and/or 
provide input to IRWD and address questions regarding 
CEQA. 

Effective Regulatory Agency 
Permitting and Coordination
In addition to our CEQA and NEPA documentation 
services, Psomas has established long-standing 
and positive working relationships with the staff of 
regulatory permitting agencies (e.g., USACE, RWQCB, 
CDFW, and USFWS) through our previous and ongoing 
work on projects in the region. These agencies know 
that technical documentation provided by Psomas 
in support of regulatory agency permit applications 
will meet their requirements while demonstrating 
practical considerations that will facilitate project 

implementation. 
We have 
regularly 
assisted our 
public agency 
clients with 
negotiating 
reasonable 
mitigation 
provisions and 
commitments 
from the 
regulatory 
agencies. 
This proven 
capability can 
facilitate permit 
processing with 
the regulatory 
agencies 
because they 
have confidence in our analysis and work products 
that are relied upon to issue their agency permits/
approvals. In addition, the quality of our services can 
provide substantial cost and time savings to IRWD’s 
maintenance and construction activities by moving 
permit approvals along expeditiously.

Mitigation Monitoring Support
During construction, IRWD will be required to 
implement all mitigation measures set forth in the 
CEQA document and comply with all applicable 
regulatory requirements. Psomas cultural resource 
technicians and biologists have the experience needed 
to support construction services by providing qualified 
monitors to direct and monitor ground disturbing 
activities. As part of this effort, Psomas will be available 
to prepare and present a Worker Environmental 
Awareness Program (WEAP) to the contractor and 
all construction personnel prior to initiating ground 
disturbance.

Project Controls 
Psomas has espoused methods and approaches in its 
preparation and delivery of environmental documents 
and supporting technical studies to verify project 
deadlines are met and the process is completed within 
budget. 

Scope 1

Psomas  |  On-Call CEQA and NEPA Consultation – Irvine Ranch Water DistrictD-8



6

	f Scope of Work (SOW): The SOW for most projects 
influences the budget and schedule. Upon project 
kick-off, the SOW will be further discussed 
with IRWD and better defined. As the SOW will 
direct the action items for all tasks proposed, 
it is imperative that it be kept updated and any 
changes in approach and direction be reflected 
in the SOW. The SOW will be communicated with 
IRWD at regular intervals to facilitate solutions to 
potential issues, as applicable, before they become 
impediments to completing the proposed project. 
	f Schedule: An agreed-upon master schedule will 

be used to monitor progress on key milestones 
and deliverables. The schedule will be updated, 
as needed, and distributed to the project team. 
Additionally, in order to maintain the project 
schedule, we have established workload 
management systems to assist in the meeting 
project schedule. The mechanisms in place, the 
diligence of our project manager, and access to a 
deep bench of environmental experts will keep the 
proposed project on schedule. 
	f Budget: The budget is another key component 

that will be closely monitored and controlled by 
the project manager. Assigned hours and costs for 
each task will be communicated with the Psomas 
team to confirm that hours allocated for those 
tasks are aligned with performance. The project 
manager has real-time information regarding 

total authorized budget, costs expended to date, 
current expenditures, and the remaining balance. 
Access to accurate, complete data will allow our 
project manager to alert IRWD to potential budget 
implications if issues arise.
	f Status Reports: Each of these items will be 

regularly reviewed and communicated to IRWD 
staff. The method of communicating project status 
will be established during project initiation and 
will be dependent on IRWD staff preferences. As 
a regular course of business, Psomas maintains 
some level of communication on a weekly basis 
for all active projects and may communicate 
via conference call or in-person meeting, or via 
email with an itemized update on the status for all 
deliverables, a budget overview, and review of the 
project schedule. 

In-House Quality Assurance/ Quality 
Control (QA/QC) 
Psomas is committed to providing high quality technical 
documents that engender client satisfaction, meet 
the needs of the project, and withstand legal scrutiny. 
Psomas prescribes to a rigorous quality assurance/
quality control (QA/QC) process that utilizes key 
staff to maintain technical accuracy, readability, and 
responsiveness in all work products and deliverables. 

One aspect of our client portfolio that speaks highly of our team, client responsiveness, and attention to detail is the 
number of long-term clients and On-Call/As-Needed Environmental Services contracts we have maintained with 
public sector agencies. 
With a deep bench of professional staff members, Psomas will be able to meet the requirements and schedules 
of multiple, concurrent projects. We have established workload management systems, monitoring techniques, 
and internal staffing arrangements to assist in meeting project requirements that at certain times could have the 
potential to exceed our in-house staffing capabilities. While each of our key staff members will have other project 
responsibilities, we confirm that each team member will have adequate availability to meet the assigned project’s 
requirements. We are careful not to commit 100 percent of any staff member’s time, thereby ensuring availability of 
qualified staff.
On the following page is a listing of each  staff member assigned to this contract; their role; education; anticipated 
availability for this contract (schedule); and certifications, capabilities and experience. Resumes for key personnel 
(denoted with an asterisk []) are included in the Appendix.

Team2

Team 2

Psomas  |  On-Call CEQA and NEPA Consultation – Irvine Ranch Water DistrictD-9



7

Jennifer Marks  | Project Director, Principal-in-Charge, Quality Assurance/Quality

Jennifer Marks is a Principal and Senior Project Manager with over 24 years 
of experience in environmental documentation and analysis consistent 
with CEQA and NEPA. Jennifer's career has focused on a wide variety of 
projects, including public works assignments related to water resources;   
specific plan and general plan analyses; transportation infrastructure; and 
various utility infrastructure projects.

Education
1999/BS/Natural Resources, Planning and 
Interpretation/Humboldt State University

Availability 
25%

Sean Noonan, AICP  | Senior Environmental Planner
Sean Noonan, AICP, has 13 years of experience working on various 
types of public and private projects across Southern California. In his 
current role, Sean prepares and manages the preparation of CEQA/
NEPA environmental documents and supporting environmental technical 
studies. He is also experienced in providing his clients with support 
related to regulatory permitting, environmental compliance during final 
design and construction, and environmental constraints during due 
diligence. 

Education
2014/MS/Urban and Regional Planning/California 
State Polytechnic University, Pomona
2011/MA/Geography/California State University, 
Fullerton
2006/BA/History/University of California, Santa 
Barbara

Availability 
50%

Jillian Neary | Senior Environmental Technical Specialist
Jillian Neary has 25 years of experience specifically focused on 
preparing environmental compliance documents pursuant to CEQA, 
NEPA, and associated State and federal regulations. Her experience 
includes working with both private- and public-sector clients 
throughout Southern California, including tract map and master 
planned communities; infill development and redevelopment; General 
Plan, Housing Element, and zoning updates; commercial and industrial 
developments; open space and recreation projects; and flood control, 
water and sewer infrastructure, and water conservation projects. 

Education
2005/Coursework/Landscape Architecture/
University of California, Los Angeles Extension
1997/BA/Geology/Indiana University-Purdue 
University, Indianapolis, IN

Availability 
50%

Jessica Hitchcock | Project Manager
Jessica Hitchcock has seven years of experience in managing and 
preparing CEQA evaluations includes a wide variety of projects, 
including commercial, residential, mixed-use, industrial, school, solar 
and public works/infrastructure projects for a variety of public and 
private clients throughout Southern California.

Education
2017/BA/Environmental Studies and Political 
Science/University of California, Santa Barbara

Availability 
50%

Megan Larum | Environmental Technical Specialist
Megan Larum is an Assistant Project Manager with 15 years of 
experience in environmental documentation and analysis consistent 
with CEQA and NEPA. She has experience in cultural resources 
management and has participated in Native American Heritage 
Commission (NAHC) requests, records searches, and Phase I Cultural 
Resources Assessments.

Education
2006/BS/Environmental Policy Analysis and 
Planning/University of California, Davis

Availability 
75%

Jordan Werkmeister | Environmental Planner
Jordan has worked on a variety of CEQA and NEPA documents, 
including preparation of initial studies, reviewing plans and drafting 
project descriptions, and writing key analysis sections. As an 
Environmental Planner, Jordan prepares environmental documents, 
assist with management efforts, and coordinate with internal staff 
and subconsultants. Jordan also has experience preparing air quality, 
greenhouse gas, and energy analyses to support CEQA and NEPA 
documents.

Education
2022/BS/Environmental Policy Analysis and 
Planning/University of California, Davis

Availability 
50%

Team 2

Psomas  |  On-Call CEQA and NEPA Consultation – Irvine Ranch Water DistrictD-10



8

Bryan Hamilton | Environmental Planner
Bryan Hamilton is an Environmental Planner with experience in preparing 
environmental documents pursuant to the California Environmental 
Quality Act (CEQA) for a wide variety of projects, including commercial, 
residential, mixed-use, industrial, general plan updates, and 
infrastructure for public and private clients. Bryan also specializes in 
conducting noise analyses to support CEQA and NEPA documents.

Education
2013/BA/History, Minor in Urban Studies/University 
of California, Los Angeles

Availability 
25%

Chaise Lapierre | Environmental Planner
Chaise Lapierre is an Environmental Planner with approximately one year 
of experience preparing analyses to support categorical exemptions, 
addenda, and mitigated negative declarations.

Education
2023/BA/Environmental Studies/California State 
University, San Marcos

Availability 
25%

Charles Cisneros  | Cultural Resources Manager
Charles Cisneros is a registered professional archaeologist with 19 years 
of experience in archaeological assessment and field experience in 
California and Nevada. He has directed numerous field projects in 
support of compliance with the CEQA, NEPA, and NHPA. Charles has 
managed a wide range of projects involving archaeological survey, 
testing, data recovery, monitoring, and laboratory analysis. 

Education
2008/MS/European Archaeology/University of 
Edinburgh, United Kingdom
2004/BA/Anthropology/California State University, 
Los Angeles

Availability 
25%

Heather Garnett | Cultural Resources Specialist
Heather Garnett is an experienced Cultural Resources Specialist with 
seven years of experience in archaeological assessment and field 
experience in California and New Mexico. She has participated in several 
field projects in support of compliance with CEQA, NEPA, and NHPA. 
Heather has provided support on a wide range of projects involving 
archaeological survey, site recordation, excavation, monitoring, and 
laboratory analysis. 

Education
2020/MA/Anthropology/New Mexico State 
University, Las Cruces
2017/BA/Anthropology/University  of California, 
Irvine

Availability 
50%

Daniella Balassa | Cultural Resources Specialist
Daniella Balassa is a professional paleontologist with experience in 
paleontological assessment and field experience in Southern California. 
She has provided support on a wide range of projects involving 
paleontological resource monitoring, Paleontological Resource 
Monitoring Plans (PRMP), museum education, laboratory analysis, and 
has valuable expertise on extinct North American mammals (mega-
fauna).

Education
2024/MS/(Expected) Geology/California State 
Polytechnic University, Pomona
2021/BS/METRIC Scholar/California State 
University, Long Beach
2019/AS/Geology/Pierce College, Los Angeles

Availability 
25%

Farshad Farhang | Senior Noise Technical Manager
Farshad is an experienced Senior Noise Technician and has managed 
noise/vibration studies and performed technical noise work in the 
infrastructure and environmental sectors. He is experienced in many 
facets of the acoustics field, including environmental and transportation 
noise and vibration measurement, analysis, and control.  

Education
1994/MBA/Business Administration/California 
State University, Fresno
1986/BS/Electrical Engineering/California State 
University, Fresno

Availability 
25%

Team 2

Psomas  |  On-Call CEQA and NEPA Consultation – Irvine Ranch Water DistrictD-11



9

Amber Heredia  | Biological Resources Manager
Amber Heredia is a Senior Project Manager and Senior Biologist with 
27 years of experience in the preparation of Biological Technical Reports 
to meet the requirements of the FESA, CESA, CEQA, NEPA, and the 
CWA. Amber has a wide range of knowledge on the plants, wildlife, and 
vegetation communities of Southern California, especially those listed 
as Threatened or Endangered.

Education
2005/MS/Biology/University of California, Riverside
1998/BS/Ecology and Evolution/University of 
California, Santa Barbara
1998/BS/Environmental Studies/University of 
California, Santa Barbara

Availability 
25%

Brad Blood, PhD  | Regulatory Permitting Manager
Brad Blood, PhD, is a Senior Biologist/Environmental Scientist and 
Project Manager with expertise in regulatory compliance related 
to biological issues including CEQA/NEPA, the federal and state 
Endangered Species Acts, federal clean water act, and the State Fish and 
Game Code. He is a certified wetland delineator and is experienced with 
the State and federal regulations governing wetlands delineation and 
permitting.

Education
1987/PhD/Biological Sciences/University of 
Southern California
1981/MS/Biology/California State University, Long 
Beach
1978/BS/Zoology/California State University, Long 
Beach

Availability 
25%

David Hughes | Regulatory Permitting Manager
David Hughes is a Senior Project Manager in Restoration Ecology and 
Regulatory Services with 20 years of experience in mitigation planning, 
restoration monitoring, wetland delineations, and regulatory permitting. 
David is also a Certified Arborist and fully trained practitioner of the 
California Rapid Assessment Method (CRAM) for wetlands. 

Education
2003/MS/Ecological Restoration and Management/
University of Wisconsin, Madison
1991/BS/Ecology, Behavior and Evolution/
University of California, San Diego

Availability 
25%

Lindsay Messett, CWB | Senior Biologist
Lindsay Messett, a Certified Wildlife Biologist® with a specialty in wildlife 
biology, has 21 years of experience in data collection, field research, 
resource management, and environmental document preparation. She 
has conducted focused surveys and habitat assessments throughout 
California for several endangered wildlife species. 

Education
1999/BS/Ecology and Systematic Biology, 
Concentration: Wildlife Biology/California 
Polytechnic  State University, San Luis Obispo

Availability 
25%

Jonathan Aguayo | Senior Biologist
Jonathan Aguayo has 16 years of experience as a Senior Biologist 
including field experience in ornithology and herpetology. He has a solid 
knowledge of California's flora and fauna gained from work experience, 
professional affiliations, and personal interest. He has contributed to the 
preparation of various technical reports addressing State and federal 
laws, including the CEQA and NEPA for a variety of development projects 
and under on-call contracts. 

Education
2007/BS/Environmental Science and Resource 
Management/California State University, Channel 
Islands

Availability 
25%

Allison Rudalevige | Regulatory Specialist
Allison Rudalevige is a Senior Biologist with 19 years of experience 
in the areas of biological and jurisdictional resources. She has 
experience conducting general and focused plant and wildlife surveys, 
vegetation mapping, mitigation monitoring, tree surveys, jurisdictional 
delineations, California Rapid Assessment Method (CRAM) analyses, 
and physical habitat analysis according to the Surface Water Ambient 
Monitoring Program (SWAMP) protocol.

Education
2005/MS/Biology/University of California, Riverside
2000/BS/Biology, Zoology/California State 
University, Long Beach

Availability 
25%

Team 2

Psomas  |  On-Call CEQA and NEPA Consultation – Irvine Ranch Water DistrictD-12



10

Paul Myers | Senior Biologist
Paul has over 20 years of experience as an environmental permitting and 
NEPA compliance specialist, wetland and stream scientist, botanist, and 
ecologist. His specific areas of expertise include managing projects for 
environmental review and permitting compliance, wetland delineation, 
restoration and mitigation design, rare plant and wildlife surveys, habitat 
classification and mapping, and habitat restoration.

Education
BS/Botany/Western Carolina University

Availability 
40%

Trevor Bristle | Certified Arborist
Trevor Bristle is a Biologist and Registered Consulting Arborist with 
18 years of field experience. He has gained extensive experience while 
working throughout Southern and Central California and is familiar with 
the associated plants, wildlife, and habitats found therein.

Education
2008/BS/Natural Resources Management/
Northland College

Availability 
40%

Jennie Ramirez | GIS Specialist
Jennie has five years of experience in GIS. Her recent project experience 
includes utilizing ArcGIS, Adobe Illustrator and ArcGIS Collector to 
create and edit map documents and graphic exhibits for various client 
projects that meet cartographic and data collection needs.

Education
2021/MS/Geographic Information Science/
California State University, Long Beach
2016/BA/Philosophy and Geography/California 
State University, Long Beach

Availability 
15%

Paul O'Brien | GIS Specialist
Paul is a Geographic Information Systems (GIS) Analyst with five years 
of experience in GIS. His recent project experience includes utilizing 
ArcGIS, ArcGIS Field Maps, ArcGIS Online and Adobe Illustrator to create 
and edit map documents and graphic exhibits for various client projects 
that meet cartographic and data collection needs.

Education
2020/BS/Geography and Geospatial Science/
Oregon State University

Availability 
15%

Sheryl Kristal | Support Services Manager
Sheryl Kristal is a Word Processor with more than 10 years of experience 
word processing for CEQA and NEPA documents. As Senior Word 
Processor at Psomas, Sheryl creates custom templates in Microsoft 
Word for projects and proposals.  

Education
2004/Coursework/General Studies with a focus on 
Graphic Design/Golden West College

Availability 
25%

Matt Heideman, PE | Senior Hydrology/Water Quality Engineer
Matt has 30 years of experience in all aspects of land development 
engineering. He has worked on residential, commercial, and industrial 
projects throughout Southern California, and has managed the 
design of mass grading, precise grading, storm drain, sewer, water, 
reclaimed water, widening of existing streets and highways, new street 
improvements, parking lots, street lighting, retaining walls, box culverts 
and vesting tentative tract maps for projects ranging from 10 acres to 
over 1,000. 

Education
1993/BS/Civil Engineering/University of California, 
Irvine

Registration
1996/CA/Professional Engineer/Civil/55639

Availability 
15%

Steve Baine, PE, QSD | Hydrology/Water Quality Engineer
Steve Baine has 35 years of experience in hydrology and hydraulic 
studies, water and sewer system analysis, storm water pollution 
prevention plans, and water quality management plans.

Education
1989/BS/Civil Engineering/University of California, 
Irvine

Registration
1994/CA/Professional Engineer/Civil/51327

Availability 
15%

Team 2

Psomas  |  On-Call CEQA and NEPA Consultation – Irvine Ranch Water DistrictD-13



11

Santiago Creek Dam 
Outlet Tower and 
Spillway Improvement
Orange County, CA | Irvine Ranch 
Water District

IRWD and Serrano Water District are jointly 
proposing to abandon the existing Santiago 
Creek Dam outlet tower and construct a 
new inclined outlet structure located on the 
left abutment of the existing dam. Based on 
feedback from the Department of Safety 
of Dams (DSOD), the dam spillway also requires 
structural improvements. As part of the project, 
the existing outlet tower would be demolished 
and a new structure would be built. Inlet/outlet 
works would be configured to incorporate the new 
structure and flows would be bifurcated between 
the Irvine Lake Pipeline and the emergency outlet 
pipeline. The dam crest would be widened and 
raised to subsequently raise the effective dam crest.
Psomas has been actively working alongside IRWD, as Lead Agency, since August 
2020 in the preparation of technical studies and an Environmental Impact Report 
(EIR) to evaluate the project. Efforts were initiated with preparation of an Initial Study 
(IS) and key technical studies to understand the anticipated level of impacts and help 
identify the required document type. Technical studies include a biological constraints 
report including a jurisdictional delineation, and a cultural resources report including 
archaeological and paleontological surveys and a historic analysis of the existing dam 
and spillway. Following IRWD’s initial review of the IS, it was determined that an EIR 
would be prepared and Psomas coordinated with the IRWD Team to prepare a variance 
request to cover the additional tasks required for the EIR.  Psomas also prepared 
a separate scope of work under our on-call biological monitoring and permitting 
contract related to additional services needed for biological surveys, regulatory 
agency coordination, and permit preparation. 
Psomas is also preparing supplemental documentation to comply with CEQA-Plus/
Federal Cross-cutters pursuant to the California Clean Water State Revolving Fund 
requirements. Throughout this process, Psomas has worked collaboratively with 
IRWD staff, providing guidance and assistance as design challenges have arisen. Our 
assigned Principal-in-Charge, Jennifer Marks, and Biological Resources Manager, 
Amber Heredia, have worked as a team to provide the technical expertise and creative 
problem-solving needed for this project. Psomas staff are also working closely with 
IRWD to maintain a positive working relationship with resource agency staff. These 
relationships will assist in the success of the regulatory permitting process.

PROJECT OWNER
Irvine Ranch Water District 
PO Box 57000 
15600 Sand Canyon Avenue 
Irvine, CA 92618

OWNER STAFF
Fiona Sanchez 
Kellie Welch 
Jacob Moeder 
Andy Uk

INITIAL CONTRACT
Biological Technical Report, Air 
Quality/Greenhouse Gas Study, 
Historic Resource Assessment, 
Noise Assessment, Draft IS: 
$144,862

CHANGE ORDERS
Under our CEQA contract, 
Psomas has requested a total 
of $179,696 in change orders, 
related to the decision to prepare 
an EIR; accommodate updated 
construction assumptions, 
project design; integrate 
Additional Geotechnical 
Investigation; address County 
of Orange comments; and 
evaluate modifications to SCE 
infrastructure

Santiago Creek Dam

References3

Relevance to Project
	f IRWD project
	f Technical studies
	f Strategic consultation
	f Biological survey, focused surveys, 

and technical report
	f CEQA and CEQA-plus compliance

Psomas  |  On-Call CEQA and NEPA Consultation – Irvine Ranch Water DistrictD-14



12

Additional IRWD Projects
In addition to our current work on the Santiago Creek Dam Outlet Tower and Spillway 
Improvement Project, Psomas, previously BonTerra Psomas, has been under contract 
providing on-call environmental consulting services to IRWD since 2014. Projects have 
included:

	f Irvine Lake Pipeline (ILP) North 
Conversion Project MND 
	f ILP North Pipelines Mitigation 

Monitoring
	f ILP North Reservoir Mitigation 

Monitoring

	f 3.7 MG Zone 1 Reservoir Project MND
	f Zone A to Rattlesnake Reservoir 

Pump Station Project MND
	f Orange Park Acres Well Replacement 

Addendum

Additional Items

4. Schedule
Psomas understands that good communication requires a level of transparency 
with our clients regarding schedule and budget. In order to present an accurate 
picture of the project schedule and budget to IRWD on a regular basis, the Psomas 
management team will actively track each project’s progress through our in-house 
management software, allowing us real-time project statistics. With this information, 
our management team can quickly make the necessary adjustments to reallocate 
resources and make any necessary reassignments to ensure schedules are met and 
budgets are not exceeded. Our commitment to the schedule and budget has been 
demonstrated through our past work with IRWD. 

5. Budget
Our proposed budget is on the following page.

6. Joint Venture
Psomas is not proposing as part of a joint venture.

7. Conflict of Interest
Psomas has no conflicts of interest that would preclude our ability to uphold this 
contract. 

8. Insurance
Copies of Psomas' insurance are in Appendix B.

9. Contract
Psomas has reviewed the professional service agreement and has no proposed 
modifications to the standard terms and conditions.

Additional Items 3

Psomas  |  On-Call CEQA and NEPA Consultation – Irvine Ranch Water DistrictD-15



13

Title/Classification Staff  Rate 
Contract Manager, Principal-in-Charge, QA/QC Manager Jennifer Marks, Ann Johnston 265$        
Senior Technical Manager Charles Cisneros 202$        
Regulatory Permitting Manager Brad Blood 233$        
Senior Project Manager, Environmental 260$        
Senior Environmental Planner Sean Noonan 207$        
Senior Regulatory Specialist David Hughes 190$        
Senior Project Manager/Biological Resources Manager Amber Heredia 233$        
Senior Biologist/Project Manager, Biology Paul Myers 187$        
Project Manager III 202$        
Project Manager II 186$        
Project Manager I Jessica Hitchcock 164$        
Regulatory Specialist/Senior Botanist Allison Rudalevige 167$        
Senior Biologist Lindsay Messett, Jonathan Aguayo 166$        
Certified Arborist Trevor Bristle 188$        
Senior Technical Specialist, AQ/GHG, Noise, Cultural, CEQA/NEPA Farshad Farhang 233$        
Technical Specialist III, AQ/GHG, Noise, Cultural, CEQA/NEPA Jillian Neary 212$        
Technical Specialist II, AQ/GHG, Noise, Cultural, CEQA/NEPA 186$        
Technical Specialist I, AQ/GHG, Noise, Cultural, CEQA/NEPA 159$        
Technical Analyst, AQ/GHG, Noise, Cultural, CEQA/NEPA 133$        
Environmental Planner III Megan Larum 164$        
Environmental Planner II/Assistant PM Jordan Werkmeister, Bryan Hamilton 149$        
Environmental Planner I Chaise Lapierre 133$        
Biologist 127$        
Field Technician, Archaeology/Paleontology Heather Garnett, Daniella Balassa 101$        
GIS Analyst Paul O'Brien 129$        
GIS Specialist Jennie Ramirez 154$        
Technical Writer/Editor Danae Overman 106$        
Word Processor/Support Services Manager Sheryl Kristal 135$        
Senior Project Manager, Engineering Matt Heideman 250$        
Project Technical Manager, Engineering Steve Baine 205$        

Budget
Additional Items 3

Psomas  |  On-Call CEQA and NEPA Consultation – Irvine Ranch Water District D-16



25
0 

Ea
st

 1
st

 S
tre

et
, S

ui
te

 1
40

0 
Lo

s A
ng

el
es

, C
al

ifo
rn

ia
 9

00
12

 •
 Ju

ly 
18

, 2
02

4

Irvine Ranch Water District
On-Call CEQA and NEPA Services

Exhibit "E"

E-1



 

Rincon Consultants, Inc. 
250 East 1st Street, Suite 1400 

Los Angeles, California 90012 
213-788-4842 

 

 

w w w. r in conconsu ltan ts . com  

July 18, 2024 

Fiona Sanchez, Director of Water Resources 
Andy Uk, Environmental Compliance Analyst  
Irvine Ranch Water District 
15600 Sand Canyon Avenue  
Irvine, California 92618  

Subject: Proposal for On-Call CEQA and NEPA Consultation 

Dear Ms. Sanchez and Mr. Uk: 

Rincon Consultants, Inc. (Rincon) is pleased to provide the Irvine Ranch Water District (IRWD) the enclosed 
proposal to provide on-call environmental consulting services to support the compliance of future IRWD projects 
with the California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) and National Environmental Policy Act (NEPA). Rincon offers 
extensive experience in providing on-call and as-needed environmental services to California water, wastewater, 
and groundwater agencies, and our team brings unique qualifications to assist with managing projects in an 
efficient, transparent, and ethical manner. Our staff have experience supporting environmental compliance for 
various types of projects ranging from simple to complex discretionary actions, including water, wastewater, 
groundwater, water reuse, and desalination projects.  

This proposal identifies Rincon’s capabilities to provide environmental consultation services, curated to address 
the anticipated needs of IRWD. Our team offers: 

 Knowledgeable and responsive project management team. Our Principal-in-Charge Jennifer Jacobus, PhD 
managed IRWD’s environmental on call for 13 years and our Project Manager Annaliese Torres has led 
environmental compliance for water infrastructure projects throughout Southern California.  

 Local team who understands Orange County conditions and species. Rincon has more than 115 staff 
members within one hour of IRWD in our Los Angeles (60 staff), Carlsbad (20 staff), and San Diego (35 staff) 
offices that are ready to respond to IRWD environmental compliance needs. 

 Deep bench of Southern California staff with expertise in CEQA and NEPA compliance. Our in-depth 
understanding of local environmental resources and CEQA/NEPA enables us to provide strategic guidance 
through the technical challenges associated with managing a range of natural and water resources. 

 Firm reputation for high-quality deliverables, creativity in problem solving, and high-value services 
overseen by our experienced senior professionals. Rincon will provide IRWD with consistent, high-quality, 
and informed environmental consulting deliverables. 

Our proposed management team are experienced environmental professionals and will holistically manage 
IRWD’s task orders, be responsive to IRWD inquiries, and identify defensible and streamlined environmental 
compliance pathways. Jennifer Jacobus, PhD, will lead this contract as Rincon’s Principal-in-Charge, responsible 
for final quality assurance and quality control, as well as overall management of contract execution. Jennifer 
brings extensive experience with IRWD and other Southern California water agencies. Annaliese Torres will be 
Rincon’s Project Manager and serve as IRWD’s primary point-of-contact, with responsibility for day-to-day 
management. Our experienced project team is trusted in providing environmental consulting services for water 
agencies throughout Southern California, including South Coast Water District, The Metropolitan Water District 
of Southern California, Santa Clarita Valley Water Agency, Coachella Valley Water District, and Eastern Municipal 
Water District. Our responsiveness, commitment to streamline environmental compliance where possible, and 
ability to meet sometimes challenging deadlines makes us an essential partner in IRWD’s success.  

For this contract, Rincon will apply our existing program management framework, which facilitates internal 
coordination, quality assurance/quality control consistency, and institutional knowledge-sharing across projects. 
Our internal program serves as a valuable connection point to leverage Rincon’s long history of successful cross-

E-2



Irvine Ranch Water District 
Proposal for On-Call CEQA and NEPA Consultation 

Rincon Consultants, Inc. ii 

disciplinary work within and knowledge of IRWD’s service territory in Orange County and the greater Southern 
California area. With established service line leads, monthly check-in meetings for project managers, and 
communal repositories for resources, including standard construction specifications and approved mitigation 
measure language, we will work diligently to provide IRWD with consistent, high-quality, and informed 
environmental consulting deliverables.  

Rincon’s combination of highly qualified staff, local presence, in-depth environmental planning, policy 
development and permitting experience, and ability to manage all sizes of environmental programs makes us 
uniquely suited to this on-call contract. This proposal outlines our qualifications and experience, and describes 
our strong technical and project management team, who will aid in meeting the objectives of each task order 
under this on-call contract.  

We are confident that the Rincon team will meet or exceed IRWD’s needs, and we welcome an opportunity to 
meet with you to discuss our qualifications further. Please do not hesitate to contact us should you have 
questions about this qualifications package or need additional information. 

Sincerely, 
Rincon Consultants, Inc. 

Annaliese Torres | Project Manager 

atorres@rinconconsultants.com  

Contact for Clarification 

Jennifer Jacobus, PhD | Principal-in-Charge 

jjacobus@rinconconsultants.com  

Authorized to contractually obligate and negotiate on 
behalf of Rincon Consultants, Inc. 

E-3



Irvine Ranch Water District 
On-Call CEQA and NEPA Consultation 

Rincon Consultants, Inc. 1 

About Rincon 
Rincon Consultants, Inc. (Rincon) is a multidisciplinary environmental science, planning, and engineering 
consulting firm providing quality environmental services to government and industry. Rincon believes water is 
the unifying life source of California, creating a more equitable society, thriving economy, and flourishing 
ecosystem that are central to what Californians value. Rincon strives to advance the adaptation of California 
communities to a more resilient future by transforming competing interests into collaborative and creative 
solutions for our residents, businesses, and environment. Rincon has been supporting water districts throughout 
California for nearly 30 years.  

Rincon’s Water Team is experienced in providing on-call and as-needed 
environmental services for water agencies such as The Metropolitan Water 
District of Southern California, South Coast Water District, Eastern 
Municipal Water District, Inland Empire Utilities Agency, and SCV Water. Our 
principal service is to provide environmental support and scientific research 
to create and sustain innovative solutions to natural resource management, 
sustainability, and environmental impacts. We pride ourselves on the 
considerable knowledge-depth of our staff, which includes environmental 
scientists, planners, aquatic and wildlife biologists, botanists, wetland and 
restoration specialists, regulatory specialists, hydrogeologists, geospatial 
analysts, water quality experts, geologists, engineers, air quality specialists, 
and cultural and historic resource specialists.  

Rincon’s in-depth understanding of local environmental resources and 
regulatory processes in the IRWD service area allows us to provide 
recommendations for project design, alternative siting, analysis, and 
options for minimizing environmental impacts, permitting requirements, 
and associated mitigation costs. We have specialized expertise in relevant 
resource databases and current literature, field survey design, identifying 
and mapping sensitive resources, and communicating and implementing 
the regulatory requirements associated with them. Our approach to every 
project is centered on the design and development of proactive solutions 
that respond to our clients’ specific needs in a cost-effective manner.  

Rincon’s culture focuses on providing environmental consulting services in a way that is beneficial to both the 
environment and our client’s needs. We perceive Rincon as an extension of our client’s team and function with 
their best interests in mind. Our success is based Rincon’s overall project approach including early engagement 
to confirm needs and expectations in advance of and during implementation, fluid communication, 
responsiveness to changing client and project needs, long-term agency relationships and coordination, and 
thinking like our clients to proactively manage risk and capitalize on opportunities for time and cost efficiencies. 
By managing each project with a focus on three 
primary objectives—economic efficiency, technical 
excellence, and sustainable approach—we can 
provide superior service that efficiently and 
effectively meets the needs of our clients.  

Major Services Provided  
We have categorized our environmental consulting 
services into six core areas, as summarized on the 
following page. Our firm structure ensures a focused 
and expert approach to addressing a wide range of 
environmental needs, which ensures swift access to 
specialized knowledge for timely and effective 
problem-solving when needed. 

E-4



Irvine Ranch Water District 
On-Call CEQA and NEPA Consultation 

Rincon Consultants, Inc. 2 

Rincon’s Core Services 

Environmental and Land Use Planning 

 CEQA Compliance: EIRs, Initial Studies, Categorical 
Exemptions, Addendums, MMRPs 

 NEPA Compliance: EISs, EAs, FONSIs, Categorical 
Exclusions 

 Community Involvement Programs  

 Noise Studies, including Bio-Acoustic Evaluation 
Air Quality Analysis 

Natural Resources 

 Biological Construction and Mitigation Monitoring 

 Baseline Biological Resources Inventories and 
Vegetation Mapping 

 Biological Resources Effects/Impacts Analyses:  
Biological Assessments, Biological Evaluations,  
Natural Environment Studies  

 Rare, Threatened, and Endangered Plant and Wildlife 
Species Surveys 

 Nesting Bird Surveys 

 Jurisdictional Delineations: USACE, RWQCB, CDFW, 
USFWS, and California Coastal Commission 
Methodologies 

 California Rapid Assessment Method for Wetlands 

 Tree Inventory, Health Assessment, Risk Assessment, and 
Tree Protection Plans  

 Certified Arborist Tree Surveys and Impacts Assessments  

 Regulatory Permitting: USACE Clean Water Act Section 
404, RWQCB CWA Section 401, CDFW Fish and Game 
Code Section 1602 

 Federal Endangered Species Act Section 7 Consult. and 
Section 10 Habitat Conservation Plans 

 California Endangered Species Act Section 2081 
Permits/Memorandum of Understandings  

 Wetland, Riparian, and Upland Habitat Revegetation and 
Restoration Planning 

Cultural Resources 

 Literature Reviews/Records Searches/Archival Research 

 Native American Consultation/AB52 

 Cultural and Paleontological Resource Surveys 

 California Register of Historical Resources and National 
Register of Historic Places Eligibility Evaluations 

 Archaeological Data Recovery Programs 

 Archeological and Native American Monitoring 

 Paleontological Monitoring 

 Section 106 Consultation 

 State Historic Preservation Officer Consultation 

 Historic Preservation Plans 

 Cultural Resources and Paleontological Management 
Plans 

 Third Party Peer Review 

 Phase I, II, and III Cultural Resources Analysis 

Environmental Site Assessment and Remediation 

 Phase I and II Environmental Site Assessments  

 Hazardous Waste Characterization 

 Site Remediation: Planning, Design, and Construction  

 Spill Prevention Control and Countermeasure Plan 

 Underground Storage Tank Removal and Investigation 

 Environmental Construction/Grading Monitoring 

 Methane Soil Gas Testing 

Water Resources 

 Water Resources and Water Management Planning 

 Hydrogeological Studies and Groundwater Sustainability 
Planning  

 Storm Water Management and Compliance Monitoring 

 Water Supply Assessments and Studies 

 Groundwater Dependent Ecosystems and Interconnected 
Surface Waters 

 Water Rights Permitting 

 Watershed Management and Planning 

Sustainability Services 

 Climate Action Planning 

 GHG Emissions Inventories 

 Climate Adaptation and Resiliency Planning 

 ASHRAE Level 1 and 2 Energy Audit 

Rincon’s combination of highly qualified staff, local presence, in-depth environmental planning, policy 
development and permitting experience, technical expertise, and ability to manage all sizes of environmental 
programs make our firm uniquely suited to meet IRWD’s needs and support task order completion and project 
implementation under this on-call contract. 

E-5



Irvine Ranch Water District 
On-Call CEQA and NEPA Consultation 

Rincon Consultants, Inc. 3 

1 Scope 
Task 1 California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) 
Rincon employs a creative, problem-solving approach to 
environmental impact evaluation and the environmental 
review process. We provide the full range of CEQA 
services, from interpreting and understanding statutory 
implication and guidelines, to document processing and 
administrative actions, including project completion and 
certifications. Rincon has successfully prepared hundreds 
of CEQA documents and supporting technical studies for 
water and wastewater agencies throughout California. We 
seek to identify the most streamlined and effective 
pathway to CEQA compliance for every project, and we 
provide all levels of CEQA documentation. We anticipate 
many of IRWD’s CEQA actions will involve Categorical 
Exemption or Initial Study (with Negative Declaration or 
Mitigated Negative Declaration) levels of documentation, 
as well as Addendums to existing CEQA documents. 
Rincon will also provide close and thoughtful support for 
IRWD to conduct effective Assembly Bill 52 (AB-52) 
processes, when necessary, by providing letter templates, 
checklists, and detailed instructions to ensure meaningful 
consultation with interested Native American groups. 

Rincon understands that IRWD occasionally conducts projects with a federal nexus triggering NEPA (discussed 
further under Task 2, below) as well as CEQA. A joint CEQA/NEPA document maybe be prepared at the discretion 
of both IRWD and the federal lead agency; alternatively, a CEQA-Plus document addressing federal requirements 
may be used by a federal lead agency to satisfy its NEPA requirements. Rincon’s staff has considerable 
experience preparing CEQA-Plus environmental documentation to meet State Water Resources Control Board 
(SWRCB) State Revolving Fund (SRF) Program environmental standards. Our team is also experienced in 
developing technical studies for the Federal Emergency Management Agency/California Office of Emergency 
Services Hazard Mitigation Grant Program, United States Bureau of Reclamation Title XVI, the U.S. Environmental 
Protection Agency (USEPA) Water Infrastructure Finance and Innovation Act (WIFIA), and the United States 
Department of Commerce Economic Development Administration American Rescue Plan Act. 

Task 2 National Environmental Protection Act (NEPA) 
Rincon has provided NEPA support for water districts and public agencies throughout California. We are fluent 
in the requirements of NEPA where they diverge from CEQA, which enables us to advise our clients on the most 
streamlined and effective regulatory pathway possible. We have completed successful NEPA documentation for 
a variety of federal lead agencies, each of which has their own requirements, processes, and preferences; these 
agencies include but are not limited to the U.S. Fish and Wildlife Service (USFWS), U.S. Army Corps of Engineers 
(USACE), U.S. Forest Service, U.S. Bureau of Reclamation (USBR), and Federal Highway Administration (via 
California Department of Transportation), among others. 

Rincon has prepared documentation for numerous NEPA Categorical Exclusion projects similar to those 
previously prepared by IRWD, which have been related to the use of federal funding (American Recovery and 
Reinvestment Act of 2009; Water and Energy Efficiency Grant funds), as well as for activities on federal lands 
(Cleveland National Forest). Where a project does not qualify for a NEPA Categorical Exclusion, an Environmental 
Assessment (EA) and Finding Of No Significant Impact (FONSI) may be required or, less commonly, an 
Environmental Impact Statement (EIS) and Record of Decision. However, based on our experience and familiarity 
with IRWD’s projects and activities, Rincon anticipates that most NEPA documentation required for IRWD projects 

Rincon provided CEQA support, technical reports, and 
construction monitoring for rehabilitation of 100 miles 
of Prestressed Concrete Cylinder Pipelines for The 
Metropolitan Water District of Southern California 

E-6



Irvine Ranch Water District 
On-Call CEQA and NEPA Consultation 

Rincon Consultants, Inc. 4 

will involve Categorical Exclusions and supporting 
technical studies.  

Rincon is also experienced in addressing federal 
environmental documentation requirements for 
projects seeking federal funding from the USEPA WIFIA 
program. Our approach to preparing WIFIA NEPA 
documentation has been carefully crafted with the 
guidance of our contacts at the USEPA WIFIA Program 
(e.g., Alejandro Escobar, Associate Director of the WIFIA 
Program). We are currently preparing WIFIA 
Programmatic Environmental Assessment 
Questionnaires for a suite of groundwater well and 
PFAS remediation projects for SCV Water.  

Task 3 Staff Rates 
Rincon’s labor categories and rates are provided in 
Section 5 of this proposal.  

Task 4 Project Task Item Estimates 
Rincon believes in finding creative solutions to maintaining low budgets and completing work in the most 
efficient and cost effective way achievable. We accomplish this efficiency through direct technical senior and 
principal involvement at the beginning of each project to reduce the need for multiple rounds of review and 
revision. We manage multiple task orders under a master on-call agreement through close project tracking, early 
identification of issues, consistent quality control, and effective client communication. Rincon’s approach to 
managing multiple tasks under a master on-call agreement is discussed further under Task 6, and is based on 
our ongoing experience managing more than 1,800 assignments every year for more than 800 clients statewide.  

For each task order presented by IRWD, Rincon will provide a project-specific scope of work, schedule, and cost 
estimate. Understanding the efficiency is important, only those tasks needed to satisfy project requirements are 
included in scope of work proposals. To provide flexibility in project execution and ability to adapt to changes, 
Rincon may also define optional tasks for services IRWD may elect to conduct, or which may become necessary 
depending upon the outcome of initial project analysis. As specified in the RFP, cost estimates will also include 
costs/fees for document filing, including newspaper ads, County Clerk fees, and California Department of Fish 
and Wildlife (CDFW) CEQA Filing Fees.  

Task 5 Team Experience  
Section 2 of this proposal introduces the Rincon team assembled specifically for this contract with IRWD. Team 
member resumes are provided in Attachment A, including a selection of relevant project experience, years of 
professional experience, education, and special knowledge and skills related to this contract. 

Task 6 Project Coordination 
Rincon understands that this contract may involve working with other consultants and agencies, and working as 
a subordinate and/or project management role. For many of our water projects, Rincon either collaborates 
alongside engineering firms that develop project design, often concurrent with Rincon’s environmental work, or 
we engage in a prime/subcontractor relationship. Rincon has strong, collaborative relationships with engineering 
consulting firms and regulatory agency staff. Rincon regularly coordinates in this manner, as demonstrated by 
our ongoing work on the EMWD On-Call Environmental Services contract, as a subconsultant to a Prime 
contractor; see Section 3, References. Rincon also supports our water agency clients by facilitating inter-agency 
partnerships and multiple regional coalitions, such as the North San Diego Water Reuse Coalition which has 
been managed by Rosalyn Prickett for 10 years. Rincon also regularly teams with other firms to supplement our 
in-house expertise; Fehr & Peers, with whom Rincon has an ongoing professional relationship and Master 

View of the Ventura-Santa Barbara Counties Intertie Project 
alignment, where horizontal directional drilling was proposed 
to cross a drainage. Rincon prepared NEPA documentation 
and technical studies for this project. 

E-7



Irvine Ranch Water District 
On-Call CEQA and NEPA Consultation 

Rincon Consultants, Inc. 5 

Services Agreement (MSA), will support our team for this contract with IRWD to provide traffic and transportation 
studies if needed. We also hold a mutual MSA with Todd Groundwater for groundwater modeling when needed. 

At Rincon, we believe that project management is an integral part of a project’s success and use the following 
methods to deliver that success: (1) proven project management techniques to provide technical direction to our 
internal staff and subconsultants; (2) regular communication with IRWD staff as needed throughout the course 
of each assignment and provide technical assistance as needed; (3) consistent control of program costs, 
schedule, staffing, technical performance, deliverables, and subcontractors; and (4) detailed internal reviews to 
ensure that the quality of the work meets or exceeds IRWD work order and contract requirements. To facilitate 
coordination and communication, we have established a program of weekly planning and coordination meetings 
using an agenda developed and circulated in advance.  

Rincon’s proven management techniques will be implemented by Annaliese Torres as discussed further in 
Section 2, Team, under “Quality Assurance and Project Management.” Our approach to management involves 
technical direction for our internal staff as well as to subconsultants, primes, and partners. Rincon also has a 
formal process for tracking and disseminating information and data using an electronic, centralized 
recordkeeping system for all data relevant to task orders. This organization provides easy access to the most up-
to-date versions of project information as needed. 

Task 7 Mitigation Monitoring and Reporting 
Rincon has a team of environmental compliance specialists that focus on developing and implementing 
mitigation monitoring and reporting programs (MMRPs) that include the commitments from CEQA/NEPA 
documents and regulatory permits. Our depth of experience with MMRP implementation is fundamental to 
informing our approach to CEQA and the crafting of mitigation measure language, applying our knowledge of 
project construction and operational requirements to inform feasibility, effectiveness, and minimum regulatory 
requirements. Our environmental compliance team includes program managers who orchestrate, schedule, 
document, and manage all MMRP requirements, as well as field monitors such as qualified biologists, 
archaeologists, architectural historians, paleontologists, hydrologists, and noise specialists.  

Prior to undertaking fieldwork, we conduct background research and assess fieldwork needs to inform a site-
specific approach and safety plan. Our field staff are supported by application-based mapping and 
documentation software provided by Rincon’s GIS team, as well as a robust health and safety program to ensure 
the fieldwork is completed safely. During project construction, Rincon’s trained monitors help minimize costs 
and delays by clearly communicating permit conditions to staff and crew, conducting preconstruction surveys as 
needed, presenting environmental education programs, identifying appropriate levels of monitoring, proactively 
coordinating with resource agencies when appropriate, and documenting compliance and mitigation progress.  

Rincon’s environmental compliance team is closely coordinated with our regulatory permitting team, which is 
highly experienced in implementing state and federal regulations for streambeds, wetlands, and special status 
plants and wildlife. We strive to gain necessary approvals for mitigation for every project in a cost-conscious and 
time-efficient manner. Our team has forged solid connections with staff responsible for issuing permits from 
every resource agency relevant to water infrastructure, including CDFW, USFWS, SWRCB, Regional Water Quality 
Control Boards (RWQCBs), Department of Water Resources, USACE, USBR, and the federal and State 
Environmental Protection Agencies. This combination of experience and agency contacts will facilitate prompt 
and efficient responses to IRWD requests for permit applications and MMRP implementation. In addition, our 
team uses state-of-the-art technology during monitoring to control costs, streamline efforts, and effectively 
manage data. Our entire team, from project managers to monitors, understands how to work together with our 
clients and construction teams to think proactively, exercise frequent and effective communication, work 
efficiently, and collaborate to ensure compliance schedule and budget needs are met. 

Task 8 References 
Rincon’s relevant experience is presented in Section 3, and letters of reference from two Rincon clients – The 
Metropolitan Water District of Southern California and the City of Pismo Beach – are provided in Attachment B. 
In addition, the table below presents a selection of IRWD projects that Rincon staff have worked on in the past.  

E-8



Irvine Ranch Water District 
On-Call CEQA and NEPA Consultation 

Rincon Consultants, Inc. 6 

Project Name Rincon Staff IRWD Staff 

Baker Water Regional Treatment Plant EIR and 
EIR Addenda 

Jennifer Jacobus; Monica 
Strauss 

Paul Weghorst, Fiona Sanchez, 
Kellie Welch, Richard Mori 

Battery Storage Facilities NOE Jennifer Jacobus Paul Weghorst, Fiona Sanchez, 
Kellie Welch 

Eastwood Recycled Water Pump Station IS/MND Nicole West Jo Ann Corey (no longer at IRWD) 

Kern Fan Groundwater Storage Project EIR Jennifer Jacobus Paul Weghorst, Fiona Sanchez, 
Kellie Welch 

Michelson Water Recycling Plant, Biosolids 
Handling and Energy Recovery Project EIR 

Jennifer Jacobus; Danielle 
Griffith 

Paul Weghorst, Kellie Welch 

San Diego Creek Water Rights Petition IS-ND Jennifer Jacobus Paul Weghorst, Fiona Sanchez, 
Kellie Welch, Ian Swift 

San Joaquin Reservoir Filtration Facility IS/MND Nicole West Jo Ann Corey (no longer at IRWD) 

Strand Ranch Integrated Banking Project EIR and 
EIR Addendum 

Jennifer Jacobus Paul Weghorst, Kellie Welch 

Syphon Reservoir Geotechnical Investigations 
IS/MND 

Jennifer Jacobus; Heather 
Dubois 

Paul Weghorst, Fiona Sanchez, 
Kellie Welch, Richard Mori 

Syphon Reservoir Improvement Project CEQA-
Plus EIR 

Jennifer Jacobus Paul Cook, Paul Weghorst, Fiona 
Sanchez, Kellie Welch, Richard 
Mori 

Wells 21, 22, and Tustin Legacy 1 Projects, 
IS/MND/EA and Addendum 

Jennifer Jacobus Paul Weghorst, Fiona Sanchez, 
Kellie Welch 

2 Team 
The figure below presents Rincon’s proposed organizational chart for this team, followed by an introduction to 
our contract management team and an overview of key personnel experience. 

 

E-9



Irvine Ranch Water District 
On-Call CEQA and NEPA Consultation 

Rincon Consultants, Inc. 7 

As requested in the RFP, no substitution of key team members will occur without IRWD’s prior written consent. 
The Rincon team assembled for this important contract provides all the technical expertise, experience, local 
familiarity, and availability needed to effectively respond to IRWD task orders under this on-call contract. Detailed 
staff resumes are provided in Attachment A. 

Contract Management Team 
Our core management team includes Jennifer Jacobus, Principal-in-Charge, and Annaliese Torres, Project 
Manager. While at a previous firm, Jennifer managed on-call services for IRWD for 13 years, and has intimate 
understanding the IRWD’s organization and facilities, both in Orange County and Kern County. Jennifer currently 
oversees several of Rincon’s successful on-call services contracts with water districts/agencies and will similarly 
oversee the effective execution of task orders under this on-call, including final quality assurance and quality 
control (QA/QC) for all deliverables. Annaliese has overseen the environmental documentation, permitting, and 
construction monitoring processes for numerous water, wastewater, and groundwater projects throughout the 
state, including on-call services for water and wastewater agencies. She is adept at anticipating needs and 
challenges associated with site-specific environmental constraints and experienced in the nuances of 
environmental documentation and permitting for these project types.  

Jennifer and Annalise regularly work together on CEQA and NEPA projects for water and wastewater agency 
clients. They have established clear channels of communication and a collaborative working relationship that 
facilitates the seamless execution of water and wastewater infrastructure and planning projects, including the 
early identification of potential issues to allow for effective resolution. 

Jennifer Jacobus, PhD | Principal-in-Charge 

Office: Los Angeles 

Contact Information: jjacobus@rinconconsultants.com | 213-448-2586 

Dr. Jacobus is Rincon’s Principal-in-Charge of Water Market services, with over 20 years 
of experience providing support to water and wastewater clients throughout California. 
Her expertise includes feasibility studies, constraints analyses, funding applications, 
CEQA/NEPA compliance, regulatory permitting, and construction monitoring. Jennifer has 
a reputation for client satisfaction, meeting the unique needs of each district and 
community. Jennifer has successfully completed environmental compliance for projects 
including treatment plants, distribution systems, potable reuse, and recycled water 
projects to groundwater replenishment, reservoir storage, water rights, and surface water 

 diversion projects. While at a previous firm, Jennifer served as Client Manager to IRWD 
 for as-needed environmental services over 13 years, completing more than $1 million 
 of work and 20 task orders. 

Annaliese Torres | Project Manager 

Office: Los Angeles 

Contact Information: atorres@rinconconsultants.com | 657-999-8337 

Annaliese is a Senior Environmental Planner and Project Manager who manages 
environmental analyses, technical studies, and grant tracking and writing for water and 
wastewater projects. She prepares and manages CEQA, CEQA-Plus, and NEPA 
documentation, and supports a variety of cross-disciplinary technical studies. Annaliese 
works with numerous water agencies including the Water Replenishment District of 
Southern California, Three Valleys MWD, SCV Water, Central Basin Municipal Water 
District, West Basin Municipal Water District, and South Coast Water District, on projects 
such as potable and non-potable pipelines, groundwater wells, pump stations, treatment 
facilities, and reservoirs. Annaliese currently serves as Client Manager to Metropolitan 

 for as-needed environmental services, overseeing more than $1.4 million of work and 
 128 task orders. 

E-10



Irvine Ranch Water District 
On-Call CEQA and NEPA Consultation 

Rincon Consultants, Inc. 8 

The environmental professionals selected for on-call contract with IRWD were carefully considered for their 
relevant expertise, and have all worked on collaborative project teams in the past, including for IRWD projects. 
The table below provides an overview of key personnel qualifications, including availability and labor categories 
corresponding to our billing rates provided in Section 5, Budget.  

With the guidance of our highly skilled management team, supported by our dynamic team of professionals, 
Rincon is ready to meet and exceed IRWD’s needs under this contract. 

Key Personnel Experience  
Name, Role, Labor 
Category, Availability Education and Certifications Technical Experience 

Jennifer Jacobus, PhD 
Principal-in-Charge 
Principal  
Availability: 20% 

PhD, Resource Ecology & 
Management, University of 
Michigan 
MA, Geography, Boston University 
BA, Economics, Johns Hopkins 
University 

 20 years of experience 
 Served as Client Manager to IRWD for as-needed 

environmental services over 13 years, completing more 
than $1M of work and 20 task orders  

 Focused exclusively on water and wastewater clients and 
projects in California 

Annaliese Torres 
Project Manager 
Senior Planner II 
Availability: 35%  

B.S., Environmental Science, 
Texas Christian University 
CEQA Practice Certificate, UCSD 
Extension 

 7 years of experience 
 Trusted Project Manager for numerous water agency 

clients including Metropolitan Water District of Southern 
California; Water Replenishment District of Southern 
California; North Kern Water Storage District; Santa Clarita 
Valley Water Agency  

Danielle Griffith 
CEQA Lead 
Director  
Availability: 25% 

Juris Doctor, Western State 
University College of Law 
MA, Political Science, San Diego 
State University 
BA, Political Science, Sonoma 
State University 

 20 years of experience 
 Served as Project Manager for IRWD’s Michelson and Los 

Alisos Water Recycling Plants Biosolids Handline and 
Energy Recovery Facility Project 

 Project manager and director in infrastructure projects and 
regulatory compliance for water agencies 

Amanda Antonelli 
NEPA Lead 
Senior Planner II 
Availability: 30% 

MESM, Water Resources 
Management, UCSB 
BA, Geography/Environmental 
Studies, UCLA 

 9 years of experience 
 Solutions-oriented manager fluent in guiding water projects 

through environmental permitting landscapes 
 Expertise in federal regulations including NEPA and cross-

cutting requirements across CEQA and NEPA, including 
through CEQA-Plus document preparation 

Brenna Vredeveld 
Natural Resources Lead 
Supervisor Biologist I 
Availability: 20% 

MESc, Yale University 
BA, Environmental Studies, 
Wellesley College 
Professional Certificate in 
Spanish/English Translation, UC 
San Diego Extension 

 15 years of experience 
 Ecosystem monitoring and reporting, federal and local 

regulatory processes, compliance requirements for 
biological resources on construction projects 

 Program Manager for Metropolitan’s Prestressed Concrete 
Cylinder Pipe Rehabilitation Program 

Monica Strauss 
Cultural Resources Lead 
Senior Principal 
Availability: 20% 

MA, Archaeology, California State 
University, Northridge 
BA, Anthropology, California State 
University, Northridge 
Register of Professional 
Archaeologists, #12805 

 25+ years of experience 
 Compliance program management on numerous multi-year 

large-scale infrastructure projects in the areas of energy, 
transportation, and water.  

 Has successfully directed hundreds of cultural resources 
projects meeting local, state, and/or federal regulatory 
requirements across water markets. 

Rosalyn Prickett 
CEQA QA/QC 
Principal 
Availability: 20% 

MS, Landscape Architecture/ 
Environmental Planning, 
University of California, Berkeley 
MS, City & Regional Planning, 
University of California, Berkeley 
BS, City & Regional Planning, Cal 
Poly San Luis Obispo 

 23 years of experience 
 Excels at managing stakeholder-based water management 

programs for potable reuse, recycled water, and domestic 
water supply and sewer efforts. 

 Principal-in-Charge for water infrastructure projects and 
regulatory compliance for water agencies  

E-11



Irvine Ranch Water District 
On-Call CEQA and NEPA Consultation 

Rincon Consultants, Inc. 9 

Name, Role, Labor 
Category, Availability Education and Certifications Technical Experience 

Nicole West 
CEQA; Water Quality; 
Permitting 
Senior Supervisor 
Planner 
Availability: 30% 

MS, Civil and Environmental 
Engineering, University of 
California, Berkeley 
BS, Evolution and Ecology, 
University of California, Davis 
CPSWQ (Permit No. 384) 
QSD/QSP (Permit No. 00238) 

 24 years of experience 
 CEQA Project Manager for agencies in Orange County 

including IRWD (San Joaquin Reservoir Filtration Facility; 
Eastwood Recycled Water Pump Station) and Orange 
County Sanitation District 

 Experienced water and stormwater professional with 
fluency in water permits and regulations 

Aubrey Mescher 
CEQA; Water; 
Hydrology/WQ 
Supervisor Planner I 
Availability: 30% 

MESM, Water Resources 
Management; University of 
California Santa Barbara 
BA, Environmental Studies/Film 
Studies; Emory University 

 19 years of experience  
 Technical specialist with focused expertise in Southern 

California water and energy projects 
 Adept at conveying complex information in a manner that 

can be understood by the general public  

Bill Vosti 
AQ/GHG; Noise 
Supervisor Planner I 
Availability: 15% 

MESM, Environmental Science & 
Management, UCSB 
BA, Journalism, California State 
University, Chico 

 8 years of experience 
 Proficient with various noise prediction models and air 

quality and greenhouse gas emissions models 
 Preparation of technical reports for CEQA/NEPA 

Heather Dubois 
AQ/GHG 
Senior Planner II 
Availability: 15% 

MBA, Clarkson University 
BS, Biology, Clarkson 
University 
BS, Chemistry, Clarkson 
University 

 21 years of experience 
 Air quality analyses, health risk assessments, and climate 

change analysis for NEPA and CEQA  
 Well versed with California Air Resource Board and local air 

district regulations and guidance 

Andrea Maben 
Biological Resources 
Senior Biologist I 
Availability: 15% 

BS, Environmental Science, 
Concentration in Conservation 
Biology, University of California, 
Los Angeles 

 8 years of experience 
 Environmental compliance support for conditional use 

permits and Mitigation, Monitoring, and Reporting 
Programs and natural resources permitting 

 Biological resource assessments for CEQA compliance 

Jared Reed 
Biological Resources 
Senior Biologist II 
Availability: 15% 

BS, Ecology and Evolution, UCSB 
Authorization to take, possess, 
and transport Flat-tailed Horned 
Lizards 
Trained CRAM Practitioner 

 21 years of experience 
 Regulatory permitting, jurisdictional delineations, and 

biological resources studies in support of CEQA/NEPA 
 Surveys and reports for rare and sensitive species (Coastal 

California Gnatcatcher, least Bell’s vireo) 

Angie Harbin 
Biological Resources 
Director 
Availability: 20% 

MS, Conservation Ecology, UC 
Davis 
BS, Wildlife, Fish, and 
Conservation Biology, UC Davis 

 20 years of experience 
 Broad experience in regulatory permitting, wetlands, 

wildlife, and conservation ecology  
 Has overseen development of mitigation monitoring and 

reporting plans and resource management plans  

Mike Vader 
Cultural Resources 
Senior Archaeologist II 
Availability: 15% 

BA, Physical Anthropology, 
University of California, Santa 
Barbara 

 17 years of experience 
 Archaeological survey, excavation, monitoring, and 

environmental compliance projects 
 Numerous water and sewer infrastructure projects for 

public agencies in Southern California 

Rachel Perzel 
Built Environment 
Supervisor 
Archaeologist 
Availability: 15% 

MA, Historic Preservation, 
Savannah College of Art & Design 
BA, Historic Preservation & 
Planning, College of Charleston 

 10 years of experience 
 Historic Resources Evaluations for CEQA and NEPA 
 National Historic Preservation Act Section 106 
 Exceeds the U.S. Secretary of Interior Professional 

Qualification Standards for Architectural History  

Andrew McGrath 
Paleontology 
Archaeologist III 
Availability: 15% 

PhD, Earth Science, UCSB 
Certificate in College and 
University Teaching, UCSB 
BA, Evolutionary Biology, Case 
Western Reserve University 

 3 years of experience in environmental consulting and 9 
years of paleontological research and publications 

 Field work, construction monitoring, and mitigation 
implementation for regulatory compliance 

E-12



Irvine Ranch Water District 
On-Call CEQA and NEPA Consultation 

Rincon Consultants, Inc. 10 

Name, Role, Labor 
Category, Availability Education and Certifications Technical Experience 

Delia Votsch, PE 
(Fehr & Peers) 
Traffic/Transportation 

BS, Civil Engineering, Drexel 
University 
Licensed Civil Engineer, State of 
California (C 90171) 

 8 years of experience 
 Transportation assessments in support of CEQA and NEPA 

documentation 
 Operations Manager for Orange County/Inland Empire  

  

 

Quality Assurance and Management 
At Rincon, we believe that project management is an integral part of a project’s success, and we employ a variety 
of standards of practice to provide clear, thorough, and effective management of task orders. One of our key 
strengths is our involvement in projects from “inception-to-implementation,” which spans from pre-planning 
activities (alternative analyses, environmental constraints analysis, and technical report preparation) to project 
analysis (CEQA/NEPA compliance, regulatory permitting), through project implementation (hazards remediation, 
construction monitoring, stormwater compliance services) to post construction activities (habitat restoration, 
mitigation). As a result, we have a full understanding of the demands of large and small-scale projects, and the 
interaction between environmental issues and the directives of the responsible regulatory agencies. 

When managing multiple tasks under a master on-call agreement, we have found that close project tracking, 
early identification of issues, consistent quality control, and effective client communication are essential. We 
take pride in our structured management of complex, multidisciplinary environmental review projects. These 
techniques result in outcomes of high quality, meeting both study objectives and budgets. 

 Communication and Documentation Procedures. Communication is critical to managing multiple task 
orders under an on-call agreement. Upon receipt of a request for task order from IRWD, our Project Manager 
will coordinate with the project team (including subconsultants) to determine the best lead for each resource 
area and to provide a scope and cost for each project component.  We have established a program of weekly 
planning and coordination meetings to review work in progress, plans, and schedules. We also have a formal 
process for tracking and disseminating information and data for large projects. We employ an electronic, 
centralized recordkeeping system for all data relevant to the project.  

 Technical Direction and Control. Our team operates in accordance with its rigorous QA/QC Manual, which 
establishes clear roles and responsibilities for each client, as well as protocols for the execution of each 
assignment, and protocols for internal/external communication. We will send weekly or bi-weekly planning 
and coordination e-mails or conference call status updates to the appropriate members of IRWD staff to 
review work in progress, plans, and schedules and to ensure each project is proceeding in line with 
expectations. Rincon also can provide access to video conference call technology upon request.  

 Cost and Schedule Control. Rincon believes in finding creative solutions to maintaining low budgets and 
completing work in the most efficient and cost effective way achievable. Rincon achieves cost, schedule, 
and resource control pursuant to the following three-step process: (1) Cost and schedule baselines are 
established. (2) Actual cost and schedule data are collected and reported on a weekly basis to the Project 
Manager. (3) Deviations in cost or schedule performance are discussed internally, and if necessary, with 
IRWD staff and corrective actions are taken. Rincon uses Deltek Ajera®, a project-based accounting system 
that controls all aspects of project management and accounting with real-time project information.  

 Project Reporting and Editorial Review. We work closely with clients for the duration of the project to ensure 
that progress is carefully tracked, attention is drawn to any difficulties encountered, and the project is 
conducted in a highly professional manner. We hold formal monthly status review meetings in which 

Julia Aranda, PE, Engineering Manager, Casitas Municipal Water District  

“Rincon is very responsive to the needs of the District and is seen as a valuable resource for supporting our 
capital projects and ongoing programs. Staff provide reasonable turnaround on deliverables and keep 
District staff informed when schedule delays are unavoidable. Reports are presented professionally and 
organized well. Rincon staff are very well qualified and knowledgeable regarding their respective areas of 
expertise, and deliverables are of high quality.” 

E-13



Irvine Ranch Water District 
On-Call CEQA and NEPA Consultation 

Rincon Consultants, Inc. 11 

assigned staff meet with the Project Manager for a technical, schedule, and budgetary assessment of 
progress. This provides a continuing forum for mutual discussion and peer review of the quality of our work. 

 Problem Anticipation and Management. Rincon recognizes its obligation to anticipate, identify, and resolve 
all problems—technical, managerial and financial—as early as possible. Problems can most often be avoided 
by thoroughly planning the program; realistically budgeting time, labor and costs; clearly communicating with 
clients; and closely monitoring the actual performance of Rincon staff and subcontractors. Problems that do 
occur may be practical (e.g., conditions at field sites delay test operations) or conceptual and relating to 
steps in the technical approach. Many can be quickly solved by the involved staff members; otherwise, they 
are brought to the immediate attention of the Project Manager, who will decide the best resolution. 

 Ensuring Comprehensiveness and Legal Adequacy. At Rincon we take pride in offering our clients Principal-
level staff involvement in all projects, with decades of experience in interpreting CEQA Statute and 
Guidelines to help ensure that a client’s documents meet accepted standards for comprehensiveness and 
legal adequacy. We understand the importance of strict adherence to CEQA process and procedures 
including scoping, notification, filing/posting of documents, statutory timelines and content guidelines to 
avoid or withstand legal challenges on procedural grounds. 

3 References 
Rincon offers extensive experience providing on-call and as-needed environmental services to California water, 
wastewater, and groundwater agencies. This section provides an overview of three projects we have selected as 
being particularly relevant to the services requested under this contract for IRWD. Additional related experience 
is discussed under respective heading below. Please see Attachment B for letters of reference. 

The Metropolitan Water District of Southern California, On-Call Environmental 
Services 

Contact: Malinda Stalvey, Senior Environmental Specialist 

Phone: 213-217-5545 | mstalvey@mwdh2o.com  

Address: 700 North Alameda Street | Los Angeles, California 90012 

Dates: 2011 - Present 

Since 2011, Rincon has provided on-call environmental consulting services to Metropolitan, which serves 
portions of Los Angeles, Orange, Riverside, San Bernardino, San Diego, and Ventura counties. Our program team 
has managed over 40 task orders for services at every stage of project implementation: CEQA/NEPA, permitting, 
funding, resource assessments, and construction monitoring. Rincon has performed a wide variety of work 
scopes for Metropolitan on time and within or under budget. Rincon is currently working with Metropolitan on 
the F.E. Weymouth Water Treatment Plant and La Verne Site Improvements Program EIR and has come in 
$75,000 under budget on tasks completed to date, including preparation of the Initial Study and publication of 
the Draft EIR, all while adhering to a firm schedule driven by Metropolitan’s desired date for Final EIR certification. 
Our team also responds nimbly to frequent short-notice requests for pre-construction surveys and biological 
monitoring for both routine maintenance and emergency projects.  

Other recent, relevant projects include but are not limited to those listed below.  

 Garvey Reservoir Rehabilitation Project EIR and Technical Studies;  

 Colorado River Aqueduct Master Reclamation Plan for San Bernardino and Riverside Counties IS-MND and 
Technical Studies;  

 Climate Action Plan and Program EIR; and 

 Lakeview Pipeline Repair Project IS-MND Addendum No. 2 and Technical Studies. 

E-14



Irvine Ranch Water District 
On-Call CEQA and NEPA Consultation 

Rincon Consultants, Inc. 12 

Eastern Municipal Water District, On-Call Environmental Services 

Contact: Jennifer Ziv, Woodard & Curran (prime) 

Phone: 949-420-5300 | jziv@woodardcurran.com  

Address: 530 Technology Drive | Irvine, California 92618 

Dates: 2015 - Present 

As a subconsultant to a Prime contractor, Rincon has been awarded this on-call contract over the last three 
cycles to provide environmental consulting services including paleontological, archeological, and biological 
expertise to support compliance with CEQA and regulatory requirements for capital and operations and 
maintenance projects.  

 Cactus Avenue Corridor Project. Rincon prepared technical studies and a CEQA-Plus IS-MND for a project 
involving construction of groundwater extraction, treatment, and distribution facilities in Moreno Valley. The 
project would increase potable water supply in EMWD’s Perris North Groundwater Management Zone with 
construction of up to six extraction wells, a treatment plant, and approximately 30,000 linear feet of pipeline 
to convey raw and treated water. Due to project design and environmental review occurring concurrently, 
Rincon analyzed potential biological, cultural, and paleontological impacts at approximately 11 well sites, 
two potential treatment plant locations, and a variety of potential pipeline alignments. Rincon also provided 
focused burrowing owl surveys and mitigation to address potential impacts to the special-status species; 
Native American outreach to over 30 tribes as part of the federal Section 106 tribal consultation process; 
and multiple 24-hour noise measurements to support the noise analysis contained in the IS-MND. 

 Perris North Basin Groundwater Contamination Monitoring Program. Rincon prepared a CEQA-Plus 
analysis including technical reports for cultural, biological, and paleontological resources, for a proposed 
groundwater monitoring program within EMWD’s Perris North Management Zone of the San Jacinto 
Groundwater Basin. The program involves drilling and operation of up to 10 monitoring wells ranging in 
depth from 200 to 800 feet, as well as semi-annual data collection visits to all wells in order to understand 
the extent of groundwater contamination and inform EMWD’s long-term groundwater management 
decisions. Rincon assessed 10 proposed well sites, many of which were not identified at the outset of the 
analysis; Rincon worked closely with the Prime to keep the project on schedule as new well sites were 
confirmed and incorporated into the analysis. 

City of Pismo Beach, Central Coast Blue Project 

Contact: Benjamin Fine, PE, Director of Public Works/City Engineer 

Phone: 805-773-7037 | bfine@pismobeach.org  

Address: 760 Mattie Road | Pismo Beach, California 93449 

Dates: August 2019 - Present 

With Annaliese Torres leading this effort as Project 
Manager, Rincon completed the preparation of a hybrid  
Program/Project-level CEQA-Plus EIR for the City of 
Pismo Beach’s Central Coast Blue project. This project 
is a collaboration between multiple agencies including 
the City of Pismo Beach, the cities of Arroyo Grande and 
Grover Beach, Oceano Community Services District, and 
South San Luis Obispo County Sanitation District. The 
project includes a full-scale test injection well and a 
nested monitoring well to provide the City with 
information regarding the feasibility and design options 
for the Central Coast Blue project.  

E-15



Irvine Ranch Water District 
On-Call CEQA and NEPA Consultation 

Rincon Consultants, Inc. 13 

Key issues in the EIR included archaeological resources, California red-legged frog, discharge of reverse osmosis 
concentrate, recreation, and growth inducement. Rincon collaborated closely with the project engineering team 
and prepared a hybrid program/project-level CEQA document to provide flexibility for the initial phases of the 
project to move forward while details for future phases of the project are determined. The Final EIR was certified 
in February 2021, and the project was approved in March 2021. Rincon further provided permitting assistance 
for the project, including coastal development permits from the City of Grover Beach and the County of San Luis 
Obispo; permits from USACE, RWQCB, and CDFW; and consultation with the USFWS. 

 

The Central Coast Blue project received a Project Merit Award from the Association of 
Environmental Professionals (AEP) in 2021. 

 

Additional Related Experience 
Our staff have experience managing, processing, and reviewing projects ranging from simple pipeline repairs to 
complex conjunctive use plans and multi-agency regional water facilities. Our clients have come to expect a high 
degree of interaction with community members and organizations, internal public agency staff, and decision-
makers. A partial list of clients with whom we are contracted for on-call environmental services is below.  

Client Services Dates 

The Metropolitan Water District of 
Southern California 

CEQA/NEPA; Permitting; Biological Services 2011 - Present 

Bay-Delta Issues 2022 - Present 

Eastern Municipal Water District CEQA/NEPA; Biological Resources; Cultural 
Resources; Paleontological Resources 

2015 - Present 

South Coast Water District CEQA/NEPA; Monitoring/Compliance 2022 - Present 

Inland Empire Utilities Agency CEQA/NEPA; Permitting; Climate Planning; 
Compliance Training 

2020 - Present 

Three Valleys Municipal Water District CEQA; Biological Resources; Grant Writing 2022 - Present 

United Water Conservation District CEQA/NEPA; Biological Resources; Permitting 2016 - Present 

Casitas Municipal Water District CEQA Services; Permitting; Biological Resources 2018 - Present 

Montecito Water District CEQA/NEPA Services 2019 - Present 

Santa Clarita Valley Water Agency  CEQA Services; Biological Resources; Cultural 
Resources; Permitting; Monitoring 

2019 - Present 

Los Angeles Department of Water and 
Power 

CEQA/NEPA; Biological Resources; Cultural 
Resources; Compliance  

2021 - Present 

Calleguas Municipal Water District CEQA/NEPA; Biological Resources; Cultural 
Resources; Construction Monitoring 

2022 - Present 

San Elijo Joint Powers Authority CEQA/NEPA Services 2023 - Present 

4 Schedule 
Rincon has assembled a team for this contract with sufficient availability to devote attention required for IRWD 
task orders, as they arise (please see Section 2). Rincon also has established systems and procedures to 
manage multiple task orders under an on-call contract, including in coordination with other consultants and 

Matthew Downing, Former Community Development Director, City of Pismo Beach  

“…Rincon is constantly thinking ahead and answering questions you did not even know you had. They 
strategize how to address different complex issues to not create additional issues elsewhere.” 

E-16



Irvine Ranch Water District 
On-Call CEQA and NEPA Consultation 

Rincon Consultants, Inc. 14 

agencies. Schedule drivers and constraints can be associated with project complexity, the type of CEQA/NEPA 
documentation required, regulatory agency review times, and stakeholder involvement. We will assess these 
variables upon project kickoff and develop a project-specific schedule to meet all requirements and expectations. 
Our Principal in Charge, Jennifer Jacobus, and Project Manager, Annaliese Torres, have the authority to identify 
and prioritize staff to complete CEQA and NEPA services as requested by IRWD. 

In general, a CEQA Categorical Exemption or NEPA Categorical Exclusion can be completed within four to six 
weeks, while a CEQA IS-ND or IS-MND generally requires four to six months. A CEQA-Plus document, similar to 
an IS-ND or IS-MND, can typically be prepared within four to six months. although compliance with Section 106 
of the National Historic Preservation Act can add several months to document approval and certification. If there 
is a federal lead agency that intends to use a CEQA-Plus document to inform or adopt as its NEPA document, 
additional time is added to the project schedule. A CEQA Addendum, which builds upon an existing CEQA 
document, can typically be completed within about four weeks. Rincon understands that an EIR or EIS is unlikely 
to be necessary under this contract; however, should such a document be necessary, Rincon will work closely 
with IRWD to develop an acceptable and realistic schedule for project completion.  

5 Budget 
Rincon’s 2024 standard fee schedule for environmental sciences and planning services is provided on the 
following page, and will be used to inform project-specific budgets for task orders arising under this contract. 

6 Joint Venture 
Rincon does not propose to use a joint venture agreement in the provision of services under this contract. We 
have invited Fehr and Peers to join our team for traffic modeling and analyses on an as-needed basis. Through 
the execution of this contract, we will be forward-thinking and collaborative as to what additional partners may 
bring the best value to IRWD. 

7 Conflict of Interest 
To the best of our knowledge, Rincon does not have existing personal, financial, and/or organization conflicts of 
interest prohibited by law. 

8 Insurance 
Please see Attachment C for Rincon’s Insurance Certificate. 

9 Contract 
Rincon accepts the standard terms and conditions in the professional services agreement attached to the RFP 
and requests no modifications. 

 

E-17



Irvine Ranch Water District 
On-Call CEQA and NEPA Consultation 

Rincon Consultants, Inc. 15 

Rincon 2024 Standard Fee Schedule with 3-Year Escalation 

 

E-18



ANDY UK 

HARMSWORTH ASSOCIATES 

Proposal to 

IRVINE RANCH WATER DISTRICT 

for 

On-Call Monitoring and Permitting Services 

Exhibit "F"

F-1



F-2



Harmsworth Associates 

 

ENVIRONMENTAL ASSISTANCE 

FOR 

ON-CALL MONITORING AND PERMITTING SERVICES  

 

SCOPE OF WORK 

 

At the request of the Irvine Ranch Water District (IRWD), Harmsworth Associates will 

provide the following on-call services: 

 

Task 1: Land Use Planning 

IRWD plans through its Master Plan, and sub-area Master Plans for its three primary 

statutory activities, to provide domestic water, reclaimed water and wastewater treatment.   

These activities are planned to accommodate the County and City development plans.  

Moreover, the IRWD is required to comply with the many laws, regulations and codes in 

its capital improvement program.   

 

Harmsworth Associates is familiar with the Planning Areas within IRWD’s Service Area 

and has recently conducted pre-construction biological surveys, construction monitoring 

or permitting in the following PAs 1, 6 and 39, for The Irvine Company’s residential 

developments that will be served by IRWD through its capital improvement program.  

The firm has access to local planning documents, CEQA, NEPA documents and permits.  

Moreover, the firm was a part of the NCCP/HCP planning process representing the 

Metropolitan Water District of Southern California and later assisting both The Irvine 

Company and IRWD in extensive biological surveys and the preparation of amendments 

to the NCCP/HCP.   

 

Harmsworth Associates will assist IRWD with planning its capital projects and 

maintenance activities by providing advice on the nexus of environmental issues with 

planning activities to minimize the environmental consequences and cost of its planned 

actions.  

 

Task 2: Regulatory Agency Consultation, Permit Application and Procurement 

Harmsworth Associates is familiar with the preparation and processing of federal, state, 

and local permits on projects, operations, maintenance and planning activities. Assistance 

by Harmsworth Associates may involve the preparation and processing of permit 

applicants and supporting materials with one or more of the regulatory agencies.  The 

firm has provided consultation on both riparian and upland systems.   

 

Harmsworth Associates secured emergency permits for IRWDs Lake Forest Sewer 

Emergency Repairs and Williams Canyon Pipeline and Road Repairs.  Currently HWA 

are in the process of obtaining permits for IRWD’s Sewer Siphon Project. 

 

Harmsworth Associates will assist IRWD with the preparation of permit applications to 

the resource/wildlife regulatory agencies including: 

• United States Army Corps of Engineers 

• Bureau of Land Management 

F-3



Harmsworth Associates 

 

• United States Forest Service 

• California Department of Water Resources 

• California Regional Water Quality Control Board 

• California Department of Fish and Wildlife 

• California Coastal Commission 

• South Coast Air Quality Management District 

 

Harmsworth Associates will provide services to monitor or implement compliance and 

reporting.  Compliance may require monitoring contractor removal of exotic plants, 

restoration and revegetation monitoring then complete the annual or periodic reporting 

requirements in permits.  Consultant shall provide certification of compliance with 

permit conditions for IRWD and agency approval. Harmsworth Associates shall develop 

a schedule of all permit requirements for existing and new permits and their status.  

Consultant shall bring any violations of permit conditions to the attention of the District.  

 

Task 3:  Wetland Delineation 

Harmsworth Associates staff has taken the USACE delineation course and are fully 

competent to determine the jurisdictional boundaries of the United States Army Corps of 

Engineers (pursuant to Section 404 of the federal Clean Water Act).  They have expertise 

with the California Fish and Wildlife Code (pursuant to Section 1602) and the California 

Coastal Commission (pursuant to the California Coastal Act). 

 

Harmsworth Associates has completed many wetland delineations in southern California 

and Orange County for submission to the USACE, RWQCB and CDFW to obtain 

permits certifications and agreements.  One recent project was for a proposed housing 

development at Noble Creek in the city of Beaumont.  Impacts occurred to a perennial 

creek that supports riparian habitat.  HWA conducted the delineation, all biological 

surveys, and impact analysis and obtained the permits. 

 

Harmsworth Associates recently completed Wetland Delineations and Vegetation 

Mapping on projects in Moreno Valley and Winchester in Riverside County. 

 

Harmsworth Associates will provide wetland delineation services to IRWD in compliance 

with the regulatory definitions in force.   

 

Task 4: Biological Survey, Monitoring, Assessment 

Harmsworth Associates has the necessary permits to survey for the listed species in the 

Service Area including nest monitoring ability for the least Bell’s vireo, the southwestern 

willow flycatcher and the collection of endangered fairy shrimp etc.  The staff is very 

familiar with the flora and fauna of Orange County having completed some of the most 

extensive surveys undertaken in the County.  The firm was selected to survey the Orange 

County Coastal Central NCCP/HCP project including for a variety of species and habitat 

types. 

 

In addition the firm has undertaken extensive wildlife and plant surveys of the North 

Ranch Policy Plan Area for The Irvine Company.  Currently the firm is undertaking 

F-4



Harmsworth Associates 

 

numerous surveys for TIC, IRC, NCC and the TNC of the flora and fauna in IRWD’s 

Service Area.     

 

Harmsworth Associates will undertake biological surveys, assessments and monitor 

preconstruction and construction areas as required for the District’s projects. 

Harmsworth Associates will provide field services, written reports, compliance with state 

and federal protocols and advisement on IRWD’s projects.  The firm will undertake 

preliminary and initial assessments, bird nesting surveys, biological monitoring and 

identification of threatened and endangered species. 

 

Task 5: Threatened and Endangered Species Regulation, Monitoring and Reporting 

Harmsworth Associates can survey and prepare documents for endangered and threatened 

species and recommend strategies to minimize and mitigate potential impacts within the 

NCCP/HCP agreements. Harmsworth Associates has permits (No. PRT-810768) and 

MOUs to survey and study endangered species such as the least Bell’s vireo, 

southwestern willow flycatcher, coastal California gnatcatcher, fairy shrimp, pond turtle 

and other species.  The firm’s staff attends meetings with the USFWS staff on key issues 

involving survey protocols for listed species and provides input of a practical nature.   

 

As a consultant representative of Lennar Homes with the Coalition for Habitat 

Conservation the firm follows the latest developments and legal actions under the ESA.  

Complex issues such as the “No Surprises Policy”, “adverse modification” definition and 

the ability to mitigate “off-site” impacts to critical habitat are currently under litigation 

and may impact IRWD’s Section 10(a) (1) (B) Endangered Species Permit obtained as a 

result of the NCCP/HCP plan in 1996.  These and other issues of importance are well 

known to Harmsworth Associates.   

 

Over the past several seasons HWA staff has assisted TIC comply with the endangered 

species act relating to least Bell’s vireo at PA1 and PA39.  A complex set of mitigation 

measures required TIC to conduct surveys and nest monitoring for least Bell’s vireo in 

addition to weekly noise monitoring of construction activity during the nesting season for 

the vireo.  Weekly reports were required to be submitted to USFWS, CDFW and the 

Corps.  HWA conducted the surveys, nest monitoring, noise monitoring and submitted 

the weekly reports.   

 

Harmsworth Associates will assist IRWD in the review of regulatory issues associated 

with listed species under the Endangered Species Acts (FESA and CESA) and ascertain 

the significance of such regulation on IRWD’s projects, operations, and planning 

activities.  The firm will provide assistance with specific policy formulation on 

endangered species covered under the: 

• Federal Endangered Species Act 

• California Endangered Species Act 

• Natural Community Conservation Plan Act 

• The NCC’s policies and IRWD’s rights on “take” in the reserve 

• Migratory Bird Treaty Act 

 

F-5



Harmsworth Associates 

 

The firm will provide assistance with both existing 10(a) permits and new applications as 

required.  

 

Task 6: Mitigation Monitoring and Reporting Plans 

Harmsworth Associates has a long history of mitigation monitoring in Orange County.  

The firm is currently working on a number of projects for the Irvine Company 

undertaking preconstruction surveys, construction monitoring surveys for conditions 

compliance, noise monitoring and other requirements for several developments in the 

service area.  The firm is currently assisting IRWD in restoring riparian and CSS habitats 

at the Baker Pipeline site and is assisting Rancho Mission Viejo managing contractors 

controlling exotic weeds in the south county NCCP reserve. 

 

Other projects include: 

• Mitigation monitoring at various sites for IRWD including Williams Canyon.  

• Surveys and monitoring for least Bell’s vireo, southwestern willow flycatcher, 

and other riparian birds at various riparian habitats in Irvine for The Irvine 

Company. 

• Vegetation and wildlife surveys for The Nature Conservancy, at open space areas 

of the Irvine Ranch. 

• Monitoring vegetation removal under the NCCP guidelines 

 

Harmsworth Associates will assist IRWD in mitigation monitoring planning, 404, 1602, 

and 401 permit conditions compliance.  Harmsworth Associates shall provide services to 

monitor or implement compliance and reporting.  Compliance may require monitoring 

contractor removal of exotic plants, restoration and revegetation monitoring then 

complete the annual or periodic reporting requirements in permits.  Consultant shall 

provide certification of compliance with permit conditions for IRWD and agency 

approval. Harmsworth Associates shall develop a schedule of all permit requirements for 

existing and new permits and their status.  Consultant shall bring any violations of permit 

conditions to the attention of the District.  

 

Task 7: Water Quality Stormwater Monitoring and Reporting 

Harmsworth Associates personnel have a strong background in water resources.  Dr. 

Harmsworth was an analytical chemist prior to specializing in the field of fresh water 

biology as a limnologist.  At Camp Dresser and McKee he was president of the 

Environmental Sciences Division and responsible for over 200 personnel including 100 

water quality chemists.  He managed water quality monitoring projects from wastewater 

treatment plant efficacy analysis (City of Detroit WWTP), sewer and wastewater 

discharges to lake, river and stream systems.   He was responsible for the long-term 

monitoring of Salt Creek sediment load as a part of the RWQCB conditions.  We are 

familiar with water quality collection procedures and the quality assurance procedures 

required for water quality collection and analysis.   

 

Harmsworth Associates collected the biological data used by the Corps in preparation of 

the San Diego Creek SAMP and we are familiar with the workings of this SAMP. 

 

F-6



Harmsworth Associates 

 

Harmsworth Associates will provide water quality and sediment quality monitoring for 

compliance with USACE, RWQCB, and CDFW permit conditions.  Also, Harmsworth 

Associates will provide compliance monitoring with the General Orange County 

Stormwater Permit.  

 

Task 8: Natural Treatment System 

Harmsworth Associates conducted invertebrate sampling in the Woodbridge Channel for 

the NTS project.  The aim of the sampling was to document the existing invertebrate 

fauna of the Woodbridge Channel, particularly the riffle areas.  Four locations were 

selected along the channel for sampling.  Standard qualitative and semi-qualitative 

methods including, sweep netting of vegetation and the water column, sediment grabs, 

kick-sampling and hand searches, will be used to assess the status of the existing fauna.  

To the extent possible, sampling techniques were compatible with the methods used by 

Alex Horne along Peters Canyon Channel.  The existing physical condition and 

vegetation communities at each location were described. 

 

Harmsworth Associates obtained permits for IRWD’s inline basins under a sub contract 

to Tettemer and Associates.  The firm has expertise in the areas of water quality, 

freshwater biology, wetland permits and restoration of wetland systems.  The NTS as 

designed will remove sediment, some nitrogen from nitrification processes in the 

treatment basins and potentially heavy metals adsorbed onto sediments and selenium to 

the atmosphere.   

 

Harmsworth Associates have been involved in the design, planting palette and installation 

of the NTS basins at PA1 and PA39 for The Irvine Company.  Harmsworth Associates is 

familiar with the vegetation management and monitoring required for NTS basins. 

 

Harmsworth Associates will provide assistance in monitoring water quality, fauna and 

the growth and types of vegetation in the basins.  In addition the firm will provide advice 

on the management of the basins to optimize the removal of sediments and pollutants.   

 

Task 9: Natural Community Conservation Plan/Habitat Conservation Plan 

(NCCP/HCP) 

Harmsworth Associates was a consultant member of the working group of agencies and 

landowners that prepared the Orange County NCCP/HCP program for coastal sage scrub 

including the preparation of the EIR/EIS, Management Plan and the Implementing 

Agreements.  The program plays an important role in the mitigation plans for 

participating landowner’s projects and the operation and maintenance plans of existing 

and future facilities. 

 

Harmsworth Associates prepared survey documents for the wetland, upland and 

grassland surveys and biological analysis for the NCCP/HCP Amendment including: 

• Rare Wetland Plants in the Orange County Central/Coastal NCCP Subregion 

• Rare Grassland Plants in the Orange County Central/Coastal NCCP Subregion 

• Quino Checkerspot Butterfly Habitat in O.C. Central/Coastal NCCP Subregion 

• Arundo donax in Orange County Central/Coastal NCCP Subregion 

F-7



Harmsworth Associates 

 

• Native Fish in Orange County Central/Coastal NCCP Subregion 

• Arroyo Southwestern Toad in Orange County Central/Coastal NCCP Subregion 

• Southwestern Pond Turtle in Orange County Central/Coastal NCCP Subregion 

• Grassland Birds in Orange County Central/Coastal NCCP Subregion 

• Tricolored Blackbird in Orange County Central/Coastal NCCP Subregion 

• Raptors in Orange County Central/Coastal NCCP Subregion 

• Least Bell’s Vireo and Willow Flycatcher in Orange County Central/Coastal 

NCCP Sub-region 

 

Harmsworth Associates has extensive experience working with the Orange County 

(NCCP/HCP).  Projects relating to NCCP/HCP issues have been conducted for the 

Natural Communities Coalition, The Irvine Company, The Nature Conservancy, 

Transportation Corridor Agencies and others.  Many of these projects have included 

conducting biological assessments, focused surveys, assessment of impacts to NCCP 

resources, construction monitoring and co-ordination with NCC and wildlife agencies. 

 

Harmsworth Associates recently provided NCCP/HCP compliance for IRWD on the 

Baker Pipeline site and on the Syphon Access Road project. 

 

Harmsworth Associates will provide assistance to IRWD in the planning of its projects 

that are related to the NCCP/HCP plan.  Three main elements, the ESA 10a permit, the 

Implementing Agreement and the Mitigation Monitoring Program are of importance to 

IRWD.  We will provide assistance for Section 10 relating to the construction 

minimization methods that must be followed. 

 

 

Task 10: Project Coordination 

Harmsworth Associates has a history of successful coordination with other consultants 

and agencies; and we can work equally well as a project leader or as a team member.  

Harmsworth Associates was a consultant member of the working group of agencies and 

landowners that prepared the Orange County NCCP/HCP, which required significant 

coordination with other consultants and agencies.  Harmsworth Associates successfully 

obtained permits for IRWD’s inline basins under a sub contract to Tettemer and 

Associates; and regularly work and coordinate with a variety of IRWD managers and 

staff on IRWD projects. 

 

Harmsworth Associates regularly provide biological data and reports to other consultants 

preparing the CEQA documents; Harmsworth Associates will work with IRWDs CEQA 

consultant as requested. 

 

Harmsworth Associates will coordinate with other consultants and agencies as necessary 

and will provide project management or act as a subordinate as directed by IRWD.  

 

Task 11: Staff Rates 

The rates of the personnel shown in the table would be used on the contract 

 

F-8



Harmsworth Associates 

 

CONSULTING FEE SCHEDULE 

 JULY 1, 2024 TO JUNE 30, 2026 

 

Harmsworth Associates understands that the fee schedule is good for the duration of the 

contract regardless of employee promotions.   

 

Labor Category Hourly Rates 

Principal $140.00 

Sr. Vice-principal $140.00 

Vice-principal $130.00 

Sr. Biologist $100.00 

Project Biologist $80.00 

 
EXPENSES 

Mileage   $ 0.67/mile 

Other direct costs at cost plus 12% 

 

Task 12: Project Task Item Estimates 

Once requested Harmsworth Associates always provides project scope/cost in a timely 

manner.  Harmsworth Associates is used to working for IRWD, Irvine Company and 

other clients on call contracts, and is experienced in providing project scopes/costs at 

short notice.  For all projects Harmsworth Associates provides a scope of work, cost 

estimate, schedule and staff availability; the level of detail depends on the client 

requirements for individual projects. 

 

On small projects with very quick turn-around times Harmsworth Associates can provide 

a same-day proposal with staff availability, schedule, cost estimate and scope via email.  

For example on the Irvine Lake Access Road Emergency Repairs, the cost for the survey 

was initially provided via phone; the survey, co-ordination and letter report were 

completed within 10 days of the initial request. 

 

On more typical small jobs Harmsworth Associates can provide a proposal, cost estimate, 

staff availability and schedule within a few days.  For example, the LBV focused surveys 

at Syphon Reservoir (see Appendix A). 

 

For more complex projects Harmsworth Associates provides a more detailed proposal 

including methodology, detailed schedule, cost estimate, scope of work and staff 

assignments.  For example the biological surveys conducted at Winchester (see Appendix 

A). 

 

Task 13: Team Experience and Schedule 

Harmsworth Associates would undertake the majority of the work with its own staff; 

detailed SOQ attached.  However, we have included subcontractors in case additional 

work outside of the current scope is required.   

 

F-9



Harmsworth Associates 

 

Primary HWA staff for this project are as follows, although other staff may be utilized as 

necessary (detailed resumes are attached in Appendix B); 

 

Rod Harmsworth Ph.D. - Dr. Harmsworth has 35 years of experience in all phases of 

project and personnel management in the environmental sciences field.  Dr. Harmsworth 

was involved in the preparation of the Orange County NCCP/HCP as a representative of 

the Metropolitan Water District of Southern California.   

Time availability for IRWD contract – 15% of time. 

 

Paul Galvin, M.S. – Designated Project Manager for on-call contract.  Mr. Paul Galvin 

has over 30 years of experience conducting biological surveys, T/E surveys and managing 

environmental projects.  Mr. Galvin is an expert in NCCP/HCP compliance and 

implementation and 404/1600 permitting. 

Time availability for IRWD contract – 30% of time. 

 

Glen Morrison, B.S.– Mr. Morrison has over 15 years experience conducting botanical 

and biological surveys.  Ms. Morrison has extensive experience with wetlands/riparian 

habitats, coastal sage scrub and other habitats, and in rare plants.  Time availability for 

IRWD contract – 10% of time. 

 

Michelle Balk, M.S.– Ms. Balk has over 15 years experience conducting botanical and 

biological surveys.  Ms. Balk has extensive experience with wetlands/riparian habitats, 

coastal sage scrub and other habitats, and is an expert in rare plants.  Time availability for 

IRWD contract – 10% of time. 

 

Bobby Figarotta, B.S. - Mr. Figarotta has over 5 years of experience in wildlife surveys 

and construction monitoring.  Mr. Figarotta has conducted numerous construction 

monitoring projects and surveys for wildlife and sensitive bird species including the least 

Bell’s vireo (Vireo bellii pusillus).  Time availability for IRWD contract – 10% of time. 

 

Matt Filer - Mr. Filer has over 5 years of experience in wildlife surveys and construction 

monitoring.  Mr. Filer has conducted numerous construction monitoring projects and 

surveys for wildlife and sensitive bird species.  Time availability for IRWD contract – 

10% of time. 

 

Task 14: References 

 

Dam Maintenance Program 

Worked with Andy Uk, Kellie Welch, Jacob Moeder, Danielle Drake and Frank 

Tedescucci 

 

A variety of maintenance activities are required at Harding Dam, Rattlesnake Reservoir, 

Sand Canyon Reservoir, San Joaquin Reservoir and Santiago Creek Dam.  Some of the 

activities are required by DSOD and Orange County Fire Authority.  These activities 

involved vegetation maintenance and require coordination and an agreement from 

CDFW. 

F-10



Harmsworth Associates 

 

 

At short notice IRWD needed a site visit to each location, a determination of the 

vegetation onsite, CDFW jurisdictional status, potential for nesting birds and an 

assessment of potential impacts to CDFW jurisdictional areas.  Paul Galvin researched 

the history of each site from aerial photographs, archive documents and NCCP 

documents.  The sites were visited with IRWD staff, assessed and the vegetation mapped.  

A report was prepared and a permit application was submitted to CDFW.  Due to the 

urgency of the maintenance work required, CDFW allowed work to proceed while the 

application was under review.  Within a few weeks of the site visits with IRWD staff, 

maintenance activities got underway. 

 

The entire work was completed in a timely and cost-effective manner.  Mr. Galvin 

worked effectively with all parties and the quick turn-around allowed IRWD to proceed 

with this important project without any delays. 

 

 

Syphon Access Road 

Worked with Andy Uk, Kellie Welch, Rich Mori and Mark Marcacci 

 

Harmsworth Associates provided construction monitoring and biological overview for 

the Syphon Access Road project.  Harmsworth Associates checked the site during 

vegetation clearing and initial grading to ensure compliance with all project biological 

and NCCP conditions; and to map the CSS impact area.  This included working with both 

IRWD staff and contractors to provide advice on which areas could be impacted and how 

to avoid impacts to sensitive habitats without delaying the project.   

 

During this process Harmsworth Associates worked closely with IRWD staff to minimize 

environmental impacts without impacting the required construction activities.   

 

 

 

REFERENCES 

 
Dean Kirk, Vice-President 

The Irvine Company 

5500 Newport Center Drive 

Newport Beach, CA 92658 

DKirk@irvinecompany.com 

(949) 720-2878 

 

Zach Principe 

The Nature Conservancy 

1400 Quail, Suite 130 

Newport Beach, California 92660 

zprincipe@TNC.ORG 

(909) 815-2227 

F-11



Harmsworth Associates 

 

 

Richard Beck 

Michael Baker International 

14725 Alton Parkway 

Irvine, CA 92618 

RBECK@rbf.com 

(949)-855-3687  

 

Laura Coley Eisenberg 

Rancho Mission Viejo Land Trust 

C/O Rancho Mission Viejo, LLC 

28811 Ortega Highway 

San Juan Capistrano, CA 92688 

lcoleyeisenberg@ranchomv.com 

(949)-636-4108 

 

 

SCHEDULE 

 

Harmsworth Associates is experienced at providing on-call services for several clients 

and understands how to schedule staff workloads to meet client’s requirements for all 

projects, whether large or small.  Harmsworth Associates has a history of staff flexibility 

and responsiveness.  This allows Harmsworth Associates to meet client schedules 

regardless of staff workloads.  Harmsworth Associates demonstrated its ability to meet 

schedules during past emergencies at several IRWD pipelines, and the quick turn-around 

on recent projects such as the Syphon Access Road and Baker Pipeline work.  Based on 

our past experience, the firm’s current and future workload we anticipate satisfying 

IRWD’s project schedule for this on-call services contract. 

 

 

JOINT VENTURE 

This proposal is not a joint venture 

 

CONFLICT OF INTEREST 

Neither Harmsworth Associates nor its personnel have a conflict of interest prohibited by 

law or in contravention of IRWD policies.   

 

INSURANCE 

 

The firm has the required insurance and has named IRWD as an additional insured on its 

certificates of insurance.  The IRWD contract is acceptable to Harmsworth Associates. 

 

CONTRACT 

The proposed contract is acceptable to Harmsworth Associates 

F-12

mailto:RBECK@rbf.com


Proposal | 07.18.2024

On-Call Biological Monitoring and 
Permitting Services
IRVINE RANCH WATER DISTRICT

Exhibit "G"

G-1



July 18, 2024

Fiona M. Sanchez, Director of Water Resources  
Irvine Ranch Water District 
15600 Sand Canyon Avenue 
Irvine, CA 92618
Subject: Proposal for On-Call Biological Monitoring and Permitting Services
Dear Ms. Sanchez:
Psomas is pleased to provide a proposal to the Irvine Ranch Water District (IRWD) for On-Call Biological Monitoring 
and Permitting Services. Psomas’ team of highly qualified professionals have a long and successful history of applying 
their knowledge of biological and regulatory expertise to assist clients with project strategies, document and permit 
preparation, and implementation of post-project requirements. Several of the biological team members proposed 
have recently worked for IRWD under Psomas’ On-Call CEQA and NEPA Consultation On-Call Contract.
Our team routinely works with local public agencies on a wide variety of infrastructure construction, operations, 
and maintenance projects for water agencies, public works, utilities, and transportation agencies. Our work includes 
assisting with project concept planning and carries through to field surveys, reporting, permit processing, and all 
phases of project mitigation monitoring (from pre-construction surveys to post-construction documentation). 
Psomas will provide qualified technical staff who will work collaboratively with IRWD to complete projects within 
established budgets and required timeframes while helping to navigate numerous environmental laws and 
regulations.
The Psomas Team will be led by Amber Heredia as Project Manager for this contract; she will also be the day-to-day 
contact with IRWD. Amber is a Senior Project Manager with 28 years of experience managing biological monitoring 
and permitting services for a variety of project types including water and wastewater infrastructure, flood control, 
and utility projects. 
As a Vice President and Officer of Psomas, I, Jennifer Marks, will be the individual authorized to enter into an 
agreement with IRWD on behalf of the firm.
Psomas acknowledges and confirms receipt of IRWD’s Q&A, issued July 15, 2024.
We appreciate the opportunity to submit the enclosed proposal. Please feel free to contact us with any questions at 
714.751.7373 or Jennifer.Marks@Psomas.com, or Amber.Heredia@Psomas.com.
Sincerely,

Jennifer Marks Amber O. Heredia 
Vice President/Principal Senior Project Manager

Balancing the Natural and Built Environment

5 Hutton Centre Drive 
Suite 300 
Santa Ana, CA 92707

Tel 714.751.7373 
www.Psomas.com

G-2



iii

Ta
bl

e 
of

 C
on

te
nt

s
FIRM PROFILE 1

1 SCOPE 1

Task 1: Land Use Planning 1

Task 2: Regulatory Agency Consultation, Permit  
Application, and Procurement 2

Task 3: Wetland Delineation 2

Task 4: Biological Survey, Monitoring, Assessment 3

Task 5: Threatened and Endangered Species Regulation, 
Monitoring, and Reporting 4

Task 6: Mitigation Monitoring and Reporting 5

Task 7: Water Quality, Stormwater Monitoring, and  
Reporting 5

Task 8: Natural Treatment System 6

Task 9: Natural Community Conservation Plan/Habitat 
Conservation Plan  6

2 TEAM 7

3 REFERENCES 13

ADDITIONAL ITEMS 14

4. Schedule 14

5. Budget 14

6. Joint Venture 14

7. Conflict of Interest 14

8. Insurance 14

9. Contract 14

Psomas  |  On-Call Biological Monitoring and Permitting Services – Irvine Ranch Water DistrictG-3



1

Dedicated to balancing the 
natural and built environment, 
Psomas provides sustainably 
engineered solutions to public 
and private clients. Psomas, 
a California Corporation, 
founded in 1946, is a 
multifaceted consulting firm 
with over 750 employees, 
providing our core services 
of environmental consulting, 
civil engineering, survey and 
mapping, and construction 
management. Psomas’ 
Environmental Group can 
support the needs that are 
relevant to the Irvine Ranch 
Water District’s (IRWD) On-
Call Biological Monitoring and 
Permitting Services contact. 
The core technical experts 
of the Environmental Group 

have successfully provided resource 
management surveys, permitting 
and documentation, restoration and 
mitigation planning services, and 
California Environmental Quality Act 
(CEQA) and National Environmental 
Policy Act (NEPA) documentation to 

public and private sector clients for over 
30 years. Our Team provides expertise in 
the following topical areas:

	f Biological and Aquatic Resources
	f Habitat Restoration/Mitigation 

Planning
	f Jurisdictional Delineations/

Regulatory Permitting
	f GIS Mapping and Spatial Analysis
	f Environmental Planning

For over 30 years, Psomas' technical 
staff have been actively engaged 
in providing a variety of similar 
biological, restoration, regulatory, and 
environmental consulting services 
for many public agencies and private 
companies in Southern California, with 
many projects occurring in the vicinity 
of IRWD projects and in Orange County. 
Our Team’s extensive qualifications 
are demonstrated by the type and 
range of resource management and 
environmental services we have been 
providing to our clients, including IRWD.  

Firm Profile

Task 1: Land Use 
Planning
The Environmental Group at Psomas 
includes two teams, Environmental 
Planning and Resource Management. 
Both teams are extremely familiar 
with land planning processes in the 
County and cities within and adjacent 
to the IRWD service area. Staff from 
both the Environmental Planning and 
Resource Management Teams have 
worked on projects for the cities in 
the service area, including Irvine, Lake 

Scope1
Forest, Costa Mesa, Newport Beach, 
Tustin, and Orange. Our two disciplines 
are complementary and regularly 
collaborate on issues and ideas, allowing 
us to serve our clients well and provide 
efficient, strategic, and cost-saving 
products. However, our teams also often 
work independently with other firms, as 
each project has a unique combination 
of players.
As a result of this long-held structure, 
the Biologists, Regulatory Specialists, 
and Restoration Ecologists on our 
Resource Management Team are 

Psomas  |  On-Call Biological Monitoring and Permitting Services – Irvine Ranch Water DistrictG-4



2

embedded into the Psomas land use projects and work 
closely with their Environmental Planning co-workers 
on a daily basis. Our Resource Management staff 
have provided decades of biological resource support 
documentation for Psomas Environmental Planning 
staff, including biological surveys and jurisdictional 
delineations in support of CEQA/NEPA documentation, 
biological resources sections of CEQA/NEPA 
documents, response to comments, and attendance/
presentations at public hearings.
Psomas understands the goals and objectives of IRWD 
and is familiar with the planning processes of the varying 
public entities (cities/County) where IRWD projects 
occur. Given the linear nature of many IRWD projects, 
a single project could span multiple jurisdictions, 
which sometimes have competing or conflicting 
objectives. Psomas will assist IRWD in understanding 
potential issues and will work collaboratively with the 
various entities to address issues before they become 
problematic, as we have with IRWD and other public and 
private entities in the region. Our recent work effort 
with IRWD on the Santiago Dam Project is an excellent 
example of our Resource Management Team’s ability to 
work with Environmental Planners and IRWD engineers. 

Task 2: Regulatory Agency 
Consultation, Permit 
Application, and Procurement
Psomas has experience and excellent working 
relationships with the USFWS, CDFW, RWQCB, SWRCB, 
USEPA, USACE, NCC (formerly NROC), and SCAQMD. 
Psomas works with one or more of these agencies 
on nearly every project, especially those that involve 
permitting impacts to jurisdictional waters.
Dr. Brad Blood, Regulatory Permitting 
Manager, has over 36 years of experience 
in biological consulting with a specialty 
in jurisdictional permitting. He 
understands that, where jurisdictions 
overlap, each agency’s regulations and 
requirements must be met; however, he 
also works towards the same mitigation 
strategy with each agency so that the 
same mitigation plan will address the 
requirements of multiple agencies to the 
extent possible. Through his extensive 
experience in processing regulatory 

permits, he has developed close working relationships 
with personnel in the regulatory agencies.
Regulatory consultations often include an additional 
layer of compliance with FESA and CESA. Brad Blood, 
Amber Heredia, and Ann Johnston have provided 
support on numerous Section 7 Consultations, 
including those for some of the most contentious 
projects in Orange County. They have attended many 
pre-application field meetings to discuss the findings 
and proposed mitigation strategies to avoid and 
minimize impacts on Threatened, Endangered, and 
other special status species. They have authored many 
Biological Assessments and Habitat Conservation Plans 
(documents for Section 7 and 10 of the Endangered 
Species Act [ESA]).  Since 2020, Brad Blood has been 
directing the jurisdictional delineation, documentation, 
and analysis regarding the type and extent of 
jurisdictional resources for the Santiago Creek Dam 
Outlet Tower and Spillway Improvements Project.

Task 3: Wetland Delineation
Psomas Regulatory Specialists and Biologists have 
the technical background, experience, and necessary 
training to conduct wetland delineations subject to 
the regulations of the USACE, CDFW, and RWQCB. 
Using the most recent guidelines from the resource 
agencies, Regulatory Specialists conduct field surveys/
assessments to define the jurisdictional boundaries of 
each agency. 
Our Regulatory Specialists have also been trained to 
conduct California Rapid Assessment Method (CRAM) 
Analyses, Surface Water Ambient Monitoring Program 
(SWAMP) Assessments, and Candidate Mitigation 
Site Evaluations, if needed. Our delineations are 
then incorporated into the required documentation 

Scope 1

Psomas  |  On-Call Biological Monitoring and Permitting Services – Irvine Ranch Water DistrictG-5



3

needed for specific projects, which 
may include Preliminary Jurisdictional 
Site Assessments and/or Jurisdictional 
Delineation Reports.
Psomas has the experience required to 
provide IRWD with wetland delineation 
services in support of capital, operations, 
and maintenance projects. Our team has 
conducted jurisdictional delineations 
and obtained regulatory permits for 
numerous projects throughout Southern 
California. Psomas also has experience 
in obtaining Long-Term Streambed 
Alteration Agreements and Section 401 
Water Quality Certifications. 
Regulatory Specialist/Senior Botanist 
Allison Rudalevige conducted the 
field surveys to provide the baseline 
jurisdictional data of the USACE, 
RWQCB, and CDFW in support of the 
Santiago Creek Dam Outlet Tower 
and Spillway Improvements Project. 
This information has been reported in 
accordance with accepted scientific 
and technical standards that are consistent with the 
requirements of these agencies.

Task 4: Biological Survey, 
Monitoring, Assessment
The Psomas Resource Management Team is 
comprised of Biologists who have a mix of botanical 
and wildlife expertise with technical specialties that 
cover any special status plant or wildlife species that 
occur in Orange County. Each Biologist is trained to 
conduct general reconnaissance surveys, biological 
constraints assessments, and habitat assessments 
for Threatened and Endangered species. Because of 
this, we can send one Biologist to assess the potential 
for multiple resources issues. If follow-up focused 
surveys are necessary, our in-house team contains a 
range of specialists. Additionally, our team includes 
multiple individuals with similar expertise, allowing us 
to concurrently staff multiple projects, often on short 
notice. Our specialists conduct habitat assessments, 
focused surveys to determine the presence or absence 
of special status species, and monitoring during project 
construction. Our Resource Management Team is 
supported by multiple Geographic Information System 
(GIS) staff, who have access to georeferenced digital 
imagery to provide field maps that can be emailed 

to Biologists for use on electronic devices, allowing 
for quick mobilization as well as quick transmission 
of survey results back to GIS, and timely mapping of 
survey results back to the client. Time can become 
a critical factor during monitoring for a construction 
project.
Psomas Team technical staff have provided a variety 
of biological consulting services for public agencies 
and private entities in Southern California, with many 
projects occurring in the vicinity of IRWD projects in 
Orange County. Our team’s extensive qualifications 
are demonstrated by the type and range of biological 
services we have provided to our clients for almost 
30 years. 
A sample of these services has been provided below and 
on the following page.

Biological Analysis, Documentation, 
and Implementation Services

	f Literature Reviews and Peer Review of Technical 
Analyses
	f Vegetation Mapping and Plant and Wildlife Habitat 

Assessments

Scope 1

Psomas  |  On-Call Biological Monitoring and Permitting Services – Irvine Ranch Water DistrictG-6



4

	f Wildlife Movement Analyses, Design Support, and 
Monitoring
	f Special Status Plant and Wildlife Focused Surveys
	f Arborist Surveys
	f Nesting Bird and Bat Roost Surveys
	f Biological Opportunities/Constraints Reports
	f Biological Technical Reports
	f Biological Assessments/Consistency 

Determinations (to support FESA/CESA 
consultations)
	f Biological Resources Sections for CEQA/NEPA 

Documentation
	f Various NCCP/HCP Reporting and Permit 

Compliance Documentation
	f Agency Consultation and Regulatory Permitting 
	f Habitat Mitigation Planning, Monitoring, and 

Reporting
	f Construction Monitoring and Contractor Education 
	f Benthic Macroinvertebrate (BMI) Bioassessments 
	f CRAM and SWAMP Assessments

Amber Heredia has 28 years of experience working 
with biological resources in Orange County, including 
several projects within the Central-Coastal NCCP and 
IRWD’s service area. Her experience began as a field 
biologist and evolved into project management, in some 
cases over the course of the long-term environmental 
process for certain projects (e.g., Alton Parkway 
Extension, SR-241 Extension). A project manager 
with an understanding of conducting fi eld surveys 
is beneficial to preparing scopes of work tailored to 
the level of effort needed based on project type and 
location, as well as for reviewing project documentation 
prepared by Psomas Biologists.

Task 5: Threatened and 
Endangered Species Regulation, 
Monitoring, and Reporting
As described under Task 2, Psomas has conducted 
consultations under both Section 7 and 10 of the 
ESA. Psomas has prepared Biological Assessments 
consistent with Section 7 for various projects, including 
the Alton Parkway Extension (addressing least Bell’s 
vireo, a Conditionally Covered species under the NCCP/
HCP) and the SR-241 Extension (addressing thread-
leaved brodiaea, coastal California gnatcatcher, least 
Bell’s vireo, southwestern willow flycatcher, and arroyo 
toad). Psomas has also prepared the HCP for the Big 
Tujunga Dam Operation and Maintenance Project, 
which will provide a 30-year permit to the Los Angeles 
Department of Public Works. The HCP includes eight 
Covered Species and included an extensive hydraulic 
modeling effort to assess the effects of dam operation 
on downstream riparian species.
Psomas also routinely provides biological monitoring 
consistent with the requirements of environmental 
documentation and project permits. This includes 
biological monitoring typically required by CEQA/NEPA 
documentation, FESA/CESA, California Fish and Game 
Code, and USACE, CDFW, and RWQCB jurisdictional 
permits (i.e., Section 404, Streambed Alteration 
Agreements, and Section 401 Certifications). 
Psomas Biologists also have experience implementing 
measures required by the Coastal-Central NCCP/
HCP. Amber has managed biological monitoring for 
numerous construction projects. To ensure compliance 
with multiple permits for larger projects, Psomas 
prepares a Biological Monitoring Checklist to summarize 
measures from all permits (with cross-reference back 
to the source) and requires that each Biological Monitor 
fill out the form daily. Psomas is currently implementing 
this strategy on our OC Public Works On-Call Contract 
projects, which includes daily monitoring throughout 
the projects.
Psomas also provides on-call services to OC Public 
Works for the San Diego Creek Reach II (I-405 to 
Campus Drive) Operation and Maintenance Project. 
This includes annual focused surveys for least Bell’s 
vireo and southwestern willow flycatcher to document 
the number of pairs using the riparian habitat between 
I-405 downstream to Jamboree Road (Reach II and 
Reach I). Prior to fall maintenance, Psomas conducts 
a pre-construction tree survey to flag trees to 

Scope 1

Psomas  |  On-Call Biological Monitoring and Permitting Services – Irvine Ranch Water DistrictG-7



5

selectively remove consistent with project permits and 
guidance from the resource agencies. During the fall 
maintenance, Psomas provides full-time monitoring 
of tree removal and non-native invasive removal 
work within the 40-foot buffer (i.e., riparian habitat 
area); weekly reports are prepared and submitted to 
the resource agencies (following review by OC Public 
Works). Psomas also provides weekly monitoring to 
spot-check maintenance work outside the 40-foot 
buffer; monitoring forms are submitted to OC Public 
Works for their files. Following completion of the annual 
maintenance, a post-construction vegetation map is 
completed per permit requirements, and an Annual 
Report is prepared that includes a Mitigation Monitoring 
Reporting Plan compliance matrix; both are submitted 
to the resource agencies following approval by OC 
Public Works.

Task 6: Mitigation Monitoring 
and Reporting
Psomas has the experience and expertise to provide 
an array of biological monitoring services, from simple 
pre-construction nesting bird surveys required as a 
Mitigation Measure from an environmental document 
to the design, implementation, and monitoring of 
100+ acres of coastal sage scrub required as a result 
of consultations with the regulatory agencies. In 

addition to the 
pre-construction 
surveys and 
biological monitoring 
described above in 
Task 5, Psomas has 
extensive experience 
in habitat restoration 
services, including 
the preparation and 
implementation of 
Habitat Mitigation 
Monitoring Plans 
(HMMPs). Our 
Restoration 
Biologists have the 
necessary technical 
expertise and project 
experience to provide 

a variety of restoration planning and management 
tasks for coastal sage scrub, riparian, and oak woodland 
habitat types found in Orange County. These tasks 
include habitat restoration design and planning, 

mitigation site selection, restoration implementation 
monitoring, and native plant palette recommendations. 
Psomas has implemented numerous successful 
HMMPs, which have resulted in successful habitat 
establishment, compliance with resource agency 
performance criteria, and subsequent buy-off from the 
resource agencies.
Richard Lewis, our Restoration Services Task Manager, 
has 30 years of experience in developing and directing 
complex habitat creation and restoration programs for 
public and private sector clients throughout Southern 
California. His Santa Anita Oak Woodland Mitigation Site 
uses cutting edge techniques for habitat creation and 
has been recognized with awards from the American 
Council of Engineering Companies (ACEC) and the 
American Society of Civil Engineers (ASCE). 
Additionally, Richard is leading restoration efforts for 
the Alton Parkway Extension, both on-site creation of 
habitat along a wildlife corridor that will link with the 
wildlife corridor being built through the Great Park, and 
off-site enhancement of habitat along Aliso Creek 
that includes extensive removal of non-native invasive 
plants along a large portion of the creek. On the off-site 
portion of the project, Richard has worked with OC 
Public Works to install additional cactus plantings to 
extend habitat for the coastal cactus wren that occupies 
the site. Additionally, Richard is leading the Peters 
Canyon enhancement project, which provides off-site 
mitigation for OC Public Works’ San Diego Creek 
Reach II Operation and Maintenance Project. 

Task 7: Water Quality, 
Stormwater Monitoring, and 
Reporting
Psomas has provided clients with water quality 
monitoring and reporting in compliance with regulatory 
permits for many years. Our team will manage the water 
quality, storm water monitoring and reporting for IRWD 
projects. As described under Tasks 2 and 3, Brad has 
extensive experience with obtaining and complying 
with jurisdictional permits (USACE, CDFW, RWQCB, and 
CCC). Brad is familiar with the SAMP permitting process, 
as he completed SAMP permitting for the Wagon Wheel 
Creek Restoration Project located in the San Juan 
Creek/Western San Mateo Creek Watershed SAMP. 
Psomas prepared a Letter of Permission (LOP) under 
the SAMP for the USACE, a 1602 Streambed  Alteration 
Agreement for the CDFW, and a Water Quality 
Certification for the RWQCB. 

Scope 1

Psomas  |  On-Call Biological Monitoring and Permitting Services – Irvine Ranch Water DistrictG-8



6

Task 8: Natural Treatment 
System
Psomas has experience in the design, implementation, 
and management of Natural Treatment Systems (NTS). 
Our team of Engineers, Restoration Ecologists, and 
Biologists have developed NTS that have reduced the 
introduction of pollutants (i.e., bacteria, suspended 
solids, nitrogen, selenium, and phosphorus) generated 
from urban runoff to receiving waters via a series of 
structural and green elements within the treatment 
train. These efforts have involved Engineers working 
collaboratively with Hydrologists, Restoration 
Ecologists, Botanists, and Biologists to develop 
integrated treatment facilities that capture and treat 
urban runoff, while at the same time creating habitat 
value and aesthetic amenities for neighborhoods. 
Psomas understands IRWD’s needs for NTS and, at 
the same time, has worked with other public entities 
to develop multi-beneficial features that work in 
concert with the NTS. Features we have successfully 
integrated into an NTS include, but are not limited 
to, neighborhood-serving park amenities; outdoor 
classroom amphitheaters; educational kiosk/signage 
describing the park’s function, flora, and fauna; and 
recreational walking trails with observation bridges/
platforms around the treatment wetlands. Psomas’ 
Restoration staff review plant palettes to ensure that 
the plan would include native species and/or species 
that would not be detrimental to surrounding habitat 
areas.
An exceptional example of Psomas’ expertise with NTS 
is the Bull Creek Water Conservation Pipeline Mitigated 
Negative Declaration, Technical Studies, and Permitting 
Support for Los Angeles County Public Works.  The 

project would allow transport of stormwater runoff 
from a section of the Bull Creek flood control channel 
and convey it via an approximate 3.2-mile-long pipeline 
constructed in the public right-of-way to the Pacoima 
Spreading Grounds for infiltration into the San Fernando 
Valley Groundwater Basin. The stormwater diverted 
from Bull Creek channel would then become part of 
the water supply available to be used by Los Angeles 
Department of Water and Power to serve its customers. 

Task 9: Natural Community 
Conservation Plan/Habitat 
Conservation Plan 
IRWD’s service areas are primarily located 
within the Central-Coastal Subregion of the 
NCCP/HCP. IRWD is a participating jurisdiction in the 
NCCP/HCP and, as such, it is subject to the terms 
of the Implementation Agreement. Participation 
in the NCCP/HCP allows compatible land uses and 
development to follow an established process 
with the NCCP/HCP and understands that IRWD 
activities related to infrastructure facilities, including 
construction of new infrastructure and ongoing 
operations and maintenance, repair, and reconstruction 
activities, are Permitted Activities. Psomas will ensure 
that biological surveys, impact assessments, and 
mitigation measures are consistent with the Central-
Coastal NCCP/HCP, thus providing IRWD with the full 
benefits of a signatory agency.
Psomas prepared the HMMP for the Peters Canyon 
Wash Project which provides mitigation for the San 
Diego Creek Reach II Operation and Maintenance 
Project. The HMMP includes exotic vegetation control 
and native plant species establishment within the Peters 

Scope 1

Psomas  |  On-Call Biological Monitoring and Permitting Services – Irvine Ranch Water DistrictG-9



7

Canyon Wash Habitat Mitigation Easement area. The 
HMMP was developed in coordination with the NCC and 
in compliance with USACE and CDFW requirements for 
mitigation of impacts to jurisdictional resources.
During mitigation planning for the Alton Parkway 
Extension, Amber prepared and presented a PowerPoint 
to the NROC (now NCC) about the planned roadway, 
its biological impacts, and the planned mitigation 
measures. She engaged in discussion of the effects of 
the roadway on wildlife movement and presented the 
plan for minimizing effects on both small wildlife (e.g., 
spadefoot toad) and medium to large-sized wildlife 
(e.g., bobcats). Amber provided response to comments 
from NROC and worked with engineers to incorporate 
modifications to fencing requested by NROC.
Amber is also familiar with many of the NCCP/HCP 
Reserve lands as she obtained special permission from 
NROC and OC Parks to access open space areas to 
conduct her Masters research, Distribution of Riparian 

Bird Species in an Urbanizing Landscape, which analyzed 
the distribution of riparian bird species across a gradient 
of urbanization in Orange County.

Task 10: Project Coordination
Psomas will be responsible for ongoing coordination with 
IRWD and other team members. Throughout our history, 
Psomas’ Resource Management Team has assumed the 
role of both consultant and subconsultant on a variety 
of projects. Depending on the assigned task, Psomas 
will assume either a primary project management role 
and be responsible for the management of a project 
team or will serve as a member of a larger team and 
take direction from another party, as directed by 
IRWD. Due to our extensive experience throughout 
Southern California, Psomas has positive working 
relationships with hundreds of consulting firms across 
multiple professional disciplines; we look forward to 
the chance to collaborate with peers in these fields. 
One example of our coordination efforts and ability to 
work successfully with other teams is our work with Los 
Angeles County Department of Public Works (LACDPW) 
on the Big Tujunga Wash Santa Ana Sucker and Benthic 
Macroinvertebrate Long-Term Monitoring Project. This 
project required close and frequent coordination within 
multiple resources agencies, including the Santa Ana 
Sucker Working Group (SASWG), LACDPW, USFWS, 
CDFW, USFS, and other consultants.  

Team2
One aspect of our client portfolio that speaks highly 
of our client responsiveness and attention to detail 
is the number of long-term clients and On-Call/As-
Needed Environmental Services contracts we have 
maintained with public sector agencies. 
With a deep bench of professional staff members, 
Psomas will be able to meet the requirements 
and schedules of multiple, concurrent projects. 
We have established workload management 
systems, monitoring techniques, and internal 
staffing arrangements to assist in meeting project 
requirements that at certain times could have the 
potential to exceed our in-house staffing capabilities. 

While each of our key staff members will have other 
project responsibilities, we confirm that each team 
member will have adequate availability to meet the 
assigned project’s requirements. We are careful not 
to commit 100 percent of any staff member’s time, 
thereby ensuring availability of qualified staff. Highlights 
of our key staff members who will be providing 
substantial support to IRWD for this on-call effort 
include the following:  

	f Amber Heredia is a seasoned professional who 
has prepared or overseen the preparation of 
biological resources documentation for some 
of the most controversial projects in Orange 

Team 2

Psomas  |  On-Call Biological Monitoring and Permitting Services – Irvine Ranch Water DistrictG-10



8

County. She possesses a depth of knowledge 
on regulatory processes, extensive experience 
in impact analysis and document review, a 
practical approach to problem-solving, strong 
project management skills and is known for 
being very responsive to her clients. She is 
highly organized and strikes the right balance of 
attention to detail and efficiency. She is excellent 
at coordinating with internal team members to 
ensure that deadlines are met. She takes great 
pride in producing well-written documents that 
clearly present technical information and is 
excellent at following required templates. Amber 
is well-respected by her peers and the resource 
agencies for producing well-written and accurate 
documents.
	f Dr. Brad Blood has built working relationships with 

resource agency staff related to jurisdictional 
permitting. He has an extensive knowledge of the 
ever-changing implementation of jurisdictional 
permitting requirements and experience in 
obtaining permitting anticipated to be needed 
by IRWD. He oversees highly skilled Regulatory 
Permitting Specialists.
	f Richard Lewis is passionate about habitat 

restoration and is known throughout Orange, 
Los Angeles, and Riverside counties for designing 
and implementing exceptional habitat mitigation 
programs. His often simple suggestions to 
supplement or enhance habitat mitigation 
programs are frequently incorporated by his 
clients because they are anticipated to accelerate 
achieving performance criteria, which can lead 
to substantial cost savings, and/or to provide 
alternative measures of performance that 
increase the odds of project sign-off. 

Allison Rudalevige, Lindsay Messett, and Jonathan 
Aguayo are well-rounded Senior Biologists. Each can 
conduct habitat assessments, vegetation mapping, 
general plant and wildlife surveys and monitoring, but 
each also has several specialties. Allison conducts 
focused surveys for fairy shrimp and special status 
plants, jurisdictional delineations (including CRAM, 
SWAMP), and restoration monitoring. Lindsay and 
Jonathan both have the necessary permits and 
experience to conduct focused surveys for coastal 
California gnatcatcher, least Bell’s vireo, southwestern 
willow flycatcher, burrowing owl, nesting bird/raptor 
surveys, western spadefoot (including translocation), 
arroyo toad, trapping for western pond turtle, and 
Benthic Macroinvertebrate (BMI) surveys. 
Staff that will be assigned to the IRWD contract include 
Senior Managers, Technical Leads, and supporting 
staff who have been, and are currently, responsible for 
providing technical support and management oversight 
of many water district, flood control, and other public 
works contracts. Thanks to our longstanding history 
of work on public works projects, staff  assigned to this 
contract understand the importance of coordinating 
closely with agency managers and engineers, 
operational/maintenance staff, and resource agency 
personnel to ensure that project construction and 
maintenance projects move forward in a manner that 
meets project objectives and schedule constraints, 
while at the same time complying with resource agency 
permit requirements for biological and water quality 
resource protection.
Below is a listing of each staff member assigned to this 
contract; their role; education; anticipated availability 
for this contract; and certifications, capabilities and 
experience. Resumes for key personnel (denoted with 
an asterisk []) are included in the Appendix.

Jennifer Marks  | Principal-in-Charge
Jennifer Marks is a Principal and Senior Project Manager with over 24 
years of experience in environmental documentation and analysis 
consistent with CEQA and NEPA. Jennifer's career has focused on a wide 
variety of projects, including specific plan and general plan analyses; 
transportation infrastructure; public works assignments related to 
water resources; and various utility infrastructure projects.

Education
1999/BS/Natural Resources, Planning and 
Interpretation/Humboldt State University

Availability 
25%

Ann Johnston  | QA/QC Manager
Ann Johnston has 35 years of experience in biological resources 
inventories/evaluations; sensitive species surveys; mitigation 
monitoring; resource agency permitting and processing; conservation 
and strategic planning; and technical peer reviews. Ann's professional 
experience has focused on finding solutions to development challenges 
where potential impacts to biological resources may occur, and on the 
assessment and integration of biological data.

Education
1989/BA/Biology/California State University, Long 
Beach

Availability 
25%

Team 2

Psomas  |  On-Call Biological Monitoring and Permitting Services – Irvine Ranch Water DistrictG-11



9

Amber Heredia  | Project Manager/Biological Resources Manager
Amber Heredia is a Senior Project Manager and Senior Biologist with 
28 years of experience in the preparation of Biological Technical Reports 
to meet the requirements of the FESA, CESA, CEQA, NEPA, and the 
CWA. Amber has a wide range of knowledge on the plants, wildlife, and 
vegetation communities of Southern California, especially those listed 
as Threatened or Endangered.

Education
2005/MS/Biology/University of California, Riverside
1998/BS/Ecology and Evolution/University of 
California, Santa Barbara
1998/BS/Environmental Studies/University of 
California, Santa Barbara

Availability 
25%

Brad Blood, PhD  | Regulatory Permitting Manager
Brad Blood, PhD, is a Senior Biologist/Environmental Scientist and 
Project Manager with expertise in regulatory compliance related 
to biological issues including CEQA/NEPA, the federal and state 
Endangered Species Acts, federal clean water act, and the State Fish and 
Game Code. He is a certified wetland delineator and is experienced with 
the State and federal regulations governing wetlands delineation and 
permitting.

Education
1987/PhD/Biological Sciences/University of 
Southern California
1981/MS/Biology/California State University, Long 
Beach
1978/BS/Zoology/California State University, Long 
Beach

Availability 
25%

Richard Lewis, ENV SP  | Restoration Services Task Manager
Richard Lewis is a Senior Restoration Ecologist and Biologist with 
30 years of professional experience. Mr. Lewis is responsible for 
developing and monitoring habitat restoration and mitigation programs; 
conducting focused botanical surveys and vegetation mapping; and 
preparing community involvement and educational programs and 
literature.

Education
1988/BS/Biology/Pacific Union College

Availability 
25%

David Hughes | Senior Regulatory Specialist
David Hughes is a Senior Project Manager in Restoration Ecology and 
Regulatory Services with 20 years of experience in mitigation planning, 
restoration monitoring, wetland delineations, and regulatory permitting. 
David is also a Certified Arborist and fully trained practitioner of the 
California Rapid Assessment Method (CRAM) for wetlands. 

Education
2003/MS/Ecological Restoration and Management/
University of Wisconsin, Madison
1991/BS/Ecology, Behavior and Evolution/
University of California, San Diego

Availability 
25%

Allison Rudalevige  | Regulatory Specialist/Senior Botanist
Allison Rudalevige is a Senior Biologist with 19 years of experience 
in the areas of biological and jurisdictional resources. She has 
experience conducting general and focused plant and wildlife surveys, 
vegetation mapping, mitigation monitoring, tree surveys, jurisdictional 
delineations, California Rapid Assessment Method (CRAM) analyses, 
and physical habitat analysis according to the Surface Water Ambient 
Monitoring Program (SWAMP) protocol.

Education
2005/MS/Biology/University of California, Riverside
2000/BS/Biology, Zoology/California State 
University, Long Beach

Availability 
25%

Steve Norton | Senior Biologist/Project Manager
Steve Norton is a Senior Project Manager and Senior Biologist with 23 
years of experience conducting biological studies on wildlife, plants, and 
ecological processes throughout California. His technical experience 
includes biological resource assessments, natural plant communities 
mapping, regional conservation plan consistency analyses, biological 
resource policy compliance management, and technical writing for 
CEQA/NEPA compliance. 

Education
2001/BS/Environmental Biology and Management/
University of California, Davis

Availability 
40%

Team 2

Psomas  |  On-Call Biological Monitoring and Permitting Services – Irvine Ranch Water DistrictG-12



10

Paul Myers | Senior Biologist/Project Manager
Paul has over 20 years of experience as an environmental permitting and 
NEPA compliance specialist, wetland and stream scientist, botanist, and 
ecologist. His specific areas of expertise include managing projects for 
environmental review and permitting compliance, wetland delineation, 
restoration and mitigation design, rare plant and wildlife surveys, habitat 
classification and mapping, and habitat restoration.

Education
BS/Botany/Western Carolina University

Availability 
40%

Lindsay Messett, CWB  | Senior Biologist
Lindsay Messett, a Certified Wildlife Biologist® with a specialty in wildlife 
biology, has 25 years of experience in data collection, field research, 
resource management, and environmental document preparation. She 
has conducted focused surveys and habitat assessments throughout 
California for several endangered wildlife species. 

Education
1999/BS/Ecology and Systematic Biology, 
Concentration: Wildlife Biology/California 
Polytechnic State University, San Luis Obispo

Availability 
25%

Jonathan Aguayo  | Senior Biologist
Jonathan Aguayo has 16 years of experience as a Senior Biologist 
including field experience in ornithology and herpetology. He has a solid 
knowledge of California's flora and fauna gained from work experience, 
professional affiliations, and personal interest. He has contributed to the 
preparation of various technical reports addressing State and federal 
laws, including the CEQA and NEPA for a variety of development projects 
and under on-call contracts. 

Education
2007/BS/Environmental Science and Resource 
Management/California State University, Channel 
Islands

Availability 
25%

Sarah Thomas | Biologist
Sarah Thomas is a Biologist with 16 years of field experience as a 
Research Assistant, Field Technician and Biologist. Sarah was the 
Assistant Lead Biological Monitor for the Tehachapi Renewable Project 
(TRTP). She specializes in birds and has studied bird identification 
throughout the western United States, bird behavior, bird biology and 
conservation, and is proficient with nest identification in Southern 
California. 

Education
2008/BS/Biology, Chemistry (minor)/California 
State University, Long Beach

Availability 
40%

Steve Morris | Biologist
Steve Morris is a Biologist with over 16 years of experience completing 
nesting bird surveys, birding surveys, and ornithological studies. He also 
has extensive experience with construction monitoring. Steve performs 
field/site surveys to document existing biological resources and to 
evaluate potential constraints to development. 

Education
2005/BS/Business Administration and 
Management/California State University, Long 
Beach

Availability 
40%

Trevor Bristle | Certified Arborist
Trevor Bristle is a Biologist and Registered Consulting Arborist with 
18 years of field experience. He has gained extensive experience while 
working throughout Southern and Central California and is familiar with 
the associated plants, wildlife, and habitats found therein.

Education
2008/BS/Natural Resources Management/
Northland College

Availability 
40%

Jack Underwood | Staff Biologist
Jack Underwood is a recent Biology graduate with two years of 
experience collecting and analyzing biological data for right-of-way and 
right-of-entry properties; conducting Worker Environmental Awareness 
Training; and conducting surveys for nesting birds and various species 
including the California Red Legged Frog and the Foothill Yellow Legged 
Frog.

Education
2019/BS/Environmental Biology and Natural 
History/The Master's University, Santa Clarita

Availability 
25%

Team 2

Psomas  |  On-Call Biological Monitoring and Permitting Services – Irvine Ranch Water DistrictG-13



11

Cristina Juran | Staff Biologist
Cristina is a field Biologist with 14 years of experience in field surveys 
and data collection contributing to resource management and 
environmental document preparation. She has conducted general 
biological surveys and nesting bird surveys throughout a variety of 
habitats, including desert, chaparral, coastal sage scrub, riparian, and 
grassland. 

Education
2007/MS/Wildlife and Wildlands Conservation/
Brigham Young University
2004/BS/Wildlife and Range Resources/Brigham 
Young University

Availability 
25%

Erin Ruckman | Botanist
Erin Ruckman has 11 years of experience assessing projects for CEQA/
NEPA compliance, conducting surveys of terrestrial and aquatic species 
(including birds, fish, and vegetation), along with summarizing findings in 
reports. 

Education
2009/MS/Population and Conservation Biology/
Texas State University, San Marcos
2000/BS/Ecology/University of California, Santa 
Barbara

Availability 
25%

Jennie Ramirez | GIS Specialist
Jennie has five years of experience in GIS. Her recent project experience 
includes utilizing ArcGIS, Adobe Illustrator and ArcGIS Collector to 
create and edit map documents and graphic exhibits for various client 
projects that meet cartographic and data collection needs.

Education
2021/MS/Geographic Information Science/
California State University, Long Beach
2016/BA/Philosophy and Geography/California 
State University, Long Beach

Availability 
15%

Paul O'Brien | GIS Specialist
Paul is a Geographic Information Systems (GIS) Analyst with five years 
of experience in GIS. His recent project experience includes utilizing 
ArcGIS, ArcGIS Field Maps, ArcGIS Online and Adobe Illustrator to create 
and edit map documents and graphic exhibits for various client projects 
that meet cartographic and data collection needs.

Education
2020/BS/Geography and Geospatial Science/
Oregon State University

Availability 
15%

Sean Noonan, AICP  | Senior Environmental Planner
Sean Noonan, AICP, has 13 years of experience working on various types 
of public and private projects across Southern California. In his current 
role, Sean prepares and manages the preparation of CEQA/NEPA 
environmental documents and supporting environmental technical 
studies. He is also experienced in providing his clients with support 
related to regulatory permitting, environmental compliance during final 
design and construction, and environmental constraints during due 
diligence. 

Education
2014/MS/Urban and Regional Planning/California 
State Polytechnic University, Pomona
2011/MA/Geography/California State University, 
Fullerton
2006/BA/History/University of California, Santa 
Barbara

Availability 
50%

Megan Larum | Environmental Technical Specialist
Megan Larum is an Assistant Project Manager with 15 years of 
experience in environmental documentation and analysis consistent 
with CEQA and NEPA. She has experience in cultural resources 
management and has participated in Native American Heritage 
Commission (NAHC) requests, records searches, and Phase I Cultural 
Resources Assessments.

Education
2006/BS/Environmental Policy Analysis and 
Planning/University of California, Davis

Availability 
75%

Team 2

Psomas  |  On-Call Biological Monitoring and Permitting Services – Irvine Ranch Water DistrictG-14



12

Jordan Werkmeister | Environmental Planner
Jordan has worked on a variety of CEQA and NEPA documents, 
including preparation of initial studies, reviewing plans and drafting 
project descriptions, and writing key analysis sections. As an 
Environmental Planner, Jordan prepares environmental documents, 
assist with management efforts, and coordinate with internal staff 
and subconsultants. Jordan also has experience preparing air quality, 
greenhouse gas, and energy analyses to support CEQA and NEPA 
documents.

Education
2022/BS/Environmental Policy Analysis and 
Planning/University of California, Davis

Availability 
50%

Chaise Lapierre | Environmental Planner
Chaise Lapierre is an Environmental Planner with approximately one year 
of experience preparing analyses to support categorical exemptions, 
addenda, and mitigated negative declarations.

Education
2023/BA/Environmental Studies/California State 
University, San Marcos

Availability 
25%

Sheryl Kristal | Support Services Manager
Sheryl Kristal is a Word Processor with more than 10 years of experience 
word processing for CEQA and NEPA documents. As Senior Word 
Processor at Psomas, Sheryl creates custom templates in Microsoft 
Word for projects and proposals.  

Education
2004/Coursework/General Studies with a focus on 
Graphic Design/Golden West College

Availability 
25%

Matt Heideman, PE | Senior Hydrology/Water Quality Engineer
Matt has 30 years of experience in all aspects of land development 
engineering. He has worked on residential, commercial, and industrial 
projects throughout Southern California, and has managed the 
design of mass grading, precise grading, storm drain, sewer, water, 
reclaimed water, widening of existing streets and highways, new street 
improvements, parking lots, street lighting, retaining walls, box culverts 
and vesting tentative tract maps for projects ranging from 10 acres to 
over 1,000. 

Education
1993/BS/Civil Engineering/University of California, 
Irvine

Registration
1996/CA/Professional Engineer/Civil/55639

Availability 
15%

Steve Baine, PE, QSD | Hydrology/Water Quality Engineer
Steve Baine has 35 years of experience in hydrology and hydraulic 
studies, water and sewer system analysis, storm water pollution 
prevention plans, and water quality management plans

Education
1989/BS/Civil Engineering/University of California, 
Irvine

Registration
1994/CA/Professional Engineer/Civil/51327

Availability 
15%

Team 2

Psomas  |  On-Call Biological Monitoring and Permitting Services – Irvine Ranch Water DistrictG-15



13

Santiago Creek Dam 
Outlet Tower and 
Spillway Improvement
Orange County, CA | Irvine Ranch 
Water District

IRWD and Serrano Water District are jointly 
proposing to abandon the existing Santiago 
Creek Dam outlet tower and construct a 
new inclined outlet structure located on the 
left abutment of the existing dam. Based on 
feedback from the Department of Safety 
of Dams (DSOD), the dam spillway also requires 
structural improvements. As part of the project, the 
existing outlet tower would be demolished and a new 
structure would be built. Inlet/outlet works would 
be configured to incorporate the new structure and 
flows would be bifurcated between the Irvine Lake 
Pipeline and the emergency outlet pipeline. The dam 
crest would be widened and raised to subsequently 
raise the effective dam crest.
Psomas has been actively working alongside IRWD, as Lead Agency, since August 
2020 in the preparation of technical studies and an Environmental Impact Report 
(EIR) to evaluate the project. Efforts were initiated with preparation of an Initial Study 
(IS) and key technical studies to understand the anticipated level of impacts and help 
identify the required document type. Technical studies include a biological constraints 
report including a jurisdictional delineation, and a cultural resources report including 
archaeological and paleontological surveys and a historic analysis of the existing dam 
and spillway. Following IRWD’s initial review of the IS, it was determined that an EIR 
would be prepared and Psomas coordinated with the IRWD Team to prepare a variance 
request to cover the additional tasks required for the EIR.  Psomas also prepared 
a separate scope of work under our on-call biological monitoring and permitting 
contract related to additional services needed for biological surveys, regulatory 
agency coordination, and permit preparation. 
Psomas is also preparing supplemental documentation to comply with CEQA-Plus/
Federal Cross-cutters pursuant to the California Clean Water State Revolving Fund 
requirements. Throughout this process, Psomas has worked collaboratively with 
IRWD staff, providing guidance and assistance as design challenges have arisen. Our 
assigned Principal-in-Charge, Jennifer Marks, and Biological Resources Manager, 
Amber Heredia, have worked as a team to provide the technical expertise and creative 
problem-solving needed for this project. Psomas staff are also working closely with 
IRWD to maintain a positive working relationship with resource agency staff. These 
relationships will assist in the success of the regulatory permitting process.

Relevance to Project
	f IRWD project
	f Technical studies
	f Strategic consultation
	f Biological survey, focused surveys, 

and technical report
	f CEQA and CEQA-plus compliance

PROJECT OWNER
Irvine Ranch Water District 
PO Box 57000 
15600 Sand Canyon Avenue 
Irvine, CA 92618

OWNER STAFF
Fiona Sanchez 
Kellie Welch 
Jacob Moeder 
Andy Uk

INITIAL CONTRACT
Biological Technical Report, Air 
Quality/Greenhouse Gas Study, 
Historic Resource Assessment, 
Noise Assessment, Draft IS: 
$144,862

CHANGE ORDERS
Under our CEQA contract, 
Psomas has requested a total 
of $179,696 in change orders, 
related to the decision to prepare 
an EIR; accommodate updated 
construction assumptions, 
project design; integrate 
Additional Geotechnical 
Investigation; address County 
of Orange comments; and 
evaluate modifications to SCE 
infrastructure.

Santiago Creek Dam

References3

Psomas  |  On-Call Biological Monitoring and Permitting Services – Irvine Ranch Water DistrictG-16



14

Additional IRWD Projects
In addition to our current work on the Santiago Creek Dam Outlet Tower and Spillway 
Improvement Project, Psomas, previously BonTerra Psomas, has been under contract 
providing on-call environmental consulting services to IRWD since 2014. Projects have 
included:

	f Irvine Lake Pipeline (ILP) North 
Conversion Project MND 
	f ILP North Pipelines Mitigation 

Monitoring
	f ILP North Reservoir Mitigation 

Monitoring

	f 3.7 MG Zone 1 Reservoir Project MND
	f Zone A to Rattlesnake Reservoir 

Pump Station Project MND
	f Orange Park Acres Well Replacement 

Addendum

Additional Items

4. Schedule
Psomas understands that good communication requires a level of transparency 
with our clients regarding schedule and budget. In order to present an accurate 
picture of the project schedule and budget to IRWD on a regular basis, the Psomas 
management team will actively track each project’s progress through our in-house 
management software, allowing us real-time project statistics. With this information, 
our management team can quickly make the necessary adjustments to reallocate 
resources and make any necessary reassignments to ensure schedules are met and 
budgets are not exceeded. Our commitment to the schedule and budget has been 
demonstrated through our past work with IRWD.

5. Budget
The hourly rates for staff members proposed, along with their titles/roles, are on the 
following page.

6. Joint Venture
Psomas is not proposing as part of a joint venture.

7. Conflict of Interest
Psomas has no conflicts of interest that would preclude our ability to uphold this 
contract. 

8. Insurance
Copies of Psomas' insurance are in Appendix B.

9. Contract
Psomas has reviewed the professional service agreement and has no proposed 
modifications to the standard terms and conditions.

Additional Items 3

Psomas  |  On-Call Biological Monitoring and Permitting Services – Irvine Ranch Water DistrictG-17



15

Title/Classification Staff  Rate 
Principal in Charge Jennifer Marks $265 
QA/QC Manager Ann Johnston $265 
Project Manager/Biological Resources Manager Amber Heredia $233 
Regulatory Permitting Manager Brad Blood $233 
Senior Regulatory Specialist   David Hughes $190 
Regulatory Specialist/Senior Botanist Allison Rudalevige $167 
Restoration Services Task Manager  Richard Lewis $193 
Senior Biologist/Project Manager Steve Norton/Paul Myers $187 
Senior Biologist Lindsay Messett/Jonathan Aguayo $166 
Biologist/Arborist Sarah Thomas/Steve Morris/Trevor Bristle $153 
Staff Biologist Jack Underwood/Cristina Juran $127 
Botanist Erin Ruckman $141 
GIS Specialist Jennie Ramirez $154 
GIS Technician Paul O’Brien $129 
Senior Environmental Planner Sean Noonan $207 
Environmental Technical Specialist Megan Larum $164 
Environmental Planner Jordan Werkmeister $149 
Environmental Planner Chaise Lapierre $133 
Editor Danae Overman $106 
Support Services Manager Sheryl Kristal $135 

Additional Items 3

Psomas  |  On-Call Biological Monitoring and Permitting Services – Irvine Ranch Water DistrictG-18



Irvine Ranch Water District

On-Call Biological Monitoring and 
Permitting Services

July 18, 2024
Environmental Science Associates

esassoc.com

Exhibit "H"

H-1



420 Exchange, Suite 260 
Irvine, CA 92602 
949.753.7001 phone 
949.753.7002 fax 
esassoc.com 

Environmental Science Associates 
esassoc.com 

July 18, 2024 

Irvine Ranch Water District 
Attention: Fiona M. Sanchez 
15600 Sand Canyon Avenue 
Irvine, CA 92618 

RE: Proposal for On-Call Biological Monitoring and Permitting Services 

Dear Ms. Sanchez:  

Environmental Science Associates (ESA), an employee-owned California Corporation with an office in Irvine and 21 other locations 
along the nation’s West Coast and in Florida, is an award-winning environmental consulting firm with 55 years of experience guid-
ing projects through the environmental review, permitting, and construction process. We are pleased to present this proposal to 
Irvine Ranch Water District (IRWD or District) as a qualified consultant for on-call biological monitoring and permitting services for 
small or recurring projects. As you know, ESA specializes in environmental compliance and natural resources permitting for water 
and wastewater infrastructure projects, with considerable experience throughout Southern California. Our proposal includes a 
summary of ESA’s experience and capabilities; our key strengths that set us apart are summarized below: 

 ESA’s focus on environmental regulatory compliance for water and wastewater clients is unmatched. Our 
team provides the full array of technical expertise requested in the RFP and will focus on solutions to your environ-
mental issues to expedite successful project implementation.

 Experienced on-call environmental service providers. We have extensive experience providing on-call biological, 
permitting, and environmental compliance services to public utilities in Southern California, including IRWD since
2009, Eastern Municipal Water District since 2013, Inland Empire Utilities Agency since 2013, Los Angeles Department
of Water and Power since 2011, and California Department of Water Resources since 2000. We know what it takes to
manage on-call contracts effectively.

 We provide exceptional Senior Managers and a deep bench of Technical Experts. ESA’s senior management
team lead by Tom Barnes and Scott Holbrook provides centralized leadership, strategic support, and a commitment
to quality. Our job is to understand our clients’ objectives and to collaborate with them to overcome challenges.
Scott Holbrook will continue to serve as the primary point of contact and responsible for collaboration with key
technical leads and quality control of all deliverables.

 We know IRWD. As an incumbent, ESA will hit the ground running. We have learned the District’s specific style, qual-
ity commitments, and cost control expectations, and we have established effective relationships with IRWD project
staff. This experience brings value to the District through strategic approaches to project implementation that mini-
mize costs through careful staffing and scoping based on current real-world experience and institutional knowledge.
ESA is committed to continuing this partnership with a strong level of excellence.

We have greatly valued our partnership with IRWD over the past 15 years, and we appreciate this opportunity to be considered 
for biological and permitting services going forward. This letter is signed by Tom Barnes, who as Vice President, has the author-
ity to represent and contractually bind the firm, and Scott Holbrook as Client/Project Manager. Should you have any questions, 
please feel free to contact Scott Holbrook at 949.753.7001 or sholbrook@esassoc.com.  

Sincerely, 

Scott Holbrook 
Client/Project Manager 

Tom Barnes 
Principal Associate and Vice President 

H-2



  INTRODUCTION 
Environmental Science Associates (ESA) is a multidisciplinary 
firm of environmental professionals that develop creative and 
feasible project solutions and environmentally responsible 
plans and projects, and deliver quality, scientifically-based 
environmental documentation. While we offer a wide range of 
services to support environmental planning and compliance with 
the California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) and the National 
Environmental Policy Act (NEPA), this proposal focuses specifically 
on our expertise as it pertains to biological surveys, monitoring, 
permitting, and compliance services. The format of this proposal 
follows the proposal content requirements outlined in the Request 
for Proposals. 

We Know Biological Monitoring and 
Permitting
The ESA team presented in the proposal provides the full array of technical expertise for capital, operation and 
maintenance, and emergency projects that may require biological, permitting and compliance services, including 
biological monitoring, mitigation planning, design, and implementation. ESA’s professional biologists, botanists, 
arborists, restoration ecologists, regulatory permitting and resource management specialists provide a broad array 
of consulting services throughout Southern California’s diverse environments including biological surveys, vegetation 
mapping, wetland delineations and assessments, tree inventories, protocol/focused species surveys, and monitoring 
and reporting. In particular, our team is particularly familiar with the resources within IRWD’s service area and the 
local and regional plans and policies protecting those resources. We have supplemented our biology and permitting 
team with a few key in-house disciplines including community planning, air quality/noise, cultural resources, and 
environmental hydrology to ensure technical capability and quality. The breadth and depth of our expertise allows 
us to successfully engage in and complete multiple concurrent project assignments on schedule and within budget. 
Our specialists are credentialed and responsive and carry out projects with the greatest level of professionalism at the 
greatest value to our clients. Committed to accommodating client interests and compliance strategy requirements, ESA 
is recognized for its integrity and balanced perspective. 

Subconsultant: Geosyntec
ESA routinely engages in subcontract arrangements when technical specialties beyond 
our in-house capabilities are required and appropriate for a project. For this contract, we 
have enlisted the expertise of Geosyntec Consultants, Inc. (Geosyntec) to provide Water 
Quality, Stormwater Monitoring and Reporting services. Geosyntec provides engineering 

and consulting services related to the environment, water and natural resources, and civil infrastructure. Geosyntec is 
known both locally and nationally for its innovative work in storm water, erosion and sediment control, water quality 
monitoring, and related environmental services. Geosyntec has been providing services since 1983, with over 200 
technical professionals in 11 offices throughout Southern California. ESA also has a long-standing working relationship 
with Geosyntec on a number of projects and on-call environmental contracts. For example, Geosyntec is currently 
providing water quality and stormwater permitting, monitoring, and reporting services to the California Department of 
Water Resources as a subconsultant to ESA.

On-Call Biological Monitoring and Permitting Services
  / July 18, 2024

1 Environmental Science Associates
esassoc.com

H-3



SECTION 1 SCOPE OF WORK
The following subsections address the ESA team’s understanding, expertise, and management and technical 
approaches to accomplishing the tasks outlined in the RFP.  

Management Approach 
Availability and Schedule
IRWD’s need for on-call services over the next three years and the 
schedule for on-call projects will drive the team’s dedication to 
tasks as they are identified. Both Tom and Scott will commit time 
as specific tasks warrant. ESA is committed to meeting project 
schedule deadlines, and we have recent experience dedicating 
the time needed to get the job done on schedule. For example, 
under a previous on-call contract for IRWD, ESA completed four 
NOEs for IRWD’s Energy Storage Systems Project within three days 
as requested by IRWD to meet deadlines for consideration and 
approval by IRWD’s Board of Directors. 

Project Controls and Invoicing
ESA engages in a proactive approach to tracking, reporting, and 
controlling costs so that budgets are managed effectively. The 
first step in managing project costs is working closely with IRWD 
to establish a clear and detailed scope, schedule, and budget. 
As Project Manager, Scott will work closely with the internal ESA 
team once scopes of work are approved by IRWD to ensure team 
members stay within the approved scope and budget. As part of 
this process, Scott will identify, in advance,  any work that is out of 
scope and communicate with IRWD. ESA has worked with IRWD in 
the past to move budget and scope within approved contracts, to 
ensure the timely continuation of project work.  

ESA uses the Deltek electronic time reporting system to monitor 
and track staff activities for each project and submit monthly 
invoices in a timely manner. This system allows real-time 
monitoring of labor costs, which are compiled weekly and used to 
measure project performance as well as percentage of completion 
and percentage of budget spent. Our invoices include individual 
staff hours per project and any reimbursable, permitting, and filing 
fees. We include a customized progress report with each monthly 
invoice, indicating activities performed for active tasks during the 
invoicing period, expected activities for the next monthly period, 
and any expected challenges or problems. Under this contract, 
ESA will provide separate invoices for each project, and if requested by 
IRWD can provide a monthly summary of the overall Purchase Order 
(PO) status. 

ESA'S CONTINUED 
COMMITTMENT TO IRWD
We are committed to quality 
assurance and quality control. 
Our value is linked to the quality of our 
analysis and documentation. As detailed 
in Section 2, ESA follows a strict QA/QC 
Plan. Comprehensive document reviews 
are crucial for successful projects.

We are committed to effective 
cost controls and pricing 
efficiency.  
From experience, we know cost 
controls are vital in scope and fee 
preparation, as costs relate to services, 
staff, and time. We review the scope 
to meet the District's objectives 
efficiently, recommending where to 
gain efficiencies without compromising 
essential support.

We are committed to close 
communication with IRWD staff.  
From experience, we know the 
importance of quickly elevating 
information to management. Prompt 
communication manages risks and 

fosters team trust.

On-Call Biological Monitoring and Permitting Services
  / July 18, 2024

2 Environmental Science Associates
esassoc.com

H-4



Quality Control / Quality Assurance
All ESA work products are subject to a stringent QA/QC Program. The Program consists of multiple levels of review, 
each requiring a sign-off from the manager in charge.

 Technical
Analysis

Technical
Lead Editorial Project

Manager
Principal-
In-Charge

REVIEW &
UPDATE

REVIEW &
UPDATE

REVIEW &
UPDATE

REVIEW &
UPDATE

This approach provides for preparation of documents that have received reviews from senior technical leaders for 
accuracy of content, the overall Project Manager for compliance of task objectives, a technical editor for style and 
readability, and a Project Director to ensure documents are legally defensible, technically accurate, and tailored to meet 
client needs. As Principal-In-Charge, Tom will continue to oversee ESA’s QA/QC program in order to uphold IRWD’s 
rigorous standards for technical excellence in environmental documentation.   

Technical Approach 
Task 1: Land Use Planning
ESA provides land use, policy and environmental planning services and supports technical studies for a wide range 
of public agencies in Southern California. We have also represented a number of our clients and their environmental 
needs with the City of Irvine’s Community Development Department and Orange County Planning and Development.  
We have developed a relationship with staff and understand their needs and each jurisdiction’s expectations.  

Our Community Planning team has expertise in policy planning, land use, zoning and development regulations. Our 
planners will help interpret existing local jurisdiction requirements, identify areas where local permitting or approvals 
may be required, and assist in the permitting process.  In addition, our expertise in CEQA allows us to also interpret and 
prepare any environmental clearance required for land use permitting that may require CEQA clearance. In addition to 
understanding local land use and environmental policies and permitting, our team can also provide public outreach 
services to develop public buy-in for projects, assist stakeholders and the public with better understanding a project 
and its impacts, and also complying with local, state and federal policies for engagement with any permitting process 
required. 

Task 2: Regulatory Agency Consultation, Permit Application and 
Procurement
ESA understands that IRWD’s projects often require compliance with state and federal statutes that regulate aquatic 
resources.  At the state level, these statutes include the Porter-Cologne Water Quality Control Act of 1969 (Porter-
Cologne), as amended, Section 1600 et seq. of the California Fish and Game Code (FGC), and the California Coastal Act 
(CCA), and, at the federal level, the Clean Water Act (CWA) of 1972, as amended. To assist IRWD with complying with 
these regulations, our approach would be to work with IRWD to: 1) determine if the project activity is a regulated activity 
that may trigger a need for a permit; 2) delineate limits of aquatic resources (per Task 3) and assess potential impacts; 
3) determine the potential jurisdictional status of the aquatic resources (i.e., are they considered waters of the U.S.?); 
4) identify the most streamlined permitting strategy and feasible design options; 5) initiate pre-application meetings 
with agencies; 6) submit permit applications; and 7) thoroughly review permits obtained from agencies and provide 
suggested revisions. 

On-Call Biological Monitoring and Permitting Services
  / July 18, 2024

3 Environmental Science Associates
esassoc.com

H-5



The ESA team will advise and guide IRWD on how to best navigate permitting requirements depending on the project. 
We are experienced in securing CWA permits, Water Quality Certifications, Waste Discharge Requirements, Lake 
or Streambed Alteration Agreements, Coastal Development Permits; obtaining take authorization or demonstrating 
compliance with the Federal Endangered Species Act (FESA) and the California Endangered Species Act (CESA); and 
demonstrating compliance with Section 106 of the National Historic Preservation Act and South Coast Air Quality 
Management District (SCAQMD) policies. Under the direction of IRWD, ESA will attend pre-application meetings with 
regulatory agencies and support informal/formal agency consultations as necessary.

Task 3: Wetland Delineations
ESA regulatory scientists and wetland ecologists are extensively experienced in conducting wetland delineations in 
accordance with protocols and guidelines established by the U.S. Army Corps of Engineers (USACE) and California 
Coastal Commission (CCC) and are trained to perform the California Rapid Assessment Method (CRAM) assessments. 
In addition, we comprehensively identify aquatic resources that are protected under the Clean Water Act (per the 2023 
Revised Definition of Waters of the United States), Porter-Cologne, FGC, Special Area Management Plans (SAMPs), 
and local open space and conservation general plan elements. At the onset of a particular project, ESA will identify 
all applicable regulatory statutes that will require compliance and target field investigations accordingly. Based on 
the delineation, ESA will prepare an aquatic resources delineation report or CRAM report suitable for submittal to the 
regulatory agencies to support permitting as well as CEQA/NEPA. 

Task 4: Biological Surveys, Monitoring, and Assessments
ESA has demonstrated experience in providing a full range of biological services to IRWD. Our biologists are familiar 
with the flora and fauna within Orange County and IRWD’s service area, and the sensitive habitats and special-status 
species known to occur in the service area such as least Bell’s vireo and coastal California gnatcatcher. Our team is 
highly qualified to perform a variety of biological surveys, assessments, and monitoring (see Table 2-1 for ESA’s biology 
team’s qualifications) and is trained to use the latest technology to collect data electronically. It is anticipated that this 
task will involve, but not necessarily be limited to, the following: preliminary biological resources assessments and 
reconnaissance-level surveys; protocol/focused surveys for rare plants and special-status wildlife; preparation of 
biological technical reports to support permitting, Endangered Species Act compliance, and/or CEQA/NEPA; pre-
construction special-status and nesting bird surveys and monitoring; Natural Community Conservation Plan/Habitat 
Conservation Plan (NCCP/HCP) clearance surveys; and staking/flagging restricted work areas. 

Our biologists will review available biological reports and databases prior to conducting field surveys to identify known 
or potential biological resources on or near the project site. Vegetation communities will be mapped in the field using 
geospatial information systems (GIS) technology and classified according to A Manual of California Vegetation (Second 
Edition) by Sawyer-Keeler Wolfe and Evans (2009). Habitat assessments will be conducted to determine potential 
habitat suitability of special-status species, and species-specific surveys will be conducted in conformance with the 
most recent accepted protocols. 

Task 5: Threatened and Endangered Species Regulation, 
Monitoring and Reporting
This task includes assessing the need for species surveys based on current site conditions, conducting those surveys 
consistent with federal and/or state protocols, reporting on the findings of these surveys, and monitoring project 
activities in proximity to listed species. ESA biologists are comprised of a diverse team of experienced and credentialed 
resource management specialists with expertise and experience, as well as credentials accepted by the applicable 
resource agencies related to threatened, endangered, and otherwise special status species (see Table 2-1 for ESA’s 
biology team’s qualifications).  

On-Call Biological Monitoring and Permitting Services
  / July 18, 2024

4 Environmental Science Associates
esassoc.com

H-6



ESA staff members are permitted or otherwise authorized by the U.S. Fish and Wildlife Service (USFWS) and/or 
California Department of Fish and Wildlife (CDFW) to perform protocol surveys for a wide array of species. Although we 
anticipate working through the NCCP/HCP, ESA biologists will advise IRWD on addressing potential impacts to federally 
and/or State endangered and/or threatened species subject to the FESA and/or CESA.  ESA biologists will prepare 
mitigation strategies for completing Section 7 FESA consultation and obtaining a Biological Opinion from the USFWS, 
or a FESA Section 10 Habitat Conservation Plan, when warranted. Relative to CESA, ESA biologists will assist IRWD in 
the application to request an Incidental Take Permit pursuant to CESA Section 2081(b) and consistency determinations 
pursuant to FGC Section 2080.1. However, as mentioned above, ESA anticipates employing mitigation guidelines 
provided for in the region-wide NCCP/HCP to avoid or minimize project-related impacts to regulated resources.

Task 6: Mitigation Monitoring and Reporting Plans
As part of a typical scope of work for environmental compliance, ESA includes preparation of the Mitigation Monitoring 
and Reporting Program (MMRP) as required by CEQA, Habitat Mitigation and Monitoring Plans (HMMPs) as necessary, 
and implementation of requirements outlined in permit conditions. We understand that IRWD may require assistance 
implementing these environmental conditions for current projects such as the Syphon Reservoir Improvement 
Project. If requested by IRWD under this On-Call Services contract, ESA will implement the MMRPs, HMMPs, and 
permit conditions associated with projects, including preparation of a reporting program binder designed to track the 
implementation and completion of each requirement, management of monitoring activities and required field surveys, 
and preparation of periodic reports to document ongoing activities and project completion. Alternately, ESA has a 
real-time, scalable mobile data collection and reporting system to support compliance and construction monitoring 
projects and provide real-time monitoring results. Our field teams are trained with the latest technology to streamline 
the monitoring and reporting process; saving time and money for our clients.    

By implementing a kick-off meeting prior to construction and through regular coordination calls for the duration of 
construction, ESA will work with IRWD and its contractors, and our subconsultant, to ensure the project’s compliance 
with environmental monitoring and reporting requirements, while achieving construction goals. ESA has staff that 
specialize in construction monitoring in both our Biological Resources & Land Management Group and Cultural 
Resources Group, and our team has extensive experience implementing MMRPs and permit conditions for various 
projects as part of on-call services contracts, including the Syphon Reservoir Geotechnical Investigation Project. 

Task 7: Water Quality, Storm Water Monitoring, and Reporting
Geosyntec has a highly qualified and diverse team to provide technical expertise in strategic program management 
of individual, Phase I, Phase II, Industrial, and Construction General Permits in California, performing site inspections 
and assessments, and monitoring and reporting for storm and wastewater compliance, sediment and water quality 
assessments. 

At the inception of a project, the project site will be evaluated for environmental permitting compliance needs.  
Depending on the scope of work, there may be the need for water quality permits to be obtained (i.e., Storm Water 
for Construction Activities, Low Threat Discharge Permits to ground or surface water).  Geosyntec will review the 
construction activities with IRWD and ESA’s management team to provide preliminary BMP design recommendations 
and prepare the water quality permits needed. If requested, our team’s Qualified Storm Water Pollution Prevention 
Plans (SWPPP) Practitioner (QSP) will prepare SWPPPs and oversee SWPPP inspections and compliance with 
environmental water quality permits and requirements. The SWPPP & Environmental Field Monitors also will be 
available to respond promptly and provide assistance with sampling required for approved discharges, spills, 
release reporting requirements, excavation of contaminated soil, and collection of samples of contaminated soil and 
groundwater. Field summary reports will be prepared, and required field documentation will be completed. The SWPPP 
and Environmental Field Monitors will comply with sampling, monitoring, and reporting requirements.

On-Call Biological Monitoring and Permitting Services
  / July 18, 2024

5 Environmental Science Associates
esassoc.com

H-7



Task 8: Natural Treatment System
Part of storm water compliance is using low impact development or technologies to treat storm water runoff.  The idea 
is to use plants specific for the type of pollutants of concern contained in dry weather runoff and storm runoff and to 
design the “basins” to encourage sediment and/or pollutant deposition within the “basins”.  In order to determine the 
size of the Natural Treatment System (NTS) and the types of plants to utilize, our team will provide IRWD with a clear 
understanding of the soil types and types of pollutants of concern. Our team is experienced in site design, plant palette 
design, and construction, maintenance, and monitoring of NTS such as the San Joaquin Marsh, Peters Canyon, and 
Dominguez Gap Wetlands.

Task 9: Natural Community Conservation Plan/Habitat 
Conservation Plan
ESA has comprehensive knowledge of the local NCCP/HCP program and will work directly with IRWD as we have 
done in the past to guide the planning and implementation of projects that may affect Reserve lands. Our team will 
provide field assessments, reporting, coordination, and administrative services consistent with the NCCP guidelines, 
and will facilitate direct communications with the Executive Director of the Natural Commissions Coalition (NCC) and 
the agencies in the NCCP guideline documents. If needed, ESA will facilitate meetings with USFWSs and CDFW to 
discuss any anticipated issues associated with NCCP/HCP compliance. If a proposed project falls within the jurisdiction 
of the local NCCP/HCP, similar what ESA completed for the Syphon Reservoir Geotechnical Investigation Project, ESA 
will work with IRWD to coordinate with the appropriate local agency and NCCP/HCP participating parties (i.e., Natural 
Communities Coalition and resource agencies) to ensure the proposed project is in compliance with the plan and 
ensure that the appropriate mitigation is recommended and/or satisfied. 

Task 10: Project Coordination
ESA is accustomed to working with multiple stakeholders, agencies, and other consultants on any given project. In 
accordance with our focus on client satisfaction and under the direction of IRWD, ESA will team or collaborate with 
other consultants or agencies in order to provide the best technical or regulatory expertise required to meet project 
objectives and provide services that are in the best interest of our clients. 

In addition, our project management team will regularly coordinate with IRWD, other consultants, agencies, and 
contractors to provide services requested under this on-call contract. Tom has worked with Scott and many of the key 
technical leads identified in this proposal, including Stephanie and Maile, on a variety of water/wastewater/groundwater 
projects throughout California, including the Syphon Reservoir Improvement Project. To facilitate coordination of teams 
comprised of multiple consultants and agencies, ESA utilizes regularly scheduled conference call meetings to maintain 
focus of analyses, provide a forum for information exchange, and maintain compliance with project schedules and 
budgets.  

Task 11: Staff Rates
The hourly rates for all staff and services resulting from this contract are provided in Section 5. Charges for time spent 
on project management, consultation, meetings, field work, data analysis, report preparation and review, travel time, 
etc., will be made at the Category Rates set forth in Section 5. Rates for non-labor expenses, such as reimbursable 
expenses and equipment usage are also provided in Section 5, Fee Schedule. 

On-Call Biological Monitoring and Permitting Services
  / July 18, 2024

6 Environmental Science Associates
esassoc.com

H-8



Task 12: Project Task Item Estimates
Our typical on-call services contracts require us to prepare scopes of work, cost estimates and schedules for projects 
as they arise. ESA has prepared task order proposals for biological and regulatory compliance services under ESA’s 
current CEQA/NEPA on-call contract, as well as other on-call contracts such as for Department of Water Resources 
(DWR) and Orange County Public Works (OCPW). The appropriate level of effort will be developed by our project 
management team in coordination with IRWD, key technical staff, and/or ESA’s subconsultant. Staff will be assigned 
based on project requirements. Each new project will be established under this IRWD On-Call Services master contract 
and IRWD’s PO. Upon request, ESA will prepare and submit a project team description, scope, budget, and schedule to 
IRWD for new projects as they arise within one to three days, depending on the nature of the work. Longer timeframes 
may be required for larger jobs. The costs associated with preparing scope/schedule/budget packages will be ESA’s 
responsibility. With IRWD’s approval of the scope and fee, ESA will begin work on new projects immediately upon 
receiving a written notice to proceed. 

Task 13: Team Experience
As requested in the RFP, we have presented our proposed project team and their relevant experience in Section 2, 
Team. Additional details about each team member are provided in the resumes attached as Appendix A.

Task 14: References
As requested in the RFP, within Table 3-1, ESA provided 2 projects recently completed for IRWD and IRWD staff 
members were involved with the projects. Figure 3-1: Irvine Ranch Water District Project Experience demonstrates 
projects the ESA team have completed over the course of our current on previous on-call contracts with IRWD. 

SECTION 2 TEAM
Taking into consideration the nature of the contract, anticipated projects, and the various disciplines necessary to 
address biological survey, monitoring, permitting, and compliance requirements, ESA has selected the proposed 
team based on continuity, technical expertise, exemplary qualifications, location and availability. These key personnel 
– the Principle-In-Charge, Client/Project Manager, and Task Managers – will continue to lead, oversee, and be 
hands-on in their execution of the contract tasks. With intimate knowledge and understanding of IRWD’s policies, 
and procedures, these task managers will continue its stability within the team of scientists, biologists, ecologists, 
and regulatory specialists available to them, also presented in this section. This deep bench ensures that ESA can 
maintain responsiveness in the face of potential multiple, concurrent task orders and to provide expedited service. ESA 
understands any substitution or addition of any key personnel must be requested in writing, along with a statement of 
qualifications and time commitment.  We understand this request must be approved in writing in advance. Resumes 
of key personnel are provided in Appendix A. Following our key staff biographies, we have provided Table 2-1 
demonstrating our support staff’s qualifications. Full resumes for technical support staff are available upon request.

Technical Team Availability 
The ESA Team understands that the availability of team members is of importance to IRWD; therefore, only staff with 
the requisite availability to commit to this On-Call Biological Monitoring and Permitting Services contract’s scope of 
services are assigned to this project. We have included a generalized time-available percentage but recognize that the 
services needed under this contract will be intermittent and varied, requiring periods of 100 percent commitment of key 
staff until tasks are complete. The work effort for our proposed key staff members will fluctuate as individual projects 
move from one phase to another. Based on the schedule and projected staff hours for implementation of the projects 
under this On-Call Biological Monitoring and Permitting Services contract, we can confidently commit to the availability 
and participation by our proposed Technical Team. 

On-Call Biological Monitoring and Permitting Services
  / July 18, 2024

7 Environmental Science Associates
esassoc.com

H-9



Management Team Biographies
Tom Barnes | Principal-in-Charge  
Tom is an ESA Vice President and a Principal Associate in ESA’s Southern California Water Group 
focused on providing environmental planning and management services for water and wastewater 
utilities in the Southern California region. He has over 26 years of experience in CEQA/NEPA analysis, 
project management, environmental documentation, permit review and facilitation, and data analysis. 

A proven project manager specializing in water projects, Tom manages on-call multi-year environmental contracts for 
Southern California agencies, including Metropolitan, Los Angeles Department of Water and Power (LADWP), Orange 
County Sanitation District, and DWR. Tom served as the Project Director for all IRWD projects described in Table 1-1, 
including the current and ongoing Syphon Reservoir Improvement Project EIR. In addition, Tom has most recently 
overseen the completion of the following projects:  West Basin Municipal Water District Ocean Water Desalination 
Project EIR; City of Ventura’s Ventura Water Supply Projects EIR; and the San Gabriel River Reduced Discharge EIR for 
the Los Angeles County Sanitation District. 

Project Availability: 5% | Labor Category: Senior Principal Consultant 3 | Education: B.A. English, University of 
California, Berkeley 

Scott Holbrook | Client/Project Manager; NCCP/HCP; Project 
Coordination
Scott, a seasoned biologist and senior project manager with over 30 years of expertise in Southern 
California’s biological resources and environmental regulations, excels in providing biological 
compliance services, and providing excellent contract management and client services. His innovative, 

cost-effective mitigation measures have supported pipelines, water facilities, energy, road projects, and real estate 
developments. As an ecological restoration specialist, Scott has crafted mitigation programs meeting stringent resource 
agency requirements. His notable work with IRWD includes the Syphon Reservoir Geotechnical Investigation Project, 
Syphon Reservoir Improvement Project, and the San Joaquin Marsh Operating Guidelines and Resource Management 
Plan Update. Scott also manages ESA’s Permitting and Restoration Services contract with OCPW. As the Client/Project 
Manager for IRWD, Scott will continue to be the primary point of contact overseeing day-to-day contract management, 
leveraging ESA’s tools to ensure quality control and proactive problem-solving, and bringing a strategic, client-focused 
approach that consistently exceeds expectations.

Project Availability: 30% | Labor Category: Principal Consultant 3 | Education: B.A., Applied Ecology, University of 
California, Irvine

Task Managers Biographies
Brian Allee | Land Use Planning 
Brian Allee is an environmental planner and project manager with 20 years of experience in project 
entitlements and preparing environmental documentation compliant with the California Environmental 
Quality Act (CEQA) and the National Environmental Policy Act (NEPA). He is skilled in tracking 
and ensuring project compliance with conditions of approval and local, state, and federal agency 

coordination. He is experienced in research, analysis, and preparation of all levels of CEQA and NEPA documentation 
for a wide variety of project types, including sports arenas, mixed-use/urban infill projects, large-scale residential and 
specific plan developments, industrial and commercial developments, parks, medical facilities, waste management, 
water and wastewater infrastructure, and coastal development projects.

Project Availability: 30% | Labor Category: Managing Consultant 4 | Education: B.S., City and Regional Planning, 
California Polytechnic State University, San Luis Obispo

On-Call Biological Monitoring and Permitting Services
  / July 18, 2024

8 Environmental Science Associates
esassoc.com

H-10



Stephanie Gasca | Agency Consultation & Permitting; Wetland 
Delineation
Stephanie has over 20 years of experience, 17 years as a consultant and 3 years as a regulator 
with the Santa Ana Regional Water Quality Control Board (RWQCB), with expertise in regulatory 
permit acquisition and environmental compliance. She has extensive knowledge of Clean Water 

Act Sections 401 and 404; the Porter-Cologne Water Quality Control Act; and the Fish and Game Code Section 1600 
permitting processes, and experience in obtaining take authorization or demonstrating compliance with the FESA 
and CESA. Stephanie has also assisted with preparing staff reports and board orders associated with the issuance of 
waste discharge requirements (WDRs), as well as drafting 401 Water Quality Certification language. Throughout her 
career, Stephanie has cultivated solid working relationships with agencies and staff that are built on mutual trust and 
understanding. Stephanie is currently supporting IRWD by leading the permitting efforts for the Syphon Reservoir 
Improvement project.

Project Availability: 30% | Labor Category: Managing Consultant 4 I | Education: M.A., Environmental Studies (Law and 
Policy), University of Southern California; B.A. Biological Sciences, University of Southern California

Maile Tanaka | Biological Surveys/Monitoring & Reporting; T&E 
Species; MMRP
Maile has more than 18 years of experience in the field of consulting biology. Her professional 
experience includes vegetation mapping, habitat assessments, botanical surveys (including tree 
inventories and rare plant surveys), focused surveys for special-status wildlife, nesting bird surveys, 

and jurisdictional delineations throughout Southern California. She has experience in preparing technical biological 
resources documents in accordance with CEQA guidelines for numerous complex projects, and is well-versed with 
the requirements of the Orange County NCCP/HCP. Maile prepared the biological technical report for the Syphon 
Reservoir Geotechnical Investigations Project, which analyzed the project’s consistency with the County of Orange 
Central & Coastal Subregion NCCP/HCP. She also was the lead biologist that conducted and coordinated multiple years 
of focused surveys for special-status floral and faunal species in support of the Syphon Reservoir Improvement Project, 
coordinated with USFWS and CDFW, and oversaw the biological monitoring conducted in compliance with the project’s 
MMRP and permit during implementation of the geotechnical work. Maile also coordinated with USFWS and CDFW 
regarding implementation of NCCP/HCP Construction-Related Minimization Measures.  

Project Availability: 30% | Labor Category: Managing Consultant 3 | Education: Master of Environmental Science 
& Management, University of California, Santa Barbara; B.S., Organismic Biology, Ecology & Evolution, University of 
California, Los Angeles.

Nick Garrity, PE | Natural Treatment System
Nick is the director of ESA’s Southern California Environmental Hydrology & Design Group. He is a 
hydrologist and civil engineer with more than 23 years of experience working with wetland, river, 
estuary, and coastal systems. His technical and project management experience includes the 
planning and design of multi-benefit wetland enhancement, restoration, and management projects; 

water quality and flood hazard studies; hydrodynamic modeling; environmental impact assessments; and post-
project monitoring and evaluation. His technical skills and expertise include the assessment and modeling of wetland 
hydraulics and water quality, sediment dynamics, and engineering design. With previous experience leading ESA’s 
reduced discharge technical study on the San Joaquin Marsh for the Peters Canyon Water Capture and Reuse Project, 
current role in leading the development of IRWD’s San Joaquin Marsh Operating Guidelines and Resource Management 
Plan,  and experience with various treatments wetlands and wetland maintenance and restoration projects, including 
San Joaquin Marsh/Peters Canyon, Big Canyon, and Aliso Creek, he is well-suited to lead the hydrology studies and 
analyses for IRWD.

Project Availability: 20% | Labor Category: Principal Consultant 3 | Education: M.S., Civil and Environmental 
Engineering, University of California at Berkeley; B.S., Geology– Physics/ Mathematics, Brown University

On-Call Biological Monitoring and Permitting Services
  / July 18, 2024

9 Environmental Science Associates
esassoc.com

H-11



Miguel Parames (Geosyntec), P.E., QSP/D | Water Quality, Stormwater 
Monitoring & Reporting
Miguel is a registered professional engineer in California with over 17 years of experience in civil and 
environmental engineering.  Mr. Parames’ practice areas include hydrology and hydraulics, civil design, 
erosion and sediment control BMP selection and design, construction management/ oversight, post-

fire erosion and flood hazard assessments, and NDPES permit compliance.  Mr. Parames is an expert in hydrologic 
and hydraulic engineering and applies this skill to floodplain management (floodplain analysis, inundation mapping, 
hydraulic structures including bridges, weirs, and spillways), storm water management (storm drain pipe analysis, open 
channel conveyance, urban hydrology, and sediment basin design), and watershed management (post-fire hydrology, 
hydromod, green street infrasturcture).  Mr. Parames has extensive technical and field experience selecting and 
designing erosion and sediment control best management practices (BMPs) applicable to the Construction General 
Permit and Industrial General Permit and provides clients a technical approach to mitigating water quality impacts 
from sediment.  In addition, Mr. Parames has also prepared limited threat discharge permits to surface water and land 
to support construction projects.  More recently, Mr. Parames has developed a civil design practice related to water 
resource engineering and projects include open channel conveyances, culverts, storm drains, sediment basins, road 
alignments, and grading 

Project Availability: 30% | Labor Category: Geosyntec Principal Engineer | Education: M.S., Civil and Environmental 
Engineering, University of California, Davis; B.S., Civil Engineering, University of California, Davis  

Table 2-1: Summary of ESA Technical Team Staff and Qualifications

Name Education Technical Expertise

Florence Chan 
Biological Surveys/
Monitoring & Reporting; 
MMRP
Availability: 20%
Labor Category: Senior 
Consultant 2

MS, Plant and Soil Sciences 
(Emphasis: Wildlife), Alabama 
A&M University

BS, Physical Geography, 
University of British Columbia

Florence has 18 years of experience in biological 
assessments, vegetation mapping, focused surveys for 
special-status species, nesting bird surveys, mitigation 
monitoring, and construction monitoring.

Michelle Gonzalez
Biological Surveys/
Monitoring & Reporting; 
MMRP
Availability: 20%
Labor Category: Associate 
Consultant 4

BS, Marine Biology, California 
State University, Long Beach

Michelle has 7 years of experience in conducting 
nesting bird surveys and biological monitoring. 
Michelle has biological monitoring experience and is 
proficient using programs such as Survey123, Collector, 
Solocator and RStudio.

Brandon Mukogawa
Biological Surveys/
Monitoring & Reporting, 
Availability: 65%
Labor Category: Consultant 4

MS, Biology, University of 
California, San Diego

BS, Ecology, Behavior, and 
Evolution, University of 
California, San Diego

Brandon has 3 years of experience conducting wildlife 
and vegetative surveys in Southern California, making 
him familiar with the region’s protected species. 
Brandon can digest technical information, such as 
permitting language or survey findings, and assist 
with biological surveys and technical reports such as 
biological resource assessments.

On-Call Biological Monitoring and Permitting Services
  / July 18, 2024

10 Environmental Science Associates
esassoc.com

H-12



SECTION 3 REFERENCE
Over the past 15 years, we have built a relationship with IRWD founded on trust and mutual respect, consistently 
reinforcing our commitment through successful projects. Our partnership thrives on open communication and shared 
values, ensuring that each project meets its goals with precision and excellence. Through our dedication and deep 
understanding of the project’s needs, our relationship has only grown stronger, delivering ever-greater results. The map 
below illustrates the success of our partnership, serving as a testament to our enduring commitment to IRWD and the 
communities that benefit from our collaborative efforts.

Figure 3-1: Irvine Ranch Water District Project Experience

Table 2-1: Summary of ESA Technical Team Staff and Qualifications

James Jackson, PE
Natural Treatment Systems
Availability: 20%
Labor Category: Senior 
Consultant 5

James has over 11 years of experience working with 
habitat restoration design and feasibility studies, 
floodplain and stormwater management, coastal 
and fluvial hydrology and geomorphology, local and 
regional climate change/sea-level rise vulnerability 
assessments and coastal adaptation planning.

In addition to our longstanding partnership with IRWD, ESA has a proven track record of supporting districts across 
Southern California with services that align with the requirements outlined in this RFP. For over a decade our clients, 
Eastern Municipal Water District (EMWD), Inland Empire Utilities Agencies (IEUA), Los Angeles Department of Water and 
Power (LADWP), and DWR, have benefited from our expert as-needed consultant services as we consistently delivered 
biological and permitting support similar to the scope of services being requested by IRWD. Detailed descriptions of 
these exemplary on-call environmental services contracts, along with an overview of our current IRWD contract, are 
provided below, showcasing our capability and commitment to excellence.

On-Call Biological Monitoring and Permitting Services
  / July 18, 2024

11 Environmental Science Associates
esassoc.com

H-13



Tabel 3-1: IRWD Reference Projects

Syphon Reservoir Geotechnical Investigation Project IS/MND. The Geotechnical Investigations Work Plan (GIWP) 
provided details about the geologic and geotechnical baseline conditions at Syphon Reservoir. This work is necessary 
in order to inform the design of an enlarged reservoir, which will provide the IRWD service area with a more reliable 
water supply. The Final IS/MND was adopted by IRWD in June 2019. ESA provided extensive biological surveys 
and cultural surveys in support of the IS/MND; assisted IRWD with AB52 process for Tribal consultation; facilitated 
coordination with USFWS and CDFW for mitigation associated with the County of Orange NCCP and Grant Deed 
restrictions for the site; and secured a Jurisdictional Determination from the U.S. Army Corps of Engineers and 
Streambed Alteration Agreement from CDFW in less than one year. 

Staff: Jo Ann Corey, Fiona Sanchez, Kellie Welch, Ian Swift, Scott Toland

San Joaquin Marsh Wetland/Riparian Habitat Concept Development. ESA assisted the Irvine Ranch Water District 
(IRWD) evaluate options to mitigate impacts from the proposed expansion of the Syphon Reservoir. ESA assisted 
IRWD to understand whether additional freshwater marsh creation (i.e., bulrush and cattail marsh with open water) 
and riparian wetland at San Joaquin Marsh (SJM) is a feasible alternative to purchasing credits from a wetland 
mitigation bank. ESA studied the feasibility of freshwater marsh and riparian wetland creation at SJM and developing 
design concepts and conceptual-level cost estimate for implementation.  
Staff: Paul Weghorst, Fiona Sanchez, Jo Ann Corey, Scott Toland

On-Call Contracts
Irvine Ranch Water District | On-Call Environmental 
Services
Since 2009, ESA has supported IRWD with on-call environmental services for its 
project planning, construction, operation, and maintenance activities, including 
CEQA/NEPA and permitting services, biological/cultural resources assessments, 
hydrologic modeling, water quality assessment, and mitigation compliance 
monitoring. To date, ESA has responded to over 20 individual task order 
assignments, mostly including IS/MNDs and CEQA Addenda from prior EIRs. 
ESA has also assisted in emergency repair work for IRWD treatment facilities, 
including the Michelson Water Reclamation Plant Phase 2/3 Capacity Expansion 
EIR Addendum No.4: Emergency Recycled Water Discharge

Eastern Municipal Water District | On-Call 
Environmental Services
Since 2013, ESA has provided CEQA and NEPA consulting services to EMWD. In 
that time, ESA has become a trusted advisor in the development of technically 
sound and comprehensive environmental documents for various water 
infrastructure projects. Most notably, ESA prepared a Program EIR for the San 
Jacinto Valley Enhance Recharge and Recovery Project that included many CIP 
projects intended to capture and store imported water for later use. The PEIR 
included project-level CEQA analysis for facilities EMWD planned for the near 
term, allowing the design and construction to begin immediately after CEQA 
approval. These facilities include recharge basins,  pipelines, wells, and treatment 
facilities in San Jacinto and Hemet, for which ESA conducted biological and 
cultural resources compliance monitoring in accordance with the approved 

Client Contact: Joseph 
Broadhead, Principal Water 
Resource Specialist,

Phone: 951.928.3777 ext. 4545

Dates: 2013-Present

IRWD Staff: Paul Weghorst, Fiona 
Sanchez, Kellie Welch, Andy Uk

Dates: 2009-Present

On-Call Biological Monitoring and Permitting Services
  / July 18, 2024

12 Environmental Science Associates
esassoc.com

H-14



MMRP. For the more long-term components of the project, ESA prepared program-level CEQA documentation that 
allows EMWD to analyze environmental impacts generally at the conceptual level in order to cover the entire program. 
ESA is currently working with EMWD on subsequent phases of the ERRP, tiering appropriately from the PEIR by means 
of CEQA Addenda.

Los Angeles Department of Water and Power | On-Call 
Environmental Services
Since 2011, ESA has supported LADWP by providing a full array of environmental 
services in an on-call capacity to the Office of Environmental Planning and 
Assessment. ESA has responded to a wide range of planning, permitting, and 
compliance needs for capital projects and for routine and emergency operations 
and maintenance activities with qualified technical experts in all environmental 
disciplines. Over the 13 years that ESA has been contracted with LADWP, we have 
routinely worked on approximately 20 open task orders simultaneously at any 
given time. To date, ESA has responded to 132 individual task order assignments 
for projects involving CEQA and construction monitoring/compliance, including 
Operation NEXT Water Supply Program EIR, Century Trunk Line Project MND, and 

cultural resources construction monitoring and MMRP compliance for the North Haiwee Dam No 2 Project for the North 
Haiwee Dam No 2 Project.

California Department Of Water Resources | On-Call 
Environmental Services
Since 2006, ESA has supported DWR on a range of projects within the Southern 
Division of the California State Water Project system. ESA’s services have 
included strategic environmental planning, impact assessment, NEPA/CEQA, 
biological and cultural surveys, mitigation planning, mitigation monitoring, 
habitat conservation plan compliance, and permitting for multiple task orders. 
To date, ESA has responded to over 100 individual task order assignments. In 
the past five years, ESA supported four of DWR’s largest programs from the San 
Luis to the Southern Field Division: two MNDs to support the California Aqueduct 
Subsidence Program, the Castaic Dam High Intake Tower Access Bridge Retrofit 
Project IS/MND, Lake Perris Emergency Release Facility Project permitting and 
pre-construction activities, and the Salton Sea Monitoring Implementation Plan.

SECTION 4 SCHEDULE
Responsiveness
ESA is a seasoned on-call environmental consultant serving public and private entities.  In some cases, project 
assignments are initiated on short notice with a quick turn-around time required.  In many cases, ESA has signed a 
master services agreement specifically to facilitate quick project turnarounds.  Depending on the nature of the project, 
ESA is poised to respond within hours, if needed.  Moreover, due to our Irvine office’s proximity to IRWD Headquarters 
and central location within the overall jurisdiction, we can participate in on-site meetings or be at an IRWD project site 
with short notice, if necessary; these attributes are incumbent of an extension of staff.  ESA prides itself on the ability 
to deliver high quality consultation and documentation to meet the specific needs of specific task assignments under 
other on-call contracts and ESA will perform and provide this high-quality work for all projects undertaken for IRWD.

Client Contact: Jane Hauptman, 
Manager of Environmental 
Planning and Assessment

Phone:  213.367.0968

Dates: 2011-Present

Client Contact: Sarah Cannon, 
Manager of the Environmental 
Coordination Section, Division of 
Engineering

Phone: 916.882.2829

Dates: 2000-Present

On-Call Biological Monitoring and Permitting Services
  / July 18, 2024

13 Environmental Science Associates
esassoc.com

H-15



Project Schedule 
ESA believes that time is of the essence and will address each request and task order in that respect. ESA will continue 
its commitment in keeping the project on schedule when circumstances are within our control. ESA understands that 
delays in development and infrastructure improvements during the environmental review process invariably leading to 
an increase in the overall budget for the project. ESA often employs Microsoft Project as a flexible scheduling tool that 
is readily updated to reflect potential changes in the schedule beyond ESA’s control, should they arise, with adjustments 
quickly expressed in real time. With proactive communication being one of our fundamental principles, the ESA project 
management team will work with IRWD to use the preferred scheduling tools. Through continuous tracking, the Project 
Manager will be able to determine at any point in the process, if there is any deviation from the planned schedule and 
budget and make necessary adjustments.

SECTION 5 FEE SCHEDULE
The range of rates shown for each staff category reflects ESA staff qualifications, expertise and experience levels. These 
rate ranges allow our project managers to assemble the best project teams to meet the unique project requirements 
and client expectations for each opportunity. Subcontract services will be invoiced at cost multiplied by 1.15. 

Environmental Science Associates | Fee Schedule
Personnel Category Rates
Charges will be made at the Category hourly rates set forth below, with an annual 5% escalation, for time spent on 
project management, consultation or meetings related to the project, field work, report preparation and review, travel 
time, etc. Time spent on projects in litigation, in depositions and providing expert testimony will be charged at the 
Category rate times 1.5. The estimated hours below are standard in preparing permit applications for Section 404 
Nationwide Permit, Section 401 Water Quality Certification, and Streambed Alternation Agreement. In addition to 
assisting with permit applications, ESA will provide agency coordination and consultation. These hours exclude the 
preparation of technical reports that may be included in the permit applications. 

Staff Name, Role, Labor Category Hourly Rate Estimated Hours

Tom Barnes, Principal-In-Charge, Senior Principal Consultant 3 $295 1

Scott Holbrook, Client/Project Manager; NCCP/HCP; Project Coordination 
Principal Consultant 3

$265 4

Nick Garrity, PE, Natural Treatment System Task Lead, Princi-pal Consultant 3 $265 0

Brian Allee, Land Use Planning, Man-aging Consultant 4 $256 0

Stephanie Gasca, Agency Consultation & Permitting; Wetland Delineation, 
Managing Consultant 4

$256 32

Maile Tanaka, Biological Surveys/Monitoring & Reporting; T&E Species; MMRP, 
Managing Consultant 3

$234 0

James Jackson, Natural Treatment Systems, Senior Consult-ant 5 $233 0

Florence Chan, Biological Surveys/Monitoring & Reporting Biological Surveys/
Monitoring & Reporting Senior Consultant 2

$171 0

Michelle Gonzalez, Biological Biological Surveys/Monitoring & Reporting, 
Associate Consultant 4

$165 40

Brandon Mukogawa, Biological Surveys/Monitoring & Reporting, Consultant 4 $135 80

On-Call Biological Monitoring and Permitting Services
  / July 18, 2024

14 Environmental Science Associates
esassoc.com

H-16



ESA Expenses
A. Travel Expenses

1. Transportation
a. Company vehicle – fixed rate + fee for mileage in excess of 100 miles.
b. Common carrier or car rental – actual expense multiplied by 1.15
c. If company vehicle is to be used in off-road conditions, a daily $15 use fee will be added to the stan-

dard daily vehicle rate.
2. Lodging, meals and related travel expenses – direct expenses multiplied by 1.15

B. Technology and Data Management Fee
Non-travel expenses incurred for the duration of the agreement for project support but not itemized below. Proj-
ect labor charges multiplied by 3%.  Fee encompasses the following:
1. Ongoing long-term retention and retrieval, management, and security of project-related data.
2. Proprietary tools, cloud data services (ArcGIS Online Hosting $225 per month), data science and AI 

capabilities as required for project delivery.
C. Printing/Production Rates

Our innovative production equipment ensures high efficiency and exceptional quality in every project ranging in 
$0.15 (letter) – $0.30 (legal) per page for black and white prints, $0.50 (letter) – $0.80 (legal) per page for color 
prints, and $10.00 per CD.

SECTION 6 JOINT VENTURE 
ESA does not propose to employ a joint venture during the course of this contract. Typically, ESA’s in-house staff has 
capabilities that are comprehensive and sufficient for completing environmental compliance documents for small 
projects. However, ESA routinely engages in subcontract arrangements when technical specialties that are beyond our 
in-house capabilities are required and appropriate for a project. We have worked with many firms in the area, including 
traffic engineering firms, geotechnical firms, local cultural resources specialists, as well as specialized biological 
resource personnel. We are open to a variety of teaming arrangements which suit IRWD and the particular project. If 
such specialized skills are needed for a particular task, ESA will work with IRWD to identify appropriate subconsultants. 

SECTION 7 CONFLICT OF INTEREST
To the best of our knowledge, ESA does not have existing personal, financial, and/or organization conflicts of interest 
prohibited by law.

SECTION 8 INSURANCE
If selected to provide the services under this contract, ESA is prepared to furnish IRWD with acceptable evidence 
showing that the insurance coverage required has been procured. ESA has insurance coverage of at least $1 million 
each for commercial general liability, worker’s compensation, automobile, and professional liability.  We will provide 
proof of insurance through our broker, IOA Insurance Services, upon the awarding of this contract. A copy of our sample 
certificate can be found in Appendix B.

SECTION 9 CONTRACT
ESA has reviewed the draft agreement and generally accepts the terms.  If selected, ESA would request an opportunity 
to discuss modification of a few of the proposed terms as well as some additional terms that ESA believes are consistent 
with the provision of professional services and industry standards. 

On-Call Biological Monitoring and Permitting Services
  / July 18, 2024

15 Environmental Science Associates
esassoc.com

H-17



 
Note:  This page is intentionally left blank. 

 



No. 13 Sewer Siphon Phase II Variance and Construction Award 13 

September 23, 2024 
Prepared by: M. Lu / R. Mori 
Submitted by: K. Burton 
Approved by: Paul A. Cook 

ACTION CALENDAR 

SEWER SIPHON IMPROVEMENTS PHASE II 
VARIANCE AND CONSTRUCTION AWARD 

SUMMARY: 

The Sewer Siphon Improvements Phase II project will rehabilitate seven of the nineteen sewer 
siphons within the District’s sewer collection system.  Woodard & Curran (W&C) is the 
engineer of record for the project.  Staff recommends that the Board: 

• Authorize the General Manager to execute Variance No. 1 in the amount of $214,777
with W&C to provide engineering services during construction, and

• Authorize the General Manager to execute a construction contract with Mike Prlich and
Sons, Inc. in the amount of $7,434,855.67 for the Sewer Siphon Improvements Phase II.

BACKGROUND: 

The District’s sewer collection system includes 19 inverted siphons at various locations.  In 
2016, the District completed a preliminary condition assessment and ranked the siphons through 
a criticality analysis considering risk and consequence of failure.  The four most critical siphons 
that were identified in the condition assessment were previously rehabilitated in the Sewer 
Siphon Improvements Phase I project, which was completed in March 2022.  This Phase II 
project will rehabilitate the next seven siphons on the priority list including Siphons S1, S3, S5, 
S8, S9, S16, and S18.  Siphon S16 is located in the city of Newport Beach, and the remaining six 
siphons are located in the city of Irvine.  The general locations of the siphons included in the 
project are provided below.   

• S1 – San Diego Creek / University Drive
• S3 – Michelson Drive / Riparian View
• S5 – Jamboree Road / Main Street
• S8 – Jeffrey Road / Alton Parkway
• S9 – Sand Canyon Avenue / Barranca Parkway
• S16 – University Drive / State Route 73
• S18 – Harvard Avenue / University Drive

Variance No. 1 – Engineering Services During Construction: 

W&C is the engineer of record for the project.  W&C was also the engineer of record for the 
Phase I project and also provided engineering services during construction for the Phase I 
project.  On these previous assignments, W&C provided high quality and responsive service to 
the District.  As such, staff requested a proposal from W&C for engineering services during 
construction for the Phase II project. 



Action Calendar:  Sewer Siphon Improvements Phase II Variance and Construction Award 
September 23, 2024 
Page 2 
 
 
W&C submitted a proposal, which is attached as Exhibit “A”, in the amount of $214,777.  The 
scope of work includes attending construction meetings, responding to contractor requests for 
information, reviewing submittals, and preparing record drawings.  The scope also includes 
reviewing contractor-provided CCTV inspection data and providing recommendations on the 
need for installation of cured-in-place pipe (CIPP) lining for Siphons S3, S5, and S18.  The 
CCTV inspection of these three siphons could not be conducted during the design phase due to 
high sewer flows and extensive traffic control requirements for these three locations. 
 
Staff reviewed W&C’s proposal and found the scope and fee to be reasonable.  Staff 
recommends that the Board authorize the General Manager to execute Variance No. 1 in the 
amount of $214,777 to Woodard & Curran for providing engineering services during 
construction for the Sewer Siphon Improvements Phase II, Project 11841. 
 
Construction Award: 
 
Staff advertised the project for construction bids to a select list of 18 pipeline contractors.  The 
bid opening was held on August 22, 2024.  Mike Prlich and Sons, Inc. is the apparent low bidder 
with a bid amount of $7,434,855.67.  Mike Prlich and Sons, Inc.’s bid information is provided as 
Exhibit “B”, and a summary of the three bids received is provided below. 
 

Bidder Bid Amount 
Mike Prlich and Sons, Inc.     $7,434,855.67 
Vido Artukovich & Son, Inc. / Vidmar Inc. A JV     $8,414,855.67 
MNR Construction Inc.   $11,063,855.67 
Engineer’s Estimate     $8,100,000.00 

 
Staff reviewed Mike Prlich and Sons, Inc.’s bid and has determined that it is responsive.  Staff 
recommends that the Board authorize the General Manager to execute a construction contract 
with Mike Prlich and Sons, Inc. in the amount of $7,434,855.67. 
 
FISCAL IMPACTS: 
 
Project 11841 is included in the FY 2024-25 Capital Budget.  The current budget is sufficient to 
fund the recommendation presented herein.   
 
ENVIRONMENTAL COMPLIANCE: 
 
This project is exempt from the California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) as authorized 
under the California Code of Regulations, Title 14, Chapter 3, Section 15301, which provides an 
exemption for minor alterations of existing public or private structures, facilities, mechanical 
equipment, or topographical features, involving negligible or no expansion of use beyond that 
existing at the time of the lead agency's determination.  A Notice of Exemption for the project 
will be filed with the Orange County Clerk Recorder.  



Action Calendar:  Sewer Siphon Improvements Phase II Variance and Construction Award 
September 23, 2024 
Page 3 
 
 
COMMITTEE STATUS: 
 
The Variance was reviewed by the Engineering and Operations Committee on September 18, 
2024.  Construction awards are not routinely taken to Committee prior to review by the Board. 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
 
THAT THE BOARD AUTHORIZE THE GENERAL MANAGER TO EXECUTE VARIANCE 
NO. 1 IN THE AMOUNT OF $214,777 WITH WOODARD & CURRAN TO PROVIDE 
ENGINEERING SERVICES DURING CONSTRUCTION, AND AUTHORIZE THE 
GENERAL MANAGER TO EXECUTE A CONSTRUCTION CONTRACT WITH MIKE 
PRLICH AND SONS, INC. IN THE AMOUNT OF $7,434,855.67 FOR THE SEWER SIPHON 
IMPROVEMENTS PHASE II, PROJECT 11841. 
 
LIST OF EXHIBITS: 
 
Exhibit “A” – Woodard & Curran Variance No. 1 
Exhibit “B” – Bid Results 
 



 
Note:  This page is intentionally left blank. 

 



Sewer Siphon Improvements Phase II - Variance 1.docx - 2 - Rev. 01/20

IRVINE RANCH WATER DISTRICT 
PROFESSIONAL SERVICES VARIANCE 

Project Title: Sewer Siphon Improvements Phase II 
Project No.: 11841  Date:  August 21, 2024 
Purchase Order No.:  631081  Variance No.:  1 

Originator: [X]  IRWD [  ]  ENGINEER/CONSULTANT [  ]  Other (Explain) 

Description of Variance (attach any back-up material): 
For Woodard & Curran (W&C) to provide engineering services during construction per the attached W&C proposal 

Engineering & Management Cost Impact: 

Classification Manhours 
Billing 
Rate 

Labor 
$ 

Direct 
Costs 

Subcon. 
$ 

Total 
$ 

Engineering services during construction 730 Varies 214,370 407 0 214,777.00 

Total $ = 214,777.00 

Schedule Impact:  
Task 
No. 

Task 
Description 

Original 
Schedule 

Schedule 
Variance 

New 
Schedule 

N/A 
Engineering services 
during construction N/A N/A N/A 

Required Approval Determination: 
 

Total Original Contract $1,285,684.00  

Previous Variances  $0 
This Variance          $214,777.00 

Total Sum of Variances $214,777.00 
New Contract Amount $1,500,461.00  

Percentage of Total Variances 
  to Original Contract 16.7              %         

[  ] Director:  Cumulative total of Variances less than or equal to 
$75,000.  

[  ] Executive Director:  Cumulative total of Variances less than 
or equal to $125,000.  

[  ] General Manager:  Cumulative total of Variances less than or 
equal to $200,000. 

[X] Board:  Cumulative total of Variances greater than $200,000.

ENGINEER/CONSULTANT: Woodard & Curran        IRVINE RANCH WATER DISTRICT 
   Company Name 

  
Project Engineer/Manager Date Department Director Date  

Engineer’s/Consultant’s Management Date General Manager/Board Date  

8/27/2024
Mirko
Maher, PE 9/3/2024

Exhibit "A"

A - 1



Sewer Siphon Improvements Phase II - Variance 1.docx - 3 - Rev. 01/20

IRVINE RANCH WATER DISTRICT

PROFESSIONAL SERVICES VARIANCE REGISTER 

Project Title: Sewer Siphon Improvements Phase II 

Project No.: 11841 Project Manager:  Michael Lu 

Variance Dates Variance
No. Description Initiated Approved Amount

1 
Engineering 
services during 
construction 

08/21/2024 $214,777.00 

A - 2



530 Technology Drive | Suite 100
Irvine, California 92618
www.woodardcurran.com

T 800.426.4262
T 949.420.5300

Electronic Submittal

August 19, 2024

Mr. Michael Lu
Irvine Ranch Water District
15600 Sand Canyon Avenue
Irvine, CA 92618

Subject:  Proposal for Engineering Services During Construction for the 
  Sewer Siphon Improvements Phase II Project (PR 11841)

Dear Mr. Lu:

In accordance with our recent communications, Woodard & Curran, Inc. is submitting this 
proposal to Irvine Ranch Water District (IRWD) for professional engineering services during 
construction for the Sewer Siphon Improvements Phase II Project (PR 11841). This proposal 
describes Woodard & Curran’s scope of work, fee, and schedule.

SCOPE OF WORK

ENGINEERING SERVICES DURING CONSTRUCTION

Woodard & Curran will provide engineering services during construction (ESDC) for the Sewer 
Siphon Improvements Phase II Project, which is assumed to span 20 months based on the 
assumption of a 600 day construction period. This scope of work consists of technical support 
related to the tasks described below.

Task 1: Project Management 

Woodard & Curran will perform routine administrative tasks including monthly invoicing and 
status reporting, budget tracking, and schedule tracking through the duration of the construction 
phase (assumes a 20-month duration). In addition, Woodard & Curran will maintain 
communications and coordination with District staff throughout the duration of the work as 
needed.

Task 2: Project Meetings

Pre-Construction Meeting
Woodard & Curran’s Project Manager and Project Engineer will coordinate, prepare for, and 
attend one (1) pre-construction meeting (assumed to be 2 hours long) at IRWD’s offices with the 
contractor and District staff. Assumes IRWD will conduct the meeting and prepare the meeting 
agenda and minutes that will be prepared and distributed to all attendees. Assumes Woodard & 
Curran will review the minutes.

Attend Construction Meetings / Site Visits
Woodard & Curran will attend construction meetings and/or site visits as requested. Assumes a 
total of twelve (12) to be attended by either the Project Manager or Project Engineer. Assume 
each meeting requires 4 hours of staff time on average for preparation, travel, attendance, and/or 
follow-up action items.

A - 3



IRWD – Sewer Siphon Improvements Phase II 2 Woodard & Curran, Inc.
Proposal for Engineering Services During Construction August 19, 2024

Task 3: Respond to Requests for Information

Woodard & Curran will review and respond to requests for information (RFIs) from the contractor 
to clarify the contract documents and the design intent. Assumes 10 RFIs with an average of 4 
hours each.

Task 4: Review Submittals and Resubmittals

Woodard & Curran will review and prepare written engineer’s review comments for construction 
submittals and resubmittals. Assumes 50 submittals with an average of 4 hours each and 25 
resubmittals with an average of 2 hours each.

Task 5: Plan Revisions

Woodard & Curran will prepare contract document modifications based on change orders 
reviewed and approved by IRWD. Assumes a total of two (2) contract document modifications 
with an average of 16 hours each.

Task 6: CCTV & CIPP Evaluation for Siphon Barrels at S3, S5, and S18

Woodard & Curran will attend CCTV inspection for each siphon barrel at Siphons S3, S5, and S18 
(total of 6 barrels) and subsequently prepare a brief Technical Memorandum (TM) with a 
recommendation to perform CIPP rehabilitation or not. For each siphon barrel, assumes 8 hours 
of staff time on average for CCTV inspection supervision and review of footage and 6 hours of 
staff time on average for TM preparation.

Task 7: Prepare Record Drawings and Consolidated Construction Files

Woodard & Curran will prepare and issue record drawings electronically only based on one set of 
legible markups provided by the Contractor, and incorporating the changes to the construction 
drawings issued via addendum during the bid phase. Together with the record drawings, we will 
submit a consolidated electronic record of the construction documentation (consisting of RFIs 
and responses, submittals, contract document clarifications, and any field orders).

Assumptions and Exclusions

• Construction management is excluded from our scope. It is assumed that the District
and/or a third-party construction manager will provide contractor oversight, field
supervision and direction, review of contractor pay applications and baseline schedule
updates, and final punch list preparation and closeout.

• Specialty inspections and meetings associated with electrical equipment, coatings, and
other third-party inspections are excluded from our scope. It is assumed that the District
and/or contractor will provide third-party inspection services as required.

• Attendance at shop visits is excluded from our scope. It is assumed that District staff will
attend any shop visits as appropriate.

• Hydraulic model updates are excluded from our scope. It is assumed that the District will
update its hydraulic model with the project improvements as appropriate.

• Contractor change order request review is excluded from our scope. It is assumed that the
District will review change order requests as required.

• Preparation of conformed documents is excluded from our scope. Any changes to the
contract documents during the bid phase will be issued via addendum, and those affecting
the construction plans will subsequently be incorporated into the record drawing set.

A - 4



IRWD – Sewer Siphon Improvements Phase II 3 Woodard & Curran, Inc.
Proposal for Engineering Services During Construction August 19, 2024

SCHEDULE

The anticipated construction schedule is attached, which shows an overall duration of 
approximately 20 months. Note that this is contingent on the schedule to be submitted by IRWD’s 
selected Contractor. We are prepared to start work upon receipt of Notice to Proceed (NTP).

FEE

Based on the above scope of work, our proposed fee estimate is summarized in the attached 
table.

We are committed to working with IRWD to make this important project a success. Thank you for 
the opportunity to submit our proposal to you. If you have any questions, please do not hesitate 
to contact Mirko Maher via cell phone (925.212.3757) or email (mmaher@woodardcurran.com).

Sincerely,

WOODARD & CURRAN, INC.

Mirko Maher, P.E. Ryker Brown, P.E.
Project Manager Regional Leader

Attachments:   Fee Estimate, Schedule

A - 5

mailto:mmaher@woodardcurran.com


IRVINE RANCH WATER DISTRICT Date: 08/19/2024

SEWER SIPHON IMPROVEMENTS PHASE II (PR 11841)
Fee Proposal - Engineering Services During Construction

Tasks ODCs Total

Mirko 
Maher

Jennifer 
Glynn

Joe 
Sinacori

Justin 
Kraetsch

Tom 
Scalese Brian Ling Steve Jung

Project 
Manager QA/QC Sr. Tech. 

Manager
Technical 
Manager 1

Structural 
Engineer Engineer 2 CAD 

Designer 3
Proj. Asst.

PA
$350 $360 $350 $315 $315 $235 $235 $150

Engineering Services During Construction
Task 1.  Project Management (20 Months) 50 40 20 110 $33,100 $0 $33,100
Task 2.  Project Meetings 18 28 8 54 $17,000 $50 $55 $17,055
Task 3.  Respond to Requests for Information (10) 8 24 4 4 40 $12,560 $0 $12,560
Task 4.  Review Submittals (50) and Resubmittals (25) 24 16 96 24 90 250 $72,950 $0 $72,950
Task 5.  Plan Revisions (2) 6 6 12 8 32 $9,860 $0 $9,860
Task 6.  CCTV & CIPP Evaluation for Siphon Barrels (S3, S5, & S18) 10 6 4 28 18 66 $20,110 $320 $352 $20,462
Task 7.  Prepare Record Drawings (electronic) & Consolidated Construction Files 16 8 8 32 8 16 90 178 $48,790 $0 $48,790

Subtotal: 132 14 34 260 36 136 98 20 730 $214,370 $370 $407 $214,777

TOTAL 132 14 34 260 36 136 98 20 730 $214,370 $370 $407 $214,777 
Notes:
1. The individual hourly rates include salary, overhead and profit.
2. Subconsultants will be billed at actual cost plus 10%.
3. Other direct costs (ODCs) such as reproduction, delivery, mileage (rates will be those allowed by current IRS guidelines), and travel expenses, will be billed at actual cost plus 10%,
4. Woodard & Curran will not adjust its hourly rate structure during proposed contract schedule (Ending March 2026).

Total ODCs
(3)

Total 
FeeODCsProject Role 

Billing Rate

Total 
Hours

Total Labor 
Costs

(1)

Page 1 of 1
A - 6



STAFF TYPE HOURLY RATE

Administrative / Administrative Assistant $140 

Drafter / Project Assistant / Technician 1 $150 

Designer 1 / Geologist 1 / GIS Analyst 1 / Planner 1 / Scientist 1 / Technician 2 $155 

Graphic Artist / Project Specialist $170 

Designer 2 / Geologist 2 / GIS Analyst 2 / Scientist 2 / Specifications Manager $180 

Graphics Manager / Senior Project Assistant $200 

Engineer 1 / Planner 2 / Technical Specialist 1 / Technician 3 $210 

Contract Document Specialist / Geologist 3 / GIS Analyst 3 / Scientist 3 $220 

Designer 3 / Engineer 2 / Plant Manager / Procurement Specialist / Programmer 1 / 

Project Geologist 1 / Project Scientist 1 / Technical Specialist 2
$235 

Engineer 3 / GIS Solutions Analyst / Planner 3 / Programmer 2 / 

Technical Specialist 3
$265 

Programmer 3 / Project Geologist 2 / Project Scientist 2 / Project Tech Specialist 1 / 

Senior Designer
$270 

Project Electrical Engineer 1 / Project Engineer 1 / Project Planner 1 $280 

Project Engineer 2 / Project Planner 2 / Project Tech Specialist 2 / Senior Project Geologist / 

Senior Project Scientist / Senior Resident Project Representative
$290 

Senior Cost Estimator / Senior Planner $295 

GIS Manager / Project Manager 1 / Technical Manager 1 $315 

Construction Manager / Project Manager 2 / Technical Manager 2 $330 

Program Manager $340 

Senior Project Manager / Senior Technical Manager $350 

Senior Consultant $355 

Senior Delivery Leader / Senior Program Leader / Senior Technical Leader $360 

Principal in Charge $365 

National Practice Leader $380 

EXPENSES

Travel $0.67 / mile

Other Direct Costs At Cost Plus 15%

Subconsultants/Subcontractors At Cost Plus 15%

NOTES

Mileage rate will change as the federal allowable rate is modified.

Rate Schedule  

Public 2024

#6000

This rate schedule is confidential and for customer internal use only.

Woodard & Curran reserves the right to adjust billing rates annually.

Page 1 of 1  

A - 7

A - 7



ID Task Name Duration Start Finish

1 Sewer Siphon Improvements Ph. II - Design/Bid Phase 110.6 wks Tue 7/12/22 Mon 8/26/24

2 Notice to Proceed 0 days Tue 7/12/22 Tue 7/12/22

3 TASK 1:  PROJECT MANAGEMENT 104 wks Tue 7/12/22 Wed 7/10/24

8 TASK 2:  PRELIMINARY DESIGN 30.7 wks Thu 7/21/22 Tue 2/21/23

40 TASK 3:  FINAL DESIGN 70.9 wks Tue 2/21/23 Wed 7/3/24

59 TASK 4:  ADDENDA PREP. & PRE-BID MEETING 5.6 wks Thu 7/18/24 Mon 8/26/24

60 Bid Advertisement (28 days) 0 days Thu 7/18/24 Thu 7/18/24

61 Prepare Addenda 4 wks Thu 7/18/24 Wed 8/14/24

62 Pre-Bid Meeting 0 days Wed 7/31/24 Wed 7/31/24

63 Bid Opening 0 days Mon 8/26/24 Mon 8/26/24

64 TASK 5:  OPTIONAL TASKS 13.6 wks Mon 9/18/23 Wed 12/20/23

70 Construction Award (IRWD Board - 2nd or 4th Monday) 0 days Mon 10/14/24 Mon 10/14/24

71 Construction Phase 74.1 wks Tue 10/15/24 Tue 3/17/26

72 Award/ Contracting 3 wks Tue 10/15/24 Mon 11/4/24

73 Contractor NTP 0 wks Mon 11/4/24 Mon 11/4/24

74 Pre-Construction Meeting 1 wk Tue 11/5/24 Mon 11/11/24

75 Initial Shop Drawing Preparation and Review 8 wks Tue 11/12/24 Mon 1/6/25

76 Material Procurement 6 wks Tue 12/17/24 Mon 1/27/25

77 S3 Michelson/Riparian Improvements 21 wks Tue 12/24/24 Mon 5/19/25

90 S5 Jamboree/Main Improvements 10.4 wks Tue 1/7/25 Wed 3/19/25

99 S8 Jeffrey/Alton Improvements 17 wks Thu 3/20/25 Wed 7/16/25

109 S9 Sand Canyon/Barranca Improvements 14 wks Tue 5/20/25 Mon 8/25/25

118 S18 Harvard/University Improvements 10.5 wks Thu 7/17/25 Mon 9/29/25

131 S16 University/Milano Improvements 10 wks Tue 8/26/25 Mon 11/3/25

144 S1 San Diego Creek/University Improvements 16 wks Tue 9/30/25 Tue 1/20/26

154 Closeout and Schedule Float 8 wks Tue 1/20/26 Tue 3/17/26

155 Float for Potential Wet Weather 5 wks Tue 1/20/26 Tue 2/24/26

156 Prepare Record Drawings 3 wks Tue 2/24/26 Tue 3/17/26

157 Project Closeout Meeting 0 wks Tue 3/17/26 Tue 3/17/26

7/18

7/31

8/26

10/14

11/4

3/17

Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar Apr

Qtr 3, 2024 Qtr 4, 2024 Qtr 1, 2025 Qtr 2, 2025 Qtr 3, 2025 Qtr 4, 2025 Qtr 1, 2026 Qtr 2, 2026

Date: Thu 7/18/24 Project Construction Schedule

IRWD Sewer Siphon Improvements Phase II

Page 1 of 1 
A - 8



��������	�
���	��������
���������������������������	���������������������������� !! !�!��!"����#����$�

�&	��'���

Exhibit "B"

B - 1

Laura Gates
Rectangle



��������	�
���	��������
���������������������������	���������������������������� !! !�!��!"����#����$�

�&	��'���B - 2

Laura Gates
Rectangle


	Agenda
	No. 5 Minutes
	No. 5. Exhibit A - Minutes 08.26.2024
	No. 6 Treasury Report
	No. 6. Exhibit A_Treasury Investment Summary Report
	Exhibit A - 1
	Exhibit A - 2 and A - 3
	Exhibit A - 4
	Exhibit A - 5
	Exhibit A - 6

	No. 6. Exhibit B_Treasury Summary of Fixed and Variable Debt
	Exhibit B - 1
	Exhibit B - 2

	No. 6. Exhibit C_Treasury Monthly Interest Rate Swap Summary
	No. 6. Exhibit D_Treasury Monthly Summary of District Disbursements
	No. 6. Exhibit E_Treasury Monthly Payroll ACH Summary
	No. 6. Exhibit F_Treasury Disclosure Rpt_AUG'2024
	IRWD_AP_Gov_Code_53065_5_Discl_

	No. 7 2024 Legislative Update- Board- September
	No. 7. Exhibit A_IRWD 2024 Legislative Matrix Updated 9.19.24
	No. 8 Silverado Canyon Bridge 174 Construction Award
	No. 8. Exhibit A_Silverado Canyon Bridge 174 Construction Award Map
	No. 8. Exhibit B_Silverado Canyon Bridge 174 Construction Award Bid Results
	No. 9 Serrano Creek Raw Water Pipeline Replacement Final Acceptance
	No. 9. Exhibit A_Serrano Creek Raw Water Replacement Final Acceptance
	PR 12423

	No. 10 RW Pipeline Replacement Technology and Ada Consultant Selection
	No. 10. Exhibit A_RW Pipeline Replacement Technology and Ada Consultant Selection Location Map
	No. 10. Exhibit B_RW Pipeline Replacement Technology and Ada Consultant Selection Evaluation Matrix
	Sheet 1

	No. 10. Exhibit C_ RW Pipeline Replacement Technology and Ada Consultant Selection MKN Proposal
	No. 11 MWRP Programming Consultant Selection
	No. 11. Exhibit A_MWRP Programming Consultant Selection Matrix
	No. 11. Exhibit B_MWRP Programming Consultant Selection Scope and Fee
	No. 12 On-Call Environmental Consultants
	No. 12. Exhibit A_On-Call CEQA NEPA Services Eval
	No. 12. Exhibit B_Monitoring and Permitting Services Eval
	No. 12. Exhibit C_ESA Proposal for On-Call CEQA-NEPA Services
	IRWD: On-Call CEQA and NEPA Consultation
	Cover Letter
	Introduction
	Section 1: Scope of Work
	Management Approach
	Technical Approach

	Section 2: Team
	Section 3: References
	Section 4: Schedule
	Section 5: Fee Schedule
	Section 6: Joint Venture
	Section 7: Conflict of Interest
	Section 8: Insurance Requirements
	Section 9: Sample Contract

	No. 12. Exhibit D_Psomas Proposal CEQA_NEPA Services
	Firm Profile
	Scope
	Approach
	Project Controls 

	Team
	References
	Additional Items
	4. Schedule
	5. Budget
	6. Joint Venture
	7. Conflict of Interest
	8. Insurance
	9. Contract


	No. 12. Exhibit E_Rincon Proposal CEQA_NEPA Services
	No. 12. Exhibit F_Harmsworth Associates Proposal for Monitoring and Permitting Services
	No. 12. Exhibit G_Psomas Proposal for Monitoring and Permitting Services
	Firm Profile
	Scope
	Task 1: Land Use Planning
	Task 2: Regulatory Agency Consultation, Permit Application, and Procurement
	Task 3: Wetland Delineation
	Task 4: Biological Survey, Monitoring, Assessment
	Task 5: Threatened and Endangered Species Regulation, Monitoring, and Reporting
	Task 6: Mitigation Monitoring and Reporting
	Task 7: Water Quality, Stormwater Monitoring, and Reporting
	Task 8: Natural Treatment System
	Task 9: Natural Community Conservation Plan/Habitat Conservation Plan 

	Team
	References
	Additional Items
	4. Schedule
	5. Budget
	6. Joint Venture
	7. Conflict of Interest
	8. Insurance
	9. Contract


	No. 12. Exhibit H_ESA Proposal Biological Monitoring and Permitting Services
	On-Call Biological Monitoring and Permitting Services
	Cover Letter
	Introduction
	Section 1: Scope of Work
	Management Approach
	Technical Approach

	Section 2: Team
	Section 3: Reference
	Section 4: Schedule
	Section 5: Fee Schedule
	Section 6: Joint Venture
	Section 7: Conflict of Interest
	Section 8: Insurance
	Section 9: Contract

	No. 13 Sewer Siphon Phase II Variance and Construction Award
	No. 13. Exhibit A_Sewer Siphon Phase II W&C Variance No. 1
	IRVINE RANCH WATER DISTRICT
	PROFESSIONAL SERVICES VARIANCE

	Total $ =

	No. 13. Exhibit B_ Sewer Siphon Phase II Bid Results



